
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              September 6, 2022 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 
224 North Edwards 

Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

September 6, 2022 - 8:30 AM 

  
  

1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) (Comments may be time-
limited.) 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957 – Title: Public Works Director. 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County 
Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association 
(ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; 
Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. 
County designated representatives – Administrative Officer Leslie Chapman, 
Assistant County Administrators Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy 
Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Health and Human 
Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 

  
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. 
Individual Board members may participate remotely in accordance with applicable open meeting law 
requirements. In-person meetings will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public 
Health orders and guidance and requirements of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health 
(CalOSHA).  

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be 
accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 
205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general public comment or 
a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in 
writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call 
on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a 
part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              September 6, 2022 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
  

 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

  7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
  

 

  8. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Ann Harrison, Office Tech III, Information Services; Sara Alden, Integrated Case 
Worker, Gustavo Ortiz, Bilingual Clerk, Nicholas Pfaff, Social Worker IV, and Alexeya 
Williams, Prevention Specialist, HHS. 

  
 

  9. PROCLAMATION - Supervisor Roeser - Request Board approve a proclamation 
declaring September 11, 2022 Patriot Day in Inyo County. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; approval 
recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
  

10. Auditor-Controller - Request Board adopt proposed Resolution 2022-30, accepting 
the calculations of the appropriation limitation for the County of Inyo for Fiscal Year 
2022-2023. 

  
  

11. Auditor-Controller - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2022-31, setting the 
property tax rates for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, per California Government Code 
Section 29100. 

  
  

12. County Administrator - Economic Development - Request Board renew 
delegation of authority for the purchasing agent to lease or rent County-owned 
property pursuant to Inyo County Code Section 6.24.030. 

  
  

13. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board discuss and 
consider staff's recommendation to terminate the local emergency that was 
proclaimed in response to the extreme winds in April 2022. 

  
  

14. County Administrator - Information Services - Request Board: A) declare 
Maverick Networks, Inc., of Pleasanton, CA, a sole-source provider; B) approve the 
licensing and support agreement between the County of Inyo and Maverick 
Networks, Inc., of Pleasanton, CA for the provision of Mitel telephone system annual 
software licensing and hardware maintenance services in an amount not to exceed 
$66,350 for the period of September 17, 2022 through September 16, 2027, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

15. County Counsel - Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 that: A) the 
Board reconsidered the circumstances of the existing State of Emergency issued on 
March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and B) local officials 
continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of 
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in 
person. 

  
 
 
  

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              September 6, 2022 

 
16. Health & Human Services - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2022-32, titled, 

“A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, 
Repealing Resolution No. 1992-35 and Establishing Certain Procedures Pertaining to 
the Inyo County Child Abuse Prevention Council," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign. 

  
  

17. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board approve the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Angela DaRe of Jackson, CA for the 
provision of Crisis Care Mobile Unit (CCMU) Consulting Services in an amount not to 
exceed $155,000.00 for the period of September 6, 2022, through February 14, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

  
  

18. Health & Human Services - First 5 - Request Board ratify and approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Bishop Indian Head Start of Bishop, CA, for the 
provision of First 5 Community Grant services in an amount not to exceed $13,000 
for the period of September 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

19. Health & Human Services - First 5 - Request Board ratify and approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Discovery Point Preschool of Bishop, CA, for the 
provision of First 5 Community Grant services in an amount not to exceed $17,000 
for the period of September 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

20. Health & Human Services - Social Services - Request Board: A) declare 
Thurmond Consulting, LLC of Sacramento, CA a sole-source provider; B) ratify and 
approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Thurmond Consulting, LLC of 
Sacramento, CA  for the provision of Continuum of Care Grants Management 
consulting services in an amount not to exceed $42,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Budget; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

21. Probation - Request Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Sacred Rok of Yosemite, CA for the provision of nature education and mentoring in 
an amount not to exceed $45,000 for the period of October 1, 2022 through April 30, 
2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

22. Public Works - Request Board authorize the Public Works Director to sign Change 
Order No. 1 (Task Order 8) to the design contract between the County of Inyo and 
Eastern Sierra Engineering of Reno, NV, increasing the original contract amount of 
$137,956.17 by $16,574 to a total of $154,530.17. 

  
  

23. Public Works - Request Board: A) approve the plans and specifications for the Diaz 
ADA Boat Dock Project and authorize the Public Works Director to advertise the 
project; and B) authorize the use of Geothermal Royalties to fund the project beyond 
the available remaining grant. 

  
  

24. Public Works - Request Board: A) approve the contract between the County of Inyo 
and American Asphalt South, Inc. of Riverside, CA for the provision of microfiber 
slurry seal asphalt coatings in an amount not to exceed $457,167.30 for the period of 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              September 6, 2022 

September 6, 2022 through December 31, 2022, contingent upon the Board's 
approval of the FY 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained; and B) authorize the 
Public Works Director to execute all other project contract documents, including 
contract change orders, to the extent permitted by Public Contract Code Section 
20142 and other applicable laws. 

  
  

25. Public Works - Airports - Request Board approve proposed Resolution No. 2022-
33, titled, “A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Independence 
Airport Hangar Demolition," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

26. Public Works - Road Department - Request Board receive written report regarding 
emergency purchase of John Deere hydraulic pump and accessories. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

  
27. Water Department - Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valley 

Groundwater Authority representatives in advance of the Owens Valley Groundwater 
Authority meeting scheduled for September 15, 2022. 

  
  

28. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board discuss and 
consider staff's recommendation to continue the local emergency proclaimed in 
response to flash flooding in Death Valley National Park in August 2022.  

  
  

29. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board discuss and 
consider staff's recommendation to continue the local emergency that was 
proclaimed in response to the Fairview Fire in July 2022. 

  
  

30. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board discuss and 
consider staff's recommendation to terminate the local emergency known as the 
"Here It Comes Emergency" that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions 
from near record snowpack in 2017 posing extreme peril to the safety of property and 
persons in Inyo County. 

  
  

31. County Administrator - Risk Management - Request Board waive further reading 
of proposed Ordinance 1287, titled, “An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo, State of California, Amending Subsection (B) of Section 1.28.040 of 
the Inyo County Code, Pertaining to Delegation of Authority to Compromise or Settle 
Claims Against the County," and schedule enactment for September 20, 2022, in the 
Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, Independence. 

  
  

32. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of August 16, 2022. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

1 P.M. 33. Board of Equalization - The Board will recess and reconvene as the Inyo County 
Board of Equalization (separate agenda). 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  34. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       5                                                                                                              September 6, 2022 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

CORRESPONDENCE - ACTION  
  

 

  35. Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Commission - Request Board consider and approve 
the request from the Bishop Area Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau for 
$5,000 from the Fine Fund to help support production of a new Inyo County Fishing 
Map Brochure, contingent on the approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. 

  
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

  
36. Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Status Report - Quarter Ending June 30, 2022 

  
 

  37. California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control - A) Application for 
Premises to Premises Transfer of On-Sale General Public Premises License from 
Jon William Zellhoefer to Jon William Zellhoefer for Diamond Lil's, 59 Old Spanish 
Trail, Suite F, Tecopa, CA; B) Application for Fiduciary Transfer of Small Beer 
Manufacturer License from Jon William Zellhoefer to Cheryl Kay Zellhoefer for Death 
Valley Brewing, 59 Old Spanish Trail Building 1, Suite A, Tecopa, CA. 

  
 

 



PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 
COUNTY OF INYO,

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
DECLARING SEPTEMBER 11, 2022 PATRIOT DAY AND 

A DAY OF SERVICE AND REMEMBRANCE

WHEREAS, many Americans vividly recall the precise moment 21 years ago when terrorists 
killed thousands of our fellow Americans at the World Trade Center in New York City; at the 
Pentagon in Arlington, Virginia; and on a quiet field in Shanksville, Pennsylvania; and

WHEREAS, the horrific events of that day caused stark disbelief, agonizing sorrow, and 
profound suffering around the world, but America’s strength, courage, and compassion never 
wavered; and 

WHEREAS, first responders instantly rushed into harm’s way on the morning of September 11, 
2001 to save their fellow Americans from the wreckage of the attacks; the passengers of 
United Flight 93 decisively fought back and saved countless lives at the cost of their own; and 
Americans across the country provided aid, assistance, and comfort to those in need; and

WHEREAS, against the backdrop of cowardly acts of terror, America once again demonstrated 
to the world the unmatched strength of our resolve and the indomitable power of our 
character; and

WHEREAS, every September 11 since, we solemnly remember the nearly 3,000 people who 
perished in those terrorist attacks, and with gratitude we honor the brave first responders, 
resolute members of our military, and ordinary Americans who showed extraordinary courage 
to save others on that fateful day; and

WHEREAS, we will always be grateful for the heroic men and women of our Armed Forces who 
fought in defense of our country in the aftermath of the largest attack on American soil, and 
we will never forget those who made the ultimate sacrifice to defend our liberty and freedom. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors does hereby proclaim September 11, 
2021 as Patriot Day and a Day of Service and Remembrance in Inyo County, and calls upon all 



departments and agencies of Inyo County to display the flag of the United States at half-staff 
on Patriot Day in honor of the individuals who lost their lives on September 11, 2001;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
calls upon the people of Inyo to participate in community service in honor of those our Nation 
lost, to appropriately observe this day with remembrance services, and to observe a moment 
of silence beginning at 8:46 a.m. Eastern Daylight Time to honor the innocent victims who 
perished as a result of the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2022, by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors.

Dan Totheroh,
Chairperson, 

County of Inyo Board of Supervisors
Attest:  LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
           Clerk of the Board

By:_____________________________            
            Assistant Clerk of the Board



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Auditor-Controller 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Amy Shepherd 
  
SUBJECT:  2022-2023 GANN Appropriation Limit for Property Taxwa 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board adopt proposed Resolution 2022-30, accepting the calculations of the appropriation limitation for 
the County of Inyo for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The “appropriation limit” established by Article XIII-B of the State Constitution, effective July 1, 1980, and 
amended by Proposition 111 as of June 1990, has been calculated by the Auditor-Controller for the 2022-2023 
fiscal year. The calculation was performed pursuant to the “Article XIII-B Appropriation Procedure Guidelines for 
California Counties” written by the Accounting Standards and Procedures Committee, November 1990. The 
2022-2023 calculated GANN Limit is $54,159,089.00. 
  
The County is well within its appropriation limit using the Prop. 111 alternative indexes. The current “cushion” 
between the 2022-2023  proposed proceeds of taxes, $21,525,243.00 and the calculated 2022-202 limitation is 
$32,633,846.00 
 
On November 6, 1979, the California Electorate approved Proposition 4, also known as the Gann Amendment. At 
that time, Proposition 4 then became Article XIII-B of the California Constitution. In June of 1990, the voters 
passed Proposition 111, which updates the States’ appropriation limit to allow for new funding for priority State 
programs, while still providing an overall limit on State and local spending. The Prop. 111 amendment allowed for 
an alternative index and additional appropriation exemptions. 
  
After reviewing the County’s Proposed Budget including estimated tax revenues and associated costs by 
functional grouping, the Auditor-Controller has determined that the 2022-2023 Proposed Budget is within the 
“appropriation limit.”   
  
Periodic review of actual revenues and expenditures will be made during the year in order to insure that the 
County remains in compliance with Article XIII-B. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
 
 
 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Not adopt the resolution accepting the Gann limit calculation. This is not recommended since the Gann limit 
applies under Article XIII of the California Constitution whether the calculation has been accepted by resolution or 
not. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None 
  
FINANCING:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. GANN Limit Resolution 2022-30 
2. GANN Limit 2022-2023 Attachment A Page 1 
3. GANN Proceed from Taxes Calculation 
  
APPROVALS: 
Christie Martindale Created/Initiated - 8/8/2022 
Leslie Chapman Approved - 8/30/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/30/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/30/2022 



1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2022 - 30 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE COUNTY OF INYO, CALIFORNIA 

ESTABLISHING FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 APPROPRIATION LIMIT UNDER 
ARTICLE XIII OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION, AND ESTABLISHING 

PERIOD FOR CONTESTING SUCH LIMITS FOR THE COUNTY AND BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS GOVERNED SPECIAL DISTRICTS 

 

 
 WHEREAS Article XIII B of the California Constitution provides that the 
state and each local government shall be subject to an annual appropriation limit 
as defined in that Article; and 
 
 WHEREAS Article XIII B Section 8(e)(2) requires the Governing Body to 
select the Change in Cost-of-Living methodology each year by recorded vote; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS the percentage change in California Per Capita Income 
provides the greatest result rather than using the change in the Local 
Assessment roll from the preceding year due to the addition of non-residential 
new construction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Auditor-Controller of the County of Inyo has computed the 
appropriations limit for the fiscal year 2022-2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Auditor-Controller of the County of Inyo has prepared the 
applicable Statement showing the calculation and such detail Statement are 
available for public review during reasonable hours and after reasonable notice in 
the Auditor-Controller’s Office: 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County of Inyo selects 
the percentage change in California Per Capita Income and the percentage 
change in the population of the contiguous counties methodology for use in 
calculating its appropriation limit for fiscal year 2022-2023 and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 
appropriations limit for the County of Inyo for the fiscal year 2022-2023 as shown 
on Attachment A is hereby established as $54,159,089.00.and such 
appropriations limit may be adjusted at a later date in accordance with Sections 3 
and 11 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution and 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the appropriations limit for the County 
for the fiscal year 2022-2023 may be adjusted at a later date in the event that 
revenues which are unanticipated and classified as proceeds of taxes in 
accordance with Section 8(c) of Article XIII B of the California Constitution, are 
received and appropriated. 
 
 



2 of 2 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any judicial action or proceeding to 

attach, review, set aside, void or annul the appropriations limits established by 
this resolution shall be commenced within 45 days from the date of this resolution 
in accordance with Section 7910 of the Government Code. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California this      , by the following 
vote: 
 

          AYES: 
          NOES: 
          ABSENT: 
          ABSTAIN: 
            
                                                                    

                                                                 Dan Totheroh, Chairperson 
                                                                       Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
Attest: Leslie Chapman 
        Clerk of the Board 
 
By:         

 Darcy Ellis 
            Assistant Clerk of the Board                                        

 
 
 
 
 



2020-2021 Population Per Capita 2021-2022 Population Per Capita 2022-2023

Limit Change Change Limit Change Change Limit

Big Pine Lighting 59,891.43          1.0004 1.0573 63,348.54           0.9996 1.0755 68,104.10          

Independence Lighting 59,707.51          1.0004 1.0573 63,154.00           0.9996 1.0755 67,894.96          

Lone Pine Lighting 85,883.86          1.0004 1.0573 90,841.32           0.9996 1.0755 97,660.76          

Big Pine Fire 387,355.97        1.0004 1.0573 409,715.29         0.9996 1.0755 440,472.54        

Bishop Fire 608,520.75        1.0004 1.0573 643,646.35         0.9996 1.0755 691,964.75        

Independence Fire 265,904.02        1.0004 1.0573 281,252.78         0.9996 1.0755 302,366.37        

Lone Pine Fire 331,368.67        1.0004 1.0573 350,496.24         0.9996 1.0755 376,807.92        

Big Pine Cemetery 82,176.97          1.0004 1.0573 86,920.46           0.9996 1.0755 93,445.56          

Independence Cemetery 190,024.39        1.0004 1.0573 200,993.15         0.9996 1.0755 216,081.66        

Mt. Whitney Cemetery 132,156.05        1.0004 1.0573 139,784.48         0.9996 1.0755 150,278.08        

Pioneer Cemetery 491,954.88        1.0004 1.0573 520,351.95         0.9996 1.0755 559,414.67        

Tecopa Cemetery 13,792.85          1.0004 1.0573 14,589.01           0.9996 1.0755 15,684.21          

Darwin CSD 20,236.60          1.0004 1.0573 21,404.72           0.9996 1.0755 23,011.57          

Olancha CSD 164,175.16        1.0004 1.0573 173,651.82         0.9996 1.0755 186,687.83        

Westridge CSD 103,105.89        1.0004 1.0573 109,057.47         0.9996 1.0755 117,244.39        

-                      -                     

Southern Inyo Emergency 137,626.79        1.0004 1.0573 145,571.01         0.9996 1.0755 156,499.00        

INYO COUNTY 47,628,047.19   1.0004 1.0573 50,377,277.15    0.9996 1.0755 54,159,089.27   

Northern Inyo Healthcare 716,632.91         0.9996 1.0755 770,430.40        

                                                                                  ATTACHMENT A                                                                               

STATEMENT OF INYO COUNTY GANN LIMIT CALCULATIONS

FOR THE TAX YEAR 2022-2023

1



Projected 

FY 22-23

Current Secured Taxes - 4001 14,583,743                                           

Current Unsecured Taxes - 4004 1,180,000                                             

Current Unsecured Aircraft Tax - 4005 15,000                                                  

SB813 Distributions - 4008 100,000                                                

Sales Tax - 4062 & 4063 165,000                                                

Real Property Transfer Tax - 4082 115,000                                                

Transient Occupancy Tax - 4083 3,800,000                                             

Transaction & Use Tax - 4085 1,500,000                                             

Interest on Tax Funds - 4303 500                                                       

Homeowners Property Tax Relief - 4472 66,000                                                  

21,525,243                                           

2021-2022 Limitation (Using Per Capita personal Income % Change)50,377,277                                              

2021-2022 Population Factor 0.9996

2021-2022 Per Capita Factor 1.0755

2022-2023 Appropriation Limit 54,159,089                                              

2022-2023 Proceeds of Taxes (21,525,243)                                             

     Amount Under Limitation 32,633,846                                              

GANN Limit Calculation

Based on Projected Revenues

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Auditor-Controller 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Amy Shepherd 
  
SUBJECT:  2022-2023 Property Tax Rates 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2022-31, setting the property tax rates for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, per 
California Government Code Section 29100. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
Each fiscal year, the Auditor-Controller’s Office calculates the appropriate tax rate necessary to collect the 
amount needed for debt service for that year. This is accomplished through use of assessed valuation reports 
from the Assessor’s Office and the State Board of Equalization in conjunction with fund balances available and 
debt repayment schedules. The tax rates, as calculated by the Auditor-Controller’s Office, include the countywide 
rate of 1.000000%, are on the attached resolution. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
If your Board did not adopt the tax rates, the tax proceeds for the County would be $0. The estimated amount for 
FY 2022-2023 general fund revenue secured taxes, totals $13,542,686.00. To not adopt the rates will have a 
significant negative fiscal impact on many agencies, departments, programs, and special districts. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
School district and many special districts receive property tax revenues as they are distributed to each tax-
receiving agency based on a schedule developed by the Auditor-Controller’s Office in accordance with R & T 
Codes pertaining to property tax. 
  
FINANCING: 
As stated above, Inyo County, as well as the affected special districts, derives a significant amount of 
discretionary revenue from property taxes. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Tax Rate Resolution 2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
APPROVALS: 
Christie Martindale Created/Initiated - 8/31/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/31/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/31/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/31/2022 



RESOLUTION 2022-31 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE COUNTY OF INYO, CALIFORNIA  

ADOPTING TAX RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 29100 

 
          WHEREAS, Section 29100 of the California Government Code requires that the Board 
of Supervisors adopt rates of taxes on the secured roll not to exceed the 1-percent limitation 
specified in Article XIII A of the Constitution of the State of California and Sections 93 and  
100 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California; and 
 
          WHEREAS, the Auditor-Controller has caused to be calculated the amount of tax 
needed to be raised to support the annual debt requirements of voter-approved indebtedness 
after due allowance for delinquency and other matters, as specified in Government Code 
Section 29100. 
 
          NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
does hereby adopt the tax rates on the Secured Property Tax Roll for the fiscal year 2022-
2023 as follows: 

 County Wide        1.00000000% 

 Big Pine Unified School District - 2005 Debt   0.04116782%  

 Bishop Elementary – 2000 Debt and 2016 Refunding        0.01712208%  

 Bishop Unified – 2000 Debt and 2016 Refunding               0.00747684%        

 Owens Valley Unified School District – 2014 Refunding     0.04354736%  

 Round Valley Elementary – 1999 Debt                  0.02883931%  

 Northern Inyo Hospital District – 2005 & 2015 Refunding  0.05347359%  

 Unitary & Operating Non-Unitary                                         0.22145984%  

 Northern Inyo Hospital – Gann Limit Refund                          (0.01076977) %  

        

          PASSED AND ADOPTED this        September 2022 by the following vote: 

          AYES: 

          NOES: 

          ABSENT: 

          ABSTAIN: 

                                                             
                                                                            Dan Totheroh, Chairperson 
                                                                     Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Attest: Leslie Chapman, Clerk of the Board 

 

By:              

            Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board                                        



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Economic 
Development 

  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Meaghan McCamman 
  
SUBJECT:  Renewal of Delegation of Leasing and Rental Authority 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board renew delegation of authority for the purchasing agent to lease or rent County-owned property 
pursuant to Inyo County Code Section 6.24.030. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
Inyo County Code section 6.24.030 delegates to the purchasing agent (the CAO) the authority to lease or rent 
County property subject to certain limitations. The basis upon which the Board is able to delegate that authority is 
found in Government Code Section 25537. Government Code 25537 limits the duration of that delegated 
authority to five (5) year increments. As such, this agenda item is for your Board to renew that delegated 
authority. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not renew this authority and any proposed lease or rental of County property would 
need to come before your Board for approval. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING: 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
John Vallejo Created/Initiated - 8/25/2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/25/2022 
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 8/25/2022 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 8/25/2022 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Emergency Services 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Mikaela Torres 
  
SUBJECT:  Termination of Local Emergency 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation to terminate the local emergency that was 
proclaimed in response to the extreme winds in April 2022. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
During your April 12, 2022 Board of Supervisors meeting, your Board took action to approve Urgency Item 
20220412, proclaiming the existence of a local emergency. The local emergency was proclaimed in response to 
the extreme winds in south county on April 11. 
 
Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency. Staff recommends the Board conclude this 
review, terminate this local emergency, and move the County from the Response stage to the Recovery stage of 
the April 11, 2022 wind event.   
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. April 12, 2022 Emergency Declaration 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/30/2022 
Mikaela Torres Approved - 8/30/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

John Vallejo Approved - 8/30/2022 
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 8/31/2022 



DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES
FOR THE COUNTY OF INyOo STATE OF CALIFORNIA'

PROCLAIMING EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630 and Section 2.56.060 of the Inyo County Code empowers
the Board of Supervisors to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local emergency when
Inyo County is threatened or likely to be threatened existence of a local emergency when the County is
affected or likely to be affected by a public calamity; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors has been requested by the Inyo County Director of
Emergency Services to proclaim the existence of a local emergency in Inyo County;

WHEREAS, beginning April ll,2022,low pressure phenomena swept across Inyo County bringing
high winds, severely impacting portions of Inyo County; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors does find that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons
and property have arisen within the county, caused by extreme winds, sustaining 70-80 miles per hour
with gusts up to 100 miles per hour, resulting in downed trees and power lines and blowing debris; and,

WHEREAS, the downed trees-have severely damaged access to County roads and roofs to County
infrastructure; residential homes and infrastructure, leaving several residents blocked in their homes,
some of whom are disabled; and,

WHEREAS, the Fort Independence Tribal Reservation also sustained significant damage and
destruction by downed trees to homes and other infrastructure; and,

WHEREAS, access and usage of the County Airport was blocked due to concerns of debris on the
runway and damage and destruction to Airport infrastructure; and,

WHEREAS, removal of the trees and debris, restoring the roadway, and repairing all damages to
infrastructures are beyond the capacity and control of the services, personnel, equipment, facilities and
fiscal resources of the County of Inyo; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that for the reasons set forth
above, a local emergency now exists throughout Inyo County; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED that during the existence of said
local emergency, the powers, functions, and duties of the Inyo County Emergency Services Manager
and the emergency organization of this County shall be those prescribed by state law, Chapter 2.56 of
the Inyo County Code, and such other orders as this Board may make during said emergency.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, PROCLAIMED, AND ORDERED that said local emergency shall
be deemed to continue to exist until its termination is proclaimed by the Board of Supervisors of the
County of Inyo, State of Califomia.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of April2022 by the following vote of said board:

County of Inyo
Proclamation of Local Enrergency

April 12,2022
Page I of2



Chair, Board of Supervisors
County of Inyo

Attest: Clerk of the Board Leslie Chapman

By
ClerkDarcy

County oflnyo
Proclamation of Local Emergency

April 12,2022
Page2 af2



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Information Services 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Scott Armstrong 
  
SUBJECT:  Maverick Networks Support Agreement for Mitel Phone System 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) declare Maverick Networks, Inc., of Pleasanton, CA, a sole-source provider; B) approve the 
licensing and support agreement between the County of Inyo and Maverick Networks, Inc., of Pleasanton, CA for 
the provision of Mitel telephone system annual software licensing and hardware maintenance services in an 
amount not to exceed $66,350 for the period of September 17, 2022 through September 16, 2027, contingent 
upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The County entered into an agreement with Maverick in June, 2019 to implement a new Mitel Voice-over-IP 
telephone system.  The initial year of licensing and support was included in that agreement, and this is a 
continuation of the software licensing and hardware support services. The annual support agreement is $12,000 
and automatically renews for 4 subsequent years with a maximum increase of 5% per year. 
 
Sole Source Justification: 
- The proposed contractor has prior experience of a highly specialized nature that is vital to the proposed effort: 
 Maverick Networks, Inc., installed and configured our Mitel telephone system and is uniquely experienced in 
resolving issues with our telephone system. 
- The proposed contractor has a substantial investment that would have to be duplicated at the County’s expense 
by another contractor entering the field:  If we were to establish a hardware and software maintenance 
agreement with a different vendor, it is likely that we would encounter significant challenges in resolving issues, 
as the different vendor would need considerable time to examine and document the system configurations. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
This maintenance agreement is a continuation of the support provided Maverick Networks, Inc., as a result of the 
approval of the County's Phone System Replacement Project approved by your Board on June 25, 2019 (Agenda 
Item #13). 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
FINANCING: 
The cost for the annual licensing and support is requested in the Information Services 2022-2023 Fiscal Year 
11801 budget, object code 5177, Maintenance of Computer Systems. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Maintenence Agreement - County of Inyo - 2022 
2. Maintenence Agreement Schedule A - County of Inyo - 2022 
3. Maverick Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Scott Armstrong Created/Initiated - 8/29/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/29/2022 
Scott Armstrong Approved - 8/29/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/29/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/30/2022 



 

This agreement is entered into between Maverick Networks Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Maverick Networks”) and
, (hereinafter referred to as “Customer”).  It is intended to constitute a master 

a)

b)

c)

a) neglect, theft, or accidental damage of the equipment;
b)

c)

d)

e) the use of supplies or materials not meeting Maverick Networks’ specifications; 
f) the use of the equipment for purposes other than those for which it was designed;
g) electrical work external to the equipment or service connected with equipment relocation, reconfiguration or additions;
h) cutoff of services to Customer by any utility;
i) acts of God.

Initial 

However, Maverick Networks accepts that Customer’s own personnel will perform routine maintenance to the systems, but 
retains the right to charge for labor time required to correct such changes if necessary.
the failure of Customer to provide and maintain a suitable installation environment at all facilities as prescribed by Maverick 
Networks (including, but not limited to, proper electrical power, air conditions, or humidity control);

 Maverick Networks will provide assistance with all large adds, moves and changes on either a bid or a time and materials 
basis;

on the first (1st) day of the contract period found on Schedule “A”, and shall be renewed automatically for up to four (4) successive equal 
terms thereafter until terminated in writing as provided herein. Each renewal of this Maintenance Agreement shall be subject to the same 
terms and conditions herein contained except that the service fee due Maverick Networks for each renewal period shall be at the rate then 
charged by Maverick Networks for similar maintenance services (Not to exceed 5% annual increase). Either party may terminate this 
Agreement by giving the other party written notice of termination thirty (30) days prior to any term anniversary date.

Maverick Networks will provide all new equipment and equipment not covered under this service agreement at its 
discounted maintenance contract customer pricing;

Customer will provide certain station level equipment and materials required for its remedial service such as jacks and cable; 
Maverick Networks will provide any required supplemental station level equipment on a time and materials basis.

5)  Excluded Services:  Maintenance service under this Agreement does not include any service after the equipment has been serviced, 
repaired, moved or relocated by other than Maverick Networks or authorized Maverick Networks agent.  Maintenance service also does 
not include repair or service required as a result of:

alterations or modifications to the equipment performed by other than Maverick Networks or authorized Maverick Networks 
agent;

Master Maintenance Agreement

County of Inyo
agreement the terms and conditions of which shall govern the routine telecommunications and/or network service relationship between 
Maverick Networks and Customer.
1)   Entire Agreement:  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof, and 
supersedes all prior discussion or agreements between the parties, whether oral or written.  Maverick Networks is not bound by any 
representation or inducements not set forth herein.

3)   Maintenance Fee:  The fee for maintenance services to be performed under this agreement is based upon the current configuration of 
the telecommunications and/or network systems at the relevant Customer facilities.  This amount and the terms of payment are set forth in 
the attached Schedule “A”.  Itemized lists of the equipment to be covered at each Customer facility are also included in Schedule “A”. 
However, whenever a substantial system reconfiguration occurs mid-year, either Maverick Networks or Customer may request a 
recalculation. A substantial system reconfiguration is defined as an increase or decrease of at a minum 25% of the system capacity of 
working components.

4)   Maintenance Services to Be Performed:  Maverick Networks agrees to furnish all parts and labor required to maintain the 
equipment in good working condition, without charge, during Maintenance Coverage Hours as described on the attached Maintenance 
Description.  Service required outside of the Maintenance Coverage Hours will be subject to our standard charges as set forth in Schedule 
A.  Maverick Networks agrees to replace or repair equipment parts as necessary without additional charge to Customer.  Replacement 
parts may include reconditioned parts.   Maintenance parts will be furnished on an exchange basis, and the parts that are replaced become 
the property of Maverick Networks.  Service provided under this Agreement does not guarantee uninterrupted operation.  Software 
upgrades that are non-emergencies will be a planned interrupted operation and scheduled after hours. In addition:

2) Term of Agreement and Renewal Clause:  The term of this Agreement shall be for a  period of one (1) year commencing



Signature Date Signature Date

Maverick Networks, Inc.
Customer
 

Print Name Title

6a)    Emergencies Defined:  1. Complete System Failure; 2. Inability to make or receive calls; 3. More than ten (10) stations are totally 
inoperable; 4. Call Center (ACD) group failure; 5. Attendant position failure; 6. Entire Trunk Group inoperative; 7. Any multi user (two 
or more) outage lasting longer than six (six) business hours; 8. System restarts and/or reboots; 9. Major System Alarm. All other Service 
Requests shall be deemed Non-Emergency maintenance.

6)     Response Times:  Maverick Networks will respond with remedial telephone initiated action to non-emergency telephone 
maintenance requests by the close of business, 5 PM PST, next business day.  If on-site maintenance is determined to be required in non-
emergency situations, Maverick Networks will provide this on-site maintenance by the close of business, 5 PM PST, next business day of 
the determination that it is required.  In emergency situations, Maverick Networks will respond with remedial telephone initiated action 
within three (3) hours.  If on-site maintenance is determined to be required in emergency situations, Maverick Networks will provide this 
on-site maintenance within three (3) hours of the determination that it is required.

7)       Equipment Access:  In the performance of all services set forth herein, Maverick Networks shall have, and Customer shall hereby 
grant, full and unrestricted access to the premises on which the equipment is located.  Maverick Networks’ responsibility to repair shall 
be limited to Customer’s side of the point of connection between Customer’s equipment and the utility service or long distance carriers.

Agreed and Accepted By:

County of Inyo

8)    Taxes:   In addition to the charges due under this Agreement, Customer agrees to pay amounts equal to any taxes resulting from the 
Agreement or any activities hereunder exclusive of taxes based upon Maverick Networks’ net income.

In the event Maverick Networks breaches any warranty, Customer’s exclusive remedy will be that Maverick Networks makes any 
necessary equipment adjustments, repairs or parts replacements to the equipment after Maverick Networks determines that the equipment 
does not conform to warranty.  In no event shall Maverick Networks, its agent and employees be liable for indirect, incidental or 
consequential damages including without limitation, any loss of business, damage or expense, whether or not Maverick Networks has 
received notice of the possibility or certainty of such damages or loss, directly or indirectly arising from Customer’s inability to use the 
equipment, either separately or in combination with any other equipment, form routing and programming errors, unauthorized trespass or 
programming, software and/or equipment, modem lines and long distance carrier services; and intrusions of the equipment by fraudulent 
callers, including, but not limited to, toll fraud and the unauthorized use of voice processors and voice mail systems.

10)   Miscellaneous:  This Agreement shall not be amended or altered unless such amendment or alteration is put in writing and 
approved, by signature, by the authorized representatives of all parties hereto.  In the event of any proceeding, voluntary or involuntary, in 
bankruptcy or insolvency by or against Customer, or in the event of the appointment, with or without Customer’s consent, of an assignee 
for the benefit of creditors, or of a receiver, Maverick Networks’ failure to exercise any of its rights herein shall not constitute or be 
deemed a waiver or forfeiture of such rights.  Customer expressly consents to jurisdiction within the State of California.  No delay or 
omission to exercise any right, power or remedy available to Maverick Networks upon any breach or default of Customer under this 
Agreement shall impair consent or approval of any kind or any breach or default, or any waiver of any provision of this Agreement will 
only be effective if in writing and approved and signed by both parties and shall be effective only to the extent set forth in writing. 

9)    Limitation of Liability:  In the performance of this Agreement, Maverick Networks shall be liable only for the expense of providing 
routine repair, replacement parts and maintenance service.  Further, no liability will arise if the performance of such service is prevented 
by declared government emergencies, civil disturbances, strikes or other causes beyond Maverick Networks’ control.  Customer agrees 
that neither Maverick Networks nor its agents and employees shall be liable for any loss or damage to the equipment or other property, 
injury or death of Customer’s agents, employees or customers arising in connection with the 

maintenance services provided by Maverick Networks under this Agreement unless such loss, damage, injury or death results solely from 
the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Maverick Networks’ agents or employees.  While Maverick Networks takes responsibility 
for providing satisfactory maintenance services, it makes no claim that it can maintain this equipment in a manner to prevent fraudulent 
intrusions including, but not limited to, toll fraud, and the unauthorized use of voice processors and voice mail systems. Therefore, no 
express or implied warranty is made against any such fraudulent uses that may be made of the equipment. 



and

IP Hardware COVERAGE BENEFITS:

Mitel 3300 ICP Controllers  1

Mitel T1/PRI Module 0 Break Fix Repair & Warranty - for term
Mitel Universal ASU 0

Mitel CX Analog Gateway 0 Mitel Core Hardware & Labor fully covered
Mitel 4 x 12 ONSP Cards 0

Mitel 24 Port ONSP cards 0 System Software Upgrades
 

Standard Software Assurance
 
24 x 7 x 365 Support

Software/Applications Covers App ID Records:

Software Assurance, includes: 1 3205587 ‐ MiVoice Business Reporter  

Base Software 36785143 ‐ UCCv4 ‐ ULM ‐ Mitel UCC

IP Licenses 44283656 ‐ Mitel ‐ EX Controller  

ACD Licenses 52517567 ‐ MiVBus Enterprise ISS SW  

Digital Link Licenses 56004768 ‐ MiCollab 

Teleworker Licenses 69301188 ‐ Mitel ‐ Border Gateway for ISS 

Mitel Contact Center Site #  

Mitel Call Recording Lock #  

Mitel Business Reporter 1

 

Mitel IP Desktop Devices

Mitel IP Phones 0 EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE:
Mitel PC Console SW 0 Mitel Telephone Sets
Mitel PKM's 0  
Mitel IP Conf Phone 0  

Services Price per year: $12,000.00
 

    

 Company

Signature - CEO Date Signature Date

Starting Date / Ending Date

Agreed and Accepted By:

Maverick Networks Inc. County of Inyo

Site Specific Schedule "A"

Master Maintenance Agreement is By and Between

Maverick Networks, Inc. County of Inyo
8353 Sierra Ave., Fontana, CA 92335

9/17/2022 thru 9/16/2023



In the Rooms of the Board of Superuisars
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIf Y, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 25'h day of June 2AB an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

lnformation
Seruices -
Maverick
Netwarks
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Totheroh to approve and award the
contract for the County's Phone System Replacement Project to Maverick Networks, lnc. in an
amount not to exceed 9265,086 and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried
unanimously.

lVtl'NESS my hand and the seal af said Board this 25th

nay o7 ,lyne, 2A I9

CLINT C, QUILTER
Clerk ol the Eoard of Supewisors

,r',it cl { , t
{-.1'^* 1..} "('.}ttuL

Routing

cc
Purchasing

Po$onnel
Auditor
cAo
Othar: lnfornallon SeMces
DATE: June 26,2019

t]t:



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
EConeent ElDeparlmental flConespondenceAction

n Scheduled Time for I Cbsed Session

Clerk's Use Only:
NUMBER

tb
n Puonc Hearing

I lnformational

FROM: CountyAdministrator- lnlormation Services

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: June 25, 2019

suzuEcr: Approve and Award the Phone System Replacement Project contract to Maverick Networks, lnc.

p g PARTbI E N rAL R EC O M M E N pA r t
[e0u9s1 

y-our Board approve and award ihe contract for the county's Phone System Replacement project contract to
Maverick Networks, lnc. in an amount not to exceed $265,088 and authorize the Cnairperion to sign.

SUMMARY DTSCUSSION:
The County's current telephone service is very expensive, telephone handset functionality is inconsistent throughout
the County facilities, replacement handsets ire no longer manufactured, and our voicemail system is no i|ngei
supported. There is a consensus in the county that we neid a new telephone system.

The planning for the Telephone. System Replacement Project began with four project brainstorming and planning
meetings each in Bishop and lndependence. The diverse group oflmpbyees coilaboratively identifiei the problemi
that we wanted to solve with a replacement phone systemf de,ietopeO trigi-tevet prolect goa]s to solve the lroblemsthat we identified, and documented specific technical ind functionatiequirJments t6 suppoi the project goals.

Following the planning- meetings, the group collaboratively developed a recommendation to pursue a Telephone
System Replacement Proiect in earnest. Using information from the recommendation and the planning meetings, we
developed.the language.for.a Telephone.system Replacement Prqect Request for proposals (RFp).-The RF-p was
posted at the end of september,20lB and pioposals were due in eaity November, 20,1g.

The Telephgne System, Replacernent Proiect RFP generated 13 responses, of which only 10 were fuly responsive to
the RFP. The evaluation team ranked the responsive proposals ind identified four fiiralists based on the criteria
outlined in the RFP. We invited the four finalisls. to- lnyo County to demonstrate their systems in person, allowing us to
verify that their systems truly satisfied our technicai and fudctional requirements a'nC to evaiuate the systjms to
determine which solution would be the best value for the County, The evaluation team determined that th-e solution
proposed by Maverick Networks, lnc. was the best value for the County.

Approximately 25 people representing most of the Departments across the County participated in the project planning
and evaluation activities.

ALI&RNAYYES:. Your Board could choose to not approve the request to award the contract to Maverick Networks,
lnc,, to avmrd the contract to a different vendor, or to direct staff to revise the RFP and start over. These alternatives are
not r€commended since we ere confident in the recommended vendofs ability to fulfill our requirements and sinee the
replacement phone system will save the County $150,000-$200,000 or more per year in telephone service costs.

OTTIEft AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Departments.

The Telephone System Replacement Project will affect and beneltt all

FINANCING: Funding is available in the lnformation Services budget {011802, Tetephone Replacement project).



Agenda Request
Page 2

DE PA RT $ ENT H EA D S'GA'A IURE;

COUNTY COUNSEL; AGREEMENTS. CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND
rcviawed and approwd by nunty ounsel prior to atbmhsion

L 1

CLOSED SESSION AND REIATED ITEMS (Must bB
lothe boadcleft.l

Approved:

AUDITORICONTROLLER: ANO RELATED ITEMS {Mrrsl be teii1iaywd and apryvod by the atditor<onfuollar prior la

f
lo baa'dcla/..}

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: be rcviewed and approved by the direc/rr ol persrlnnel sr,lioosANO
lhe

J tq

FEM{f@tust

(" l1
Wbr la

BUDGET OFFICER: (Musl be rcv{ew9d and appnvdd hy the budget afficer pftor lo subnnssrbn to the boatd

tr {h Approved: Date_

BUDGET REI.ATED ITEMS
elel./..)

A l, l,lt( )\"\ l,S

(Not
(Ihs

to be signed unlil
Original pluc l4 gtE

a.r.r' I ?,+J



AOREEIIIENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND MAVERICK NETWORKS, II.IC. FOR THE PROVISION OF

VOIP TELECOMMUNICATION SERVIGES
(Phone System Replacement Projectl

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, lhe County of lnyo (hereinafter refened to as'Count/) has he need for the
telecommunication services of Maverick Networks, lnc. of Pleasanton, CA, hereinafter refened to as
"Gontractof), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenantB, terms, and conditions hereinafter
contalned, he parlies hereby agree as follows;

TERMS AND CONOITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall fumish to $e County, those products and services set forh in Attachment A,
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. This Agreement addres$es both Contr€ctoCa
provision and completion of the Phone System Replacement Project End Contractor's subsequent
ongoing provision of maintenance and support services for thal completed Project for the remaining term
of the Agreement. The Phone System Replacement Project includes: Hardware Purchase, lnstallation
and Configuration Planning, Hardware and Soflware Configuration and Deploynent, System Performance
Measurement and Tuning, Tralning for System Administrators and End-Users, Complete Syslem
Documentation, and Project Status Communications as deecribed in Attachment A, "Scope of Work," and
Attachment A.1 'RFP Response,' wtrich are attached hereto and incorporated herein by refelence.
Contractor shall utilize Attachment B -Customer Acceptance Test Plan," to validate successful
implementation of the ProJect. Contractor shall provide all staffing and materials necessary to perform the
Scope of Work.

Services and vrork provided by the Contractor und€r this Agreement will be performed in a manner
consistent with the requirements and standads sstablished by appllcable federal, state, and County laws,
ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laran, ordinances, regulations, and resolufons include, but are
not limited b, hose vrrtrich are refened to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreoment shall be from June 25, 2019, until tr,relve months afier the date of first
site cutover, unless sooner terminated as provided below-

3. GONSIDERATION.

A. Gsmoansa{sn. Contractor shall be compensated for all seMces {including hardware
purchase) associated with the Phone System Replacement Project ("the Project") and the first year
(twelve months) of maintenance and support servlces in an amount not to exceed Two Hundred and
Sixty-Five Thousand, and Eighty-Six Dollars ($265,086). A cost summary, paynent schedule, and price
list for lhat Project is attached as Aftachment C and incorporated herein by this re{erence. ln the event
payments for the Proiect equal the "not to exceed" amount, Contractor shall provlde all services (and
hardware) required to complete the Project under this Agreement without lurlher compensatlon or cost
reimbursement.

Project Acceptance - The Gounty requires an acceptance period of at least 30 days subsequent to
the completion of the Project. During this 30-day period the system must perform wlthout interruption of
services and in compliance with all representations offered in the vendofs proposal. Should the system or
other associaled devices fail to perform satisfactorily, the 30-day time frame for acceptance will start over
until such time as the system performance is satisfactory for a period of 30 conseculive days. Final

County of lnyo Modlfled Slandard Contracl - No. 113
(lndependent Contr*tor)

Pagel ol22 06/47i2019



payment (including change orders) will be withheld, and the wananty period will not begin, until sptem
acceptance.

.. . B, _ TravelgAd Pgr Djgm. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expsnses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work under this Agreement, except to ihe extent that
such cosls are included in the total compensation ligures set forlh in paragiaph 3A above.'

C No eaOfiionel.Sonsids . Excepl as expressly provlded in this Agreernent, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compeniation, saiary, wages,
or olher type of remuneralion for servlces rendered under hls Agreement. Specifibaily, Gonlragoishallnot
be_entifled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, heaith insurance beneflts,
rclirement benefits, disability retirement benelib, slck leave, vacalion time, paid holidays, or oher paid leaves
of absenc,e of any type or kind whatsoever.

D'^ Limit.Urpn Amount ParaEh Undgr 4{Unemqnl. The total sum of all payments made by he
County to Conbactor for all seMces and work to be performed under this Agreement'sh-all not exceed Tlrn
Hundred_ and Sixty-Five Thousand and Eighty-Six dollars ($265,086.00) (herelnafter refened to as *contract
limit"). County expressly reserves he right io deny any paynent or reimbursement requested by Confi:actor
for seMces or work performed which is in excess of the contract limil.

E.. A[hg and. Jfll$g*!. Contractor shall submit to lhe County, ugon completion of each
rnilestone in lhe Payment Schedule set forttr on Attachment C, an invoice for he amount then due under the
Agreement' Wih lhe exception of Progress Payment 1 (the iniiial payment made upon contract execution),
each invoice shall inolude an itemized statement of all services and work performed by Conlraclor pursuant
to lhis Agreement for whlch a Progress Payment is then due. After lhe final payment has been made in lhat
schedule, eonlractor shall invoice County annually for ongoing support and maintenance sewices during
remaining lerm of the Agreement. County ahall make payment wiitrin gO days of its receipt of such ai
invoice by lhe ConFactor.

F. FederalaUdStateTexes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph {2) below, County will not wifrrhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security ftom any payments made by County til Contractor under the tenns
and condifons of this Agreernent.

- (2) County will wi8rhold Califomia State income taxes from payments made under this
Agrcement lo non-Califomia resident independent contractors when it is aniici-pated that lotal annual
payments to Confactor under this Agreement will exceed one housand four hundred ninety-nlne dollars
{s1,499.00). (3) Except as sei forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payrnents from sums paid by County to Contractor undgr this Agreement. Paynent ol all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Conlractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by Coung to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and ths Cilifomia
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitale tbis reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to ihe County
an lnternal Revenue service (lRS) Form w-9 upon executing thls Agreement.

1. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contnaclot's obligation is to perform, in a timely mann6r, those services and work identlfled in
Attachment A. lt is undersiood by Conlractor that the performance of these servicas and work will require a
varied schedule. Contractor will anange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to ensuie that
all servlces and wsrk requested by Coung under this Agreement will be performed within the ilme frame set
forh by County,

5- RECIU|RED LICENSES, CERT|F|CATES, AND PERM|TS.

County of lnyo Modified Standard Conlract - No. 1 13
(lndependent Contractor)

P4e2ot22 06107/2019



A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by ttre federal, state, @unty, or municipal
govemments for confactor to provide lhe services and vork described in Attachm€nt A must be procured by
Contraclor and be valid at lhe time Contmctor eniers into this Agreament or as othenrvise may be required.

furhel during the term of trrls Agreement, Contrador must mainlain such licenses, cerliftcates, and permits
in full foroe and effect. Licenses, certifrcates, and permits may include, but are not llmlted to, drivefs
licensee, professlonal licenses or certificates, and business lienses. Such licenses, cerlificates, and permiF
wlll be procured and maintained in force by Conlractor at no expense to the County. Conlraotor will provide
Coun$, upon execution of ltris Agreement, with evidence of cunent and valid licenses, certificates and
permlts wtich are required to perform the seMces identified in Attachmenl A. Where there is a dispute
beft.leen Contractot and County as to what licensee, cerlifrcates, and permils are reguired to perform the
services identified in Attrachment A, County reserv€s lhe dght to make such detsmina{ons lor purposes of
this Agreemont.

B. Contraelor wananls that it is not presently debaned, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participalion in covered iransactlons by any federal
department or €gency. Contractor also wananls that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Fedoral Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at hlrp.//ryByi;.Alt_.-q.q.y.

8. OFFTCE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQUtpttENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such oflice space, supplies, equipmenl vetricles, refercnce materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the seMces identfled in Atbchment A to this
Agreement. Coun$ is not obligated to reimburse or pay Conhactor, for any expense or cost incuned by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for he costs and expenses incuned by
Contrector ln providing and mainbining such items is the sole responsibility and obligalion of Conbactor.

f . COUNTYPROPERTY.

A, Pensonal Prorertv of Oountv- Any personal prope$ such as, but not limited to, protactrre
or safety devices, badges, identiticaton cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at lha termination of Sris Agreement remain, he sole and exclusive property of County.
GonFactor lvlll use reasonable care to pmtect, sabguard and maintain such items vytrile they are in
Conbacto/s possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to suih items,
parlial or total, wtilch is the result of Contracto/s negligence.

B. Pmducts gf Contacto/s Work and S€rvlces. Any and all compositions, publicaUons, plans,
designs, specificatlons, blueprinls, maps. formulas, prrcesses, photographs, slides, vldeo tapes, computer
proglams, computer disks, computer bpes, memory cfiips, soundtacks, audlo recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of arl, inwnllons, patents, bademarks, copyrights, or
intelleclual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the rcsult,
product, or manifestation ol Contracto/s seMces or work under this Agreement are, and at the terminaton
of lhis Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At tre termination of he
Agreement. Confactorwill convey possession and tifle to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in lhat attachment,

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Conhactor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent mntractors, and not as agents, offcers, or employaes of
County. Contractor, by virtue of Eris Agreement, has no aulhorig to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
Coun$, Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responslbllity to
exereise any righls or pon€r vested in the Coung. No agent, officer, or employee of the County is lo be
considered an employee of Contactor. lt is understood by both Contractor and County lhat this Agreement

County of lnyo Modified Standad Contract - No. 1 13
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 of22 06/07t2019



shall not under any circumstances be conslrued or considered to creats an employer-employee relationship
or a joint venture, As an independent confrac-lor:

A. Contractor shall determine he method, details, and means of performing the work and
seMces to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B, Contractor shall be responslble to County only for the requirements and resulF specified in
ttis ,\greement, and except as expressly provided in ihis Agreement, shall not be subjected lo County's
conFol wih respect to tha physical action or activities of Contnactor in fulfillment of tris Agreemenl,

C. Confactor, ib agenls, ofii€rs, and employees are, and at all times during the term of tris
Agreement shall, represent and conduct hemselves as independenl contractors, and not as employees of
Gounty.

IO. DEFENSEANDINDEMNIFICATION.

Contraclor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its oflicers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of liligation) of every nalure arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations conisined in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which r /as caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County,

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and malntain all records required by tre various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contraetor shall mainlain these records fcr a minimum of fo.rr (4) years from fte terminaton or complelion of
tttis Agreement, Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as rcqulred by frls paragraph by
substitule photographs, microphotographs, or other authenlic reproduction of such records.

B. fnegactqns and Au$ls. Any authorized representativ€ of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not llmited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determlnes to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
exarnination, excerpts, and transcrlpls during th6 period such records are to be maintained by Conlractor.
Furlher, County has he right, al all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under lhis Agreement.

12. NoltlDlScRlMlNATlON.

During the performance of lhis Agreement, Contractor, lts agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of raoe, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medlcal condilion, marital status, age, or sex. ContrEctor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply witn the provisions of Sre Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Govemment Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in lhe
Callfomla Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 19& (P.L. SS-
352) and all amendments lhereto, and all administrative rules and regulatons issued pursuant to said act.

13. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the seMces of Contractor. County has relied upon he skills, know{edge,
experience, and trainlng of Contractor as an inducement to enter into dris Agreement. Confractor shall not
assign or subcontrect thls Agreement, or any part of it, without lhe axpress written consenl of County.
Further, ConFactor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without tlre prior
written consent of County.

14, DEFAULT.

County of lnp Modified Standard Contrac't - No. 1 13
(lndopendent Conlraotor)

Page4ot22 o6t07na19



lf the Contractor abandons lhe work, or fails to groceed with the work and services requested by
County in a tlmely manner, or lails in any way as requlred to conducl the work and services as riquircd bi
County, Gounty may declare the Confactor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
lotice to Contractor. Upon such termlnation by default, Gounty will pay tb Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractorfor s€wices and r,rork satisfactorily performed trc frre date of t6mination.

15. V1IAIVEROFDEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to tris Agreemenl shall not be deemed to be raaiver ol any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waivel
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construeO to Ue a modifrcation of &re terms of tris
Agreement unless ttis Agreement is modifed as provided in paragraph trrventy one (21) below.

I6. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Conkactor furlher agrees to comply with the various provisions of fra federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that informallon and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contraclor in the course of providing servioes and wo* under this Agreement, shall be pdvlleged, restricted-,
or confidential. Conlractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
mnfldential, prMleged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only wi*r the express wrltten
mnsent of he County. Any disclosure of confidential infiormation by Contractor wilhout the Countt's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responslbillty of contractor in all resp€cts.

Notrt/thstanding anything in &e Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidontial and are lo be protected from unauthoriad dlsclosure in accordanoe with Title 48,
Code of Federa! Regulations Seclion 205.50, tre Healtr lnsurance Portability and Aocountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations aUoiteO pursuant
thereto. For tre purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements peniining to
beneficiaries shall be protected bythe providerfrom unauhorized disclosure.

17. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrses lhat it has no interest, and shall not aoguire any lnterest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree wift the periormance of fte work and services under this Agreement.

18. POSTAGREEMENTGOVENANT.

_ Conkactor agrees not to use any confidential, prolected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and \ ork under this Agreement, for any personal b-enefit,
gain, or enhancement. Furlher, Contractor agrees lor a perlod of two years afier the tsrminaton of lhis
Agreement, not to seek or accepl any employment witr any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
dudng the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County. or who has
been an adverce party in liligation wi*r fre County, and conceming such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreemant has gained access to the County's confidenlial, privileged, protected, or pmpriehry information,

1S. SE\/ERABILITY.

It any porlion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
deslared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in confavention ol any federal, strate, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, tre remaining provisions of this Agreement, or lhe appllcation
thercof, shall not be lnvalidated lhereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to lhe extenl that the
provisions of his Agreement are severable,

20. FUNDING LIMITATION.

County of lnyo Modlffed Standard Contract - No. 1 13
(lnd€p€ndent Contractor)

Pagei ot22 06/07/2019



The abill$ of County to enter thls Agreement is based upon available funding fom various sounces,
ln the event fiat such funding falls, is raduced, or is modified, irom one or more s6urces, Gounty has fre
option to calcel, reduce, or modiff this Agreement, or any ot lts tems within ten (10) days of its no$fgng
Confactor of the cancellation, reduction, or modificadon of available funding. nny reOuction or modilicatiqi
of this Agmement mads pursuant to lhis provlsion must comply with fre requlrenients of paragraph nffBnty-
one (21){Amendment).

21, AilENDMENT.

This Agreemenl may be modiffed, amended, changed, added to, or eubtracted from, by the mutual
consent of ho parlies hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalilies as this Agreement, and attached to the ofiginal Agreement to malntain continuity.

?J2. NOTICE.

Any notice, communirmtlon, amendmonts, additions, or deletons to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of lhis Agreement, wlrich Oontracbi or Counfy shall be
required,.or may deslre, lo make, shall be in writing and may be personally sewed, or sent by pr6paid first
class mail to, the respective parlies as follows:

Countyof lnp:
lnformation Technology
County of lnyo
224 Norlh Edwards Street
lndependence, CA 93526

Fa* (760) 873-5599

Contactor:
Attn: Asron Lee

Maverick Netunrks lnc.

7060 Koll Center Pkury. #306
Pleasenlon. CA 94556

23. ENNREAGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of he parlies, and no representalions, inducements,
promises, or agreemenls othenrvise between the parties not embodied herein or lncorporated herein by
refepnce. shall be of any force or effec{, Furttrer, no term or pmvision hereof may be changed, raaived-,
dlscharged, or terminated, unless the eame be in wdting executed by the parlies hereto.

##

County of lnyo Modified Standard Contracl - No. 113
(lnd€pendent Contractor)

Page 6 of 22 0'Jn7r2W9



gL,l[,l t-tT,l:nt"t, ttt t:TlT,H:*" HAVE sEr rH ErR HANDS AN D sEALs rH rs

AGREEMENT BETI'VEEN COUNTYOF INYO
AlrlD MAVERICK NETWORKS, lNC, FOR THE PROV|SION OF

VOIP TELECOMHUITIICATION SERVICES
(Phone System Replacement Proiectl

CONTRACTOR

or

APPROVEDAS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Qounsel

ASTO

AS REQUIREMENTS;

ASTO

Counly

County of Inyo Modtied Standard Contract - No, I 13
(lndependent Contractor)

Page7 ot22

or
Le -c&

6

06/072019



ATTACHi'ENTA

AGREEHENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO
AND MAVERICK NETWORKS,INC. FORTHE PROVISTON OF

VOIP TELECOIT,IMUNICATION SERVICES
{Phone Syrtem Replacement Project}

SCOPEOFWORK:

Contractor shall sell, deliver, install, and otheru'ise provide to County all materials, products, and services for
lhe Phone System Replacement Project as described more fullyin $rat cerlaln document provided by
gontraclor to County entitled "Maverick Networks Response to Request for Proposals nri'-tS-tgOt Fnone
Syatom ReplacemEnl Project September 201E," which document is incorporateb nerein by this reference as
thoughfully set fortlr (hereinafier referrad to as'Gontracto/s RFP Response'or "RFP Reiponse"). The

9guntlt Requast for Propoeals RFP-|S-1901 is also incorporated heriin by this reference, Among other
lhings, Contnctor shall meet all of lhe Countt's 'Project Deliverables,' 'Tedhnical Requirements,' aind
"Functional Requiements" set forlh in ihe RFP-|S-109'1, in a mann€r consistent wrlh excerpts of the
Contractor's RFP Response, wlrich are attached herelo as Attachment A-1.

After.Coun$ acceplance of the completed Projecl, Contractor shall commence and condnue to provide
ongoing mainlenance and support services for the remainder of the Agreement. Such seMces include but
are not limited to the following: provlding software, licensirg and firmware updates for lhe
lelecommunications equipment and sptems, soft,vare and licenslng updates for managernent software
tools, and remote support during normal business hours.

Additional details perlinenl to Contractor's scope of r,vork for the Projeot, including an implementation plan,
are set forth below:

rABLE OE. CONTENTS

{.0 PURPOSE
2.0 PROJECT TEAM
3.0 PROJECT SCHEDULE
4.0 IMPLEi'ENTATION RESPOIISIBILITIES
5.0 EQUIPUENT LIST
8.0 SWITCHROOiI REQUIREilIENTS
7.0 DATABASE COLLECTION
8.0 TRAINING PI.AN

1.0 9urpose
Maverick Networks provides this lmplementalion Plen to with the
to Maverick Networks' organization and the activities required lo
lnstallataon a success.

expressed purpose of providing visibility
make the Mitel MiVoice Businoss network

The most imporlant factor to the successful installation of the Mitel MiVoice Business solution is the timely
execution of the project ov€nts as defined in this document, made possible via mutual communication.
This doeument is intended to provide the vehicle for this necessary communication flow.

Additionally, Maverick Nettriorks uses an implementation process document called "Path to Excellence".
This Excel document is made up of 20+ Tabs for gathering and tracking project information. Key
informatkrn around site information, weekly customer meeting notes, and timeline are a few of tire key
areas addressed by the documen!.

Caunty ot lnyo Modlfied Standard Contract - No. 1 13
(lndependent Contractor)

Page I of22 o61a712019



For the purpos€ of lhis document, tfte termg "Purchase Orded' and "Agreement" are synonymous
as relating to this proJecl.

2.0 PROJECT TEAi'
Itojed Supervisor - Responsible for all coordinalion and training functions.
Coordinates new installation, collecb data base and conducts customer surveys, and provides site
training prior lo and durlng svtrltch cutover.

Technician .lnstalls, maintain and service telephone equipment. Knowledgeable in Maverick Networks'
telecommunication systems and has the abilig to solve complex problems. They are responsible for the
installation, testing, and cutover of the telephone, voice mail, call accounting sni lCo systems.

Vice Presldent of Operations - Manages lnstallation & Service Technicians, l\rlAC Technicians, Project
SupeMsors and Projecl Managers responsible for new system install from sale to completion.
Responsible for complete and limely installalion of your naw telephone and /or voice mail system and
ongoing Service.

Account ltlanager - Responsible for insuring that Maverick Networks' is responsive to the custome/s
changing telecsmmunications needs. Works with customer to address cosl ind availability of new
enhancements lhal may be requested to meel iheir future requirements.

General lrlanager - Overall Senior Manager responsible for all activilies associated with sales
maintenance, AMC's, installation, and project manag€ment regardlng proiects located in the geographic
area.

3.0 PROJECT SCHEDULE
The lmplementation Mileslone Chart lists, in chronologlcal order, the activities necessary to successfully
install the Maverick Networks' Mitel MiVoice Business solution. The chart is monilored anO upOateO
regularly to ensuro lhat a coordinated effort is maintained throughout the project.

I Contract Award: The date the contract was signed by the customer.

2 Proieel Meeling: The first posFaward meeting wilh the cuslomer. Sales introduces the lnstallation
Team and preliminary discussions are held on project-related topics.

3 Progrees Peyment 1 - Gritlcal: Progress payment due upon execulion of lhe
Purchase Agreement. (When Applicable )

4 cu$omer Database orientation: A meeting with customer representatives to
discuss the types of information they will need to provide to Maverick Netwo*s'
database collectors.

5 Database Gallection: The collection of station and switch information as well as call accounling, voice
mail and ACD information to be included in the databass. Thjs task must be completed in time foi
database development, programming, testing and the start of kaining.

6 Telco O.d€rs: The date by which the inltial reguest for the new telephone service must bs placed with
the localCOG.

7. Status Meeting

0 Gable Reuse/Customgr Records: Customer wlll provide cabling resords for ana5ais of cable reuse
options. ,Analysis will be completed within four (4) weeks after receiving the records.

9 station Gabling: when included in the installation. Maverick Networks'willbe
responsible for the act of placing new cable from station location to IDF or MDF.

County of lnyo Modified Standard C.ontract - No. 1 13
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page I of 22 06107,2a1s



Cabling muet occur prior to placing and tesiing of the telephones.

10 Switchroom Preparation: The date by vrtrich the customar must hsve completed tha sul-tebroom
preparaiions. This includes air conditioning, pov\€r, outlets, lighls, flooring and any other work that must be
done before the room is suitable for Ore system. The switchroom must be ready one week prior to switch
delivery.

1l Stctus Meeting

12 Secure Storago Area: The customer will provide a lockable secure space to stor€ the switch,
telephones, computers, tools and other equipment. The room musl be availablo prior to anival of
installation material and ceble.

13 Hgrdware Fregze: The date after which customer equipment changes are prohibited, Changes
received after this date will be irnplemented after cutover and are billable.

14 Software Frceze: The date after which customer soflware changes are prohibited. Changes received
afler this date will be implemented after cutover and are billable.

15 Database Sign-Off: The date by which the customer rnust have signedoff on all the databsse
collection shEets. The customer database will not be processed or loaded unless this is completed. Delays
in sign-off will impact the faining and cutover dates,

16 Database Processing: The time during which the lield generated data collection sheets are converted
to software for loading into the switch.

l7 Database Load: The task of physically loading the database into the switch.

18 Status iieeting

19 Equlpment Shipment: The date the switch will leave the factory or staging area for delivery to the site,

20 Progreee Poyment 2 - Critical: Progress payment due upon dolivery of the
equipment to Tuolumne. (When Applicable )

21 Power System lnstallatlon: The task include erecting the battery rack, installing the batteries,
chargers, reclifiers and connecting to the customer provided power source.

22 Status Meeting

23 Switch lnstallation: The time during which lhe Technician is setting up and cabling the switch, voice
mail system, ACD, sentinel system and associated hardware and materials. The switch is connected to
power and becomes operational.

24 Equipment Testing: The testing of the system and customer database using self diagnoslics, as well
as manual teet procedures.

25 Call Accounting lnstallation: The task includes the installatlon of Call Accounting system or
connection to existing Csll Accounting system,

26 Call Accounting Training: The period of time which admin. imining is provided when necessary.

27 Statua Meeting

County of lnyo Modified Slandard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 10 of22 06l,07t2019



28 Training Room Set-up: The date when the training room must be cabled and the telephones
operational.

29 Station Ueer Tralnlng; Tralning in the use of the telephones and associated featuras for end users,

30 Operator Training: Trainlng on livo consoles dedicated for console operators. fhis training is provided
a day or tr,ro before cutover.

31 Telco Trunks Deliver: The data when local telephone company should make the new trunks available
for testing. This date should appear in the COG order. Trunks are required before syatem tesllng is
compleled.

32 Progrecs Payment 3 - Grltlcal: Progress payment prior to cutover of the Equlpmenl (When
Applicable)

33 MDF Cross Connects: The task of connecting the switch to the house dishibution or station cables on
lhe main distribution frame. This task must be cornpleted befors final system testing, training or placing
and tesling of stations.

3f Station Place aftl Test The period when the telephone instruments will be placed at the user
localions and lested. Whenever possible Maverick Networke'would like to place the telephones up to twc
(2) days prior to cutover.

35 Cutover: The date on which the system is put into lull opemtion and begins
processing ell calls for the customer. The edsting lelephone system is disconnected at this time.

36 Acceptance: The contractual date when the customer formally accepls the system. This date b€gins
the wanan$ period. Acceptance is confirmed wfren the customer signs Ure ln.Service Cerlificate and is
effeclive the day of cutover, unless there is a contract specilied acceptance period lhe contract was
signed by the customer and to by Maverick Networks'.

37 Flnal Status Meetirrg

38 Transitlon to Service: The period of time that the installation mansger, local service manager, projeut
manager and customer meet to discuss the local seMce office responsibility.

39 Rogress Payment 4 - Critical: Progress payment ls due at the time of customer acceptance. ( When
Applicable )

Tagk

Ooun$ of lnyo Modlfled Standard Contract - No. 1 13
(lndependent Contractofl

Page 11 of 22

Contract Award
Prolect Meeting

1-

Database collectlon

Slalus Meetinq
Teleo Orders

Cable reuse / Customer recordsATT'-

Secure
freeze

Sofhrvare fn

06/078019



Database orocessino
Databass load
Status Meetlno
Equigment stdornenl
PfgErWs PaYfnont 2 . Cri$Oal
Power slrtt€m instafl ation
$tatus Meelinq
Swllch installation
Eouioment tastino
Call accountina Installatlon
Call accountino trainino
Stalus Moetina
Trainino room set-uo
Stallon user trainino
Ogeratortminino
Telco trunks delivered
Progress paymenl3 - Critical
MDF cross connecis
Station olace and test
Cuiover
Acceptance pgriod

Finalstatus meetino
Transitlon to servlce

{0 lMPLEUElrlTATlOtrl RESPONSTBIUTIES SUimIARV
The lmplamentation Responslbilities state what activities are expected to be performed by eaoh involved
psrly,

iiaverick Networles' Responslbllltles

1. Provide and lnslall lhe eguipment and softnare required by Customer Purchase Order.

2. Assign a Project Supervisor to coordinate lhe Mltel MlVoice Business, voice mail syslem,
eall accounting and ACD install, irncluding reguirementc of Mar/erick Networks'pcrsonnel,
faclory build, shipping, inrrentory and scheduling. The Project Supervisor will be the fsrmal
contract betureen Customer and Maverick Networks' during tha project.

3. Perform station snd console user training.

4. Coordinale and perform lhe orderlng of trunk facilities, when necessary.

5. Provide a Technician to instatlthe Mitel3300's and associated oquipment.

6. Provide Switchroom speclfications for the Mitel 3300's and aesociated equipment.

Customer's Reeponsibllitlee

1. Assign a slngle polnt of contact who will serue as the contact for Maverick Networks'
ProJect SupeMsor.

Build andlor modify lhe switchroom to meet the operating specifications for the mitel
equipment as provided by Meverick Networks'.

Gounty of lnyo Modified Standard Contrast - No. 1 13
(lndependent Contractor)

Page12ot22

?.

06/07t2019



3. Perform station cable inslallatlon to serve the additional telephone instruments purchased. Should
station cable be reused, Customer will be responsible for providing all associated cable records
and blue prlnts. Thase should include el a mlnlmum Room numbCr and Cable jack number.

4. Provide electrician to connect main power source to power charging unit.

5.0 EOUIPMENT LIST

Description Quantity
To be included at a later date.

O.O SYYITCHROOIII REQUIREiIENTS

The Mitel MiVoice Business system has cortain requiremenis that must be met in order to ensure
dependable performance.

Environmental Requirements
The envircnment must be:

1, Clean, dry and uncluttered tq prohibit the intake of dust and dirt into the system.2, Well ventilated to dissipate warm air from the cabinet.3. Maintained at an amb{ent temperature of 41 to 100 degrees F.4. Maintained at a relaflve humldlty (non-condensing) between 20olo and 80% over the
specified temperature range.

Sita Requirements
Tha equipment location must be:

1. Level.
2- Away from sources of vibration.
3. Provided with enough AC power outlets lor the system's peripherat equipment,4. Well-lit
5' Free of overhead pipos that would be subject to condensation or ruplure, causing

damage to the equipment,

I Away trom strong magnetic fields such as those sroated by large transformers.7. Ataay from arees nser conosive fumes or machins exheust, wtrbh mighl cause
deterioration of circuit com ponents,

8. Away from moving machinery andlor vehicles.
9, A$ray from heating ducts or adjacent windows which might cause the ambient

lemperature to go above or below he required operation range.10. Located so as to permit adequate air circulallon in fiont of the 3300 lCP.

Power Requirements

2.

120 volt equipment with a twist locking receptacle.

ln addition the switchroom should be supplied with 3 (three) 120 volt, 20 amp breaker,
duplex plugs. These plugs can be used for maintenance terminals, test equipment, etc.

7.0 DATABASE COLLECTION

Database Collectlon
Prior to the database process we will conduct database orientallon meetings with the deparlment
managemanl team to review all fealures that are avallable to the user in order to streamline their
departmental operations,

County of lnyo Modilled Standad Contract - No. ,t 13
(lndependent Cont,aclor)Page13ol22 06n7nl1g



Database collection is the gathering of information required to customize the Mitel MiVoice
Business system operation to needs. Database collection for his proiect will be llmited to lhe
acquisition of data associated with the telephone instruments and trunks.

Database colleclion meetings wlth responslble Customer Representatives. The meeling will
provide discussion on the, Voice Mail, Call Accounting system, AGD features and configuralion,
Business feature and performance requiremenls, and special telecommunicalion appllcatlons.
The result will be a detailed database documentation spread sheet rfrich will be utilized to
program the, Voice Mail, Call Accounting and ACD systems and telephone instrumenls.

For example:

What gpe of telephone for each user

Wherc willeach person be sitting

Discussion of bufton template

Call procossing and departmenl needs

Gontact center call flows, lVR, EPIC integration etc.

Review UC applications

Cabling locations, cable lD, etc.

Trunking requirements

8.0 Training Plan

Trainlng

The Maverick Networks' user training session is designed to meet the requirements of
preparing attendants and station users for the use of the Telephone and Voice Mail systems.
Maverick Networks'will provide hand-on training for all Customer personnel. Each uger leamg
to use aach feature and understand the associated benefits. Trainlng is scheduled prior to
Cutover with appropriate follow-up after Cutover. The training sessions are equipped with
telephone instruments for actual handson use.

ln order for the trainlng class to be fully effective Maverick Networks' recommends lhat each
trainlng class be not less than 15 and no more than 25 station user. Training for administrators
should be no more 5 users,

Tralnlng Clasg Outline

Station user tralnlng seggion contont lncludes:

'|'. Presontation of system, emphasizing benefits of the most common features (Callpick-
up, call forwarding, etc.)

2. Domonstration of features.
3. Hands-on experience of features with telephone instruments.
4. Review of MiCollab application for users.
5. Question/answer se$lon.

County of lnyo Modlfied Standad Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 14 of22 06/07t201S



6. A Telephone User Guide, Based on lnslrument type, is provided.

Telephone set familiarization:

1. ldentificaton of button types: fixed feature buttons, programmable feature buttons, RG
Tone Key (ring tones), volume control.

2. Brief mention of other typea of sets that may be encountered !i.e.,24 buttons, displays,
and speakers),

Voice mall Syetem Faature Revlew:

1. Step-by-Step review of the features ouflined in the users guide,
2. A review of a quick reference cha( for voice mail.

Hands-on Experlence Using Tclephone Sets and Voice malh
1. Uslng telephone sets the students wlll have the opportunity to perform most of the

features that they will encounter. (Due to the nature of such fuatures as 8-party
conference, and message waiting, some featunes will not be available for demonstration
in a trainlng environment.)

2. Using a couple of *dummyu voice mail boxes, students will have an opportuniry to listen
and operate the voice mailtutorialthat willbe mandatoryfor allemployees the flrst time
accessing volce mail.

*AGD Agonts & Supervisors wlll recelve tralning on the above ltems as well as AGD
speciflc features.

County of lnyo Modllied Standard C,onlrac,t - No. 113
(lndependent Contrac-tor)

PagelSof 22 06/072019



ATTACHIIENTA.1

AGREETIENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO
AND MAVERICK NETUK)RKS,INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF

VOIP TELECOIIMUNICATION SERVICES
(Phone System Roplacement Prolect|

EXCERPTS OF CONTRACTOR'S RFP RESPOI{SE
ADDRESSII'IG PRO.TECT DELMEMBLES, TECHNICAL
REQUIREMEI{TS, AND FUNCIONAL REOUIREi'ENTS

SEEATTACHED

County of lnyo Modified $tandard Contract - No. i 13
(lndependent Co ntrac{or}

Page 16of22 06,n7nus



Scope of Work - Project Deliverables

The project deliverables must lnclude the following:

r Telephone management system

o Configurable via web interface or other remote access from within the County network.
o Voice Mail storage and archlving.

o Must be easlly malntained by the County.

$"atlgsesetVrt{fif ri$liqtjo L !n!s!sss

The proposed Mitel solution natively provides centralized, consolidated provisioning, configuration and
administration for all solution elements:

r desktop, web and mobile UC clients
* required PBX settings
t unified messaging
r Teleworker
; audio, video and web conferencing

These components reside on a singfe server and share comilon installation, commissioning and
administration tools, This makes the Mitel solution a single standalone system that can be administered
through its own web browser interface, with no other rnanagement application required. Even for
centralized deploymenls with thousands of users at multiple locations, there is no need to purchase
additional management tsols beyond what is embedded in the solution.

'ljortrlhe lalormrilon
,, a.'' t 't" i "

fffid 3!.;lilc.aLfl $, CCLf.rdil (lrcl fud..
?4# *!n a+lle* {?dr.,*t #.,

lxrl*rbbbllrlU.al $ l
uoc fr.Lr Lr l' trnr|| lr|,Q 1q lt
Ltt.ra..atrhldrt-al+al .i 

'
lf'lheBUr-l{rh

wee
frhEiaY*.CrIEa
I. -a lLaa./ ra-airl

G

abe re &ieia*:.ed

, irl

lli

,r r,

tn
ac.l-5llr

f*
Oaaafrt
t -.4.
Li.-.

lr.
lb ,t

Page - L5



n Mttel Mrcollab ii:r'.'.tr'.. 11ii fr,r,-,- | i-i 1.,r. i t.qt (.

t-r et

Ugcrs rnd 9ewlccg

!. . &nr*i. " ,

*
I

ria , ita

tdld

&\{,

*rn

An

?fi2rtu
2l't2
?lta
Brctqr
Flg
)t !q
rtlo
,l'r0

:a

D Mttgt l,{rCouau !:",.5r..r:L*lc lru.rr:rr i!rr, \,r: -: -;-r i.

'llorrllr' {;'rpl t: llor} ,tr.rrtrl

Ut, I

'I

I

I
v
t
,I

--! litl t-!t -a$
l.naat (ffiUar

Ierr!' (inpt {l $r1',lrcrryt1

---*l

Page - l5



C' MttCt l'1 r 1,i,.,1.

ldltCln|loq

!*' i l$a.l., -iE!qg.:.i *{lr-."..r .lTjt-€Sr-i
--,., 

.d .*. r, !;!s *3

' ?l t!*l*e-,
rs ll xq-r.:r**'"

^ *t ''," '':.t",'.t,'',-

**, .ei.:!*.:.ri !g

q,ol,

aatlr!t1'ln tl**iA
I qrct.l

trt*19?!"*

{q{ c&a*alal

.B
'tl

ktat,:F-.hl

irl'rd}*ry',*

jr.n,orr.r,-.
t ,,".
t-".'
(r ir,;* a .-,, ,,

j t,,t,*ro*
It r- r.*r rt*.'..-ll-'..

{r ax,.,"u'*r',

ia eD.:r.iFrr.,.
jr t*,r-,p-,

r(i r.*ir &*::ra"
f-. ?r.taaL

k t.ffdroF4lt!

Voieem q *lSto rq gs.rnd- &rqbjylff

Voicemail rnessages are stored both in the NuPoint Unified Messaging platform and in Microsoft
Exchange/Office 365 depending on precise conflguration. M€ssages in email can be saved using general
email rules alld message management. Messages in the Voicemail system can be saved by the user via
the Telcphone User fnterface, Web lnterface, or Micollab Client interface. Messages stored in the
Voice mail platform ate stored in a secure proprietary format and are only accessible via the voicernail
system interfaces. Messages in Outlook are stored in .WAV or.MP3 fornrat.

Page - 17



. Configured call management system

o Must handle routing incoming calls to any County departrnent.
o Voice menu must have a simple configuration process.

The MiVoice Business Platform is an Enterprise Class Call Control Platform and you can expect to have

100% control over call handling and be able to route calls to and from any deparlment in the County.

A few of the features are described below;

MiVoice Business Uniform Numbering Plan

MiVoice Business supports the use of a network uniform numbering plan that allows the user to select
the same digits to reach a station from any location in the network.

MiVoice Business Call Handling

lncreasingly callers require more information when calls are redirected. MiVoice Business ensures the
name appears rather than the extension when call get directed to another extension.

e.g,, Forwarded from: Sarah Morgan

From the onbsard directory and ESM interface within MiVoice Business, users can define whether a

number should appear in the directory to help make the search easier to use.

U.fi*lbd..r
lar td 6a.d r aeri}':M. .
.|aCg*l

*tfi
Ga trr.fr-.fq

rr-r
r QlmDfrdrl

b. it tlDj
lnr€s5.-at* l'ar

ar *ex

Additionally, the directory supports full UTFS names.

ln the past, numbering plans are non-uniform and have nurnbers of different lengths. This caused some
delay in dialing as the system is "waiting" to for the interdigit timer to expire before sending the number
out. A "call" soft prompt will now allow a user to enter the number and hit the call key. The system will
dialthe call immediately making the user experience like uslng a mobile device.

MiVoice Business Auto Attendant Features

The following table provides a summary of several Auto Attendant f€atures available on MiVoice
Business;

Page - 18



Featrr re Descriptio n

Open & Closed Greeting

[xpire at a Preset Time
€reeting

Alternate Greetings

Play Greeting by
lncoming Trunk
Assignment

Directory

A company greeting can be programrned to change
automatically flom open business hours to closed or after
hours.

A company greeting can be programme d for use over
hclidays or shutdowns, expiring automatically after a

specified number of days.

Each p*rt can use one sf eight alternate greeting sets {open,
closed, or temporary) to allow specialgreetings per port.

lach port can be assigned to answer calls on sperific
incoming trunks and play a greeting based on the destination
dialed, such as sales, shipping and receiving, or eustomer
service.

Also knor,rrn as name dialing, Callers may access a mailbox
directory where they are able to reach a mailbox owner by
dialing the person's first or last name rather than the
mailbox number. The systern can be configured for either
first or las! name dialing, but not both at the same time.

Callers who are familiar with the system may enter their
keypacl selections without waiting for the system prornpts.

Callers may reach a live attendanl at any time by dialing "0"

Detects an incoming fax tone and directs it to the fax mailbeix
or extension,

Allows an operator to transfer an outside caller to a specified
mailbox where the caller immediately hears the subscriber's
personal greeting and is prompted to leave a message.
Callers press # to bypass or interrupt the greeting and begin
recording a message.

Caller Type Ahead

Operator Revert

Fax Finder

Operator Transfer to a

Mailbox

Quick

Transfer to Any Extension Allows the user to dial any internal extension defined in the
system

Message Allows a caller reaching the auto attendant to leave a

message in a specific mailbox without transferring to the
mailbox extension and possibly speaking live with the
subscriber.

Page - 19



Multi-LevelAuto
Attendani

Multiple Message

Capability

User Programmable Diai

0 Fxtension

Park and Page

Supe rvisedlU nsu pervised
Tra n sfer

Allows a hierarchical menu to be programmed on the autcr

attendant. This provides callers with better seif-service
access to the person or department they are calling.

Allows an outside caller to leave more than one voice mail

message per call, therefore saving on toll charges.

Allows the user to program the dial 0 extension to any

internal extension, for example, a personal or departmental
secretary, The administrator can override the system defaLrlt

l"Q" for the operatori with any valid phone nurnber,
including an external number or even a long-distance
number. The administrator can also override the system

default on an extension-by-extension basis, with any valid
phone number,

Auto ,{ttendant Park anel Page enables the auto attendant to
park incoming calls and announce them to the requested
party using paging. The requested party can then retrieve the
call by using the Call Park - Retrieve feature,

The auto attendant can be prograrnmed to perform either
supervised or unsupervised transfers. The additisn of
supervised transfer capability allows calls that cannot be

competed to return to the auto attendant for further
processing.

*l

L.. : EE. . fF!l. j I!!. i td€.afrp ;

'J 
n*--i "-*' *'"

ni. "rh ,4.*--.,.***..
t.

-.,.,..,.. ": ..

,0 b-.. *,-
n e*.,,F 4-

ldtC.[ tloff
lrfi.(1. bi

:€Hi

t'
{"
8"
t"
.i

c.
,!.t Fi ..n;

ir h-{.5.-
/ri 16- . : 

"q*, 
r^?!

ldul* tet

L- i4rtel r,r,,: (;{i.:rl1

,, rl}. ry .1

Page - 20



MiVoice Business Autornatic Route Selectlon Feature

Automatlc Route Selection {ARS} is a standard feature that routes trunk calls based on the following
pararneters:

. route availability, where a route is defined as a collection of similar trunks within a trunk
Sroup

r cost, when more than one route exists
r toll restriction, whether the caller can make such a call and, if so, on what facility

ARS simplifies local and long-distance dialing by automatically selecting the most convenient and cost-
effective route, and by inserting and deleting digits for proper routing,

When the least expensive route is selected and unavailable, the user will hear an ARS Expensive Route
warning tone, at which point the user can proceed with the call, camp-on to the least expensive route,
request a call back from the least expensive route, or abandon the call,

The ARS functions without input from the user, and is not dependent on a fixed numbering plan

Advanced ARS

Advanced ARS allows the user to program day and time zones, route plans, and assign ARS.

MiVoice Business Call Forwarding Features

MiVoice Business provides a nurnber of call lorwarding features. The third column in the table below
indicates which features are supported by resiliency. NIA indicates that the feature is not specifically
related to resiliency cr a resilient device, but the feature will work on the system.

CallForward -
Busy (external
sourcel

CallForward -
Eusy {internal
source!

CallForward -
No Answer
(external source)

Forwards incoming external calls when the user is
busy,

Forwards incoming internal calls when the user is

busy.

Forwards incoming external calls when the user does
not answer.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Resiliency
Support

Featu re Descriptio n

Page - 21



Call Forward -
No Answer

{internal source}

Resiliency

Support
Featu re Description

Call Forward -
Follow Me

CallForward -
Follow Me Third
Party

lAm Here

CallForward

Forwards incoming internal calls when the user does
not answer,

Forwards all incoming calls to a user-defined answer
point. The answer point can be any extension,
atlendant or messaging system.

I

Forwards all incoming calls and is activated from an

alternate location. The answer point can be any valid
number in the system (e.g., extension, lpeed dial, or
attendant).

Routes all calls to the user at the userr's present

location.

Allows the user to redirect incoming calls tc an

alternative number.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

(features

and access

keys)

Yes

CallFonryard -
CancelAll

CallForward
Delay

CallForward -
Follow Me - End

Chaining

Call Forward -
Follow Me -
Reroute When
Busy

Allows the user to cancel all types of call forward. No

Enables a call to a phone {with Call Forward - Busy)

to be delayed at a busy extension. ln this case, the
user would receive notice that another call is

waiting.

No

ln this setting, a telephone can either display the
name of the waiting caller or provide an interrupted
dial tone.

Ensures that redirected calls are not further
redirected.

Yes

lf a call is forwarded to a busy line, this feature will
reroute the call to an alternative line.

No

Page - 22



Resiliency

Su p port
Feature Description

CallFonrvard
Group

Call Forward Out
of Service

Call Forward
Override

Call Forward
Override /
Supervised
Transfers for
DSSIBLF Keys

Post-Call
Destination

Single-Button
Transfer to Voice
Mail

Allows the user to forward group and prime lines to
different locations.

This feature behaves like Call Forward - No Answer.
lf no destination has been programmed, the system
will handle incoming calls as though the phone is not
installed.

Allows the user to bypass or override any call
forward condition at the station being called.

Standard and secretarial Direct Station Select {DSS)
and Busy Lamp Field (BLF) keys can override all forms
of call forwarding on the monitored directory
nurnber (DN).

The DSS keys can be used to transfer calls to the
monitored device. For example, to per{orm an
unsupervised transfer, the user presses TRANS/CONF
followed by the DSS key. For a supervised transfer,
the user simply selects the DSS key and waits for the
monitored device tc answer.

Calls are automatically forwarded to a
predetermined destination following call completion
(e.9., all contact center calls are forwarded to a
customer satisfaction survey). This feature can also
be used to "(atch" calls that are unintentionally
dropped. With Post-Call Destination, rather than
losing the call, it is automatically rerouted to another
answer point.

Call transfer to a voice mailbox can be invoked by
pressing the Message key on a Mitel lP Phone or a

soft key on a Mitel phone console and entering the
desired contact's extension.

No

Yes

i.t

Page - 23



Personal Ring 6roup and Handoff Feature

The Personal Ring Group (PRc! feature allows a collection of devices (directory numbers) to be
associated with a single user.

When the user's primary number is called, MiVoice Eusiness rings all associated devices {up to ei6ht}
simuitaneously. The primary number acts as the unique PBX identity or directory number. Similarly,
whichever PRG device a mobile worker uses to make a call or access a feature will take on the user's
identity including all the user's rights and permissions,

The PRG can be configured as One Busy All Busy, This m€ans, if one device in a PRG is occupied, MiVoice
Business will treat any subsequent calls tc the user's primary number as Busy

PRGs can also include the following softphone applications:

r MiCollab Client
r Microsoft Office Communications Server 20O7 Client (For the purposes of dual forking,

allows a user to have a desk phone, a cell phone and an Office Communications softphone
The PRG manages the sirnultaneous presentation of calls.)

Network Transitioning

lf ihe user has a dual-mode cellular phone and runs a SIP client, the user can be a member of the pRG if
it has an MiVoice Business 5lP license. ln this context, a smartphone user on a public msbile network call
{GSM} who moved within range of an open Wi-Fi zone or enterprise wireless network could alternate
from one netwark to another, transitioning rearnlessly from an expensive network to a free call.

Handoff Feature

The PRG Handoff feature allows a mobile user to switch back and forth between fixed and mobile devices
withcut interrupting the flow of conversation. A "push" passes the call to the group, where it can be
answered by any other enabled device, A "pull" takes an in-progress call away frorn another device. To
push a call to, or to pull a call from, another rnember, a Handoff key or equivalent feature access code
may be configured,

Users can program any button, including Programmable Key Module {PKM} buttons, as a Handoff key.
An external h<tt-desk or mobile usel can invoke mid-call features from the dial-pad while active on a
PSTN trunk. The default Handoff feature may be accessed by dialing 5, which pushes the call back to, or
pulls it from, the user's PRG.

Page - 24



F$T!I

r.Ail rguAil

P$

Albn or
Legrcy PBX

'Arlktrc,
Dwlqr

MiVoice Business Enhanced Ring Groups

Mivoice Business provides users the ability to creare Enhanced Ring Groups, which consolidate the
definitions of a group's membership and the group's ring algorithm into a single, programmable
definition.

The mernbers of a group can be defined, and the hunting, or ringing algorithm, can be assigned to that
group. The queuing behavior, overflow definition, and destination definition, and post call handling can
also be described within the construct of a single definition.

An Enhanced Ring Group records messages {specific RADs or groups of RADs} and their relative start
times for callers waiting for an agent to answer. A typical RAD rnessage may thank the caller for
remaining on hold, relay the callels position in the queue, and provide an expected wait time"

Groups can be defined as cor:sisting of any dial-able endpoint. This includes M'NET devices, Hot Desk
users, SIP endpoints, analo6 endpoints, Dynamic Extension endpoints, multi-device users, Remote
Directory Numbers, and other groups.

A hunt group consists of mernbers of a group that act as routing points. when a call is received, the
telephone system searches the members assigned to hunt groups for the first available member of the
group and switches the call to that member.

overflow improves call handling by determining whether to move a call to an alternate answer point. A
algorithm considers how many calls are in the queue, how many members are active in the group, and

Page - 25



what the average call duration is. lf the thresholcl is reached, calls will be movcrJ to another answenng
destination.

The ringing algorithm defines the way an idle pa{y is selected within the group. The choices are

r Terminal hunting (start at the beginning)
r Circular hunting {start at the last partyi
r lerminal Cascading {Move to next on no answer}
r Circular Cascading (Move to next on no answer)

MiVoice Business: Caller-lO-Based Routing-White List and Black list

'Io help customers Lretter manage calls, Mitel has created a whitelist/blacklist capability which can route
specific incoming callers based on calling line lD,

For ihe whitelist, the calling line lD can be used to provide a white glove service to route known contacts
to specific users or groups of users to he lp ensure aptimum customer service.

Fcr the blacklist, unwanted calls can be routed either to a message-only mailbcix or simply di:connected,
thus avoiding staff having to waste time dealing with unnecessary calls.

Either of these routing choices can be based on a fuil or partial CLI malch. ln addition, the table that lists
the white or black list can have an unlimited number of entries; and it's easy to add, change, or delete
numbers.

MiVoice Susiness White or Slack List Tqble

t-'F Mltel ,-/rvo., ,.Hrr.rrrr...

ir cBffi*lffir.,lijiilil

a*r [st&q rt|\B !.tsilt

f rurfrilfi,{ru,&trra}

ilrrrd El khr 1-,"". ,'f;.a}

!a{raa
IJF$1b.tu
l.F$d.J Olnet !.*6.r

Grn Rcrfra
*sri*!!: qlnr lJ . rrrn il ttl

L|ar jlr*dF-
.'l/^(ehd( t*h.t.
Lte<6r' ..r.J { +

!* e'f,.rr .. .'.:rr .
1-S 1?d!wl,rv:!rF qs,r,,.r 

._

r'r Frdrq i.ril kFr*(
i:* lrsr\rqd asdNiwtrrn.! ,

t!r,t bkr, $lhr 5,,ir ,

El qnr ara { I
IIErIII
Cds 6nd ltrtdig ldrrloa

.-,1.-: t, t4t.-\. -l '<...4 ,a.-

ar!.rg.rrt J{osr Hpstr,,rt
Pfi&rS l{$utF{ri
*r!r!, ;'r;1 a^{ ;*{n.EN6

Page - 26



. Approximately 500 phones as required by departments
' o At least three different styles of phonesr desktop phone with speakerphone capabllity,

o walFmount phone with speakerphone capablllty, and conference phone.

o ADA-compliant telephone handsets and system options must be available as needed.

MiVoice 59201P Phone

Designed for the enterprise user, who requires flexibility and reliability frorn their phone to meet their
heavy phone requirements, the 6920 lP Phone has been proposed for users as it met the requirements
listed in the RFP.

The MiVoice 6920 is designed for enterprise users who demand not onlv a modern design but also a
phone that is flexible and delivers a high quality communications experience. Delivering an exceptional
HD audio experience via its speech optimized handset, it also provides a full-duplex speakerphone and
support for USB and analog handsets,

Mobile device integration is enabled with the addition of the optional USB Bluetooth dongle, allowing
access to manY of the features of their mobile phone from their desk phone including contact list
synchronization and the ability to make/receive mobile calls on their desk phone.

All of these features rnake the MiVoice 6920 one of the most advanced generat purpose tP desk phones
available today,

r 3.S-inch QVGA color display: 320x240 pixel
r Mobilelink mobile device integration (available through optionaI USB BT donglei
r Crystal clear HD audio
r 18 programmable personalkeys
r Context rcnsitive soft keys
c High quality full-duplex speakerphone
r Corded speech optimized handset
r Native DHSGIEHS analog headset support
. USB port for headsels and accessories
r Gigabit Ethernet ports with PoE

Page -27



MiVoice 6930|P Phone

Powerful, customizable lP phone designed for the power user the 6930 lP phone could be added if
desired.

ldeal for power users who require a phone that can be tailored to their specific communication needs.
Designed from the ground up to provide an exceptional HD audio experience via its speech optimized
handset, enhanced full-duplex speakerphone and support for Bluetooth, USB and Analog handsets.

Mobile device integration seamlessly rnarries your mobile phone call audio and contact informatian with
the MiVclce 6930. Calls to your rnobile phone can be answered on the MiVoice 6930 just like any other
call, leveraging the superior audio performance and ergonomics of the 6930 lP Phone. Mobile phone
contacts are automatically synchronized with the MiVoice 6930 allowing access to the sarne contacts on
either device, Additionally a powered USB port suitable for charging a mobile phone is also built into
the MiVoice 5930.

* Large 4,7-inch color display:48Ax272 pixel LCD

r Mobilelink mobile device integration
I Crystal clear HD audio
r Mabile phone charging point
r Embedded Bluetooth 4.0
* 72 programrnable personal keys
* Context sensitive soft keys

' Enhanced full-duplexspeakerphone
* Corded speech optirnized handset
o Gigabit Ethernet ports with PoE

Page - 28



MlVoice 5940|P Phone

Executive power users will rejoice as the power of touch is comblned with flagship functionality in this
state-of-the-art lP Phone. The 6940 tP phone is an additional option if desired.

Designed for the executive user who dernands an exceptional phone that meets their demanding
eommunication needs, the MiVoice 6940 lP Phone offerr power users a touch-centric user experience
on top of robust, productivity-enhancing features.

Mobile device integration seamlessly marrles your mobile phone callaudio and contact information with
the MiVoice 6940. Calls to your mobile phone can be answered on the MiVoice 5940 just like any other
call, leveraging the superior audio performance and ergonomics of the 6940 lP Phone. Mobile phone
contacts are automatically synchronized with the MiVoice 6940 allowing access to the same contacts on
either device. Additionally a powered USB port suitable for charging a mobile phone is also built into
the MiVoice 6940.

r Large 7-inch touchscreen color display: 800x480 pixel LCD
r Touchscreen keyboard
. Mob,lelink mobile device integration
. Crvstal clear HD audia
* Mobile phone charging point
r Embedded Bluetooth 4.0
r 96 programmable personal keys
r Context sensitive soft keys
r Enhancedfull-duplexspeakerphone
* Cordless speech optimized handset

Page - 29



MiVoice Conference Fhone

The MiVoice Conference Phone is the first device of its kind, created in direct response to the need for
an easier, more ccst-effective way to csllaborate. ln a single, compact touch-screen device it makes rich
multimedia collaboration as simple as rnaking a phone call.

An allin-one appliance, the MiVoice Conference Phone provides multi-party audio conferencing, in-
room presentation display, and remote collaboration for personal offices and conference rooms at a

fraction of the cost of traditional room-based systems. lts open-standards, SIP-compatible technology
fits seamlessly into existing infrastructures including PBX deploym€nts and computing environrnents
from Mitel and third parties,

The Miteldevice enables impromptu collaboration for up tc four participants through the following key
features:

r superior audio conferencing technology including a beam-forming microphone array
r built-in presentation display via an HDMi interface that supports csnnection to a high-

definition flat-panel screen or projector
I embedded Microsoft Office readersleditors with ck:ud storage access and remote desktop

access {no need to use a laptop to give the presentation}
. supporl for multiple file transfer methods including cloud access (e,g., Dropbox or Google

Docs), a USB flash drive, and micro SD card
* four-parly HD video conferencing (720p capablei without an external MCU

Note: MiVoice Conference phone is not wireless but supports OPTIONAL wireless microphones and can

be connected to an OPTIONAL MitelWireless LAN module.

Page - 30



AOA Specific lnformation

Mitel designs its products to make sure that what it offers is accessible to everyone, regardless of their
physical limitations. Mitel's solutions offer features that provide, or work with assistive technology to
provide, telephone communications, e-mail, voice mail, fax, and PC desktop applications to disabled
users. All solution cornponents, from its telephones to applications including MiCollab and Nupoint
LJnified Messaging, adhere to the strictest worldwide accessibility standards, including those from lhe
fol lowing organizations:

r United States Access Board; Electronic and lnformation Technology {E&lT} Accessibility Standards
(section 508 of the Rehabilitation Acti. The E&lT is a global market where the use of internationai
standards benefit agencies and people with disabilities by reducing the costs that would be
associated with designing and developing different products to meet conflicting requirements in
different markets. Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act implements telecommunications
requirements for persons with disabilities. This is in support of the Americans with Disability Act.
Section 508 affers the following:

- Experlise in hurnan interface design to deliver products with sirnplified, intuilive user
interfaces

- Strategic technology relationships to deliver solutions that address people with special
needs and disabilities

r Strict development processes evaluate and identifu areas that will provide disabled people with
the same access and opportunities to use its products as those who are not disabled. World Wide
Web Consortium Web Accessibility Guideline ISO TC 159: Software Accessibility

r l5O TC 173: Technical Systerns and Aids for people with Disabilities
r l5O/lEC Guide 71: Guidelines for standards developers to address the needs of older persons and

persons with disabilities
r ANSI C63.19; Wireless Hearing Aid Compatibility
c IEC TC 100; Ease-of-use of appliance controllers to meet the needs of people with disabilities

{Iapan}
r SOGITS N1032 - EN for DG Xilt(European Standards)
r Nordic Standards for Accessibility

As accessibility garners increased attention and priority around the world, it cannot help but drive new
technological advancements. Mitel will continue to be on top of these innovations, incorporating them
into its products and ensuring that disabled users always have access and opportunities.

All products in the Mitel portfolio comply with the Accessibility Act Section 508 and 255. Specific VPAT
forms can be found on our website. Please refer the website for additional details.

h ttp.:llqww. m i le l.romlatless i bl liry

Page - 31



a Documentation and training materials to cover:
o End user training on telephone functionallty and volce mall.
o Call routing and menu configuratlon.
o System and server configuratlon, rnaintenance, and update processes.

Staff Training:

The Maverlck Networks' user training session is designed to meet the requirements of preparing

attendants and station users for the use of the telephone systems. [ach user learns to use each
feature and understand the associated benefits. Training is scheduled prior to Cutover with
appropriate follow up after Cutover. The training sessions are equipped with telephone instruments
for actual hands on use. Soft copy training materials and quick reference guides will be prcvided as

well.

Train the Trainer:

Maverick Networks' will provide a Train the Trainer sessions as needed, Upon completion of this
process an employee will have the ability to provide other employee's with continuous attendant and
user training,

Train the Trainer session content includes:
* Working with the Project Supervisor throughout the database gathering process.
. Participate in & conduct user training sessions.
r Question and Answer session.

Telephone set farniliarization ;

" ldentification of button types: fixed feature buttons, programmable feature buttons, RG

Tone Key (ring tones), volume control.
. Brief mention of other types of sets that may be encountered (i.e.,24 buttons, displays, and

speakers),

Station user training session content includes:

Presentation of system, emphasizing benefits of the rnost common features (Call pick up,

callforwarding, etc.)

Demonstration of features.

Hands on experience of features with telephone instruments.

Question/answer session.

A Telephone User Guide, Based on lnstrument type, is provided.

a

,
lb

a

t

Page - 32



Telephone System Feature Beview:
r Step-by-Step review of the features outlined in the user Quick Reference Guide.
. Review of any unique features that may not be covered in the Qulck Reference Guide.

UCC user training sesslon content includes:

Presentation of software, emphasiring benefits of the most cornmon features {Call pick up,

call forwarding, etc.i

Demonstration of features.
Hands on experience of features with software

Questionlanswer session.

On-Going Training:

Maverick Networks and can provide onsite raining to perform a full training class. The cost is SfZS.O0
per hour.

Administrator Training
The goal of administrator training is to allow the lT staff to become proficient in day to day

managernent and traubleshooting of the new Mitel infrastructure. While Maverick Networks will
remain available for post installation support, the staff should and will learn to diagnose issues, make

add/moveslchanges to the system etc.

Maverick Networks will provide onsite administration training for the staff, as requested.

Training will include the system fundamentals that will cover the following:
. Telephone system training

' Logging onto the systems Group Administration

' Changing the Time and Oate
. Managing System Speed Calls
r Adding, Editing and Deleting Extensions
. Modifying Use/s Personal Keys

. Scheduling repo*s

. Adding or Modifying user information

. GeneralTroubleshooting

a

I

a

a

Page - 33



Quick Reference Guide

Mitel MiVoice 6920 lP Phone
,;c1ts:fi gld.$*.at

t*e.lF,*S
a.wrFRK

*strr r'&! l:6:nfl1r1$

Lddlr3rca
r lat:nsd..raggo. GIEIr.r -radi.mls
t Pirarria l;a lrogr$Inaaa tq xd 6al

$rna*l
Cnfaro*
Fbeia ]tlrd..{ brr llr r o.* prx }rr tlld C d *i*r. u ftr r'" @l
fft

Arrtr.hC.sJ
ta tlr lqg-t a FE r'. RI?tl b b nJd*- et .*crr

Ldilrl
Pil f'.8dd.drr m o fu l-Tl x1' rw ro elir td **d ilrti r
arLiid fr lll. nfi. r.fa$
c
ftr f* fTf k t,v{r b fi (H Fp 4.a | !#, {?^{rlF! r t t Pl {d.s.rr
iba rrF s i,t: rr ,+ m *$4 e,{k lnr t} xril hc4t, h3 # hl
athr *t* *t, lJrct lr*trr r* fti* *o{iry $ *d:l ** }*i.d., w-a-

Lrir|
e- f,. lil.l br rffi s s rrrin cJ h na tlN lrtmCur.lit tlu n$dr.l
nrrdrr q5.ar FHfr iTl ht+lbni.*rrr.dr!
Hd*Irtllt.'rr*rf
I l.tl*.**hrrlsh.r perhr El rrt I tr,cdrrhrhrrs^tht
alr(lfl lha trt

? Ic mFa a't c* rrc t fFl la {* d !a. tr upxlrr I hr hr

n

lt'

b

'1'
x*f*ro*r* t
k@nr!d*
r.n n *t ira|
Eihft

h*!ltnG

a iart,rlr *

thatFt*
aiahBF-

'trwFr 
-*iF-al.rE,*tt{rrqraffil

*F{Xlrl*-8.#Dr*Fhtblb
rr.t a.b*i1-*.**

mMitet

*d rq- iaE r-. If, noFrr rDh nl.w*t&rPrhl
arr&.'

rl-.t{':$c-}lr|B
lsF'<-'-c**-

-tk*r* 
qtE dF- b-rr +€.!a-+t5- t.b-E

F-m
a*FF.i HpGHrHt-ltrt!, fqtttpxaxt-* F-r# t-*ti^ts*t 

-

(I3-E3tl
m{*
'Ef,l
G:T

E
cl

EI

Page - 34



Quick Reference Guide

U*{it tr:le'.*sf$ 
"-t1.. 

ttv* .,'e

tlar rairaar
,11t l1*r* f idr., W a AFta.a.d ff r+ dd,rw Oad rtr ffi 6*( ryo s :-Vrrto{} qa.tf
lr'* draa !d i*t nt 

'!.a.srslls 
#il!E

ttl}aaarll\d..

&iwlr,ctnn*

Cds
tbl Cd4rdi +i.{.rriF a&.*a $$s\C parGrit bdOi *6{ efrred, t ty' fa}t i&Voi(q
$t10 It pnnF r+fds r l*rr.{ Pmf rrrr<y n ot a irrr:r t.d lrvrIsr
5nt9 1' nr.ep-*ly rj, tl^tr lcdpdfri m$

Irlll.ld.racl lh.ltffi
artrt. bt dJ.d ilr*s.

f n.r*u
I bt *s{ fttrr

Cll agttan
lil'|rn 6 r &rftr ul .rrq't &*2. r& n*Ft* *,
ffrotrE.$a&ai 

'Qfrlr 
t{ fd* {trFlulr

Jrv

mh{tet

A:.l a*.r I'tl llh

faddrt r cd lrl|C thr Carrrir lft+rfort
I Pn| tl. fTl frrret.nF. Coraaf ?p&*n
I *t€,l kr tq rfifrcfr somrrt loht ;rt tcri finugh hr {d!t fi h (nT n

,lnd${s} ldyr
d
Etl., diJr.fn rhe lir rnp.rl r{ tar !h. g.drt i{alt b ur. gr. rlrdrHT

I tll*r ** .$1agrr .dtt a ttl9atgiH. !.it ga l{*l !i/b.! r t).ll Fit' b
ds e $:r arg *r rtt'r drfid Cm nnbl
x
lodc.r r cJ nrdrtrltvrr,rrroa.d.alradt tr+|irrt lfu rrrFrr,a mbrr
bfra.rl Fr ia ngll u {S t<'. l.}. hqfif{ ar laqr +r'tr* *s rll b aJfllr $r W a do.i ny.!!*F x 

'r 
ej ?*r. |!. la.tt {*aq * {}i.i !.f,?

cad{rrh.r s * aiairlrt
:d tt!*YJ r$re1

Cra. a

t€fti arr tint* t.!. h-.r
::::--T- R":"FF!{ !t_. qvi. d 5rr n*,qxF q

/r ri-ryt rr-.{*f*-wFE Hq Brw-3a+g
EbsFi.F- tr FaHrDr-.-rl F ii*rFFF-,*r-r--ry- !-_.nip--Hsll€-

r.t,*rr{r - lill ,
" " -,aaafttl 1' &. ". "',r'" r^-..,,,

lr*d

!e'*.*

lettrl

lrn t

(* Oi6,

6na* ist

{*tr{rr tta$

*-m lct*. t-.

I

Yrl'lt

c 'r':lfl
MiiihCC-i{di

.{ta t&4 l.t,,

,lr!1rl

Page - 35



Quick Reference Guide

Cd i{$aat l{rGq'la'iroril.tricfi|i
tL$llfi-rylol*rffpr rlljan-d *&ir<n-.dat I
r*clr-iiirrcecrtgf*r.|t'ii-rbrrr,ru |;rlrr I h r:rqarrGrl.urn*ilr-rfrFrrFtr#AErt
c€ib.t!*dFi

cd r,r:t Ca t,rL.*
!!t

Drf.r l*rt-t

U*rarlrC.lll.ryt$r.Jrr
. Frillll 4Fl llr n l'c* b. Cr *,rto*| tcJsr
I Sl'al fn{i ir fr q rrrt n il'!*t trrr to rl{{ rdffmd..ft 6t-

Frr b-i|i n {D rr E a. df r ttnlr
! Fnr lrr taad trhr. !a.a raiq I Cr. t.J lo lr lri?a(t||. ane

F
hr. t tdd cofi.t $aLt t| Ftv h 

'ttt 
F r{r co|xt ratlras*

d
Fnllfrr 0.1- rf.tn dl.rlh.ftryhc r{uCrH*q

Lao.ilf
lirFt qril.ffit.'ua.y r rabr llr 5lt tEO s h. |ffl*VertE0f0f*.r
nd .!l $r Sf,l#lrrft'rr-*r}| G tr. dr |rnt rl rd,wd
tt!.** all atdr|r Yotrrr m rur mCtrE tyFEq ,ltVllBrr.alrr
vrlllr*rid
rrlw$ rcrrt O&r rtil E rc'Frt t!i*l| d frltryr I aari d I ttra

EMltet

tliF. ll..iDt

irLa-

A{l!ai. l*rl

lerbltlrrrrlrh;,
I hiil n CEl lr.lllnfrr frr r. ll. ttlolr b x6.. rt trdr iarho* ,l*rs
:. faxt* I Yoacrrrf eT i: hl E.ifto lt rt ll-r gtn 6a * rDfi.t
I prn lr i.lcl rlrl ! r-d lr t t ot*r tfbacr{ apt drdlrr

h{€t t_5-.'i.rr
lh.-

4 0{hac,

tatb -Cflr\

ea l.i.r -

l-rail

n| FlrGrlt.in rtEFftcll!.tittrf dqtFi ylcr6I

I l- tn r*.r, *a Ftrrn ntbi lllgrFr ilDf &r r-t-

A*rSrcal a'an hanotng

llt *al nv{r.. 6910 P Ftqrr lruad* r nnrroo 
'(r 

drilq sJ. fryq{tr fi
lt*bntay
?r;trtlrd
I Errrrt tar n c *t{ r, fiit ht gJit tlu h,l b lrd{r
, FDr tta ItflaLa l'tat

l(-i* |lt h br. h-.. at0 ra-a

lt-l'Ei Hhana da-t *riratrl-titFfl *Frq- et* t s-ttqasifF*.Dnt

a

I

a
1.
I
t

'r+.&;'

3
i/

,{mllhra.

Itir lrql

lnl$

tab

a
,'11*

.... llia..t{

Page - 36



Quick Reference Guide
l'!. r.fi{.{ lr ttl.ld di lrali

! Err f: fr* qprr rfrl rll fil. na lrrntrr r*rr
$rt*t3 r *fl,1r1torrfr*r d
I lt ll Fs fi c| rah*.t j. l|r ra l|. prtr -r *rr ts .ar b ara I
canh*

, Pllrrt ljdU* ll*+t flr*trr e.f rrflcrtsrld
I F''t. -sarF*i'llfl;ltr tlrl ir ro ***r, esi. trd .xtr !tg. ]a &h tdr Ff|.f b ffi h thr]

r9 mbvrelal
5 F+.., li. I I a b * rr drhd ttir ir3mr d rilt Fr+rrrl 5 It

onafart

l'|r-d f * Srg{.tFrr?lj*c by rrotrgrrra*orr

'r lOrr4 Cll rqr rfar rfr lr fl I .3l# rFO3 {r rr tr/ r; Lid ( d ra4
s!. udi r ?l|t 6 I !'qtFdb d3 fir.t)'bne-rl dgil r'"tr i
c*ll ltH lr.ri ta # tttr rc{* rraaa 9n r* {* trr* e*b {.
.n- srtrni. cif rrypt lrocd ln . rl('drnigcatyrdl
I m C'r;4 t rqrm*r r.f qr.'.|r.ratl.jaarn.trnar[|tltadtr
lfrl*r.-*
hrarllrrtfr..CJ ltrf
I ph-ia Hafr ?9IlhF m*f.t{hot rrn*lu{hfrhlllnrld r rrbed
t hlilt llkn tr$ rnrrrltrS1!.1515,1
| * ttr tr* r*q *!Frf ti.tl rrd t-kr*!r trrta. E
1 Prrrir tbrtrirjerlth rtbx bh.lilitlatb nd:tl rria:t/rl|.-|.ltr
a iotryfi Fi* t -!ro fl{ff r.t b 'H $tr ftrvta *t!o! pd Fr

!ta_!aa+cr h-a S nfa F ra? . prr* sO.rC Ct l? r{|tf I Fq|s Sf-{
Crl by r md ln r.{ r crulnl 9*rrr d <*i lO rtrr* e u
ffoL|ldrr *lt tlori i &*i*.t

5 hr 1r Lr. raiar5 t'i thntfirtsrbn bt Fb r-.tt
I rn Onrftrr.raf rbr.im C*t&fi,f.tr,09rtflf*a r.rf€Fil*rf
I G -r - F?Eq XF|{Hr{rr ry trtr +q}&
| ;rmm E *rr. trr&|,.i?tAF u d

trtMtte{
r€xtt g{r r*hp laFi.-*

Sakf {.-**xFFrsr-.-!aFF'**F*.H.*"rF-*qsfr *n*Ftry

-*t*

Page - 37



Quick Reference Guide

MlelMiVoice 6930 lP Phone

i!rs?rr"6 €.{"ry4{,

f***ry
U"F arii{F+.'r'
ailnt* ,*,"*/trvq+tu. a

S.!rff{- *,iSt t\et&€tni}

t*+&led r 6*

t trlrr tilrta a r.,* 61 Gl!61 rrr, r'a
Slta nrrtr

c!8.

f Fnr lr lfr. Fotrrr.t- trt d ad
hr nr6.t

&*ryrlj
pbe lhr biid b*r. ; ardr F.t L: trd 4$ $aa.t a fa. o. lj,.-l
|.r
Arurdq rrJ
ll llrr hrfil grs r. lit7t$ .tt ts hnnr{ *.r*on
iilf
tlr*r dnr lb{al s6rr ru* F $t m rt} lllaa s ta o. El 6llaa airtca' r
*r$l$r-t 6 It l{.i! s*i
t

**f . l-ill l.rd,o s r.@ tu Crt l(#ty q*l<h as, u dr 'd'*ra* "-ffiT,t l* 9 c.d drw v,qrr*r.1 u i<rf *w.{n tt ffi nxr
a.tg Hs |r. t{r+. t t*F!r q PrJ *t*4r h tf,}{ *Fa*rrd a*t

*#n€
n -f,. f]D htrirtrarlrqltt?dlgftrrtt isqatrrkF rsdtt
,Fi. drFt- A-rt f,Tl Ly+rbrrh-iirdo
ilClaidrrl{rfrf
I to*rcrrrtlrriilncd o.ulh. El rnt A tlaotfintaiamtl
,lataclit Lh. lcr

t r. trrttt ft ctr r-, ir @ lry {- t prro th. '.to.t*{ th. r.y

*aa*t

!rlllaL{aL
-{J

ta{.{ts

.5,l

(IF€
BS8e.€H
.waJ*f,

"' trfan.|.-.a
l+-dl6

s{rt **br*+FF

FXftFt

ffifrr{tet

dt:,i:r {nE

*
l$rFrb,riqsb*r&*
H*tA* 

'ae,r,1rtF3.*{!,*FxtsllJ..ltder
{aa,Lhxhdt* l*xPllf.-
Ftah*bbFs

kHFl+.'.tt16->HtE
F ra-i, tlD t

t{F tl'lH*r s rtt* Ha*t ira}rtq{ !p-1,* gx navr*}'iri.,'!{,8tur
IltOra

a(frBtll r*r-Ert-^*
il*-E---,FE- E 4F-:s'ry--.-.tsP
; ! s \.;i....i ;;.t; t. *;- b ra; Fi' -i a. nJr 

- 
! & *'',. - r - < * .*'F #

t.K
5*FF*-E'rFil--i-. iti.t E--tilc--a*- -* * iF--i-f*--fr
F*€-

Page - 38



Quick Reference Guide

i.Jg€i tni$rf*, , l. :i ; 9y61r43,.

lhrrcrwr
ti, tlo.q lA{5lt k . *X&}d *Gil fr Fr(fli(ry F*'t rbrd f*rb.t w *ffi lv'bry
l*. d*+ ''id Lrl aa Fryr'Fra& ro{:*

AgS,.fsftc!4}?

CrFC
ttFco.tb TtsaFr 3I Frt4{dfal.t lef ro{lrr*y Ih. Llaaaft*r
&9$ lP t{ryr **lsir rb€&rd f-S6r*rdFdy. e*qx*rtl rlsr LOAP
{r.''art*l*tfi{'i. rid |,.l.**.} *b{aair* i,.xr*f4 nhd! tabr} vg I S{
yagt ia* crat r*r ldr j{yl la ptto.ta

iAi{rd

f* n"*

Cellrcnrr

hl*

fe.t

rblrrd..a-ts flr.fbfi

*aCru

r*'.|r
tlfrr* t'l x td* d|a tJd 1 afI'I, eil qrd|} r{ O* dlr*:! !* r .&4,1r.$J
l}{ ryv rt n** tilrrr E lld-a'',i {r9tcU cdru*v1 rorlH

l*'
(th

r-, a

er fa-at

fi*ia6 * edl trfl| thr €rm ;.lGdrr
t Ar.. ri @ rq tare t!. co,trlr afrtti*ot
I llagf I fr up<rn cdxi'!' .r rrd a.ila tlagh fr c..rbll h r*f ll

rqlnf*n
u
afi rnffbr'-19 tr tt'.d r.d F'ir n !k:.t rill' b m lhr*rdr
hla

! lttr fr qadl rrb<r I hdaft-d F- h. t acr hLt r 0arl rfl.t b
*rq r alrt| t i*'tf C*dl plcr,!r\bt
la
l. tca r al D r flr.d ,.Do. lr!.*f aalrC hr iia firy {|il rl''?4. a nobra
i.rtrl. F- fi rt'f il.g.liLy. qftrrlrFlm,IlfiLr,nlrdbc,l
lra li. gc fuF org*i l.F rd iil t! LL! l(at g O.ll rfiry

Do Mitet

al aa LLt

..lryli:,: h.*tFllltth

$-aG-- 

-E..---r-

a*.*!E.q +irF\ tF'*F?ftDFrr.t*<.'{-*mtFFFali-
!--

!i!n-lr!!1!''bnflDFiqt -rq.-il FtqqF+'r 

-rHr 
--T 

h*-miF-Fa

--.*-

ataa
'" *+*

.-.).aatarr.

li:tl 1,.- -a i',#F'
,. ht- li

a -'l* **/'

':.TH
:h.,i$h*&*r'

_.4;;

Page - 39



Quicj< Referene Guide

C*Hh.y

*a

Cr*-rt -t-d

gl&t-

lHthr.a

Fa-t
f*it

Lill6

ea$ll1*rlrc'rllf
t nir rrr fi] tf*rfr| fry ct lt. llEi b l.B rr tllc t ili. ]rn
| flr4'- b Yrkf,at l' g lb, lli mt-r fry.d Gr F- ftr fda.t tlr
I Fn ht{L.t$tbr-<ri.lecttrt lilllrf dt dltr

I 
U t --l* ittilaurialrq'|6rt|tltpr

] r* 
." rr,.o*r,dFr*r.{ ..Fr x -r.!h. t!F*i vr a-

x

l*hrrnaxl c-rft hrndrn€

$. Laarv$ eflo F Ptw p$ldr I D*od l.. raa*ng dl lxfi t
lr:ftr rto!
indrnhlra*
t €nr'la trlrs dr rni 6It rdhl*fdt re f,t bltr*{
? F r- hr frrir rolrr

?}a ratrr aa a rLrdorld
I frr Ar;rt elrrf rrrrfu rri F hr Tc*r ril;
Cadt r;*+rrr' cfltlljrrr crl
I EmtB rt Et dn c, {tdt d haorii {l llr{{i til rrlDalt t

qrhraa

dl|.|,rdc*rr
rrtsraali*ry

-Galtm
I
I

lliaaa Cal

C+.t td
.!*h

c

Ullrf rbc{llrrst;rtLdil 'H*t
I pilrft l,4J tqlr<crrrrrCrrn*r+rll*r
I Sad 1rq41lb Sbtqtr. i-!# DF lc 

- 
rfuu Frcft

Pil r Ear i..{-ff *slL.{rJ'. frgneh.d
l F rll |l $har b{0ir a Dlrl *trt ! !&ar a .r bi. iQ.$r ill

fl
F|.lra. Ad.+ Csr.d rltx3 e''t 3*t b tcl,oclf.f rfrHq
q
Fnrr Lr D.Lt aotlr to rhLa drt iaf hD faur C.l lrrrr.t

\ft*rril
lY|rln rfirfif trrrol!.xt' i .lr$d. 

't. 
Sll tEO sr lt lha Xrt'txc 69Xl hatfl

ra*a*.If*frw l4!qr lrr l*rirr..&tf!a ffif
nnaf.ll t ar-6.. l.n,G|,! ragn Frr r*.-F.c b prg lr
Y{t{-.ll''
lrlr.aa Fasl.t
trrrl r*rltrrn*lrixa{ra b ralF}rtvI'lir{ aaL, r 6rl al.{r*r
dl'qtadilJr*{ar
| *,*-a-r- rffiIlfftrC lle.ryaaf ryl'lh rnlrtI

mMltet
rd.eiFtrr !rF-r(# r.i!rH

bbLh-,hbl F- 
-{-t-tl.l --tri-ryn -r5n 

d- in-ril----
5*l-t!

1l ter
.....,.... t-t

c\l

Page - ilo



Quick Reference Guide

I F6.. n fa{ tk. rotr,
Ilt $ir{rrbd6ha5

I E .tfred-ruhFlr.q.r!r
/l l{t ftl r :*flr. d*f. lid iai FE tr .lalr Catr rokf b dr.r tr ftn

rryl',l.'.ara.d
5 ttar aa?l t b I b.ad.\ a(fod Frtf llllrrl,ur ot r],.n prx9.$t b trcarllE
jFr*r'l ..; trrryl1r.s!.d6{ e*y efwfuL'?*e*fr

A tfrr4 t f l? a*l rqr b drrr r t'r<*ra nvr(s drr H ltt t B fF.d L * alfr
* Ld{d i hrr fl b. p!e.d ba|ll rG{t to } raridq }Lnd ffi F
qd* Is L-Eli s..{e lilrca- yeff jae b-- 6 b t
ri- ortcil !* strr'r ttrl C.l lfi n |l.l dd{nlai mdy
! h rrr,5a3 rp7r.u liq lt FU r{ lr.-rd!ri.*a--t
lf tt*^r+-r*
lteqrr*g t igrrd C* ir'y
! Ataa rJd PaH rr Tf| tl. Feef-rrat|| i.y llr $6 ffidrlufl fu l.Lltl.l.lrfifqd
I h a. L*a ranLl irr.bib sat F$c r.!

I x tfl r,r rrc r*l r itaq {f,ara trn ? t fiI ri.l nu rtrrit }r tF
t Fria ll. 4i!.r or.orsrfrr ! twin b n laiatt.l rrlE -rd rrfr na iarta.

[.!tttailrts 6rrtr
r tw^tt Prr ltr. dtrr hfig.dt L.r ro ,M h 1T pilw .rfi lbor 6 i*i

fte talil }rrni f0 id. i. t.r I prh r. tt*l fJ lry ltlm : Prw- Sp*t
Ca Lr r Frd, $c cI a .r.df,l, F fr r\d ati rO nhntk$ a dtr
-Fa?ard n ** FAa*'r {rl t'dsly

3 F!6. f!. t irn., b H t htrnrdFE lrl.t Frld
| * t*r*r*ffF-.t*r C.ats'*t*-rn rlqrdlt *,* lrD.ts ..a
I l:r'-r r7r o r FIp*.-0 I pdd E GF I ol Ftr*
| 

&hrr) r* E I.Jffi f r5 iir * tur La tat&f, elt f ,ni* {rs O*

I {rorr.i-'it ia,ift,rx
fh. ar.-it*nfffi {910 f f'tor lp.lrtiloldsf .tua:t trr rrs'{u islbr
rrlr.. f,}|lrrfi Erl?ta*cn Frlridildogf ,*$f*{,r*,}d^rt -s*dr tq

. SR trrrioq F$na r !.rD.lrfl arC irl hal9t.* ror.Ft)o p Phofl

FMltet

'lryd rrt Lr!,,oa.iI '-f ,tuatlo Piidta
.'ftlr rFr (dr!|l*.ntalelol'FtE d roulrl a !a?i.

l* 3*,rtiiF x tadryra.*d.|dtr- l'*lili
bebr$arfutari

hfha rr.L*lor$re ltfdr
r n - l?Jrr., iq-afar{.dtrrr{ rraFirsr&lr+aDr*r!
Lf.tr,t t

I itilaa Tn fi drr, 5 r- l#r rrEHrr,
E r-tu '* trd r rhcffi- raa ldrAtu 6cll P Pri6r
rrrf* sq b rvtrll firraoth friqr

I r .al*rr. rslr fl rn Flo.al * rh
JffiF--Frta-.F
t hr!.fl!*n6*fwhfi

N*-frFd $+fi.
ill!'*rltrrl bfttl{urati
rrrFc"rnlt$-rflol
ria.rn*fr#F-trr
I*{t ldbn {* FrS r(A.i,
Atrlrxdrp;icrr4lF,
O*rr,il ttti lra lr.a
lrli*r S0$ P nronr r* *w
Fd* dar|(l

I
l.rturLall ll3 |l,tEir|[d6 ri.

r$aa lltdlrlh tlH lllvaraEF rPtur r-.fal' er t! ida. tlurdi arlccdad
rfti--f -rplr lo cad E ir.S tr.il

I r* tr-t r, *a-l s. I raGs r*it at rr cl $rli hr rlllt rl*t
f lrrm;r rcr.cats.
6 ftr Ot trcfrrbdfr l* -,.-f { aani.Lr

fi. a{rraad riobtturaa #brrlld ta*.al*.rr rrds nar }sr.
lyadnl*g.tfr *aaeran
&ra.|l *vroE*$ *llw qirr*ed't t.t!ai b rinltt{Fbar aqra;tt
a.Cgtb.F a.$Gltfrgd6ffi
16iG.ltutArtil ffi.ll'r

I r',.*

Page - 41



Quick Referenoe Guide

| ft-r ni llf,.l t y lx..r alr Cctxrr *r.r..
l rlr'|erloi.IclSE?trrtt'!r
, hrdil.Urrt-..*G

llrt lllll LVo 69I ts Pt .r td.l| beqrtff $artd- F !trd-
lorl(i

I r. t* 6 r r tut lrt*iHactlu.||. .lnadr FtJ! prr lrl r
lrtrr-t.c-t!6trht
Aril.-a r in{ ncl. cd rr1 JU e fr3 tll
llFlm
tlh.n tu,,t'4Ga |l.rr. rr|(lJroto(fflcD rol, lla.aLffdr 6t 0P ?no{r.
trqr./tt .rl9 s /o' *)t* Fy..,6 *d 9* rdf;ir* 9o :tn* t')?t d; t \:*e t* a?t

I r*a" 
^ 
*"f* r* *, l* c r4w kl 4s s*s*#*,**$C Fue

I W1" r 4r1 I s. .o'v -a a,-!.&a r*" * *!. ;aar t/bi{t tt e *{cr a}iry ftr*I

Pn . !r tnlr (.f fiaf.t b pu.h tn ticoa. dfr ridc Fcrr loc llrl llhho 6tI!
PPfrafr b tqa ildb- fllf,5
0,
,ar- h I fo* tlahl$ Frir,tt u.t{rt'6lilt }tt'1,d-rllfr h
nr r*rt ilr\ttcr 8ll0 ? Ploe

tfichf relf calhrr
th. lllill.VnertolP tFs F.r !ra- €{ b.t b f* C.l

l+rnrl7 Sdrlr yq,l c.ta. d tqftr
t trr r'r fTJ tcd il.lerylln'
2 llr{* hh.ft talt q lb..d tr
t Ptrarlrt$r*.t

nr. U- H\bG. 69f F Pnam d-gr r rrqi$m rrd l|ft ,cr uCr
tal h#v

hl rt|-5 rbabnllrartdx{r-Fqlil Nilt-fb
,i$ Frt {r t Sr*tl r ft'li lrqlEg-..G

I l* ra,o*t-.m snr nr*^:.drtC"rbr5tant bt,tr* a.l*r*t
I r€d.? r i$!ao d dn 

-; 
*'-aG s* *rp* rx ix *c tw * x * :r*v

I 
rtqrrfiA rjr.l;dr

S::.-:"-
$,*" -"
t a".{ - o.aan

Iral UoIr

OEr€

Ll-$r rm.t* * pr" tu gfg try. tft"C lS brooA lhr tt s llr
rdry ta l-.chl.tr r*E er

!4tr** tts *r/ttr a,f E ndrra ;.lll crl lrtt flrr ndll Fm rr{
lrF*i |l,Vcl:s ltlo P t{rtrr

mMftet r titta)lht !- l-..ar. r it-!*
b----r--E 

-..---t-rtF-.fr -JF--*r- '5 *u 
- -_.$ 

yr.e.& * +,.'-* *b---F 
--.--a-F

uEsH-,*tsQEadl-a-tFet ad i*Ffl * qfq-o-|fl t-*r-EI--*

-Firs,

lr'.i

trllFr

Page - 42



Quick Reference Guide

M[elMlVcrice 6940 lP Phone

i.:d;etre *A$*te*

l*atr
iF*lrS
rrliffia.E
!#r9*r{@

&**ig srdt twrr4*,g:l6

frngr rt
.,aht-catc1'; t!@1ay 5o

6# {rc nr*r
, l+ $. f b. tilfrm*t rt r! di ,r.irar
?*;rat
Eaof lrt il.l.!.d fr h !* bF fr tr{ f.I rd}t d F€a a.

,t/|ru,}tr 3{
14 tLissrd Frr t. EEI t i t'l hrr.s.a r9l.ro{r

*rar.ne
lryr *s *rJl+l p^|r, rw" x t,** lr f'T] bt rs E d i. tn df,-d rnbr
* *.f,lrt?d fr! arP PFd Frdl
t
n- fr. t-ii-l Lt m ts rra ts t'3 lbrxf {?a* risl d! } n& qa t -+*d rutfi ll4. (?rd dFrD xrj, *xrls'r *'*plq 4rfir**ttl #
F f'r OU t lll!'t rr*l f!. ri*td x.ii
t l.anf

nl lr l?l lr! *tltt n d d,t ., b rr& a.;dotlar lil ta, hl&.l
h-i.lo{ r9..lr trr|r| Ffl rr} .g|ln b urrtt }. rd*
ganoraru-l
! tocbrtxlt rlahnrd rune CEI f.t A ,rtdci'.dtlilrrmti
Src$5 th.f.t

t lglmrrri p-;. fFl \qrrl4*rrq*lctJrrry

tdtri lrt

|drla
{tf rm f;}gE=a
E tEttl
trFq] cn.,_ h

o0 Mitet

Ult#
Yq-.fr
-.fartABFbEhG.Fd
Hil.lrlltdmr*
ttrr*aa-a
airaaar r it-aF
l*f.||i*lia1HE
-Fb{ibh*t
-thr.!*.S?w I

I
I Ita6.

tartt lil-FrF{rlrk
?-Fqb FIF*.Fhfr .qr+,dhry|4*h ,w 6,a+vs r$r)3F i &lq i,{r&!.***c :--r

6F--tr.9-lqFa*rrr-tr-t 
'€ 

4qryFl*,d *, F{F 
-il- -DEr-Xts--

-*t--

t

"tlrr.r
&

lr

1

'\

Page - 43



Quick Reference Guide

i"rs{rr ltdtrl}c* it..li t *vcc'r:s."

lianr *rrfi
tt* hofi ld.***l *{a* n dhdrr*<i r'&m ** *iraqr l n tia rilr 5 Da llott
rt1.iF 6{drtn *r&, }a6crrri !r{* drr{!o.t nri**r. arata laa a*d flrlut
Ir b tn t al F$rnrrfr rdf?rr

\-
rl*l
H

frsc r*

AS#<4trofts

Cqr.sn
irs f"4'l.}(ir J9t&.aa! rb&**.srd Platu t!d)r r.l gx*f,t lha lju $'ri4(a
6,910 p tt}f{ hriilad r ba ar}, p#i.|,?a<trr} r-ftosrart .S I nAP

is gvr l tia<rry rd ir*rHxJ rat&ld A fi*{q rldr rt r F.r b rvtr
w rrl.h <o*xa *<h # {qao {1 Phrs

l.ar.t

b!. .rtrla{

clalr

Daaocs \

CI rafiaar
lit.l cl Il aatJa cJ r*ar avttr, l{.t, artr. r#}{rr rlf*lllr.r-flrld
Iho oa*rt*lltl r*fr r! cr-d .ar f,fl.ial{r (.l lu*te f*ai

c*a

f..dng I od lrllclrCoru rlfartolt
r ftrrh lFl f+ tr..r- rr cotrb $rrn
I If h rre.ovr cnat t#r rd xn. rrrwf na alrt a lu ll?Fl t? :{

-6aai3t
tf ta afdl fal. r,t du.xiil rf)e tlt a.*aa.l tll|otlt' rn S ia Ut a
:nta Ltet.a tra xlhltr

t rNtr6 tr T?ralra .firxi a lulrelt{. L$ $. Dlrl .otal b t cc I cr {i!9
hl*tr rE tplt6rd{hr
d

loCaoi r (d b r da#iltl Faa.ra ryrla.r r'Ca.a h. Itr |.l$ lh ar|l'Fr. I n ada

{ilL.}, tt fl. I iry rll(.lr lnl ca.*.d Gl.d Frt .d ftil lle na gattia

n i?nful

*r-.* -

(d

fr*
Orr

FMlte{ lqtltltt:b6--xtFLd

-..--t.-{r-*.+
EErFtstshEErdl-r-ritl $XiE#*,*$**dfr!!'*
F-i€F

&
tt

,{::i{: ....i'i.;...

,"i 1'
.'.tt.,.},

f'
l'l'*"*-
a
a.
Ii'-

,g'

q.
,*

*
a

Page - 44



Quick Reference Guide

ctlhrt
fh Att!.&e,etf*.k i Ardry! r I d ttf Fr.d. tll[tg *d r*hd $L r
|tl *,ry ild* f,d l&Hd.,{t* Vsr *t ffi . {#.a d aj c, ?} {?t t**E?
r*s rl r.a r..tt rillrF tr.Ceo6 Ff6t|l

ftsi

rkta.st dsre.Cblggd

I 
r...'.o-*1q:lrd11y {ror1;11 1,ir turr1;i-

5-t ot{r
blrS-r

fta

/, at tiaa ltn
.,'Cafrgr

!rycd
f,rrpav>
/1 arFrrct

li* Itr

dl*t '' .9*r cirr
a*l

U$e $. Cf HlbrV+dc**.
I ?trt,. lFl fr;tmLc*rtl*tr..b.r
J fry lr r4rdvr otrf hlt rd $lrtc{i tr rtu ftr.?q * nd

rloil ff lr h'l lo ff &il r* fi.rl r+ * , lry i{I'r li. a(ft r
ti1;lrt'-d

3 t*n Ol{Ff,.v t0CFt r.ab l|t rsrllr ln.r
d
Tl' hAd Crlrd ril.tloort 6. r,*y b t6f od*rr rp**qr
q
t+ h. D.a.. rdl.yfoldct!r*;*t lmr tor,Cd Xs.l

\ttmtl
T{r }ffid frt.d} I nJd lhr lfi\,l tEo{'lrr. rLta&t q tc4olrdrfl
,r( sr h. E lYqfilrtr.oir d.l.For i. xr h *rl!e h, rtr;r{
tta-{nx|ry'.*f. Yi!& r5 mr lqB * nd f|E*1grwlE *x
Volcrdlz
tlrrlntorral
\raa loarrd ritl*r rcil 5 ddarht tr-il Jd affi r aqd a, I [r

EMltet

lla l-.t *--

il4laaftt*rr'l ft&-$l
t nr fr l''lfl tfiirgrlrrtdtulrg' b.qn ttas t arlltr ffi
, f?v!|.;i
I t+4. lry ofa lrokff.l lrt d.dtor b ra.llrr dbs
aI+tr
n| ft.prr s{ iattr|i|lrL|ltrlsli l'i s, H'rHt

| * ro. *-" * dtrt r.r!4ft r* 3 F? {rft u!i.I rt# € e *, ttt4l \trI

fu$taa','d *{n h*ndllrx

Ilr lJbl *trxr 6910 p Phri. g.so.r a djpi ,(t r.*rE9 a.t tls{ft tr
trr|'rr*n
lnafiniSrcd
I €|t|'| tqt * araal'i rf rdr Sa6ttr tiir *ri lor|t{rr
2 lslra trrd.. r*.t

llra rcri sl rgbqd Fr ha$
, er* 4. lrn - lxtfrlJ lura.. dt+ llilk

r(rritrF rrryt#.r rtibr
i----tB---
-.\---+-Gd----,+F.F's-q-d G--a'E-WG
IXrF tr HmrittSrrr*iaer5
-raE-

fiimt--attE{-d

t
I
€
I
j
t:

Page - 45



Quick Referene Guide

Cl*l r ;rd+rtf r*lrnmr crl
I f|![ Fr '' 6 rchi Gd risr aahof,ia slh ridrfl .trbr.b I
cg{xlia.

I ll ir At{ u.rr lortn
nrlrt.aJrpaadnW

I Filraf {a.*y'rd hlatr irdta,
f nI h r rm.,, rsilA ..a tli b, $. rr*i (.fi Iitry to fita. tr. fnr'

a.' ao.{ailr.a .al
t nl'.r ler 2 b a lo t h rr dbc.l lrtf krr-ifii rl a+{{l F.x)Ilbt n }.

!4rarioa

Spto<* C*;i &{$.Jr **}r:lrh'* *,*7 :;**z&g* xw*t
A lFrt C^f l.1 rE f , a aJ I t dbd n rat * dlr lit l* tgaa t^* *g
6L ildJ - *rt 6 L F(tl"nff{b i.a dnr*f la* rr:rrJ* r*6*a66f, e
|,dl| rfiraLatra't*l|ialdl.t* r{+lrsd!* Yfi m**la6jrr{.&b s
.,rr dftlc. carrr0 vrr tr.il cl tqr n plo ot drg .'t mrt
I nr Cr.1n3 lnlmFlrLr*{lr t?\, }irn{Srttaa drrJa{lrn-il}t
I F ltsert

rtqrxrrlp r $rei Crttry
I Prr. ra hdd }. +?a.*l F€rfr.tlr lrf tb 0.$ 

'.cgrt 
u{ tr. I *.1

lnr lrtdr d:dq|ld
? h $. l&.1 lG. rr8. !i. r hb.l b Sp, I 5r lry !.il i. olFr.Dn

Wrrd
t tT.'r trd.rfirditr6clrl.re ri+rdf.tr
a IQl'IlJ ho ar hh.ir di.r ro* t* da* &. f.'r I ttrr* Srfr C.l f q

$lt n|gnr*!DrF.tCJtl' r r+'*, *.r,*aa*df,F-.-*flrdc*. A
r$!6,*.,! * iqf {t rs'rd n t* gral't c{ hr€e*y

f lS fl f&r Ell.t b H It l,a.trffibtr l.t Frr.td.a
I ft A-tar*.r'rv\*tri CJailtr-q! *4l.stb.t t&atran X
I ao:*r l* !.tr 6 L tE?F.a rtfita.r*€tFcat!.d-. qt?tt-r
I .a..'ts', 'g Tr '.oFafn rp tG€ rlsr*r ls{ tl'b{ obi 0r*

&r*{fi*[rr* fsclt;r**

l*frrfryrlr r.Fr'l l*a.fJrf rha|C lrtFo\dd rria|r
fr{|.i t d'.4lotr l.ottlol nqflhtr acldr fu

a{yb

. 3Fr F, nnflr,trn r rolcl ld srd d l*ry i* Fn tt lO F Frma

' 
rrrw r nrettr parnr sl mf t!.i ftl, p Ptc

.taon *rn cAnrn* lbSla0PptrFiandts i!bJ. frH
tn ra,r l*'3|a arrl.rtr,F Lt|bns'|-rLha cllElt*
rar#ts r*sS ?*fr llh(F* lralrltft tl.ra-.

Itlthg r ;o$r /nr oQ *r*r,*
r F*r l-Cl rr rq dbprr.h.too$ *il
t !r". h. fi l.lglr.adrbrir{*trrreltllrr{r rtdr.t

€.tqt Fr'ir*rlqraL!trltaa-$l*far1lflsacr!10F Pio.*
raGHt r'r lr 

'1l* 
fran lt dav*r|

| * -*.s b.Il !{.an i'l srs }{rt {rr raa
lmf-tr-,r.rinfE
1l'r5.ll#r*{Arnflfite

Lan A|st6.*t, fS 
'rrDrF(lE afry s rr. Lr rl

rrf*t lbrr
AtF.SJtertofif#l
d{flqr m ioaa. tllliJ
llpml+l0'| Pim xlt*
arl*&*r

| [m frr p*ng C nrfrrr+t
fir b-r alrr€ar 3la l,t ffi #!
Srr *lrra 31b* 6*{i F flq*

b?- fi 6da. pal'r td{ uc.di
ilHr** a;|Ttr b t4md b l. ldar p.lm

ftr afrllrmq - r*r Fra4r attr t Fi bl-9 :.-i D
tro aoi.a(t{a.r r Craal.axdar rd

i Il F. rri !r&i b |crrsldir if Htaar (rxlq!
Ita cffild rr,a.pt<n r r*foo{u l'o{ p**dt}6i.4 Ddr nrdrbn

lFtlnf #tlhqfls
lli. l.t| fAra 8la0 P Phcr rarilt* rrn rsr adr sllr<l tc h
cc{oi *ralhr$qr tlt!ri asra*ri
fg rrfi$r 9!4r.r VO$aO!{ co|:b

mMtbt lttt lXtFbFll-*
ih---- 

-.---*rt--s.--'r'- 
.r---ilrFGpt---

FE'tsHi.-hl;F--irr-lprr E--qrFFFr-a t*d *g iF- trtFtr*

--l---

l
a

Page - 45



Quick Reference Guide

I Fle lrr (T-lr.ysx*rrgrrldr.Fr.rr
I lrirrotlrabgbffir
I tti. lb-rrrt

Ilr lllt laVxr {t<0PFlEflIrfar b{ad*rdlndffi ls,tdar
slrl

l t* t*pa*. rtt|l!*a,€otarail.aatrd,tracsrt rrnif bsFr.
l.--.tr ra+rrrar-rh'

ffi*t r tra*i r-l. .{ .rha v* rnd 
'f\baoo 

tl t
ltll.lF F, nlnr rFi. lcdrdic.il{lr*rq r{{. f.tril&V$il{ttg l| pltnt
rrd.r'q c* d rdr, rdf rl$a ra ba rtactld tr pr t€14 f Fttora |l rr.a

I r. 
^ 
l.fr a--1 tt qtna b rn ftiirrr! *r d {! ttrtl

I 5E fOt F6. rsq trrr *a lt'tl. lat-F DO ttltEiFdflt

f+ fi !5' for lhr t.t b Fl ;. ld cl r 1* Iti to tr* pnanr b
nl llralltarbr aNao t ?l!.s

lnc1*cJlJ*v
l!| fAl ft\fttl {Ele P phra *gn*rtr rts rrrr r*ir eJ I'ilst lo ad *f
tlxry Sia3! uf'clr !$!C ra4 dta.ddt f h *' ra.aa. a.5i d.!tl til
tr$al tl.x €, hc.y tE .d drg{.if -{ rond t*};l\ m I}F flf-d
l** dqrr** rl rn* tt{h'L lttdil H{ €rfa t]trd{a {rtt
lo cdt tff lir i$a. erltt*y
I err.rrr ITJ {ci lS.ttLf
2 I.c i. l& faH. a lrl.a tldn
: l*6.lha{d.y

Iia lrdffio|.. G9ad P Plur r..ta r l?6r stqr(firre.ro{ ndtr.t
f-.a

I t I - qa.. r,, l.ar.rn d\.a! ri{.-t{t:i tr krq ra
lr-i-r:r.rffill.F

I n- o--- Fr{r-l,r-aelirt€a attr*.Gaf*tart
f aa+a r r*!a!sf Frb cai(t r.{rFni***rr, *rr!F ttt,lsaf
I +ti:r a'rtd.. ffi adaISlfra.t.

It*C*n

$rtm
t{.r.rl.1tr.(1Fr* @l Lr t..iarrr0 lgl Hwdrlhrfrl orlarx
rrrrvb qaa*rr qxn
l!!'vt|]l t.rde ol m r*rr ri*fr ed b*.rfi ra* itaffa lrtra srdn{IUrhlll0tFlFn
?+lt.haf .Jrtrt b Fr. li rr*h rJ! ttu rarld,lL.alJr{crillao
F FlrnrFl|lrr'oaag|ryrt
d

mMftet .qr!ra( t-tF-lltbLr
r- F-+FG- 

-E-qr-f 

..i-FFi-il
----- b+--.#--- - j'r-

t<ffi
B-rHtrEh--rdl -r*t-,| 5--*tf gb 

-r5- 

r-- in_.rtFEi-
Ert-F-

I
II

tt.
o
s-

ru

{i

I

?age - 47



TUI Quick Reference Guide

Mitel NuPoint Unified Messaging

USEROPnOilS-*-

lcclllro vuufi ltrl(rx
. br'trbtbd tir+{le.ryerr*n({.rr{*G

ttg lr do|,rrrt?r{i5.i.lh!r
ll'ttr p.lr:n*g I l.t{ ra..iiqtry.t bd br n^d. ll fltat}

, r FUll.( h lfl€C hli.rt ladilgi ti tsra.t .Sdr b*n| te.r! hb s rl'l tuI sr r.a
ntt+rfi *l'..ltrl r*nOc h nsrgfu t fft6r - ld#ldr

ifil €{aflde. rd t3F Safi.l}|,t'tiaai:rru{!? }*tlitt |rrrrcillfrdai

- -PI.AYE{AIL
EStAOE

irAtlt ilEilu
lri XEssAgE

ADDRE'8IilO
oPTtoilS

.lfAKETEESAOE

0na&rd

ircrra taqtaf

t]rFd

lcngs't
tralpf.il

Or.t3Cmaig

Urt4tl{r*

ftq.PrroC.

t"*&tr*LA
t{$d$,{rtHdt

r{&ar

€ab{rrltn||

FA)(OELN'EftY

f{sEl4*r&s& del
tr.raoeam nha
l{tuua$rqrrfl,
utltlfF({. t*(€dtr&cllrnl', r f----I

-I""1
I

I
I
I
I
a

-lf - l
If -F*r i

| * -;'"rfff
,
t

(.t
!.*

tnbllx! fril,PIJYVOICE
HEISACE. *

3--

t.o,*tO- 
l; ;l

t-r+,f
oaf
r"ce It*. !*"-|l

I
t
,{,t*\dUT$rd

Fm lbirir
nt,l{r$S}

li+irx* hrlart
f s fur.'dlE

Qrdq
{nttl}adrA.b

Frr (}r*a

l"&,,!{H*.r}}A}J

ALllllRoPTtoitt
\Yet'*

la!*t

* lrsr$cr rc {}txra;

_ * _cAtrgnEgrof,
AllllilrslR ltofl

Etthilrffi
&sdGtrs

l1rrr6c

Eri
*

t
tlHtr*

ltffis
I hd**
I !=.-:! !=.

XlMltg[ :Fff,j3tr::*!'r'*H{Hits'ru'Yffi*

Page - 48



Scope of Work - Technical Requlrements

r The phone system configuration must be developed ln collaboration with lnformation Services
and other County departments.

Phonq $ystggr fonfisuratioa

Maverick Networks will work very closely and collaborate with County lnformation Services and other
Departments to develop the MiVoice business configuration. We will work to document all of the existing
user, extension, and feature information. We will make recommendations of where to keep things the
same and where to use the new technology to improve comrnunications work flows. We have many
years of experience across many similar clients and will use this experience to help the County get the
most possible capability from the new Unified Communications solution.

e The phone system must provide full E911 compliance, including mapping extensions within the
system to their physlcal locations.

L4iYp:cs" "gssliasg:-€13-ee$plia n ce

When an emergency number is dialed, a CESID is sent frorn the system ta the PSAP. The CESID is used as
a key in the ALI database. The All database displays the precise location of the caller, and emergency
services information identifying the proper medical, fire, or law enforcernent agencv for the location. lt
is important to communicate all CESTD changes to the ALI database.

E9lL Services

A Customer Emergency Services lD {CfSlD} provides location information for a phone extension on a
private network when a caller makes an emergency call. The information can help direct emergency
crews to a caller's location, CESID programming and maintenance is a required component of emergency
services.

CESIDS are public network Listed Directory Numbers {LDNsi that users obtain from a local carrier and
assign to a directory number {DN} on your network, When an emergency call is made, the system sends
the CESID of the extension to the Public Service Telephone Network {PSTN}. The CESTD is used by the
central office {CO) to route the call to the local Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) and then by the
PSAP to call up information such as the address, building, floor, area, and callback number.

For a 911- call to be compliant with FCC guidelines, it must report a CESID to the PSAP. At a minimum,
users must define a CESID for each DN in the CESID Assignment form. To ensure that CESIDs are updated
correctly whenever a device is moved, prornptly investigate and address all CESID-related alarms. Users
rnay have to return a phone to its original location if the move was not authorized or update the CESID
Assignment andlor L2 to CESID Mapping forms. Alternatively, users can populate the L2 to CESID

Mapping form in advance of a device move.

Page - 49



Regulations

MiVoice Business CESID support complies with emergency services regulations including but not limited
to Enhanced 911" standards.

I The phone system must support teleconferencing with internal extensions as well as with
external phone numbers.

The phone system supports Internal and external conferencing. Users can pull others into a conference

at any time from the telephone interface and softkeys or from the MiCollab Client lnterface. The

systern supports up to 8 parties in a conference,

Additionally, we have included 20 Ports oi the MiCollab Audio/WeblVideo conference server which will
allow for meet-me style conferences of up to 20 participants. This solution provides secure

conferencing with plug-ins to Outlook for simple user conference creation. This solution is easily

expanded to additional ports as desired.

a The phone system must be able to route calls between County office extensions without
lncurring long-distance charges.

The system will be a single database of users and all users can communicate between extensions with
no lon g-distance charges.

Members of the public must be able to call a local County office phone number and be routed
to any other County office extension without incurring long-distance charges.

Any call that comes into the system and can route to any County enrployee without any additional
costs.

r New replacement handsets must be readily avallable.

The 6900 series phones proposed are a new design in tlre last year and will be readily available for the

foreseeable future, They are the Flagship telephon€ for Mitel and were developed originally for the

MiVoice Business platform. Over time, these phones will be the de-facto device for all Mitel solutions

and will be available for a long time to come,

. Phone and voicemail configuration changes should not require paid 3rd party support,

You will find the Management lnterface of the MiCollab/MiVoice Business very irrtuitive and easy to use

A few examples of user and key programming interfaces.

a

Page - 50



rel
tffirytffiffi
# arlgng4y-q

'Number

$sn/lce Labd: iOgshlrg.nf
Secondtry El€msnt: t rnav330-0

DID Sxvhs f{umbor: r

CESID:,

Use as Oulgolru 0lt)

fft Hol0eHngtkar
ACO Agent

Eoeble SIP goiphor€

; Extemal lht Desft Llcense

Hot Dssk llssr Externel 0kllng Freffx | .

Hol Oesk UssrErtemal Number: I

Prefensd Set iNo 0e,rlce
, Advancgd Phone Setthrgs.

S 14(on rlivbf

"Number: 12,'112 :

Service Label: Songhone

Saconrlery Elemer{: rnav3300 r
DID Ssrvics llumber: ' ' Ute as Oulgolng DID

CESID:,

i ' Hot0oslthg thar
tlevke Type: l U0 enljo*rt ' .

Deploymenr Prone: ;fi!{Oiphy i ' y' Sreue: Oownloodad

tl Send tleployment Enaf
SIP tlevlce Cepablltes: Fi-l

SIP Pagsword: ,.-...

Confrrm SIP Passtvord: !.--.

I

Page - 51



lr*ttfttrr(ihrll:-ll

r
tlrrni hvsc.ilfe.r-oi
t4-rrt i.!fi6

trwss qdlrerlr.a :ff

rl

; Q ,** lE''* sFrt-i tm..h rqr.,-a{IrH: F-t*-r
a* l''
3t'

hrtr,harrtlr&rl
. a il'rl roed

: ioryrffr?'lrri
I Elotr rll'11;

r | 
'tsinOt$ildrb.hJ

I tl drr Srrkor

&-.hr !a
;i 

'!rt

|{i

l-

t- lF

.F

CT

,t
t.
,t
ta
tt

'r)t
t.a
ln

'lltrt
>la
Itl
,tl

"tl|l

!aa.**

att E lrrl
t.o

t*fr3+ra.Ft:rw{i&;iitdBtralsriiqtsf.FgCrit*dt p-ij!,rf . .

b4tttraa a

!..rart laar G€tL-l}raF|flF\i

5r

lI tilt

!llrt!
l-.rrdJ
lr,!9
l.* rtil

fttrF

rQfat

hr*t
e'.,:i!.

,e
t..
*irt f-r| q s*
illri?LE
l}t$*., !ft
g-+f,rua
,f,*ilir !c
SFLt"x
i,Flltar t r*
*rqta

lrat

r3 l.n

ltiLar ui

Page - 52



o Phone service and voicemail should integrate with computers and cellular phones to support a

mobile workforce.

.l.he 
fuliVoice Business and MiCollab solution will inlegrate with ccnputers and cellular phones in many

ways, There are client applications that are acr:essible f ram the PC via an application or the web as well
as many plugins into Outlook arid other applicatinns to extend functionality

I I4t.!

fL'

t,
I
t
i

-A.r

.. 1l:. '.

r i --lr-lo
@ l'

h
U-

NuPoint Unifiecl Messaglng Outlook Plugin

.,{ t
I
rt aI

r*.1.-Fartoar

i. 11 r

-4b.,x 
*

t

'a

:.t

f.

Page - 53



MlCollab Mobile Client

*,

a9r

na-*
o
o,,
r{'

I
n
i"
*
t3
s
*
i;g
l

a'*a--
l**
t-*

MiCollab Desktop €lient

-

MlCollab Web Client

€

?*9'l!r:gr I
{l

t,
a

Ta

eI
e

cl

t

c
I :I

I*
atft
l
L
*
I
at

-aa

{*sr
ts;SI

L H:'-
r3.::--I

I
rtr

c=:)

-al 
a

wa.(r
ar

l."lit'."

u i,'1r{(.1

Page - !4



a The phone system must be able to generate telephone usage reports to support lnternal
Servlce Fund billing.

We have proposed Mitel Business Repoder to track every call that takes place on the system You will
be able to run a report against almost any criteria as well as perform a search for any extension or

caller lD. MiVoice Business Reporter is an advanced reporting and analytics application for non-contact
center groups. lts comprehensive suite of cost-management reports will provide ihe County with an

explicit view of telecom activity and expenses so you can pinpoint problems, identify irnportant
network trends, even optirnize telecom setup.

Armed with historical drill-down reports, flexible collectioa 0ptions, and data mining tools, you will be

able to easily perform the following applications:

departmental reporting
rnarketing analysis

business intelligencelbusiness management

traffic analysis

informal customer service groups

call costing

Business Reporter uncovers all the details needed to track, understand and predict ernployee call

patterns. lT specialists will be able to determine which trunk lines, system infrastructure and personnel

resources are overwhelmed or underused, You can also identify billing errors or telecom misuse so

they can be proactively resolved or stopped, Business Reporter's real-time monitor, Extension Now,

displays user call states as well as cumulative current-day statistics.

I

a

a

a

h

&Q:I
nor ir
F'0;O

. XP
K'

,&p
;SSs ocOS
'o*s ofi$
,nqig o*o

lffi; llm
ier .r0lir* &

Fllil
*[ rfi

:)
lo0.0lr{t OOtS
lms'r 0lrft
h*,r'iem,o

I@;o.0 lem,r
lorao 'foroc;ra
lG.s.$ lo.mo

txtensian Now is MiVoice Business Reporter's real-time monitor

I ri.rrruA \r- flt.tEt

Page - 55



Along with its inherent contact center resources, Business Reporter's capabilities also naturally extend
into the back office to provide real-time non-ACD monitoring and reporting,

MiVoice Business Reporter will provide the County with the following features:

r Multi-node Monitoring
. CallCosting Real-Time Monitor
. Attendant Console Reporting
r Traffic Analysis Reporting
. Softphone
. lnternal Chat
r Historical Reporting
r RealTirne (provides back office visibility upon extension availability only)
r Screen Pop
r Account Code Reporting
r ANIIDNIS Reporting
r Phone Number Reports
. Lifecycle Reports
r EmployeelExtensionftrunk Reports
. Call Cost Reporting
. Phone Set Manager
. Subscriber Module

Page - 56



Da Mitel gwwJNter!-a&"Nl:tslmf.xplesev *(,
nrrdcktor/l/ering cohnectioni

Solio /Trkwo*cr 6lilcdcd
t
t

ftfi *rrwore
ifaot

."iFt.
O0U!.iB &ller6

gP turraarrtl*oc =l4n.
Suiltabh

R€rmls gllrs

3tl0 CXGshwg
0 Fxor{ FxsrPTallJHoH

*'{'
.. 1 ','

, . \,,.

="fit11-t***'*' 
,,,

Rgsili3rt Conlmllo.g

39. - 6P0lP

75 - 0930 rP

23-8910 rP

FNIT

'' . Nsl. SuDlraDls
REmto Stlos 

-r-' Y'>t$

WAN Comr.ltvlt

fi loolhb Eoty gld slsndard
Clorls for Uselr aE Hsodrd

0 - rlvdm Cqltoronc6

Fnx:

g.s-:tE=Fl
tflobtuIrrr

lilc.tbslvt

Di-:-t!l
I[raAdrh.GrlIf

llrvdcr EllltrnRl,odH

lll

Page - 57



Scope of Work - Functional Requirements

r The phone and voicernail systems should provide consistent, contemporary funclonatity,
including integrated speakerphones, call waiting, message-waiting indicator, Fhone directory
and the ability to forward pick up and transfer calls.

Functional rea$irern€[tg

The MiVoice Business and MiCollab solution proposed from Mitel will provide the consistent,
contemporary functionality desired. The platforms have been cleveloped from traditlonal pgX
platlorrns to include all features expected from a communications solution in 201g. Mitel has been
included as a leader in Gartner's Magic Quadrant for Unified communications for the last 5 years and
remains a leading player in the industry, The Mivoice Business Solution proposed is the Flagship Mitel
Private Cloud Solution.

o The telephone handsets must have a conslstent interface.

Telephone lnterface

r Telephones must alrow automated and manuar cal forwarding.

The call forwarding and call twinning capabilities of the MoVoice Business and MiCollab solution wiil
aliow for the upmost flexibility in connecting with county Employees.

Page - 58



r Any programmable function buttons must be programrnabte from the management interface
without requlrlng vendor assistance or support charges.

rylenaq.qry gpt lnterf acq

You will find the Management lnterface of the MiCollablMiVoice Eusiness very intuitive and easy to use
A few examples of user and key programming interfaces.

:-i#r*-t
urs.i t nele* I il!ftmironb{t ge'lr*ho fco.-n_!lTt I A$dio, th$*dlfidoocrxfnr€nrtng ; yetacortor

l]Fffi;] ?

#eua;onmtvbf

'Number: 2112

Sorylc€ L.b.[ Oerkphone :_J
Seaondry Elcment rnov33{0 ?

Ol0 $ervlce l{trmber

CE$ID: l-
K fotooltngtfrer

ACOAgrar

EnrHo SIP Silphooe
U ExremrlHotl)ottlloencs

Ueo ar Orgolng DII)

Hol Derl Uror B<tomal lllofng Prefrc L _ 
**

Hot Derk ueor Extemal llumbsr: :

Prcfensd Sor: |f$ Oevta
1 r Advanced Phone Seilings:

I "ol 
z'ttz (on mtubf

I

'Numben;2'112

$crvlcc Lrbet;$of,phone l.:".-. _]
SecondaryEtem"r*ri@,_." . -,, ll

Ol0 Servlce Numbcr | 
-- 

_ , ..- * -__J Uae ae Orngotag OlD

cEstD L

U HotDoklngt&er
Devlce Type:f i&'E?dpotnt _ _ -- .: i

Deptoynrcnl Pmfle: Oiiiot Oap,oy 
- -- i-i f sernr Oowntoaded

il SendD€ployn€ilEmafl
SIP Devke Cepatlttes: FT_ 

-l

SIF Password: l.;:; _
Cor*nr SIF Pasrword' 1..-.. 

- ' : 
i

Page - 59



trr-tFl.lrctater rltr

I
lh;rakn.rCcrlt{llrrcr
Sara*11 :$1.-i

l..!iL.Sfi.rtl
r I Srrr ?rC

! toQrnrrr.lUi
I tilruur.ltl

e lo{pefrilf
r;ff fi*mtr

t l6ditflt*D

lh*tr- a'l{'!h€. 'ft

tl

tQ *t* bert* {kb *E*

,t
lxttr.
ra-tlri,

-
l-lll,

r-l'tr
et J ii.;

htrt
lr$ l'{}

3fr

a-tb
lr't,
rQCTi

srrlt
16,rft|.

alr

t*fr(rn

!!!l
;"e
u}.t*

:..t,3

*
irtha ?

I

a

tt
jr r

lrrtt
,,
It
tr
tr!
ltr
)tl
Irf
lla
)ql
t{
)lt
t't

5
rbrq.*FlpiF
Ellhrr.F
llllar'r
irdakLi
At*/rrrm
ft|lfr.-
f33/ar. t6.
att--

nl-
iart, e-
{-.i.t

tf:l;lt
D'ES&ar.

!1rrt,.++ 
"r'rriq'€rtfftFixr:J{E6eat?$! 

ri{"?+e,{ftt

Page - 50



ATTACHMENTB

AGREEilIENT BETWEEIiI COUNTY OF INYo
AND XIAVERICK NETWORKS,INC. FORTHE PROVISION OF

VONP TELEGOTMUNICATION SERVICES
(Telephone System Replacement Proiectl

Gustoner Acceptanco Tecl Plan
Mltel Volcc Solutlon

SEEATTACHED TABLES

County of lnyr Modiffed Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Conlracbr)

Peryra17ol22 06/07P019



lnt.r PBX tlVSlFth||'l I{a'ln.l i,lod!
Pn tvttna
Grtarry lvril 

'|lo|lr
xoter

nfil addldetete to comptrt€ call on the Volce 66t€lflay

to

lntourd Crlr tlsimllld.
PRltIrrlc.
GqlGmy lllll{ fitF rrGt llot *

to
lO on

sxtenslrn

Dav
Nlght

Hondov
rePsnmefiot Huit Gailpr

t
an

ol 2 to reach cell phon? or ar5lrtlnt

qllbourd Olrlcd Crlb iloifid Modc
Pn wbtat
Crn rry
F.lldfr.

tlfAt Frllwrr tlotrr

across

to n

correct
as

a

InteEtele lonS oiit? nce

lur9o_qlg qodem/f8x Npecrt 8c{aptible
DTMF u,or&s conEctlv on oulbound cilll5

-tlB tomoltta to.?lhrht d.dvidrF . AT,qT V.d'^6 (-.;-rto

ELIN for phone wilh no DIB
ELIN with locottan lot atoi6ie-

re of dJtft!,qla to$tloil thot tupwed b be
-Eff, r{66, r.$E, !.877

common

UAT TESTING DateLOCatiOni Custcnrer Location

County of Inyo Modifled Standard Contract - No. 113
(lnd€p€n dent Contractor)

page 18 of22 06/07t201 I



Tchpholq Fartulrr rnd tmcllonallff Xoimlilodc
Prurvole€

Grtcua;
Frllowt

WAfi frfov.t I{rhr
vandorTest Phn hr bren comphiEE--
aultorl8 work as lab€led on alltempldtes

#oJWtEs in o call
Dbpht Parties

a
on

{tarm Clrcultr/lvR - Dtal tone, coonectlon, oiMF

on

Cntlutot Sno,t plrra,ne Appltioilin-

BllrKilOrr f€tpd oyet Facavlrad llaari

€nhanced Attenoae Ravtlng - tnte'5tte

lntuuctlonr Fl$.d{tn RmrarEd llocrl&Dmo.d lhs
primoty Coll Conkol

Ddtahn<2

PhonelslP Reoisttotlon SeMt
Sewer Inter/Crcss Connects. System

Uolinkslqolih Cnds
Exgons io n/Redwdant Cabtnet

05P R"tources - Codec ond conl€rcncln|

Broach Sunlvabla Modc
PSIN aotewart ontinued ao funclton

lnrtruclbns F8llcdovcr R€cotn !d ilo c.llrDroo*l ilotr!
Primotv Vlt
Pdmarv

MW ond SmartPhones updated dud,tg

Itbsgad" Srot
&cdundont Messse Stote

Calls still go to VM in *oach
Sunr'tvohiliae Mode
ood synchedMessages

ln tructlo.3 Frll€d Ov.t Rmr€d 15 CrlB Droood l{otn
Prcsence

httadt Mestoolnd
Ca m puter fele ohon v ! n teo ration

Coll Recordlno

lmt'l.*uonr Fillad (}[r na6ffid llo Cr[rl}eEd llot t

REDUNDANCY/RESILIENCY lnstru€lions tailed Over Recoyered
No CaUs

Oroooed
Notes

County of lnyo Modified Standard Contract - No, i 13
(lndependent Go ntracior)

Page'lgof 22 o6n7EA1S



P6s Pass

kdun dan, Poye r S ua oll es 9esc P6st Pass
Redundorrt Fthe''at Conner'tms Pass Pes Pers

UX;r&nr
fdrelurtHlgr3l

bltKr0*
icfu*rry

tddOnt Ihto\ri}ul lp*etli|.J &
Cote SwLch nedundtncy

Flbet urlink f{am IDF to MDF

Flbet uptink frcm,DFto MDF

Upllflk hom Core sviteh ,o floutet
WAN nouet
WAlt Cfct

losatt dlglts to dlal around WAl,l lollwe
on P9TN

Tlnrlruathlu rDattri$nfincl
dttrort F.tdO,E ia(ovard ll,oe&tro$Gd l(d0

Oo,rrol4 Coat vlter
DNS tesoht$on

Active Olr ectory Auahe ot iealtofl

DH(

Network Time/NTP

flPlrnP/HfrP

GIEAX UPAFrcR CUToi,EN Prltna pasl{ut ilotla
lnStailetbn

tntersytteft connc€aton to cw,ena P$x

Access toold Volce$oil slr'5'tcm

qtoperly las|olld ln Rack

tqulpment Labeled

Cobk noudng Neot dd Lobebd

No Alarms

t)4.brls removed

Iebptony Double Chldr

Cxg VtP snd Exee&lve Admln. tebphones $n*
Test dlt fqxes scnd/tecetve

Tesl oll anlercne roofi Polyco''.

Pogi@ System

kceptlon bosole

Swcial onalag dp!/,iEatlons - xnet, mqqeN, ft4soowsl elc

Pvll report hr use13 that dtd not re6rd grcetlnos

Brclllps

Automailcally Schedul e d

Eackups hove accurred

Ollslte snraqe of hackup

System doeumentdtian ond rccovery plan

Volidole backup wlll rcstore aoffcdly

Contoct numbc$ ond pracedwe loa apentsg ilckets provlded

County of lnyo Modilled Standard Contract - No. 1 1 3
(lndependent Contra6{or)

Page20 ot 22 o6to712019



ATTACHMENT C

AGREETIIENT BETTI'EEN COUI{TV OF II{YO
AITID II|AVERICK NETWORKS, INc. FoR THE PRovIsIoN oF

volp TELEcolilt uNtcATtoN SERV|CES
(Phone Systrm Replaccment pmloct!

COST SUHUARY, PROJECTPAYi'EIIITSCHEDULE, AI{D PRGE LIST

COSTSUMIIARY

Cost Summary for systemr and sewlces
Core Platform {telephones, licenslng software, year I
support):
Reportlng software:
Survivable Gateway for connection redundancy:
Server Hardware:
ProJect Management, lnstallation and Train lng:
Publlc Sector Dlscount
Shlpping

Tax

Total NASPo Contract priclng:

PRANECT PAYMEITIT SCHEU,LE

Projest Payment SChedule

Telccon Contlngcnry

$rz,roo.oo

S199,991

54,23G

sd820
s18,000

Sse,ooo
ta?:l:,7*ej

5o

s9,918

$25tos6

Total

S66,000,00

SSE,ooo.oo

$65,000.00

s67,085.60

$265,0E5.60

Progrcss Mllestone
Progress Payment I
Due on Ex€cutaon of Agreement

Progress Payment 2
Telecom Equlpment Deltvery

Progress Payment 3
Telecom Cutover

Progress Payment 4
Customer Acceptance + 30 Days

TOTAI.s

566,000.oo

566,000.00

s55.000.00

S49,985.60

PRICE LIST

Crung of lnp Modllied Stardard Contract - No. 1 13
(lndependant Cnntrador)

Pwe21ol22 a6N7ftA1e



Public Sector competitive Discount is a one time discount based on th€ entire configuration and is tubjoct to change il
the configuration is modified.

Mltel tlA$PO ValuePoint cgntracl lAf,52t and Purchase Orders resultinE lro,n this quote !hould be writlen to Mitel
Business Sysl,ems, lnc. direclly per the ordering instructions below,

a{ASPO Valusloint sontract tAR623 CALIIORilIA P Afl(lPATlttl6 ADDEIIOUM NC, 7-1+7&10 must be reterenced on any pO resutting from this
quol€

This quote is based on the

This quote is gilod for 90 days trom date on file and must renewed ttlereaflcr

PlrtlYo, D.rarlptlon
Accessorles

5004)21 69(n168m Wail Mount Ktr {tO pack}

Applications

5/m059ru Mlvoice Bus Enterprlre ISS SW
Conl., Video Phones

50006580 Mivohe Conferencs phone

lP Phones

5000e267 6920tP phone

5ffi15-r69 tr)301P Phone
5m0677O GHOIP Phone

Post-revhw contingencV for additaoml phones
licenses System

5404491 Slp Trunkhg Channel proxy

5tto4571 Mltel f,order Gateway Softrrare for ISS

54{n5{41 Micollab Base Sofnrvrre for ISS

Licens€s

54005401 Mlvoica Buslness Stp Trunk, xso
54O065/n Uccv{.o Entry User for Mlvolce Bus xso
54{Xt55{2 UCCv{.0STI{D Userfor Mlvotce Bui rt
540065f;1 UCCvrt.0SIllD Userfor MMoice f,ur xSO

Software Assurance

5{n9$6 SWA ttd 1y Mtcottab system
5il{Xt92{18 sWA Srd 1y (KC Enrrv MIVB

54n92(D SvltA Std ly UCC Srd M|VE

54{IO9ZZI Sl rA Std ly MlVBus Svjtem
5{009229 SWA Std ly MiV BG System

5'1009230 SWAStd MIV BG SIP Connea

P.rt llo.
Soards

50@6271 PWR CRD C13 toA 1tl5V - NA ptug

Software

54005968 MlVBus Enteryrlse wl, for 3!t0O (no ussrsl
Software Assurance

54009220 SWASrdlyMtvBussystern
System

50006731 3{x) Mxc ttt { 1GB RAM Conrothr
52002581 3300 Mxe lll Expansion l{t
System - Non 0iscountable
S0(Xl6268 3S00 Mxe lil CoflrrolhrSAOASSD

aty llrt

250.00

1,495.00

1.195.00

295,0
4lo.m
550.00

17,100.00

50.00

250.00

99s.00

{,000.00
9.3t0.00

325,00

13,800.dt

116,4n0o 3&(Xt

30,750,00 3&00
13,75000 3E.00

u,rc0,00

18:r.S'

254,29

t41,00
17,1{10.00

E.t td€G

?7$,Ct

925,90

+w#
a,w-&
19,S;00
qtg.00

trlil00'{0

3,rm.00
155,00

616,q'

{,9fl).(n
{6,376.(n

201.50

17,1L2.qt

fnlbt DlJc GrstPdca

1,250.00 38.00 155.00

1,495.00 3E.00 926.90

7,170.00 38.00 7tm.90

39{
75

25

I

5

1

6

100

1

1

2

E

1

2

1

4m
1m
t
1

1m

Att

r00.(n
11,m
21.00

il15.00

Efi
6tn

38.tn
38.{X)

38.00

38,0o

38.00

38,00

62.00

2,72$.W

1,31502

77.50

15.50

372.00

1000.00 3&00

250.00 38.00

995.00 38.00

8,000,00 38.d)
?4800,00 38.m

325.00 38.m
2Z@0.00 38.00

ltx,.00
4,4qt,00
2,L2L,Q

125,00

25,q!
6m.00

312,085.00 35,92

31.00

155.00

616.90

2Agtt.fft
5,797.(x)

201.SO

8,555.00

62.00

6.8?

13.02

77.50

1150
?.72

Curtftlc.

15,50

926.90

77.54

2,txg.@
r,39s.00

I

1

L

t
1

1

ll'r

25.00

1.{95.00

125.00

3,4gt.oo
2,250.00

265.00

Ert l$t

25.00

l,{9s.00

n5.(n

3&00

Ec Prlcc

15.30

926.90

7754

ar$Jo
1,3qi.00

26sO0

38.00

38.fl)

3,450.00 36.00

2,250.00 38,00

265.00 0.00 265.00

Total 1610.00 36.68 4,818.90

Ptft tlo.
Licenses

5{{Xt6798

OeEGrlptbr

Mlvolce gudness Reporter Start€r Peck

aw

t

Urt

3,400,0o

E.t lllt Dlic

3,4m.m 3&00

Cuet ?flc.

2,108.00

b.t Prlca

2,1O9.0O



54{106799 MivoicegusinescReporierExtenslonK5O
Software Assurance

54006933 CC Standard Soft,were Assurance

?rnt{o. OlrcdFdoD
Misqellaneous Hardwere

HP DCl60 - MlVolcE Bustness C.ore ptatform

HP DU]5O- Mtcolhb Colr pl.rform

HP OUISO - Mitol Bordercat way

HP OUl60 wlndows- Builness

Totrl

PrC ib. Dcrcrlpdon
Project Management lnstallatlon and Training

Profect Manag€m€nt

tnstalhtlon
qltover€overage

End UserTralning

9

792

3q).00

1.$

qtv tbr

4500,m
ds(x).rxt
3,5m.00

125.00

125.00

125.00

L23.6
125.00

2,m0.00 38.00

732.00 38.m

4S00.00
4,500.00

3,5{n.00

1t6.(Xl

o52

4500.00
4,s00,txt

3,5(DIn

t2.1t.00

125.00

125.00

125.00

ilts^m

r,674.00

brtPd.s

*i50&Q0

*,1fio0
tigaoo

10,000.00

30,000.00

5,000.00

8,000.00

Ertlbt Dlrc Clllt?rlE

1

1

L

1

$y

8{t

2m
40
g
2q

Dkc Curt Pftt Enrylc.

10,00.00
:x),(no,q,
5,(m,an
8,m.00

38,m

Admlolstrator

Tot'l 0.00

Grand Total

Pubireiacpr
sAttsTAx

Discvunt

Sector Competitive Discount is a one time di$.ount based oo the entire conflguratlon and is subject to change
the contiguration is modified,

Thls qsote is based on the Mltel I'IASPO Valueloht cont|ct fAR623 and Purchase Orders r.suhing from this quote should be ilritten to Mitel
Bssiness Systersr lnc. directly pea the ordering ingiructions below.

trlASPO VabePoint contmct gAR621 CALIF0RNIA PARTlClpATthl6 ADDENDUM tl0, 7-14-?G10 must be referenced on any PO re5ulting from this
quote

This quote for 90 days irom date on file and must renewed thereafter

Order or Mhel Gow Cr€dit card order Form can be faxsd to I09.904.{t56F
emailed to Uscgvetnmentsales@mitel.com

PO should be made cut to:

Mllsl gorlll*5r S|rlems, lnc.
1146 No*h Alma fthool id.
Mesa, Al 85101

NOTE OUR STPARATE NEMITfO ADORES'II:
Mitel Businets Syrlcms, lnc.

PO Sox 5:688
Pho€nir(, Al 85072-166S

PI,SASE OO IIOT 5END PAYMETUT TO TIIE MESA ADDRESS*



nots the folloudng ordrr ruqulramenti:

' Prime NASPO ValuePolnt conkact *AR62! must be referenced on thc pO
r CaIIFORNIA PART|CIPAT|NG A9DENDUM f{O. ?-lt-nFto must be refurenced o'| the pO

'Terms of NeV30
* A copy of the Mitel qrote must accompany the order
* Shipping and billing instructioo5

' Requested delivery dates



ATTACHIIENT D

AGREEITIENT BENtrEEN Cd']{TY OF INYO
AilD MAVERICK ltlETWORt€, tNC. FOR THE PROVtStoN OF

VOIP TELECOil MUNICATIOil SERVIGES
(Phone System Replacemont Prolectl

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE SPECIFICATIONS

County of lnyo Modified Standard Contract- No, 113
(lndep€ndent Contrador)

Page?2.ol22 06/07/2019



Attachment D
to Standard County Contract No. 113

fnsurence Requirements for IT Vendor Services

IT Vendor shall procwe and maintain forthe dwation of the contract insurance against claims
for ir$uries to psrsons or dnmages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Veudor, its agents, representatives, or employees.
Vendor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the conkact insu rce claims arising out
of their services and including, but not limited to loss, damage, theft or other misuse of data,
infringement of intellectual property, invasion of privacy and breach of data.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LII\{IT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

l. Commercial General Liahility (CGL): Insurance Services OfEce Form CG 00 0l
covering CGL on an "occurrenc€" basis, including products and completed operations,
proporty damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less
than $1,000,000 per occurence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04)
or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit,

2' Automobile Liability: lnsurance Seryices Office Fomr Number CA 0001 covering
Code I (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code S OireQ and 9 (non-
owned), with limit no less than $11000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of Califomia, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability Insurance with timit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident lior bodily injury or disease.

(Not requircd lf consultantprovides wiilen verification it has no amployeeg
4. Cyber Lkbility lnsurance, with limits trot less than $2,000p00 per ocorrr€ncs or

claim, $21000'000 aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the
duties and obligations as is undertaken by Vendor in this agreement and shall includq
but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectusl propefly, including
but not limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion ofprivacy
violations, information theft, danage to or desfuction of elechonic information,
release of private information, alteration of elecbonic information, extortion and
network security. The policy shall provide covsrage for breaoh response costs as well
as regulatory fines and pe,nalties as well as credit rnonitoring expe,lrses with limits
suffrcient to respond to these obligations.

If the Vendor rnaintains broader coverage and/or higher limis than the minimums shown
above, the County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher
limits maintained by the contactor. Aly available inswance proceeds in excess of the
specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the County.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies me to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Page I of3



Addtfional InsurcdStutus
The County, its officers, ofriciels, employees, and volunteers are to be covered ae
additlonsl insureds on tlre CGL polioy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Ve,ndor including materials, parts, or equipment
fumished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be
provided in the fbrm of an endorsement to the Consultant's insurance (at least as broad as
ISo Form cG 2a l0 I I 85 or both cG 2010, cc za 26, cc 20 33, or cG 20 38; lnd cc 20
37 forms if later revisions used).

Primary Caverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Vendor's insurance coverage sbell be primary
insurarce primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 0l 04 13 as reqpects thJCounty,
its offrcers, olficials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained
by the County, its officers, officialso employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Vendor's
insurance md shall not confibute with it.

Notlce of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be crnceled, except
with notice to the County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Vgndor hereby grants to County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of
said Vendor may acquire against the County by virtue of the payment of any losi under such
insurance. Vendor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the County has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

S elf-In s ured Reten tions
Self-inswed retentions must bE declarsd to and approved by the County. The County may
r€qrHre the Vendor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy languageihall providg
or be entorsed to provide, that the self-insured rctention may be satisficd by either the named
insured or County.

Acceptah itity af Insarrrs
Insurance is to be placed with inswers authorized to conduct business in the state with a current
A'M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide covcrage on a olains-made basis:

l. The Refroactive Date must be shown and must bs before the ,ilate of the contract or the
beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of inourance must be providd for at ieost
five (5) years after completion of the eontruct of worh

3. If coverage is canceled ot non-renewed, and not rcplaced with qnothq clalns-mode
poliqt form with a Rdroactive Date pnor to the connast effective date, the Vendor
must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum ofy'ue (5/ years after
completion of conkast work.

Page 2 of3



Ye rlflceti o n of C overage
Vendor shall fumig,h*the Countv with orj{inal .Certificates of Insnrauce
inplu4ing _all. rqorfred ameqdatory... sndqrsemeati {"or copias .ollhg
applicrble policy lansuase effecting coverag$ requirpd bylhi$"-qjg*sel affl
a oqpy of the Declgrafisqepqd EudonempnlBsgE.of the CSI potiqi li*ing
dl trolicy endorsomsnts to County before work begins. However, failure to
obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive
the Vendor's obligation to provide them. The County reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies,
including endorsements required by these specifications. at anytime.

Subcontraators
Ve,lrdor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance
meetlilg all the requirements stated herein, and Vendor shall ensure that
County is an additional insured on insurance required from subconfractors.

Special Risks or Cireumstances
County resenres thc right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the oature of the risk,
prior experience, insur€r, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Page 3 of3



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Counsel 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  County Counsel 
  
SUBJECT:  Findings Pursuant to AB 361 Authorizing Remote Board of Supervisors Meeting 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 that: A) the Board reconsidered the circumstances of the 
existing State of Emergency issued on March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and B) local 
officials continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of emergency continues 
to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic. That Proclamation remains in effect. Subsequently, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-29-20, which modified the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, 
Government Code section 54950 et seq. (the “Brown Act”), in order to allow legislative bodies to meet from 
remote locations without opening those locations to the public or complying with certain agenda requirements. 
Those modifications remained in effect through September 30, 2021. 
 
In anticipation of the expiration of the applicable provisions of Executive Order N-29-20, the California legislature 
adopted, and Governor Newsom signed, AB 361. AB 361 amended the Brown Act to allow local legislative 
bodies to continue to meet under the modified teleconferencing rules until January 1, 2024, if the meeting occurs 
during a proclaimed state of emergency and the legislative body finds that it has reconsidered the circumstances 
of the state of emergency and either: measures to promote social distancing have been imposed or 
recommended by local health officials; and/or the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of 
the members to meet safely in person. 
 
The Inyo County Health Officer currently recommends that measures be implemented to promote social 
distancing, including the holding of virtual meetings. A copy of the memo memorializing that recommendation is 
included in your agenda materials. Adopting the recommended action would therefore make the required findings 
that the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the emergency and that local health officials have 
recommended measures to promote social distancing or the state of emergency continues to directly impact the 
ability of the members to meet safely in person. In order to continue to meet under those modified rules, the 
Board will again need to reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency and again make at least one of 
the additional findings required by AB 361. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
If your Board chooses to not make the required findings, the Board must meet in person as required by the 
Brown Act, and any Board Member participating via teleconference must make their location open and available 
to the public during the meeting.  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 7/18/2022 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 7/18/2022 



Strengthening Resilience & Well-Being in Our Community 

Date: September 23, 2021 

To: Inyo County Local Agency Governing Bodies 

From: Dr. James Richardson, Inyo County Public Health Officer 

Re: Continued Recommendation Re Social Distancing and Remote Meetings 

In order to help minimize the spread of COVID-19, I recommend that physical/social distancing measures continue to be 
practiced throughout our Inyo County communities, including at public meetings of the Board of Supervisors and other 
public agencies.   Individuals continue to contract COVID-19 and spread the infection throughout our communities. Social 
distancing, masking, and vaccination are crucial mitigation measures to prevent the disease’s spread. Remote public agency 
meetings allow for the participation of the community, agency staff, presenters, and board members in a safe environment, 
with no risk of contagion. As such, and since this disease negatively and directly impacts the ability of public agencies to 
conduct public meetings safely in person, it is my recommendation that local public agencies conduct their public meetings 
remotely. 

This recommendation will remain in place until further notice. 

Dr. James A. Richardson 
Inyo County Health Officer 

County of Inyo 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Public Health, Suite 203-C 

1360 N. Main Street, Bishop CA 93514 
TEL: (760) 873-7868 FAX: (760) 873-7800 

Marilyn Mann, Director 
mmann@inyocounty.us  



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Health & Human Services 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Serena Johnson 
  
SUBJECT:  Resolution Establishing a Child Abuse Prevention Council  
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2022-32, titled, “A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Repealing Resolution No. 1992-35 and Establishing Certain Procedures Pertaining to 
the Inyo County Child Abuse Prevention Council," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The Child Abuse Prevention Council (CAPC) is an advisory body that brings together professionals and 
individuals for the purpose of coordinating the community’s efforts to prevent and respond to child abuse and 
neglect. Inyo County first established a CAPC in 1992. State statutes regarding the CAPC have changed and 
Health and Human Services is bringing forward updated bylaws for the Board to consider. 
 
The mission of the Inyo County CAPC is to eliminate child abuse and neglect and the adversity it causes by 
ensuring a safe and nurturing home environment for all children. The CAPC stands firmly in the belief that all 
children deserve support and advocacy, especially in regard to race, color, gender, gender identity or expression, 
sexual orientation, or disability. 
 
The Inyo County CAPC will be a coordinated activity between HHS Social Services and First 5 Inyo County, with 
the CAPC coordinator role filled by an HHS Prevention Specialist in First 5/HHS Public Health & Prevention 
division. The CAPC shall provide yearly reports to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors on priorities and 
successes. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your board could choose not to approve this resolution which would result in the inability to coordinate child 
abuse prevention activities countywide and advocate for children and families in Inyo County. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
The Family Strengthening Collaborative began meeting in 2019 to address child abuse and neglect, and provide 
families with supports. The Family Strengthening Collaborative will transition to the CAPC, and participating 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

agencies will be invited to apply to membership with the CAPC including: Owens Valley Career Development 
Center, Northern Inyo Healthcare District including Bishop Pediatrics and Labor and Delivery department, Bishop 
Elementary, Inyo County Office of Education including Child Development division and SELPA, Bishop Indian 
Head Start, Kern Regional Center, Eastern Sierra Child Support, Wild Iris CASA of the Eastern Sierra, and HHS 
programs including Tecopa, Behavioral Health, and Prevention. 
  
FINANCING: 
No funding related to this agenda item.   
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Child Abuse Prevention Council Resolution 
2. Inyo County Child Abuse Prevention Council Bylaws 
3. Child Abuse Prevention Council Nominating Form 
  
APPROVALS: 
Serena Johnson Created/Initiated - 8/4/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/5/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/9/2022 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/9/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/10/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/10/2022 
Anna Scott Final Approval - 8/10/2022 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA, REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 92-35 AND ESTABLISHING 

CERTAIN PROCEDURES PERTAINING TO THE INYO COUNTY CHILD ABUSE 

PREVENTION COUNCIL 

 

WHEREAS, California Welfare and Institutions Code section 18980, et seq., establishes 

a Child Abuse Prevention Council in every county in California; 

 

WHEREAS, the Child Abuse Prevention Council is an advisory body that brings together 

professionals and individuals for the purpose of preventing and detecting child abuse and 

supporting both victims and children as a whole; 

 

WHEREAS, Inyo County first established a Child Abuse Prevention Council in 1992 

pursuant to Resolution 92-35; 

 

WHEREAS, since the passage of Resolution 92-35, statutes regarding the Child Abuse 

Prevention Council have changed and Health and Human Services wishes to bring the Child 

Abuse Prevention Council into conformance with current statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo 

hereby: 

 

1. Repeals Resolution 92-35 in its entirety. 

2. Establishes a Child Abuse Prevention Council that will conduct its business pursuant to 

the bylaws set forth in Exhibit A. 

3. Empowers the board of the Child Abuse Prevention Council to make any future 

modifications to the Council’s bylaws, pursuant to the procedures set forth in the bylaws. 

4. Invites applications from those who meet the qualification set forth in Article III of the 

bylaws and who wish to serve on the newly constituted Council.   

5. Directs the Director of Health and Human Services, or his/her designee, to return to the 

Board of Supervisors when a sufficient number of applications have been received so that 

the Board of Supervisors may appoint selected applicants to the Council.   

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  _______ 

NOES:  _______ 

ABSTAIN: _______ 

ABSENT: _______ 

 

________________________________ 

Dan Totheroh 

Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 



ATTEST: Leslie Chapman 

  Clerk of the Board 

 

 

By: _____________________________ 

 Darcy Ellis, Assistant 

 Assistant Clerk of the Board 



1 
 

Inyo County 
CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL 

BYLAWS  
 

 
ARTICLE I – PURPOSE 

 
Section 1.  Purpose  
Pursuant to Section 18980, et seq. of the Welfare and Institutions Code (also known as the Child Abuse 
Prevention Coordinating Council Act), the purpose of the Inyo County Child Abuse Prevention Council 
(CAPC) is to coordinate the community's efforts to prevent and respond to child abuse and neglect. 
 
Section 2. Mission Statement 
The mission of the Inyo County Child Abuse Prevention Council (CAPC) is to eliminate child abuse and 
neglect and the adversity it causes by ensuring a safe and nurturing home environment for all children. 
The CAPC stands firmly in the belief that all children deserve support and advocacy, especially in regard 
to race, color, gender, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation, or disability.  
 
 

ARTICLE II – FUNCTIONS 
 
Section 1.  Functions 
The functions of the CAPC, in accordance with Welfare and Institutions Code 18982.2, shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: 

1. Provide a forum for interagency cooperation and coordination in the prevention, detection, 
intervention, treatment, and legal processing of child abuse cases; 

2. Promote the public awareness of abuse and neglect and the resources available for intervention 
and treatment; 

3. Encourage and support programs that provide positive childhood experiences to promote 
healthy development; 

4. Refer professionals to trainings in the prevention, detection, intervention, treatment, and legal 
processing of child abuse and neglect; 

5. Recommend improvements in services to families and victims; and 
6. To serve as an advocate for children and families in Inyo County 

 
The CAPC shall provide yearly reports to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, and the Office of Child 
Abuse Prevention. 
 

 
ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP  

 
Section 1.  Composition of the CAPC 
Members of the CAPC will be appointed by the majority of the CAPC and will exercise decision making 
responsibility for CAPC functions as described in Section 18980, et seq. of the Welfare and Institutions 
Code, as well as hold voting rights on all CAPC business and policy recommendations. 
 
The CAPC shall consist of a minimum of five (5) members, but no greater than eleven (11) members, as 
determined by CAPC bylaws. As the prevention of child abuse encourages the involvement of the entire 



2 
 

community, the CAPC shall seek to obtain representation from a wide range of agencies, organizations, 
and the community at large.  Participation of one or more representatives from the following 
organizations and groups shall be encouraged: 
 

• Public child welfare services  
• Public or private schools 
• Medical and mental health providers 
• Criminal justice system 
• Tribal representation 
• Latinx representation 
• Prevention and treatment services 
• Community representatives; community volunteers, civic organizations, religious communities  
• Parent or primary caregiver 

 
In the event there exists an underrepresentation in one or more of the above mentioned categories, the 
CAPC shall make a concerted effort to recruit in those areas. Should the CAPC be unable to recruit 
adequate representation in one or more of the categories, the CAPC may fill the vacancies with at-large 
members.  Alternatively, the open CAPC seats may remain unfilled at the CAPC’s discretion until such 
time the CAPC recruits adequate representation. Should the number of CAPC members temporarily fall 
under the required minimum number of five members, the CAPC shall not be considered necessarily in 
non-compliance with the bylaws. 
 
If in the event that a board member is unable to attend a meeting, the board member may appoint an 
alternate to attend in their place. The alternate must be listed on the member’s application, and must 
be approved by the CAPC. 
 
Section 2. Selection of Members  
Individuals interested in applying for membership must submit an application to the Inyo County Clerk, 
who will direct the application to the CAPC Coordinator. The CAPC Coordinator will then present the 
application to the rest of the membership to be discussed and voted upon. Each member shall be 
designated as representing one or more of the groups or organizations listed in Article III. Section 1.  
 
Once members have been accepted by the CAPC, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors will review for 
final approval. 
 
Section 3. Community Advisory Members 
Anyone with an interest in, and commitment to, improving child abuse prevention and intervention 
services in Inyo County may apply to be a community advisory member of the CAPC. Community 
advisory members are entitled to receive agendas, minutes, and other materials related to the CAPC and 
may participate in the meetings and all activities of the CAPC. Community advisory members may not 
vote or hold office, but may serve as the Chairperson of a committee or task force.  
 
Community advisory members are first accepted by the CAPC, and receive final approval from the Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors. Advisory members are expected to complete the same application process 
and membership guidelines as council members. 
 
 



3 
 

Section 4. Terms of Appointments  
The term of each member is two years. Members may serve unlimited consecutive terms. Members 
must apply for each additional term they wish to serve. 
 
Section 5. Vacancies  
The CAPC shall comply with the system for new appointments, resignations, and replacements specified 
in Article III Section 2 and Section 6 
 
Section 6. Resignation  
Any member may resign by giving written notice to the CAPC Coordinator. Any such resignation shall 
take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or any later time specified therein; and unless 
otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it 
effective. If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be selected before such time to 
take office when the resignation becomes effective. 
 
Section 7. Attendance  
A membership seat will be considered vacant when any member misses three meetings in a row, or four 
meetings in one year. A leave of absence will be considered upon the request of a member and will be 
reviewed by the CAPC Coordinator with a recommendation to the full membership for appropriate 
action. 
 
Each CAPC member may, from time to time as deemed necessary, request their approved alternate take 
their place, who shall exercise the same rights as the member in the member’s absence.  
 
Section 8. Removal  
Any member may be removed or suspended from his or her appointment for the good of the CAPC on 
the recommendation of a majority of the membership and approval by a majority vote of the members 
in attendance at a regular or special meeting of the members. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV –VOTING 

 
Section 1. Voting Requirements and Procedures 
Each Member of the CAPC shall have one vote. Approved alternates may vote when they are 
representing an absent member. Correspondence germane to the agenda from absent members is to be 
read aloud and considered as part of the discussion. A quorum is needed to move an item forward. 
 
Section 2.  Quorum 
A quorum shall consist of a majority of elected CAPC members. A quorum shall be required to conduct 
business.   
 
 

ARTICLE V – MEETINGS 
 

Section 1. Regular Meetings of the CAPC  
All meetings of the CAPC shall be open to the public. A minimum of four meetings per year at a time and 
date designated by the CAPC or upon the call of the CAPC Chair and will be held at a place identified on 
the meeting agenda.  



4 
 

 
All meetings of the CAPC will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the California 
Government Code Sections 54950 et seq. (The Ralph M. Brown Act). 

Section 2. Order of Business  
Time will be allotted at each CAPC meeting for public comment. CAPC members wishing to present 
agenda items at meetings should consult with the CAPC Coordinator at least seven (7) days prior to the 
next scheduled meeting. 
 
Section 3.  Minutes 
Records will be kept and made available to the public. Minutes will be posted following each CAPC 
meeting on inyocounty.us 
 
 

ARTICLE VI - CAPC COMPOSITION AND DUTIES 
 

Section 1. Liaisons 
The CAPC Coordinator shall be ex officio member of the CAPC without voting powers. 

Section 2. Officers  
The officers of the CAPC shall consist of:  
• Chair  
• Vice-chair  
 
These officers shall be selected by majority vote from the membership present at the first meeting of 
the year of the CAPC and shall serve for one calendar year. Officers may be re-elected. It shall be the 
duty of the chair and/or vice-chair to call meetings, and preside over meetings of the CAPC. The vice-
chair will assume the duties of the chair in his or her absence. The CAPC Coordinator shall be responsible 
for keeping the minutes at CAPC meetings. 
 
Section 3. Board Updates  
Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code Section 18983.6 the CAPC shall provide yearly reports to the 
County Board of Supervisors. 

 
 

ARTICLE VII – FINANCIAL SUPPORT 
 

Section 1. Financial Support  
CAPC members shall serve without compensation, except for the reimbursement of pre-approved actual 
and necessary travel costs. 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

ARTICLE VIII - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
Section 1. Conflicts of Interest Code  
The CAPC shall adopt and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes in compliance with The Political Reform 
Act, Government Code Section 81000, et seq. The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a 
standard set of regulations, which contain the terms of the Conflict of Interest Code (California Code of 
Regulations (CCR), Title 2, Sec. 18730).   
 
The standard regulations, enumerated in CCR, Title 2, Section 18730, are hereby incorporated by 
reference. The membership, as appointed by the County Board of Supervisors and designated 
employees shall abide by the terms of the standard regulation. Statements of economic interests shall 
be filed with the County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Section 4 of the standard regulations. 

 

 
ARTICLE IX - AMENDMENT TO BY-LAWS  

 
Section 1. Amendment to By-Laws  
Changes/suspension to the By-Laws shall be by motion and shall require an affirmative, recorded vote of 
a majority of the members of the CAPC.  Bylaws shall be reviewed every three years, or as needed. 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

INYO COUNTY CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION 
COUNCIL 

 
CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL NOMINATING FORM 

CLOSING DATE:  OPEN UNTIL FILLED 
 
 
If you are interested in serving on the Child Abuse Prevention Council (CAPC), please complete 
the following application and return it to the address listed below.  
 
Please deliver or email your application to:  
 

Inyo County Clerk 
PO Drawer N 

Independence, CA 93526 
Or scan and email to Darcy Ellis: dellis@inyocounty.us 

 
Upon receipt, your application will be reviewed and you may be invited for an interview. All 
applicants who are selected to be interviewed will receive a phone call to arrange the interviews. 
Otherwise, your application will be kept on file for 12 months for future consideration if a position 
becomes available within that time period. 
  
Applicant Information:  
 

FULL NAME:        

PREFERRED ADDRESS:          CITY & ZIP:         

PREFERRED PHONE NUMBER:        

PREFERRED EMAIL:         

 
Inyo County Regional Experience (check all that apply): 

 
LIVE WORK  

  Bishop 
  Big Pine 
  Independence 
  Lone Pine 
  Death Valley, Tecopa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

            Page 2 of 3 

 Areas of Expertise [check all that apply to your professional or personal experience] 
 

 Categories of Membership  Lived Experience 

 Public Child Welfare Services  Student 

 Mental Health Provider   Survivor of Child Abuse 

 Medical Health Provider   Parent/Caregiver 

 Criminal Justice System  Grandparent 

 Tribal Member  Youth Activities Volunteer 

 Latinx Community Member  Community Leader 

 Public or Private Schools  Public Relations/Communications 

 Prevention Programming  Early Intervention Services 

 Treatment Services  Direct experience working with multicultural 
communities 

 Current CAPC Member  Tobacco or other Substance Abuse 
Prevention/Treatment 

 Civic Organization  Community Engagement & Outreach 

 Religious Community  Social Media Engagement or Advertising 

 Other: 

(indicate) 

 Other: 

(indicate) 

 
Current Employment: 
                                                                 
Job Title:        Agency:         

 
Statement of Interest (Optional):  

1. Use the space below to explain why you are interested in becoming a CAPC Member:  

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________ 



 

            Page 3 of 3 

  

Additional Qualifications (Optional): 

Please list volunteer commitments, community boards, collaborative or advisory bodies on which 
you serve or recently served:   
 

Name Of Volunteer Activity LOCATION DATES SERVED 

                  

                  

                  

                  
 
 
Alternate Attendee (Optional): 
As a council member, if desired, you may have an alternate attend meetings in your absence. The 
alternate must be approved. Please list your alternate below: 
 

Full Name Title Email Phone Number 
                        

 
 
Advisory Membership: 
Community advisory members may not vote or hold office, but are entitled to receive agendas, 
minutes, and other materials related to CAPC and may participate in the meetings and all activities. 
If you would prefer to be considered as an advisory member, please select box.  
 

Certification:   
I certify that the above information is true and correct. I understand that membership on the CAPC 
requires my active participation in the Council’s activities and meetings. Further, I recognize that the 
Council acts for the interests of the County’s families and children.  
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________   ________________  
Signature           Date 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Anna Scott 
  
SUBJECT:  Contract between County of Inyo Department of Health and Human Services and Angela DaRe 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Angela DaRe of Jackson, CA for the 
provision of Crisis Care Mobile Unit (CCMU) Consulting Services in an amount not to exceed $155,000.00 for the 
period of September 6, 2022, through February 14, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The CCMU planning grant was received by Inyo County HHS-Behavioral Health for the purpose of developing an 
action plan to improve our crisis response process. The project will assess the current crisis response process, 
through a multitude of data collection, analysis, and community collaboration to develop an action plan to better 
serve clients in a crisis, with particular focus on youth clients under 25 years old. The Inyo County Behavioral 
Health Mobile Crisis Unit Action Planning project allows for the hiring of a contractor to do the planning work 
required and to produce an action plan. A Request for Proposals was issued, but closed on 5/23/2022 with no 
response. We requested consultant resources from the grantor's Technical Assistance team. The consultant 
referred has experience in small/rural community needs assessment. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract resulting in the Department not meeting the requirements of 
the CCMU grant and impacting the Department's ability to receive funds for implementation of a Crisis Care 
Mobile Unit for Inyo County. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Law enforcement, local healthcare facilities, and technical assistance provider, Advancing Human Potential 
(AHP) 
  
FINANCING: 
Federal funding. The revenue to pay for this contract will be recognized in CMH (045200), Federal Grants (4555). 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

 Payment will be from 5265 Professional Services. No County General Funds. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Crisis Care Mobile Unit Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 8/12/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/15/2022 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/18/2022 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 8/19/2022 
Stephanie Tanksley Approved - 8/22/2022 
Keri Oney Approved - 8/22/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/22/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/23/2022 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 8/23/2022 





























 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Health & Human Services - First 5 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Serena Johnson 
  
SUBJECT:  Agreement between Inyo County and Bishop Indian Head Start 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Bishop Indian Head Start of 
Bishop, CA, for the provision of First 5 Community Grant services in an amount not to exceed $13,000 for the 
period of September 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
From the onset of the Coronavirus pandemic, families across lnyo County have been struggling, and the 
organizations that serve them have experienced challenges as well. Each agency and organization helping 
young families is essential to the safety net and recovery of our community. At the April 23, 2020 First 5 
Commission meeting, Commissioners discussed the importance of anticipating the needs of the community and 
ensuring First 5 support is available in to the future. To this end, the Commission approved $40,000 each year for 
three years in Community Grant Funds to address the impacts of COVID-19 in lnyo County on young children 
and their families. At the June 23, 2022 First 5 Commission meeting, Commissioners selected three Community 
Grant Projects that enhance existing community resources and connect systems of support to achieve positive 
change for children prenatal to age five and their families into the future. 
 
The First 5 lnyo County Commission approved the Bishop Indian Head Start application based on its merits, in 
the amount of $13,000.00, which shall be used to increase social connections through supporting teachers in 
managing classroom behaviors and connecting with families through monthly family engagement events. All 
activities must be completed by no later than June 30, 2023. 
 
We respectfully request your Board ratify and approve the agreement with Bishop lndian Head Start and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the agreement, which would result in the First 5 Commission's inability 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

to award supportive grant funding. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None 
  
FINANCING: 
100% State Funding. This contract will be budgeted in the First 5 budget (643000) in Professional Services 
(5265). No County General Funds. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Bishop Indian Head Start Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Serena Johnson Created/Initiated - 8/4/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/5/2022 
Serena Johnson Approved - 8/8/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/8/2022 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/9/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/10/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/10/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/10/2022 
Serena Johnson Final Approval - 8/12/2022 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 1     05/21/2019 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 
AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 
  

INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS,  the  County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  "County")  may  have  the  need  for  
the ___________________________  services  of  _____________________________________________ 
of  ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of 
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 

 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________, 
whose title is: __________________________________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM. 

 The term of this Agreement shall be from                           to                                      
unless sooner terminated as provided below.  

3. CONSIDERATION. 

 A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Contractor at the County's request.  
 B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per 
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  
 C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,  
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 
________________________________________________________________________________ Dollars  



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 2     05/21/2019 

($______________________________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly 
reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work 
performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  
 F. Federal and State taxes.   
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for 
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments 
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California 
State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County 
an  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 

 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 

 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 3     05/21/2019 

 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA. 

 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 

 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 
 For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 
considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 

 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 4     05/21/2019 

 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of ev
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any  
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

13. CANCELLATION. 

 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 

 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 5     05/21/2019 

15. DEFAULT. 

 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

18. CONFLICTS. 

 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 6     05/21/2019 

20. SEVERABILITY. 

 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 

 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two 
(22) (Amendment). 

22. AMENDMENT. 

 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

23. NOTICE. 

 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

   County of Inyo 
                                                                          Department 
                                                                          Address 
                                                                          City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
                                                                          Name 
                                                                          Address  
                                                                          City and State 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

  ////       //// 





 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 8     05/21/2019 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 TERM: 

           FROM:                          TO:       

 SCOPE OF WORK: 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 9     05/21/2019 

 ATTACHMENT B 

  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 

TERM: 

   FROM:                              TO:    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 10     05/21/2019 

 

ATTACHMENT  C 
 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

TERM: 
 

   FROM:                              TO:     
 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily 
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for 
contracts with not to exceed values less than $75,000. For larger contracts, the above described 
per occurrence limit must be not less than $2,000,000. If a general aggregate limit applies, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 
25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. For contracts 
involving work with or service to minors (i.e., persons under the age of 18), sexual assault and 
misconduct (“SAM”) coverage is required with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
The general liability policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. 
Proof of additional insured status must be submitted along with a certificate of insurance 
showing general liability coverage limits. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision may be waived 
with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be 
used for/during the execution of the contract. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. Provision may be waived with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead 
certifying that contractor has no employees. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s profession, with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Check with Risk Management. 

5. Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim. Provision 
may be considered waived if contractor will not be receiving/storing/transmitting personally 
identifiable information (PII) or personal medical information (PMI) pertaining to persons to 
whom services are provided under this contract. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, 
but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not 
limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of private 
information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The policy 
shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well 
as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations. Professional 
liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo 
County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the 
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called 
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of 
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 
unless approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the 
Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due 
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) 
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County 
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning 

of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form 

with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase 
“extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and 
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo 
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, 
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting 
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but 
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years 
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 
-end- 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Health & Human Services - First 5 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Serena Johnson 
  
SUBJECT:  Agreement between Inyo County and Discovery Point Preschool 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Discovery Point Preschool of 
Bishop, CA, for the provision of First 5 Community Grant services in an amount not to exceed $17,000 for the 
period of September 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
From the onset of the Coronavirus pandemic, families across lnyo County have been struggling, and the 
organizations that serve them have experienced challenges as well. Each agency and organization helping 
young families is essential to the safety net and recovery of our community. At the April 23, 2020 First 5 
Commission meeting, Commissioners discussed the importance of anticipating the needs of the community and 
ensure First 5 support is available into the future. To this end, the Commission approved $40,000 each year for 
three years in Community Grant Funds to address impacts of COVID-19 in lnyo County on young children and 
their families. At the June 23, 2022 First 5 Commission meeting, Commissioners selected three Community 
Grant Projects that enhance existing community resources and connect systems of support to achieve positive 
change for children prenatal to age five and their families into the future. 
 
The First 5 lnyo County Commission approved the Discovery Point Preschool application based on its merits, in 
the amount of $17,000.00, which shall be used to increase the social and emotional competence of children 
through improving quality of professional staff. All activities must be completed by no later than June 30, 2023. 
 
We respectfully request your Board ratify and approve the agreement with Discovery Point Preschool and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the agreement, which would result in the First 5 Commission's inability 
to award supportive grant funding. 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None 
  
FINANCING: 
100% State Funding. This contract will be budgeted in the First 5 budget (643000) in Professional Services 
(5265). No County General Funds. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Discovery Point Preschool Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Serena Johnson Created/Initiated - 8/4/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/5/2022 
Serena Johnson Approved - 8/9/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/9/2022 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/9/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/10/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/15/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/15/2022 
Serena Johnson Final Approval - 8/22/2022 























Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily 
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for 
contracts with not to exceed values less than $75,000. For larger contracts, the above described 
per occurrence limit must be not less than $2,000,000. If a general aggregate limit applies, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 
25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. For contracts 
involving work with or service to minors (i.e., persons under the age of 18), sexual assault and 
misconduct (“SAM”) coverage is required with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
The general liability policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. 
Proof of additional insured status must be submitted along with a certificate of insurance 
showing general liability coverage limits. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision may be waived 
with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be 
used for/during the execution of the contract. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. Provision may be waived with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead 
certifying that contractor has no employees. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s profession, with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Check with Risk Management. 

5. Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim. Provision 
may be considered waived if contractor will not be receiving/storing/transmitting personally 
identifiable information (PII) or personal medical information (PMI) pertaining to persons to 
whom services are provided under this contract. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, 
but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not 
limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of private 
information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The policy 
shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well 
as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations. Professional 
liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo 
County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the 
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called 
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of 
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 
unless approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the 
Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due 
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) 
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County 
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning 

of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form 

with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase 
“extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and 
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo 
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, 
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting 
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but 
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years 
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 
-end- 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily 
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for 
contracts with not to exceed values less than $75,000. For larger contracts, the above described 
per occurrence limit must be not less than $2,000,000. If a general aggregate limit applies, 
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 
25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. For contracts 
involving work with or service to minors (i.e., persons under the age of 18), sexual assault and 
misconduct (“SAM”) coverage is required with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
The general liability policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. 
Proof of additional insured status must be submitted along with a certificate of insurance 
showing general liability coverage limits. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision may be waived 
with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be 
used for/during the execution of the contract. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. Provision may be waived with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead 
certifying that contractor has no employees. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s profession, with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Check with Risk Management. 

5. Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim. Provision 
may be considered waived if contractor will not be receiving/storing/transmitting personally 
identifiable information (PII) or personal medical information (PMI) pertaining to persons to 
whom services are provided under this contract. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, 
but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not 
limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of private 
information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The policy 
shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well 
as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations. Professional 
liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo 
County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the 
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called 
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of 
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 
unless approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the 
Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due 
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) 
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services – First 5 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services 20220701 

costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County 
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning 

of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form 

with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase 
“extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and 
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo 
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, 
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting 
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but 
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years 
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 
-end- 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Health & Human Services - Social Services 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Anna Scott 
  
SUBJECT:  Sole-Source Contract Between the County of Inyo and Thurmond Consulting, Inc. 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) declare Thurmond Consulting, LLC of Sacramento, CA a sole-source provider; B) ratify and 
approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Thurmond Consulting, LLC of Sacramento, CA  for the 
provision of Continuum of Care Grants Management consulting services in an amount not to exceed $42,000 for 
the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The Health and Human Services Department has been working with State and Federal housing authorities, 
including Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the California Interagency Council on Homelessness (Cal 
ICH), to transition the responsibility of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care Collaborative Applicant and 
Coordinated Entry system roles from Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action (IMACA) to HHS. This process 
was initiated on an emergency basis due to significant fiscal challenges faced by IMACA, and required HHS to 
quickly become familiar with the requirements of several grants and systems in order to maintain compliance, 
and to ensure minimal disruption to clients who are receiving services to prevent or mitigate homelessness. 
 
Near the end of the 2021-2022 fiscal year, the ESCOC was faced with a looming deadline to apply for Homeless 
Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) round 3 funding that would be available to Inyo, Mono, and Alpine 
counties. The funding application required that the CoC conduct a community assessment and develop a Local 
Housing Action Plan that would require coordination and integration with the Housing and Homelessness 
Incentive Program administered by the CA Department of Health Care Services via the Managed Medi-Cal plans 
that serve each county, CA Health and Wellness, and Anthem Blue Cross. Due to the very short timeline, 
California Health and Wellness secured Thurmond Consulting LLC to assist with the development of the LHAP 
and the HHAP 3 application.   
 
Thurmond Consulting continues to work on the submission of the HHAP 3 application and is available to provide 
additional technical assistance to allow HHS to apply for other funding streams available to the CoC. HHS is 
requesting a sole source contract due to Thurmond Consulting's experience with the ESCOC and other rural 
CoCs in California. Also, securing this contract in a timely manner is essential given the funding application 
deadline for the FFY 2022 CoC planning grant offered by HUD.   
  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could chose to not approve this contract, which could result in the Department missing opportunities 
to secure local and regional grant funding for homeless services.   
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Mono County Social Services, Mammoth Lakes Housing, California Indian Legal Services, and Wild Iris 
  
FINANCING: 
Federal funds.  This contract is budgeted in Continuum of Care (055900) in Professional Services (5265). No 
County General Funds. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Thurmond Consulting FY 22-23 Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 8/8/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/8/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/9/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/9/2022 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/9/2022 
Darcia Blackdeer-Lent Approved - 8/12/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/15/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/15/2022 
Anna Scott Final Approval - 8/15/2022 















Delrick Scott Thurmond

7/29/2022









Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
Services related to transitional social rehabilitation 

 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Specialized Professional Services 20220726 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries 
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury 
and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 
general aggregate limit. For contracts involving work with or service to minors (i.e., people under 
the age of 18 in California), sexual assault and misconduct (“SAM”) coverage is required with limits 
no less than those listed in this paragraph for other types of loss. The general liability policy shall 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. Proof of additional insured status 
must be submitted along with a certificate of insurance showing general liability coverage limits. 
See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision may be waived 
with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be 
used for/during the execution of the contract. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. Provision may be waived with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying 
that contractor has no employees. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s 
profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.  

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, Inyo 
County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the 
contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an 
endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later 
edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
Services related to transitional social rehabilitation 

 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Specialized Professional Services 20220726 

officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, 
its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying 
Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional Insureds, 
whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to 
contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss 
under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has received a 
waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability 
to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. 
The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be 
satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess liability 
policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 unless 
approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole responsibility of 
Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the Indemnified 
Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor to fund 
the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) provision that limits the 
satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense costs, including the 
Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County reserves the right to 
obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of 

contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
Services related to transitional social rehabilitation 

 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Specialized Professional Services 20220726 

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with 
a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase “extended 
reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and Endorsements 
pages are to be received ad approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, failure to obtain 
the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide 
them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo County reserves the 
right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, 
insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all 
the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured on 
insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but not 
limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years for 
Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance 
must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 
-end- 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Probation 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Jeffrey Thomson 
  
SUBJECT:  Agreement Between the County of Inyo and Sarcred Rok  
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Sacred Rok of Yosemite, CA for the 
provision of nature education and mentoring in an amount not to exceed $45,000 for the period of October 1, 
2022 through April 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
On April 8, 2021, Inyo County was awarded a Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant from the Board of 
State and Community Corrections in the amount of $779,537 for the implementation of youth development/youth 
prevention and intervention projects. The proposal included a subcontract with Sacred Rok, a local nonprofit 
organization run by an elite rock climber and accomplished health coach, to take young people out on rock 
climbing day excursions, day hikes and overnight excursions. Sacred Rok is staffed by rock climbing experts and 
will provide safe outings that appeal to youth, especially older youth. 
 
Many children return home after school unsupervised and do not have opportunities for structured extracurricular 
activities. Some children have never experienced the many outdoor recreational activities available in our area. 
Visitors travel from around the world to our area to see and experience the landscape, but many Inyo County 
youth do not have the opportunity to experience the natural beauty at their back door. 
 
This project aims to reduce the risk factors and raise the protective factors for youth through exploring the 
outdoors. Teaming up with Sacred Rok will provide youth with outdoor experiences that lead to positive 
outcomes in their lives. 
 
The target population for the program is school-aged youth with the focus on underserved and/or justice involved 
youth. The program will be offered countywide and will provide activities in north county, south county, and the 
far southeastern part of the county. Multiple county programs work together to make the Outdoor Program 
possible, including Probation, HHS Behavioral Health, HHS Prevention, and other programs. The Probation 
Department will conduct special outreach to encourage participation by Hispanic and Native American youth. 
 
Sacred Rok  is a small nonprofit 501(c)3 based in Yosemite, California who work with underserved youth, taking 
them on camping trips, day hikes, rock climbing, engaging in some service work, and teaching the youth about 
nutrition in Yosemite National Park, Pinnacles National Park and around the Eastern Sierra. 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

 
The mission of Sacred Rok is to support youth in nature, helping youth to learn to respect nature and through 
that, to respect themselves. They accomplish their mission through taking young people on camping trips, 
educational presentations, and working with other youth-serving agencies. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Inyo County Probation Department and Health and Human Services Department applied for a Proposition 64 
Public Health and Safety Grant from the Board of State and Community Corrections and was notified that we 
were approved for funding of $779,537 for a period of three (3) years. This funding will be used to provide many 
youth programs, including: 
•  Prevention programs (arts and entertainment) for elementary students 
•  Inyo Council for the Arts partnership 
•  Outdoor program for youth (contracting with an established outdoor adventure program). 
•  Enhance and expand the mentor program. 
•  Develop a peer mentor program 
•  Afterschool sports program 
•  Farm to table program using local community gardens 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could decide not to approve the contract. However, this is not recommended as the contract will be 
paid for by funds from a state-awarded grant and will provide excellent opportunites for underserved and justice 
involved Inyo County youth. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING: 
This contract would be expended out of the Prop 64 Budget 620210, Professional Services Object Code 5265 
and funded from Prop 64 Grant monies. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Sacred Rok Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Krystal Leonard Created/Initiated - 8/4/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/4/2022 
Krystal Leonard Approved - 8/4/2022 
Jeffrey Thomson Approved - 8/11/2022 
Krystal Leonard Approved - 8/11/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/11/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/11/2022 
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 8/12/2022 
Jeffrey Thomson Final Approval - 8/12/2022 

































 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Public Works 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Greg Waters 
  
SUBJECT:  Eastern Sierra Engineering Contract Change Order #1 Task Order #8 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board authorize the Public Works Director to sign Change Order No. 1 (Task Order 8) to the design 
contract between the County of Inyo and Eastern Sierra Engineering of Reno, NV, increasing the original contract 
amount of $137,956.17 by $16,574 to a total of $154,530.17. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
Eastern Sierra Engineering is currently under contract to design multiple segments of guardrail on Onion Valley 
Road. At Segment #10, the hillside below the guardrail has eroded to the extent that there is no longer enough 
shoulder to install the guardrail, and the existing traffic lane is in danger of collapse. Slope stabilization and road 
section remediation is not currently part of the designer's scope of work. Change Order #1 adds the design of a 
thickened concrete moment slab to guardrail section Segment #10 to repair a hillside condition that is threatening 
one lane of roadway and will provide sufficient width of shoulder to install a new guardrail. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Inyo County received notification of a successful Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle 10 grant 
application on March 26, 2021. The Project identified in the grant submittal encompasses removing the existing 
guardrail at 18 different locations along Onion Valley Road near the town of Independence and replacing it with 
guardrail meeting current standards. There is $997,000 of state-only funds available for the Environmental, 
Design, and Construction of the project.  Eastern Sierra Engineering is currently under contract to provide design 
services for guardrail only. Current contract amount is $137,956.17. 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
There are no alternatives. The Board could choose not to amend the contract with Change Order #1 and 
Segment #10 would be without a new and sufficient guardrail, and eventually the affected traffic lane would 
collapse. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
N/A 
  
FINANCING: 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Inyo County received a Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) grant on March 26th, 2021 for $997,000. 
The County is currently authorized to spend up to $173,000 on design services. This contract is paid out of 
budget 034601 State Funded Road and object code 5715 Onion Valley Guardrail. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Eastern Sierra Engineering/Onion Valley Contract 
2. Changer Order 1 , Task 8  
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 8/18/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/19/2022 
Michael Errante Approved - 8/19/2022 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/23/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/23/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/24/2022 



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7'h day of December 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Budget Amendment,
Onion Valley
Guardrail Project

Moved by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 State Funded Road Budget 034601 as follows:

increase estimated revenue in State Other - 4499 by $137,957.00 and increase
appropriation in Onion Valley Guardrail Project - 5715 by $137,957.00 (4/5ths vote
required);

B) Declare Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA a sole-source provider of
Environmental and Engineering Consultant Services;

C) Approve the contract between the County of lnyo and Eastern Sierra Engineering of
Bishop, CA for the provision of Environmental and Engineering Consultant Services in
an amount not to exceed $137,956.17 for the period of December 7 ,2021 through
July 31 ,2023, contingent upon the Board's approvalof future budgets; and

D) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being
obtained.

Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this /h
oay oTDecember, 202I

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors

fd*X UAAWa-"

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: Public Works

DATE: December 17,2021

By.



1 rl.i l\\
(

.1
County of Inyo #tu

Public Works

DEPARTMENTAL . ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: December 7, 2021

FROM: Trevor Taylor

SUBJEGT: Award Consultant Contract for the Onion Valley Guardrail Project

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board:
A) amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 State Funded Road Budget 034601 as follows: increase estimated revenue
in State Other - 4499 by $137,957.00 and increase appropriation in Onion Valley Guardrail Project - 5715 by
$1 37,957.00 (4/5ths vote required) ;
B) declare Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA a sole-source provider of Environmental and Engineering
Consultant Services;
C) approve the contract between the County of lnyo and Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA for the
provision of Environmental and Engineering Consultant Services in an amount not to exceed $137,956.17 for the
period of December 7,2021 through July 31 , 2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets; and
D) authorize the Ghairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

lnyo County received notification of a successful Highway Safety lmprovement Program (HSIP) Cycle 10 grant
application on March 26,2021. The Project identified in the grant submittal encompasses removing the existing
guardrail at 18 different locations along Onion Valley Road near the town of lndependence and replacing it with
guardrail meeting current standards. There is $997,000 of state-only funds available for the Environmental,
Design, and Construction of the project.

The Department of Public Works released a Request for Proposals (RFP) on August 20th,2021 for
Environmental and Engineering Consultant Services in support of the design phase of the Onion Valley Guardrail
Project. Proposals were due on October 61h,2021. Only one proposalwas received from Eastern Sierra
Engineering despite efforts to promote competition. lt is considered "non-competitive A&E procurement" when
fewer than three proposals are received and additional documentation and justification are required to move
foruvard with the award. Re-advertisement of the RFP was considered as a potential option but Public Works
recommended proceeding with contract negotiation for the following reasons: 1) the RFP was sent directly to
seven different consulting firms who have performed similar work on lnyo County projects in the past; 2) the RFP
was advertised on a distribution website to aid in reaching additional interested firms; and 3) the time frame to
turn in proposals was extended to 48 days from the minimum requirement of 21 days as a further step to garner
more interest. All required documentation to support a sole source award has been completed and will be
retained in the project files.



Agenda Request
Page 2

After successfully negotiating contract terms, level of effort, and cost items, the contract for Environmental and
Engineering Services in support of the Onion Valley Guardrail Project is being presented to your Board for
approval and award to Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA in an amount not to exceed $137,956.17.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Your Board could choose not to award the consultant contract to Eastern Sierra Engineering and the Request for
Proposals can be re-advertised in an attempt to solicit additional competition. This is not recommended as this
option was considered prior to beginning contract negotiations with Eastern Sierra Engineering. The Caltrans
required documentation for "non-competitive A&E procurement" has been completed and a Public lnterest
Finding - Equivalent justification is in the project files.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Caltrans - Reimbursment of incurred costs

FINANGING:
This project is 100% reimbursable through the Highway Safety lmprovement Program with a state-only funded
designation. Project costs will be paid for through the State Funded Road Budget 034601 object code 5715 -
Onion Valley Guardrail Project.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Eastern Sierra Engineering Contract
2. Memo: Non-Competitive A&E Justification

APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor
Darcy Ellis
Trevor Taylor
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
Denelle Carrington
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Michael Errante

Created/lnitiated - 1 I l8l2o21
Approved - 111812021
Approved - 111812021
Approved - 111812021
Approved - 111912021
Approved - 111912021
Approved - 111912021
Approved - 111912021
Final Approval - 1 11912021



CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO

AND Eastern Sierra Engineering

F'OR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for
consultant services, and is heretofore entering this contract with Eastern Sierra Enqineering

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), in consideration of the mutual
promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as set forth
below.

Any Forms or Exhibits herein referred to may be located and downloaded at:

http ://www. dot.ca. gov/hq/LocalPro grams/lam/forms/lapmforms. htm

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. STATEMENT OF WORK

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth
in Attachment A attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Contract will be made by the Public Works Director
Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under this Contract will be based
upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature,
that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Consultant by the
County under this Contract. County by this Contract incurs no obligation or requirement to request
from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some need
for such services or work during the term of this Contract.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Contract will
be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable
Federal, State, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances,
regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Contract
and, as applicable, as set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. PERFORMANCE PERIOD

(Choose Option I or Option 2)

by County, and Consultant shall cofirmence work after notification to proceed by County's Contract
Administrator. The Contract shall end on 713112023 unless extended by Contract

f Option I - Standard Contract
A. This Contract shall go contingent upon approvalinto effect on 121712021

County oflnyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fec

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 1 of2l

amendment.

0701201 8



B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on
County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.

Option 2 - On-Call Contracts
A. This Conhact shall go into effect on contingent upon approval

by County, and Consultant shall commence work after notification to proceed by County's Contract
Administrator. The Contract shall end on
amendment.

County of Inyo Contract No. 1 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fce

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page2 of2I

unless extended by Contract

B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on
County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.

C. The period of performance for each specific project shall be in accordance with the
Task Order for that project. If work on a Task Order is in progress on the expiration date of this
Contract, the terms of the Contract shall be extended by Contract amendment.

3. WORK SCHEDULE

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified
in Attachment A which is requested by the County. It is understood by Consultant that the
performance of these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange

his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested
by County under this Contract will be performed within the time frame set forth by County. This
work schedule shall be included in Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work.

4. ALLOWABLE COSTS AND PAYMENTS

A. The method of payment for this contract will be based on actual cost plus a fixed fee.

County will reimburse Consultant for actual costs (including labor costs, employee benefits, ftavel,
equipment rental costs, overhead and other direct costs) incurred by Consultant in performance of the
work. Consultant will not be reimbursed for actual costs that exceed the estimated wage rates,

employee benefits, travel, equipment rental, overhead, and other estimated costs set forth in the
approved Consultant's Cost Proposal, found in Attachment B, unless additional reimbursement is
provided for by contract amendment. In no event, will Consultant be reimbursed for overhead costs

at a rate that exceeds County's approved overhead rate set forth in the Cost Proposal. In the event
that County determines that a change to the work from that specified in the Cost Proposal and
contract is required, the contract time or actual costs reimbursable by County shall be adjusted by
contract amendment to accommodate the changed work. The maximum total cost as specified in
Paragraph "H" shall not be exceeded, unless authorized by contract amendment.

B. In addition to the allowable incurred costs, County will pay Consultant a fixed fee of
$8 689.40 The fixed fee is nonadjustable for the term of the contract, except in the event
of a significant change in the scope of work and such adjustment is made by contract amendment.

C. Reimbursement for transportation and subsistence costs shall not exceed the rates

specified in the approved Cost Proposal, Attachment B.

0701201 8



D. When milestone cost estimates are included in the approved Cost Proposal,
Consultant shall obtain prior written approval for a revised milestone cost estimate from the Conhact
Administrator before exceeding such cost estimate.

E. Progress payments will be made monthly in arrears based on services provided and
allowable incurred costs. A pro rata portion of Consultant's fixed fee will be included in the monthly
progress payments. If Consultant fails to submit the required deliverable items according to the
schedule set forth in the Statement of Work, County shall have the right to delay payment or
terminate this Conhact in accordance with provisions of Item 17 - Termination.

F. No payment will be made prior to approval of any work, nor for any work performed
prior to approval of this Contract.

G. Consultant will be reimbursed, as promptly as fiscal procedures will permit upon
receipt by County's Contract Administrator of itemized invoices in triplicate. Invoices shall be

submitted no later than 45 calendar days after the performance of work or which Consultant is billing.
Invoices shall detail the work performed on each milestone and each project as applicable. Invoices
shall follow the format stipulated for the approved Cost Proposal and shall reference this contract
number and project title. Final invoice must contain the final cost and all credits due County
including any equipment purchased under the provisions of Item 10 - Equipment Purchase of this
Contract. The f,rnal invoice should be submitted within 60 calendar days after completion of
Consultant's work. lnvoices shall be mailed to County's Contract Adminishator at the following
address:

Trevor Taylor
Counfy of lnyo, Public Works Departrnent
P.O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526

H.
$ 137,956.17

The total amount payable by County including the fixed fee shall not exceed

L Salary increases will be reimbursable if the new salary is within the salary range

identified in the approved Cost Proposal, found in Attachment B, and is approved by County's
Contract Administrator.

For personnel subject to prevailing wage rates as described in the California Labor
Code, all salary increases, which are the direct result of changes in the prevailing wage rates are

reimbursable.

J. A Task Order is of no force or effect until returned to County and signed by an

authorized representative of County. No expenditures are authorized on a project and work shall not
commence until a Task Order for that project has been executed by County.

County of Inyo Contmct No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fcc

(Independeni Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 3 of2 I 0701201 8



5. STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATES

A. Consultant shall comply with the State of Califomia's General Prevailing Wage Rate
requirements in accordance with California Labor Code, Section 1770, and all Federal, State, and
local laws and ordinances applicable to the work.

B. Any subcontract entered into as aresult of this contract, if formorethan $25,000 for
public works construction, or more than $15,000 for the altemation, demolition, repair, or
maintenance of public works, shall contain all of the provisions of this Section, unless the awarding
agency has an approved labor compliance program by the Director of Industrial Relations.

C. When prevailing wages apply to the services described in the scope of work,
transportation and subsistence costs shall be reimbursed at the minimum rates set by the Department
of lndustrial Relations (DIR) as outlined in the applicable Prevailing Wage Determination. See

http ://www. dir. ca. eov.

6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIF'ICATES, AND PERMITS

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or
municipal governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A
must be procured by Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Contract or as

otherwise may be required. Further, during the term of this Contract, Consultant must maintain such
licenses, certificates, and permits in fulI force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may
include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business
licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by
Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide County, upon execution of this
Contract, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to
perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Consultant and

County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Contract.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions
by any federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred
from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or
Non-procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at'.

http://www.sam.gov.

7. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

A. Consultant's signafure affixed herein, shall constitute a certification under penalty of
perjury under the laws of the State of California, that Consultant has complied with Title 2 CRF, Part

180, "OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government wide Debarment and Suspension (non-
procurement)", which certifies that he/she or any person associated therewith in the capacity of
owner, partner, director, officer, or manager, is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary
exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by any federal agency; has not been suspended, debarred,
voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by any federal agency within the past three (3) years;

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 4 of 2l 0701201 I



does not have a proposed debarment pending; and has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil
judgment rendered against it by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or
official misconduct with the past three (3) years. Any exceptions to this certification must be
disclosed to County.

B. Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of recommendation for award, but will
be considered in determining Consultant's responsibility. Disclosures must indicate to whom
exceptions apply, initiating agency, and date of action.

C. Exceptions to the Federal Government Excluded Parties List System maintained by
the General Services Administration are to be determined by the Federal highway Administration.

8. STATUS OF CONSULTANT

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the perfornance of this
Contract, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Contract, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on
behalf of County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or
responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of
the Consultant is to be considered an employee of County. It is understood by both Consultant and
County that this Contract shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an

employer-employee relationship or a joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work
and services to be provided by Consultant under this Contract.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results
specified in this Contract, and except as expressly provided in this Contract, shall not be subjected to
County's control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this
Contract.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term
of this Contract shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as

employees of County.

9. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA

Consultant shall provide such offrce space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials,
and telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment
A to this Contract. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost
incurred by Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and
expenses incurred by Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility
and obligation of Consultant.

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 5 of2l 070 I 201 8



10. EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

A. Prior Authorization in writing, by County's Contract Administrator shall be required
before Consultant enters into any unbudgeted purchase order, or subcontract exceeding $5,000 for
supplies, equipment, or Consultant services. Consultant shall provide an evaluation of the necessity or
desirability incurring such costs.

B. For purchase of any item, service or consulting work not covered in Attachment B, the

Consultant's Cost Proposal, and exceeding $5,000 prior authorization by County's Contract
Administrator; three competitive quotations must be submitted with the request, or the absence of
bidding must be adequately justified.

C. Any equipment purchased as a result of this contract is subject to the following:
"Consultant shall maintain an inventory of all nonexpendable property. Nonexpendable property is

defined as having a useful replacement and is sold or traded in, County shall receive a proper refund
or credit at the conclusion of the contract, or if the contract terminated, Consultant may either keep
the equipment and credit County in an amount equal to its fair market value, or sell such equipment at

the best price obtainable at a public or private sale, in accordance with established County
procedures; and credit County in an amount equal to the sale price. If Consultant elects to keep the

equipment, fair market value shall be determined at Consultant's expense, on the basis of a competent
independent appraisal of such equipment. Appraisals shall be obtained from an appraiser mutually
agreeable by County and Consultant, if it is determined to sell the equipment, the terms and
conditions of such sale must be approved in advance by County." 49 CFR, Part 18 requires a credit to
Federal funds when participating equipment with a fair market value greater than $5,000 is credited
to the project.

11. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to,
protective or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County
pursuant to this Contract are, and at the termination of this Contract remain, the sole and exclusive
property of County. Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such

items while they are in Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss

or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions,
publications, plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video
tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio
recotdings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions,
patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced,

assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work
under this Contract are, and at the termination of this Contract remain, the sole and exclusive property
of the County. At the termination of the Contract, Consultant will convey possession and title to all
such properties to County.

County of Inyo Contmct No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Loca[ Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 6 of 2l 070 I 201 8



12. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROF'ESSIONAL SERVICES

For the duration of this Contract Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope

and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

13. SUBCONTRACTING

A. Nothing contained in this Contract or otherwise, shall create any contractual relation
between County and any subconsultant(s), and no subcontract shall relieve Consultant of its
responsibilities and obligations hereunder. Consultant agrces to be as fully responsible to County for
the acts and omissions of its subconsultant(s) and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by
any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by Consultant.
Consultant's obligation to pay it subconsultant(s) is an independent obligation ffom County's
obligation to make payments to the Consultant.

B. Consultant shall perform the work contemplated with resources available within its
own organization and no portion of the work pertinent to this Contract shall be subconkacted without
written authorization by County's Contract Administrator, except that, which is expressly identified
in the approved Cost Proposal, Attachment B.

C. Consultant shall pay its subconsultants within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of
each payment made to Consultant by County.

D. All subcontracts entered into as a result of this Contract shall contain all the
provisions stipulated in this Contract to be applicable to subconsultants.

E. Any substitutions of subconsultant(s) must be approved in writing by County's
Contract Administrator prior to the start of work by the subconsultant(s).

14. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnift,
including the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and

against any and all claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the
performance of professional services under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to
liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemni8r County and its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including
attomey fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part
by any negligent act or omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused

by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemniff, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any

County oflnyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

PageT of21 0701201 8



requirement in this Contract for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. If the

Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimum required on the Insurance attachment to this
Contract, the County requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the

Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemniff, and hold harmless

Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses,
judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attomey's fees, arising
out of, or resulting from, the active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

15. RETENTION OF RECORDS/AUDIT

For the purpose of determining compliance with Public Contract Code 10115, et seq. and

Title2l, Califomia Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 2500 et seq., when applicable and other
matters connected with the performance of the contract pursuant to Govemment Code 8546.7;

Consultant, subconsultants, and County shall maintain and make available for inspection all books,
documents, papers, accounting records, and County shall maintain and make available for inspection
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance
of the contract, including but not limited to, the costs of administering the contract. All parties shall
make such materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the contract
period and for three years from the date of f,rnal payment under the contract. The state, State Auditor,
County, FHWA, or any duly authorized representative of the Federal Government shall have access

to any books, records, and documents of Consultant and it's certified public accountants (CPA) work
papers that are pertinent to the Contract and indirect cost rates (ICR) for audit, examinations,
excerpts, and transactions, and copies thereof shall be furnished if requested.

16. AUDIT REVIEW PROCEDURES

A. Any dispute conceming a question of fact arising under an interim or post audit of this
Contract that is not disposed of by Contract, shall be reviewed by County's Administrative Officer.

B. Not later than 30 days after issuance of the final audit report, Consultant may request a

review by County's Administrative Officer of unresolved audit issues. The request for review will be

submitted in writing.

C. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by County will excuse

Consultant from full and timely performance, in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

D. Consultant and subconsultant contracts, including cost proposals and ICR, are subject
to audits or reviews such as, but not limited to, a contract audit, an incurred cost audit, an ICR Audit,
or a CPA ICR audit work paper review. If selected for audit or review, the contract, cost proposal
and ICR and related work papers, if applicable, will be reviewed to verify compliance with 48 CFR,
Part 31 and other related laws and regulations. In the instances of a CPA ICR audit work paper
review it is Consultant's responsibility to ensure federal, state, or local govemment officials are

allowed full access to the CPA's work papers including making copies as necessary. The contract
cost proposal, and ICR shall be adjusted by Consultant and approved by County contract manager to
conform to the audit or review recommendations. Consultant agrees that individual terms of costs

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fee

(Independent consultant- Loct 
li;T"*" 

o"o"ral Aid Projects) 
07012018



identified in the audit report shall be incorporated into the contract by this reference if directed by
County at its sole discretion. Refusal by Consultant to incorporate audit or review recommendations,
or to ensure that the federal, state or local governments have access to CPS work papers, will be

considered a breach of contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of
prior reimbursed costs.

E. Consultant Cost Proposal is subject to a CPA ICR Audit Work Paper Review by
Caltrans' Audit and Investigation (Caltrans). Caltrans, at its sole discretion, may review and/or audit
and approve the CPA ICR documentation. The Cost Proposal shall be adjusted by the Consultant and

approved by the County's Contract Administrator to conform to the Work Paper Review
recommendations included in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit
report. Refusal by the Consultant to incorporate the Work Paper Review recommendations included
in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit report will be considered a

breach of the contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of prior
reimbursed costs.

During a Caltrans' review of the ICR audit work papers created by the Consultant's
independent CPA, Caltrans will work with the CPA and/or Consultant toward a
resolution of issues that arise during the review. Each parly agrees to use its best

efforts to resolve any audit disputes in a timely manner. If Calhans identifies
significant issues during the review and is unable to issue a cognizarfi. approval letter,

County will reimburse the Consultant at a provisional ICR until a FAR complaint ICR

{e.g. 48 CRF, part 31; GAGAS (Generally Accepted Auditing Standards); CAS (Cost
Accounting Standards), if applicable; in accordance with procedures and guidelines of
the American Association of State Highways and Transportation Officials Audit
Guide; and other applicable procedures and guidelines] is received and approved by
A&I. Provisional rates will be as follows:

If the proposed rebate is less than l50Yo - the provisional rate reimbursed will
be 90Yo ofthe proposed rate.

If the proposed rate is between 150Yo and 200% - the provisional rate will be

85% ofthe proposed rate.

If the proposed rate is greater than2}}Yo - the provisional rate will be 75o/o of
the proposed rate.

If Caltrans is unable to issue a cogaizant letter per paragraph 8.1. above, Caltrans may
require Consultant to submit a revised independent CPA-audited ICR and audit report
within three (3) months of the effective date of the management Letter. Caltrans will
then have up to six (6) months to review the Consultant's andlor the independent

CPA's revisions.

If the Consultant fails to comply with the provisions of this Section E, of if Calffans
is still unable to issue a cognizant approval letter after the revised independent CPA-
audited ICR and audit report within three(3) months of the effective date of the
management letter. Caltrans will then have up to six (6) months to review the

Consultant's and/or the independent CPA's revisions.

a.

b.

c.

2

J

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fce

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page9 of2l 07012018



4. Consultant may submit to County final invoice only when all of the following items

have occurred: (l) Caltrans approves or rejects the original or revised independent

CPA-Audited ICR; (2) all work under this contract has been completed to the

satisfaction of County; and (3) Caltrans has issued its final ICR review letter. The

Consultant MUST SUBMIT ITS FINAL INVOICE TO local agency no later than 60

days after occrlrTence of the last of these items.

The provisional ICR will apply to this contract and all other contracts executed between

County and the Consultant, either as a prime or subconsultant, with the same fiscal period ICR.

I7. TERMINATION

A. County reserves the right to terminate this conhact upon thirty (30) calendar days' written
notice to Consultant with the reasons for termination stated in the notice.

B. Counfy may terminate this contract with Consultant should Consultant fail to perform the

covenants herein contained at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such

termination, County may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by County. If County
terminates this conhact with Consultant, County shall pay Consultant the sum due to Consultant
under this contract prior to termination, unless the cost of completion to County exceeds the funds

remaining in the contract. In which case the overage shall be deducted from any sum due Consultant
under this contract and the balance, if any, shall be paid to Consultant upon demand.

18. COST PRINCIPLES AND ADMINISTRATIVE RBQUIREMENTS

A. Consultant agrees that the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal

Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., shall be used to determine the cost

allowability of individual items.

B. Consultant also agrees to comply with federal procedures in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 18,

Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local
Governments.

C. Any costs for which payrnent has been made to Consultant that are determined by subsequent

audit to be unallowable under 49 CFR, Part 18 and 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System,

Chapter I,Part 31.000 et seq., are subject to repayment by Consultant to County.

19. ASSIGNMENT

This is a Contract for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills,
knowledge, experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Contract.

Consultant shall not assign or subcontract this Contract, or any part of it, without the express written
consent of County. Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this
Contract without the prior written consent of County.

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page l0 of2l 07012018



20. DEFAULT

If the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested
by County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as

required by County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Contract upon
five (5) days written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to
Consultant all amounts owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date

of termination. Default shall also apply if the contract is terminated because of circumstances beyond
the control of consultant. The provisions of section 11.B "County Property," shall apply to any
parlially completed work if the contract is terminated or abandoned.

2I. WAIVER OF'DEF'AULT

Waiver of any default by either parfy to this Conhact shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Contract shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms
of this Contract unless this Contract is modified as provided in Section 30 (thirty) below.

22. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA

A. All financial, statistical, personal, technical, or other data and information relative to
County's operations, which are designated confidential by County and made available to Consultant
in order to carry out this contract, shall be protected by Consultant from unauthorized use and
disclosure.

B. Permission to disclose information on one occasion, or public hearing held by County
relating to the contract, shall not authorize Consultant to further disclose such information, or
disseminate the same on any other occasion.

C. Consultant shall not comment publically to the press or any other media regarding the
contract or County's actions on the same, except to County's staff, Consultant's own personnel
involved in the performance of this contract, at public hearings or in response to questions from a
Legislative committee.

D. Consultant shall not issue any news release or public relations item of any nature,
whatsoever, regarding work performed or to be performed under this contract without prior review of
the contents thereof by County, and receipt of County's written permission.

E. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all of the
provisions of this Article. (For PS&E contracts add paragraph F, below, to paragraphs A through E,
above).

F. All information related to the construction estimate is confidential, and shall not be
disclosed by Consultant to any entity other than County.

County of lnyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page I I of2l 07012018



23. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. Consultant shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with County
that may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing County construction
project. Consultant shall also list current clients who may have a financial interest in the outcome of
this contract, or any ensuing County construction project, which will follow.

B. Consultant hereby certifies that it does not now have, nor shall it acquire any financial
or business interest that would conflict with the performance of services under this contract.

n Chect here if C and D DO NOT APPLY.
(C and D do not apply if contract is NOT for preparation of Plans, Specs and Estimates)

C. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm affiliated with
Consultant will bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide construction
inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract. An affiliated firm is one, which is
subject to the control of the same persons through joint-ownership, or otherwise.

D. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to providing surveying or
materials testing information, no subconsultant who has provided design services in connection with
this contract shall be eligible to bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide
construction inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract.

E Ctreck here if E, F and G DO NOT APPLY.
(E, F and G do not apply if Contract is NOT for Construction Contract Administration)

E. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, its employees, nor any firm
affiliated with Consultant providing services on this project, prepared the Plans, Specifications, and
Estimate for any construction project included within this contract. An affiliated firm is one, which
is subject to the conhol of the same persons through joint- ownership, or otherwise.

F. Consultant further certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm affiliated with
Consultant, will bid on any construction subcontracts included within the construction contract.
Additionally, Consultant certifies that no person working under this contract is also employed by
the construction contractor for any project included within this contract.

G. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to materials testing, no
subconsultant who is providing service on this contract shall have provided services on the design
of any project included within this contract.

H. If a Consultant is hired in a Management Position, complete and submit Caltrans
LPMA Exhibit 10-U "Consultant in Management Position Conflict of Interest Statement," to
County.

County oflnyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 12 of 2l 07012018



24. REBATES, KICKBACKS OR OTHER UNLAWFUL CONSIDERATION

Consultant warrants that this contract was not obtained or secured through rebates kickbacks
or other unlawful consideration, either promised or paid to any County employee. For breach or
violation of this warranty, County shall have the right in its discretion; to terminate the contract
without liability; to pay only for the value of the work actually performed; or to deduct from the
contract price; or otherwise recover the fuIl amount of such rebate, kickback or other unlawful
consideration.

25. PROHIBITION OF EXPENDING LOCAL AGENCY STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDS
FOR LOBBYING

A. Consultant certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that

I No state, federal or local agency appropriated funds have been paid, or will be
paid by-or-on behalf of Consultant to any person for influencing or attempting
to influence an officer or employee of any state or federal agency; a Member
of the State Legislature or United States Congress; an officer or employee of
the Legislature or Congress; or any employee of a Member of the Legislature
or Congress, in connection with the awarding of any state or federal contract;
the making of any state or federal gfant; the making of any state or federal
loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any state or federal

contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be

paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any federal agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress; in
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

Consultant shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, o'Disclosure Form
to Report Lobbying", and/or Caltrans Exhibit 10-Q in accordance with the

instructions.

B. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for
making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352,Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person

who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $ 100,000 for each such failure.

C. Consultant also agrees by signing this document that he or she shall require that the
language of this certification be included in all lower-tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and

that all such sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

2.

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page l3 of2l 07012018



26. STATBMENT OF COMPLIANCE

A. Consultant's signature affixed herein, and dated, shall constitute a certification under
penalty of peq'ury under the laws of the State of California that Consultant has, unless exempt,

complied with, the nondiscrimination program requirements of Govemment Code Section 12990 and
Title2, California Administrative Code, Section 8103.

B. During the performance of this Contract, Consultant and its subconsultants shall not
unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for
employment because of sex, race, coloq ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability
(including HW and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital
status, and denial of family care leave. Consultant and subconsultants shall insure that the evaluation
and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination
and harassment. Consultant and subconsultants shall comply with the provisions of the Fair
Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code $12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the 5 applicable regulations
promulgated there under (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The

applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Govemment
Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Califomia Code of
Regulations, are incorporated into this Contract by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in
full. Consultant and it subconsultants shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to
labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement.

fl Ctreck here as C and D DO NOT APPLY.
(If NO Federal Funds will be used for this project, C and D do not apply.)

C. The Consultant shall comply with regulations relative to Title VI (nondiscrimination
in federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation - Title 49 Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 2l - Effectuation of Title VI of the 1064 Civil Rights Act). Title VI provides that
the recipients of federal assistance will implement and maintain a policy of nondiscrimination in
which no person in the State of California shall, on the basis of race, color, nationality, origin,
religion, sex, age, disability, be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of or subject to
discrimination under any program or activity by the recipients of federal assistance or their assignees

and successors in interest.

D. The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the Agreement shall
act in accordance with Title VI. Specifically, the Consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of
race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, or disability in the selection and retention of
Subconsultants, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant shall
not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the U.S.

Dot's Regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement covers a program show goal

is employment.

27. POST CONTRACT COVENANT

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is
gained from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Contract, for any
personal benefit, gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 14 o{ 2l 070 I 201 8



termination of this Conhact, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association,
corporation, or person who, during the term of this Contract, has had an adverse or conflicting interest
with the County, or who has been an adverse parly in litigation with the County, and conceming such,

Consultant by virtue of this Contract has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged,
protected, or proprietary information.

28. SEVERABILITY

If any portion of this Contract or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid
by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county
stafute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Contract, or the application thereof,
shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Contract are severable.

29. FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

A. It is mutually understood between the parties that this contract may have been written
before ascenaining the availability of funds or appropriation of funds, for the mutual benefit of both
parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if the contract were executed
after that determination was made.

B. This contract is valid and enforceable only, if sufficient funds are made available to
County for the purpose of this contract. In addition, this contract is subject to any additional
restrictions, limitation, conditions, or any statute enacted by the Congress State Legislature, or County
governing board that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this contract in any manner.

C. It is mutually agreed that if sufficient funds are not appropriated, this contract may be
amended to reflect any reduction in funds.

D. County has the option to void the contract under the 30-day termination clause
pursuant to Article VI, or by mutual agreement to amend the contract to reflect any reduction of
funds.

30. AMENDMENT/CHANGE IN TERMS

A. This contract may be amended or modified only by mutual written agreement of the
parties.

B. Consultant shall only commence work covered by an amendment after the amendment
is executed and notification to proceed has been provided by County's Contract Administrator.

C. There shall be no change in Consultant's Project Manager or members of the project
team, as listed in the approved Cost Proposal, which is a part of this contract without prior written
approval by County's Contract Administrator.

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fee

(lndependent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page l5 of2l 07012018



3I. NOTICE

An1'rrotice. comrrunic;rtion" anrerrdnrents. additions. or deletions to this Contract. includirrg

change of acldress of either party during the tenls of tlris Contract. which Consultant or County shall

be recprired, c)r m.Iy desire. to ural<e. shall be in writing and tnal,be personally servec{. or sent by
prepaid first class ntail to. the respective parties as fcrllows:

County of Inyo:
Public Works Departnrent

Acldre ss

City and State

PO Drawer Q
lndependence, CA 93526

Consultant:
Eastern Sierra Engineering Name

4515 Towne Drive Acldress

Reno, NV 89521 Ciity and State

32, ENTIRE CONTRACT

"fhis Clontract contains the entire Clontract of the pa(ies. and no representations, inducetnents,

promises, or Contracts otherwise betlveeu the parties uot embodied herein or inctxporated hereirr by

refbrence. shall be of any fbrce or eflect. Further. no term or provision hereol'may be changecl.

rvaived, discharged. or terrninated. unless the sanre be in rvriting executed by the parties ltereto.

---o0o---

IN WITNESS 'l'l-lF,iltEoF. Tl-lI1 PARTIES I{ERI-:]'O }{AVE SL-IT TH[']IR HANDS AND
SITALS l"lJIS 7th DAY OF December 2021

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTANT

By
Signature

Jeff Griffiths. Chair Gerald Jensen. President

Ilv

Print or'l-ype Narne

12t07t2021

Print or 1'ype Nanrc

I)ared: 11lAgn021Dated

A TO FORM AND LECALITY A OVET) TO RI]QTJIRL]ML,NTS

County Counsel Services

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNI'ING FORI\,{ APPROVF-D AS TO lNS{JRANCE R[lQIJIREN4ENTS:

PPROVED AS

&,^,OAn- Uv^dt*b

&'t*frz.- a&' /2,*MA,,
Ctiriw Risk Marla6r''fY \/

\--l

Counlv trl'lnlrr Cilr']tract No. l;16.I - Actual Cosl-l)lr:s Fircd l:ce

(lndependcnt Corrsulta:rl - [.ocal Assistance l"ctleral Aid }\oiccts)
I'agc l6 ol2l

County Auditor

07frl 201 ti



ATTACHMENT A

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF'INYO
AND Eastern Sierra Engineering

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 121712021 TOz7l3112023

SCOPE OF'WORK:

Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA will be providing the environmental and engineering
design services for the Onion Valley Guardrail Project, HSIPSL-5948(102). The scope of work
attached includes the tasks and deliverables that will comprise the work.

Optional Environmental Tasks are not anticipated to be required and will only be authorized via
contract amendment if found necessary. Optional Eastern Sierra Engineering Tasks 6 and 7
are included in the approved scope of work; the consultant shall not incur costs on these tasks
without prior written approval from the County.

The hourly rates, other direct costs and fees paid by the County for these services are shown in
Attachment B to the Contract.

County of Inyo Conkact No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page l7 of2l 07012018



Proposal for Environmental and Engineering Services in Support of
HSIP Onion Valley Guardrail Project

5COFE OT \'1/$RK

Task I - Project Management -ESE
ESE's project manager, David Grah, will be responsible for management of this project from the Bishop office
with support from the Reno office. He will work closely with the lnyo County Project Manager to coordinate
overall work on the project and will be responsible for scheduling meetings, managing the project schedule,

preparing and distributing minutes, conducting field reviews, tracking action items for the County and

consultant sub-contractors, and preparing all submissions for the County to submit to Caltrans Local

Assistance. David has established working relationships with Caltrans District 9 Local Assistance and all

subconsultants from previous ESE and City of Bishop projects as well as Caltrans Work experience.

Deliverable: Quality project on time and within budget.

Task 2 - Preliminary Engineering Studies - ESE
The preliminary engineering phase of the project will refine project scope including as needed for Task 5.

This will be accomplished by reviewing and considering all available project materials including the project
initiation materials as well as performing early engineering of the project. lmportant activities during this task
include evaluating constructability of the various sites, determining preliminary end treatment approaches,
and potentially meeting with the United States Forest Service (USFS), the underlying land owner. At the
completion of work on this task, project parameters will be established to be used in environmental studies
and in final design of the project.

Work on this task will include the development of
preliminary project plans developed on base mapping
produced in Task 3 and cost estimate. Preliminary
plans are anticipated to include:

) Title Sheet
) Notes, Legend, and Abbreviations
) Plan Sheets ( l0 Scale)

) Signing and Striping Sheets

) Detail Sheets

Deliverables: 30% Preliminary plans and associated
preliminary estimate. Plans will be D size drawings, 24
by 36 inches.

Task 3 - Surveys and Mapping - Bear/ESE
This task will include researching lnyo County and BEAR Engineering records for information applicable to
the project. An aerial control survey to establish horizontal and vertical control will be performed using GPS-

RTK survey methods using an NGS Opus solution of GPS receiver data. GPS-RTK survey shall include ground
control for each drone flight and fill-in measurements of existing improvements as needed. Survey control
shall be in CCS (NAD 83) Zone lV, US Feet using Geoid 2012. A base map including monumentation,
measured improvements and topographic contours will be prepared.

Deliverables: Base maps in AutoCAD Civil 3D 2021 format (also see Task 5 deliverables), images, notes

Task 4 - Environmental Studies and Documentation - Ge6de

The environmental task includes the following activities.

Eastern Sierra Engineering
Reno .l Zephyr Cove .t Bishop * Mammoth LakesL2



Proposal for Environmental and Engineering Services in Support of
HSIP Onion Valley Guardrail Project

Anticipated Activities (these activities are included in the proposal and cost):

Environmental Project Description
Upon project initiation and working in conjunction with ESE and county staff, Geode will create a concise
project description that describes the nature and scope of the project. The project description will address
the type of improvements, level of disturbance, and type of equipment to be used as well as an implementation
schedule. Gedde will liaise with the United States Forest Service early in the project initiation process to
ensure the correct jurisdictional agencies are engaged in the project's environmental documentation and
analysis.

CEQA Categorical Exemption (CE)
Geode will complete the environmental review of the anticipated CEQA documentation. This documentation
includes, but is not limited to: field, literature and electronic database reviews; and technical analysis. Technical
studies are not anticipated, as the projecc involves negligible or no expansion of use. As the shoulders along
Onion Valley Road have been previously disturbed from grading and driving, the installation of the guardrail
is anticipated to be exempt under a CEQA as an existing facility.

ECR/MMRP
Geode will ensure compliance with any jurisdictional permits and project avoidance, minimization, and
mitigation measures using an Environmental Commitments Record (ECR) or a Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Plan (MMRP). The ECR/MMRP is a matrix noting the necessary environmental provisions, with the
associated industry Best Management Practices (BMPs), Caltrans Standard Specifications (if relevant), and
agency permits which guide the implementation of measures which ensure the project in part and cumulatively
will have a less-than-significant impact. The ECR/MMRP document will assist both the county and the
contractor, track and monitor the implementation of these measures. These collective efforts are anticipated
to fulfil the project's CEQA/NEPA and permitting requirements.

Coordination, Project Management & Meetings
Ge6de will assume the lead role in environmental project management, preparation, and oversight of the
CEQA/NEPA document(s), and scheduling meetings both with the project team and regulatory agencies.

Optional Activities (these activities are not included in the proposal and cost but could be added):

NEPA Categorical Exclusion (CE)
This is an optional activity. Although only a CEQA CE is anticipated for this proiect, if a federal nexus is
established for the project by the USFS or another agency, a NEPA CE would be anticipated. ln this case

Geode will assess if projecc actions will individually or cumulatively result in significantly affecting the quality
of the human environment. lt is possible the USFS may wish to take the lead on the document at the NEPA
lead agency.

Permitting
This is an optional activity. Though lndependence Creek does run adjacent to some of the project footprint,
all activities are limited to upland areas and environmental permitting for impacts to waters are not
anticipated. ln addition, implementation of BMP's such as ESA fencing along the work near the creek could
prevent project impact. Still, if required, the following permits could will be obtained as part of this activity:
United States Army Corps of Engineers 404 Permit, Lahontan 401 Permit, California Department of Fish and
Wildlife 1602 Permit.

Deliverables: California Environmental Quality Act Categorical Exemption and Environmental Commitments
Record (ECR) or a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan, if needed.

Eastern Sierra Engineering
Reno * Zephyr Cove * Bishop * Mammoth Lakes

73



Proposal for Environmental and Engineering Services in Support of
HSIP Onion Valley Guardrail Project

Task5-Design-ESE
ESE will design the improvements and prepare the plans, specifications, and estimates in accordance with lnyo
County standards, Caltrans standards, and AASHTO Geometric Design guidelines to meet the project scope
defined in Task 2. ESE will provide support and participate in meetings with USFS and other resource agencies
about the project, as necessaq/. Any alternatives would be presented to the county for final selection during
this task. Traffic control and erosion control would be included in the work and public safety would be of
special concern due to switchbacks creating work zones above other sections of road. About three rounds
of county review and ESE update is anticipated as part of this task.
Final plans to include:
) Title Sheet

) Notes, Legend and Abbreviations
) Plan Sheets ( l0 scale)

) Signing and Striping Sheets

) Detail Sheets

) Construction Area Sign Sheets

) Erosion Control Plans

) Traffic Control Plans

Specifications are anticipated to include technical specifications that will be a combination of Caltrans
specifications and special provisions developed by ESE and the Counry.

Cost Estimates will be estimates of probable construction costs and will be prepared at each submittal stage
of the design process. A standard table format will be used to develop the costs, which will include
descriptions, quantities, unit costs, and total costs. The final estimate will be correlated with the bid schedule.

Deliverables: Plans, specifications, and estimates at 6070,90Y", and final contract documents. Plans will be D
size drawings,246y 36 inches. Base map and plan deliverables will include 2 hard copy sets and an electronic
version on media. One paper copy of specifications will be provided and an electronic copy will be provided
on the media with the plans.

Task 6 - Bid Process (Optional) - ESE
This task is optional as needed by the county. As part of Task 5, ESE would provide an electronic copy of the
final approved plans and specifications and a hard copy of the final approved specifications. The electronic
copy of the plans would be provided as both AutoCAD files and PDF files, and the electronic copy of the
specifications would be provided in both Microsoft Word format and PDF format. ESE would respond to
questions that arise during the bidding phase and prepare addendums for distribution by the county, as

necessary. lf desired by the county, ESE would also provide assistance in the evaluation of bids and award
recommendation, but in accordance with the RFP, these services are not included.

Deliverables: Final Plans and specifications, responses to guestions during bidding and addendums, if
necessary.

Task 7 - Services during construction (Optional) - ESE
This task is optional as needed by the county. Under this optional task ESE would participate in one pre-
construction conference and answer questions as directed by the County. ESE would provide other services
after contract award including reviewing contractor submittals, responding to Requests for lnformation (RFl),
preparing and/or reviewing change orders, supporting the County on Contractor claims, and performing field
visits or meetings as requested. Communication with the contractor would be logged and returned through
the County to maintain continuity and lines of communication. ln addition to these services listed in the

Eastern Sierra Engineering
Reno * Zephyr Cove .1. Bishop * Mammoth Lakes



Proposal for Environmental and Engineering Services in Support of
HSIP Onion Valley Guardrail Project

Request for Proposals, ESE could provide additional seryices during construction such as resident engineer,
inspection, and material testing services.

Deliverables: Meeting participation, review of submittals, other responses

Eastern Sierra Engineering
Reno * Zephyr Cove .i. Bishop * Mammoth Lakes @



ATTACHMENT B

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Eastern Sierra Engineering

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 121712021 To:713112023

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

The Consultant shall be compensated for actual costs incurred plus a fixed fee (10%) at the
rates shown in the attached cost proposal submitted by Eastern Sierra Engineering dated
101612021for the scope of services described in Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work.
The rates and costs identified herein shall constitute full compensation for providing all services,
labor, equipment, materials, and other incidentals necessary to perform all work described in
Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work.

The hours and associated costs alloted to each task in the cost proposal are projected
estimates of probable costs incurred by the consultant. The total compensation provided shall
not exceed $137,956. 17 . lt an increase to the project cost is expected, request for approval of
the increase must be made in writing by the Consultant to the County, and approved by the
Board of Supervisors prior to incurring the increase. Any increase to the not to exceed amount
will be effective by written Amendment to the Contract only.

The Director of Public Works can add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes at Eastern Sierra Engineering. The Director of
Public Works may only approve changes to the Schedule of Fees that are not associated with
an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(lndependent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page l8 of2l 07012018



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT IO-HI
Cost Proposal

Exgtrtt l0-H1 Cosr Pnoposlt, page I or3

C.osl'-PLUs-FrxEp FEt: oR @!gS@! oR F tRM l'txED pRtcE coN'r.RAc.rs

(DESrcN, EN6INEERTNc AND tNvtRoNMENTAL STUDTES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed X Prime Consultant fl Subconsultant fl 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Eastem Sierra Engineering PC

Project No. HSP$L-5948(I02) Contract No. ZP-2I-0t9 Date t0/06t2A2t

DIRECT LABOR

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $ 32,172.9s

b) Anticipatcd Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation) $ 13.68

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS t(a) + (b)l $ 32,186.53
INDTRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Ratc: 36.15%)

0 Overhead (Rate: 133.82%)

h) General and Administrative (Rate:

e) 1'otal Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)l
g) Overhcad t(c) x (01

,_%) i) Ccn & Admin [(o) x (h)l $

$ 11,635.43

$43,072.01

FIXED }-EE

j) TOTAL INDIRECT cosTs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TOTAL I'IXED FEE [(c) r 0)] x fixed fee tO%l

$ 54,707.45

$ 8,689.40

CONSULTANT'S OTIIER -ITEMIZE

l) TOTAL OTITER DTRnCT COSTS $852.80

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additionat pages if necessary)
Subconsultant 1: Bear Enpineerino fi24.420.00
Subconsultant 2: Geode $17 100.00
Subconsultant $
Subconsultant 4:

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTAIITS' COSTS $+t

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDTNG SUBCONSULTANTS t(l)+(In)l $ 42.372.80

No.r.ES: 
TOTAL COST I(c) + (t) + G) + (n)l $137.956.17

l. K9y personnel must be markcd with an asterisk (*) and employccs that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must bc markcd
with two asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Fcderal cost principles. Subconsultants will provicte thcir own cost proposals.

2. 'l'he cost proposal format shall not bc amsnded. Indircct cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordancc with thc
consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or acceptcd by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2020

Classification/Title Name Ilours Actual llourly Rate Total

See Attached $

$

$

$

g 32172.85

$

$

$

Dcscription of ltem Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
Mileage Costs 880 s.56 $492.80
Equipment Rental and Supplies $ $
Permit Fees $ $
Plan Sheets t20 $3 $360.00
Test $ $



Direct Labor

2023 lncreases

Total

Classlflcatlonl Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total
Project Manager Ss.98o.ooDavid Grah* 92 $6s.00
Deslgn Manag€r Debbie Jenkins * 38 5oz.so s2,37s.00
Principal Engineer Gerald Jensen 32 $qs.oz s1,538.24
Senior Engineer Christine Katz* 233 Ssz.eg Stz,qqt.tt
Civil Design Engineer Daniel Sandoval* L7 $ss.az s670.14
Civil Design Engineer $zs. rs Ss,Bs1.04Erik Bjarner* 208

Civil Design Engineer Cole Herbert 7 $zs.e+ $201.88
Civil Deslgn Engineer Andrew Myers 7 s27.oo 518e.00
Civil Design Engineer Bailv Mirtle 7 Sze.sz $rsg,q+
Civil Design Engineer Peter Sebaaly 7 Sz+.az $zqz.sq
Sr, Cadd Technician s8s8.00Jill Cartright 26 s33.00
Sr. Cadd Technician Jody Huehes 26 Szq.so So:z,oo

532,L72.85

$rs.oe

Senior Engineer Christine Katz* 8 Sr.rs Ss.zo
Civil Design Engineer Erik Bjarner* 8 $0.s6 S4.48



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT IO.HI
Cost Prooosal

Exxretr 10-H1 Cosr Pnoposnu pase 3or3

Certiflcation of Dirsct Costs:

l, lhe unders@ned, certify to lhe best of my knowladge and belief that all direct costs idenlifted on lhe
cost proposal(s) in ihis contract are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable lo lhe oonlract in
accordance with the conlract terms and the following requirements.

1. Generally Accepted Acoounling Principles (GAAP)

2. Terms and conditions of the conlract

3. Tille 23 United States Code Seclion 112 - Letling of Conlracts

4. 48 Code of Fedqral Requlalions Part 3t - Conlrast Cosi Principles and Procedures

5. 23 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and
Adminislration of Engineering and DesQn Related Service

6. 48 Code of Federal ReEulalions Part 9904 - Cosl Accountins Standards Board (when
applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all conlracts. All documentalion of complianee must
be retained in the project liles and be in conrpliance wilh applicablefederaland state requirements.
Costs lhat are noncompliant with lhe federal and stale requiremenls are not elQible for reimbursement.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizanl agency approved or Caltrans acepted
lndirec{ Cost Rate(s}.

Prlme Consultant or Subconsultant Ceriifvinq:

Nam
Gerald G. Jensen

Tille *: Q".o, )*,-V

Sigrature: Date of Certilication (mm/dd/yyyy): 't0t0612021

Email: com Phone Number: 775-828-7220 x204

Address 4515 Towne Drive, Reno, NV 89521

*An individual execulive or financial oflicer of lhe consultant's or suboonsultant s organization al
a level no lower than a Vice President or a Chief FinancialOfficer, or equivalent, who has
authorily to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost foposal for lhe
contracl.

services lhe u
Design, PS&E and conslruction support services

Page 3 of I
January 2020



Cost Proposal for Onion Valley Guardrait project
Eastern Siena Engineering

October 2021 (V6)

Jill Cartwrighl

89.09

90.87

94 51

100.1 8

'tt

s

R 1

Jody Hughes

SeniorDatle.

66-14

67.47

70.'t6

'14.37

g

Peter Sebaly

Civil Design

93.46

95.33

99.15

105.09

?
s 28lt 3A

n
s

0

Baily Mirtle

Civil Design
Enoineea

72.36

73.81

76.76

81.37

n

n

t

Afldrev/ Myers

Civil Design

78.15

79.11

82.56

87.55

R t4 Lq

n

Cole Herbe.t

Civil Design
Fnoincer

77.86

79.42

82^59

87 6t

Enk Bjamer'

Civil Design

75.83

77,35

80.44

85"27

,2

1)

tdn

1

1

s tr7 aa

g 7

Daniel
Sandoval'

Civil Design
Enoineer

106 43

108.56

112-9

1 19.68

t
4

t3( I M40
S t23 0{l

o
g

o
s

David Grah'

Project
[,lanager /

'175-4€

178.99

186 15

197 32

t5 ?A

3

5r

s

Christine KaU'

iienPr Urvrl
Design

Enoineer

155"75

I 58_86

165.22

175 13

A

Rq

1

0ebbie

Engineering

168.73

172.1',1

178.99

189 73

s

Gerald Jensen

Conslructabilit
v Reviry

12977

132"37

137 66

't45.9?

JA

Rate2022

Rate 2023

Rate 2024

Rate 2025

g 36229_57
3 246.00
s 35,475-57

s l|{)7,06

$ 24,420.00
$ 24.E27.06

Task

NLA Sheet
()verall Site Plan (one sheet)
Plan Sheets at 1"=20'('15 sheets)

;ost Estimate

lans Submitlal

I ask 2 EsE Total
fask 2 ESE Olher Direct costs

r asr z tDtus Txeo Tegl

I dsK 5 HOUTS DUoIOtat
fask3labo.Costs
Task 3 Non Labor Costs

I OraI Not Io Eixs€d lask 3 {olG fired feel

Task 4 Hours Sublotal
esk4labd.(]nsls

b-l



Cost Proposal for Onion Valley Guardrail project
Easlern Sierra Engineering

October 2021 (V6)

Jill Cartwright

o
s

Jody HughesPeler Sebaly

4

4
$ 373.64

n

Baily Mrde

I

o
i

Myers

s

Cole HerbertErik Bjamer'

1

{

Daniel

o

David Grah'

n

Christine Katz'

4

Debbie
Jenkins'

t5

24
s 4-04S.s2

n

s-

s

Gerald Jenseo

4
8

12
$ '1,55?24

0

3

TR€{
$ 3{1,120.90
3 246.00
$ 3E.366.90

Cooies
I 952.84
s 360.00

$ r,312.84

Iask 6 - Bid Prucess footionall
Produce construction documents
Resoond to ffilractd a(Fgtrons
Preoare aaoendtm---

fask 6 Hours Subtotal

Eqlotkrbor Costs
tesk 6 Non Labor Costs
Iask 6 ESE Total
fasl 6 Other Direct Cosls

@
fa* 7 . Soflicc5 Osrim qon*uctionlaffi lt
tG bid mretjno

:econsuuction conGrae
evies/ submitt€ls

Jesion suDsn

d-z



State of calilomia

Department of Transponation

ADM 2013 ODCI (Rer. t0/r?) Consultant Eastern Sierra Engineering pC

Date:1O/4tzOZ1

Page I of I

SCHEDULE OF OTHER DIRECT GOST ITEMS

1. 'NlC" denotes No Charge

charge will be invoiced for employee relocation cosls.

and shall be submitted along with the actlal invoica"
4. Parking, tolls and local transprtalion cost resulting from commuting to and from the employee's residence to the job site as assigned in the Task Order are not reimburable.

7. ltenrs wtren inclrre{t for the same purpose, in like cincumstance" should not be included in any indirec{ cost pool or in the overhead rate-

g. For those items lis-ted here as tools of the trade" that is part of indire{t cosl and not applicable as a direct cost. note as Not Applicable (NA)-

53.00

cosrUNIT

she€{

r EngineeringBea

DESCRIPTION OF ITETIS

Spechl Tqolinq

A. Frinting Plan sheets

B.

c.

Travel

$o.56

cosT

Cost + 10%

mile

UNIT

c.

Travel

A. Milease

B. PercaltransTEC

Geode Environmental

DESCRIPTION OF ITE'ilS

Special Tooling

A- Printinq

B.cost + 10%

$o-56

cosT

$3.oosheet

mile

UNIT

Eastern Sierra Engineering

A- Printing Plansheets

B. Special ttintinq

c-

Travel

A- Mileage

B. Per Caltrans TEC

DESCRIPTION OF ITE*IS

Speciirl Tooling

III



EnsreRN
SIERFaA
ENgINEERINE

maini775.828.7220
tax:775.828.7221

4515 Towne Drive
Reno, NV 89521-9696

www.etengr.com
CrvrL tNorNreFtN6 & CioNsrRuc'rrEN stERvtcEg

Prevriling Wage Policy

[astcm Sicna fingineering, PC parhrms rvork on public works projccu requiring paymont of pravailing wagos to
cartain classifications of employces. The prevriling wagc is compriscd of r basc hourly rate of pay and an hourly
fringe benefil amount. lf the prevailing !v6ge rele is greatcr than tho employee's bass rate of pay plus ftingo benefits
reccived by the omployee, the compnny policy ls to increase the bnse rata of pay to the employcc to msel the prcvailing
wage rate. 'llrus, the cmployee is payed the ditference ('the prevailing wrge dclta'). Ttc company accounting policy
is to rocord fte prevalling wagc delta as a direct cost and this cost is charycd dircctly to thc contrdct &s direct hbor,
This also applies to s tlnge delta. tf r fringe delta is required to bc prid to an employee, it is also recorded as a direct
cost and is billed to the client as a dircct cost.

lfyou have any guestions or concems ploase contact me at77s-828-7220 x204 or email me at den$€n(Aesongr.corn.

President

Reno * Zephyr Cove * Bishop .& Mommolh Lokes



INYO COUNTY

COST PROPOSAL

Onion Valley Guardrail Proiect

ADM 2033 (Rev" 10i 12)

HOME OFFICE

BILLING INFORMATION

Conlract f :HStpSL-594q1 02)

lnyo County Prcjst Zp-21419
Consultant: Eastern Sierra Engineering

Date: 10/06/2021

Page 1 of 4

Fringe Ben. %

36.15olo
Overhead % General Administration %

CALCUTSNON INFORMATION

Combined 7o

169.97%+ 133"82% +

Houdy range for
class

nla

nla

n/a

nla

ActuaU

aveEge hrly
rate

$ 6s.00
s 6630
s 68-9s

s 73.09

s 78.94
$ 86-83

s 62.50

s 63.7s
s 66.30
s 7028
s 7590
s 83.49

I 48.07
$ 49.03
s 50.99

$ s4.05
$ 58.38
$ 64.21

s s7.69
$ 58.84
s 6120
s 54.87
s 70.06
s 77.06

%or$
lncrease

0.00%

2,OOo/"

4"00o/o

6.00%
8 000/^

10.00%

0.00%

2.OOo/"

4.O0al"

5 000/"

8-OO%

10.00%

o.00%

2.OOoA

4.OOo/"

6.00%

8.00%
'10.00o/o

0.00o/o

2.OOo10

4.OOo/"

6_OOo/.

8.00%
10.00%

Efiec{ive Date of
hourly rate

From To
101o5t22

10105123

101o4t24
1rJto5t25'

10105126

101oit27

10105122

10n5t23
1fl/o4124

10/0512s

10to5t26
10to5t27

10to5t22
101o5t23

10t04t24
1UA5n5
10t05t26
'totost27
10to1t22
1o,1o,5t23

1c'1fJ4124

101o5t25
'r0/0st26

10lo5n7

10106t21

10t06t22
10lo6t?3

1AtAst24
"t0/06/25

10/06/26

10106t21

10loat2?

1o,toat23

101o5124

10/06125

10/06/26

10/06/21

10to6t22
1flto6t23

10t05124
10/05125

10t06t25
10to6t21
1rltoat2,
10JOAt23

10tost24
10to6t25
10/06/26

Loaded Hourly Billino Rates

Straioht OT(1.5x) OT(2x)

$ 175.48

s 178 39

$ 186.15

s 't97"32

$ 213.10

$ 234.41

$ 168.73

s 172-11

s 178.39

s 189.73

s 204-91
s 225.40

$ 129.77

$ 132"37
$ 137 66

$ 145 92

$ 1s7.60
$ 173.36

$ 15s.75
s 158A6
s 165-22

s 17s.13

$ 189.14
$ 208.05

s 175.48

s 178,99

$ 186_15

$ 197.32

s 213.10
$ 234.41

$ 168.73

s 172.11

$ 178.99

$ 189.73

$ 204.91
$ 225.40

s 129.77

s 13237
s 137.66

$ 14s.92

$ 157.60

$ 173.36

$ 15s.75
s 158.86

$ 165_22

s 175"13

$ 189.14
$ 208.0s

$ 175.48

$ 178.99

$ 186.15
s 197 32

s 213_10

s 234.41

$ 168.73

s 172.11

$ 178.99
s 189 73

s 204 91

$ 225.40

$ 129.77

s 132.37

s 137.66

$ 145.92

s 157.60

$ 173.36

$ 155.75
s 158_86

$ 165.22

$ 17s.13
s 18S.14

s 208-05

Name/Classification

David Grah, PE Project Manager
PlrlV Civil Design

Exemot

Debbie Jenkins, PE Design Manager

Quality Control
PM/ Civil Design

Exempt

Gerald Jensen, PE Principal

Constructability Review

Exempt
Christine KaA,PE Senior Civil Design Engineer

Civil Design

Exempt



INYO COUNTY

COST PROFOSAL

Onion Valtey cuardrail projoct

ADM 2033 (Rev. 10/12)

HOME OFFICE

BILLING INFORffATION

Fringe Ben. o/o

36.15%
Overhead %

+ 133.82% +

ContEct #:HStpSL-Sg4a(1OZ)

lnyo Colr{y Proj€ct ZP-21{19
Consultant: Eastern Sierra Engineering

Date: 10/0612021

Pagezoi 4

General Administration % Combined %

= 169.970lo

CALCULATION INFORMAT'ON

Hourly range for
class

nla

nla

nla

nla

Actual/
average hrly

$ 39.42

$ 40.21

s 41.82
s 4433
s 47_88

$ 52.66

$ 28.13

$ 28.69
s 2s-84

$ 31.63
$ 34.16
$ 37.57

s 28.84
s 29.42

s 30.s9
s 32-43

s 35.02

$ 38"53

$ 27.00

s 2754
s 28.64
s 30-36
s 327q
$ 36.07

o/o or $
lncrease

0.00%

2.OAo/"

4-OOo/"

6.000/"

8.OOo/o

10.00%

0-00%

2-OOo/.

4.400/"

6"00o/o

8.000/"

10.00q/o

0.00%

2.OOo/"

4.OOa/"

6.00%

8.000/o

10"00o/"

0.00%

2-OAo/"

4.00%

6.00o/o

8.O0%

10.00o/o

Effeclive Date of
houriy rate

From

10105t22

10/05/23

10t04t24
'tol05t25
10tost26
10t05t27

10to5t22

10/05/23
10to4t24

10to5t25
10t05126
10t05t27

1U05122

10t05t23
10t04124

10t05t25
1rl1o5t26,

1UA5t27

10105t22

10to5t23
't0t04t24

10loit?5
10/0s/26
10t05t27

10t06t21

1At06t22

10/06/23

10tost24
10106t25
10106126

101o6t21

1B106122

10loat23
10n5n4
10106/25

1UO6n6
10106121

10106122

10106t23

10to5t24
10to6t25
10t06t26
10t06t21

1A106t22

101o6t23

10to5t24
1 0/06/25
10/06/26

Loaded Hourlv Billino Rates

Straioht OT(1.5x) OT(2x)

$ 106.43

$ 108.56

$ 112.90

s 119.68
s 129 25

$ 142.17

$ 75.33

$ 77.45

$ 80.s5
s 8s-38

s 92.21

$ 101.43

$ 77.86

$ 79.42

s 82.59

$ 87.55
$ 94.55
$ 104.01

s 72.89

s 74_35

s 77.32

$ 81.96
s 8852
$ 97.37

$ 106.43

$ 108"56

s 112.90

$ 119.68

$ 129.25
g 142.17

$ 75.93

s 77.45

s 80-55

$ 8s.38
s 92.21
s 101.43

$ 77.86

s 7942
s 82s9
s 87.55

$ 9455
$ 104.01

$ 72.89

s 74.3s
s 77.32

$ 81.96
s 88-s2

$ 97.37

$ 106.43

$ 108.56

$ 112.90

$ 119.68
s 12S 2s
s 142"17

$ 7s,93
$ 77.45

s 80.55
$ 85.38
$ 92.21

s 101.43

$ 77.86

s 7s.42
$ 82.59

$ 87.55

$ 94.ss
$ 104.01

s 72.89

$ 74.35
s 77.32

s 81.36

s 88.s2
i 97.37

Name/Classification

Daniel Sandoval Civil Design Engineer

Bjamer Civil Design Engineer

Cole Herbert Civil Design Engineer

Exempt

Andrew Myers Civil Design Engineer

Exemot



INYO COUNTY

COST PROFOSAL

Onion Valloy Guardrail Proiect

ADM 2033 (Rev. 10/12)

HOME OFFICE

BILLING INFORMATION

Fringe Ben. %
36.15olo

Overhead %
+ 133.'.d24/" +

contraci #: Hst PsL-5948(1 02)

lnyo County Project ZP-Z1-019

Consultant: Eastern Sierra Engineering
Date: 1 0106/A021

Page 3 of 4

General Administration % Combined %

= 169.97%

CALCULATION INFORMATION

Houdy range for
class

nla

nla

nla

nla

Actual/
average hrly

rate

$ 26.92

$ 27.46

s 28.56
s 3027
s 3269
$ 3s.96
s 34.62

s 35.31

s 36.72

$ 38.93

$ 42.44
s 46.25
$ 33.00

$ 33.66

$ 35.01

$ 37.11
$ 40.08
s 44.08

$ 24.50

$ 24.99

$ 25.99

$ 27,55

$ 29.7s
$ 32"73

%or$
lncrease

0-000/o

2.00%
4 000/"

6.O0%

8.00%
10.00%

0.00%

2-000

4.0}o/o

6 000/"

8-00%
10.00%

0.00%

2,AOoA

4.00o/o

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%
0.00%

2"00%
4.00%
6.00%

8.00%
10.o0%

Effective Dale of
hourly rate

From To

10t05t22

101o5t23

1AtO4t24

1At05t25

10t05t26
10t05t27

10t05t22

1WA5t23

10t04t24
10to5t25

10ta5t?6
10t05t27
1AtO5t22

't0lo5t23

10to4t24

10t05t25

10/05/26

10105t27

10t05t22

10/05/23

10to4t24

10/05i25

10/05/26
10t05!27

10t06t21

10t06t22
10t06t23
10105t24
10,to6125

1 0/06/26

10t06/2'l

10ta6122

10106/23

1AtOSt24

10106t25
10/06/26
't0to6t21

1An6t22
1 0/06/23

10t05t24
10/06/25

10/06/26
10/06/21

101o6t22

1 0/06/23

10t05t24
10/06/25
1 0/06/26

Loaded Hourlv Billino Rates

Straisht OT(1.5x) OT(2x)
$ 72.68

s 7413
s 7709
s 81.72

s 8826
$ 97.08

$ 93.46

s 95_33

s 99.15

$ 105.0s

$ 113.50
$ 124.85

$ 178.18

$ 181.74

$ 189.01

$ 200.35
s 216-38

$ 238.02

$ 132,29

$ 134_93

$ 140.33
$ 148.75

$ 160.65

s 176.71

$ 72.68

s 74.13

s 77.09

$ 81.72

s 88-26
s 97.08

$ 93"46
c oE22

s 99.15
s 105 0q

$ 113 50

$ 124.85
s 133.64

$ 136.31

$ 141 76

$ 150.27

$ 162-29

$'178.52
$ 99.21

9 t01.20
s '105.25

$ 111"56

$ '120.49

$ 132.53

s 72.68

$ 74.13

$ 77.09

$ 81.72
s 8826
$ 97.08

$ 93.46

s s533
s 99.1s
$ 105_OS

$ 113,50

s 124.85
s 89.09

$ 90-87

s 94.51

$ 100.18

$ 108.19

$ 119.01

s 66.14

$ 67,47

$ 70.16

$ 74.37

$ 80.32

s 88.36

Name/Classification

Baily Mirtle Civil Design Engineer

Ixempt
Peter Sebaaly Civil Design Engineer

Exempt

Technician
Drafting

Drafting



INYO COUNTY

COST PROFOSAL

Onion Valley Guardrait prcject

ADM2033(Rev 1O12)

HOME OFFICE

BILLING INFORI'ATION

Fringa Ben. %
36.15%

Overhead %

Contract #:HStPSL-S949( 1 0A)

lnyo Cpurty Project ZP-21.o19
Consultant: .Eastern Sierra Engineering

Dare: 10/06/2021
page 4 of 4

General Adminiskation % Combined o/o

= 169.97clo

CALCULATION INFORilATION

+ 133.82% +

Hourly range for
class

nla

nla

Actual/
average hrly

rate
$ 35"00

$ 33.66
$ 35.01

$ 37.11

$ 40-08

s 44.08

$ 30.00

$ 30.60

$ 31.82

$ 33.73
s 36.43

$ 40.08

Toor$

0.00%

2.OOo/"

4.04o/o

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%
0.00%

2.00o/o

4.O0o/o

6.00%

8-00%

10.00%

Effective Date of
hourly rate

From To
10to5t22
101o5t23
10to4t24

101o5t25

10105t26

10105t27

'totost22

10/05/23

10104t24

10/05/25

10t05126

10to5t27

10to6n1
10to8n2
101o6t23

1An5t24
10/06/25

10to6t26
10106t21

10ta6t?:2

10/06/23

10t05t24
10t06l2s
10106n6

Loaded Hourlv Billino Rates

Straight OT(1.5x) OT{2x)
$ 188.98

$ 194.85
s 202.55

s 2'14.80

$ 231-99

s 255.19

$ 161.98

8177.14
$ 184.22

$ 19s.28
$ 210.90

$ 231.S9

$ 141.73

s 146.14

$ 151.98

$ 161.10

s 't73.9S

$ 191.39

$ 121,49

s 132.85

s 138.17

s 146.46

s 158.17

$ 173.99

$ 94.49

$ 97.43

$ 101.32

$ 107.40

s 115.99

$ 127.59

$ 80.99
s 88.57

$ 92.11

$ 97.64
$ 105.45

$ 115.99

Name/Classification

Geotechnical

Kupelian

Geotechnical



Task
TASK 1

TASK 2
TASK 3
TASK 4
TASK 5

TASK 6
TASK 6.1

TASK 6.2

TASK 6.3

Geode Environmenlal
Sole Proprletor - Essra mostatavi

Description
Project lnitiation, Scope of Work & Project Description
CEQA Categorical Exemption (CE)

NEPA Categorical Exclusion {CE)
ECRYMMRP

Coordination, Project Management & Meetings
Permitting
USACE Nationwide 404 Permit
Lahontan RWQCB 401 Permit
CDFW LSAA 1602 Permit

GEODE ENVIRONiIENTAL

$190

Hours
40
20
20
't0

20

per hour

Rate Cost lncluded Optional
$190 $7,600 $7,600

$190 $3,800 $3,800

$190 $3,800 $3,800

$190 $1,900 $1,900

$190 $3,800 s3,8oo

40
40
40

$190
$190

$190

$7,600
$7,600
$7,600

$43,700

$7,600
$7,600
$7,600

$17,100 $26,600

Page I



BEAR ENGINEERING RATE SCHEDULE

Field Surveys: GPS Equipment: Trimble RlOGPS RTK equipment, one base receiver, one rover,

radio link, TSCT data collector, Robotic Equipment: Trimble 5-6 Robotic Station w/ TSCZ data

collector; Drone - Phantom 4 RTK

A. Field surveys with GPS RTK and Robotic Equipment S170.00 /hr.

B. Office: Professional Engineer/Land Surveyor Services: Srro.oo /trr

C. Miscellaneous:

Travel: Billed to and from office
Copies L8" x 26", 24" x32", 24" x36" sheets

Special Materials: construction staking materials, aerial targets, etc

Overhead: Office, clerical, etc not otherwise specified included in rates

D. Drone Flight Planning

E. Drone Data Processing

F. Drone AerialSurvey

Estimated Fee for each Scope of Services Item

4hr. @ $l l0lhr. (C)

5uo.oo /hr.
$E.OO /sheet
cost + 15%

Srro.oo /trr.
Srro.oo /nr.
5170.00/hr.

hr.@
hr.@
hr.@
hr.@
hr.@
hr.@

l.
2.
J.

4.
5

6.

7.
Total

40
20
60
26
30

6

$170/hr. (A)
$l lO/hr. (D)
$1 l0 /hr. (E)
$l?0 per hr. (F)
$ I l0 per hr. (C)
$ I l0 per hr. (C)

$ 440

$ 6,800

$ 2,200
$ 6,600

$ 4,420
$ 3;3oo
$ 660

$ 24,420

Not to Exceed Amount: $24,420



ATTACHMENT C

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF IiYYO
AND Eastern Sierra Engineering

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 121712021 TO:713112023

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

The consultant shall be compensated at the rates shown in Attachment B, Schedule of Fees for
Travel and Per Diem expenses.

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fec

(lndependent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 19 of2l 07012018



ATTACHMENT D

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Al[D Eastern Sierra Engineering

tr'RoM: 121712021 TOz7l3112023

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fec

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page20 of21

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

0701 201 8



Insurance Requirements for Professional
Services

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00
01 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no

employees)

1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant's
profession, with limit no less than $1,0001000 per occuffence.

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.
Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to the Entity.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Additional lnsu red Sfafus

1. The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG
20 37 forms if later revisions used).



Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Gonsultant's insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation
Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses
within the retention.

Acceptability of lnsurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Claims Made Policies
lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date,
the Consultant must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



2.

J

4

5.

ATTACHMENT E

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Eastern Sierra Engineering

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

FRoM: 121712021 ror7l3112023

STATE / FEDERAL FUNDS ADDENDUM

Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Consultant warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the consultant, to solicit or secure this
Contract, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person other than a bona hde
employee, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon
or resulting from the award, or formation of this Contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the local
agency shall have the right to annul this Contract without liability, or at its discretion; to deduct from the
Contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

Delays and Extensions. The term of the contract may be extended in the case of unavoidable delays, changes
in the scope of work or level of effort required to meet the project objectives, and for consideration of
corresponding warranted adjustments in payment. An extension of contract time is granted as described in
Section 30, Amendment/Change in Terms, of the contract.

Consultant's Endorsement on PS&E/Other Data. The consultant's responsible engineer shall sign all
plans, specihcations, estimates (PS&E) and engineering data furnished by him/her, and where appropriate,
indicate his/her Califomia registration number.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Considerations. Consultants must give consideration to DBE firms as

specified in 23 CFR 172.5(b),49 CFR, Part 26. The Consultant shall comply with the applicable provisions
of Exhibit 10-I, "Notice to Proposers Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information," and Exhibit l0-J,
"Standard Contract for Subcontractor/DBE Participation," that were included in the Request for Statements of
Qualifications,

Safety. The consultant shall comply with OSHA regulations applicable to the Consultant regarding necessary
safety equipment or procedures. The Consultant shall comply with safety instructions issued by the county's
project manager and other county representatives. Consultant personnel shall wear hard hats and safety vests
at all time when working on the construction project site.

Pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, the county has determined that such
areas are within the limits of the project and are open to public traffic. The Consultant shall comply with all
of the requirements set forth in Divisions 11 , 12, 13 , 14, and 15 of the Vehicle Code. The consultant shall
take all reasonably necessary precautions for safe operation ofits vehicles and the protection ofthe traveling
public from injury and damage from such vehicles.

Any subcontract entered into as a result ofthis contract shall contain all ofthese provisions.

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. 1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixcd Fcc

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page2I of2l 07012018



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORIG
P.O. DRAWER Q

INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93 526
(760) 878-0202

(760)878-2001 FAX

County of
INYO

Michael Enante - Director
Chris Cash - Deputy Director

TO:

FROM

DATE:

File, Public Works

Trevor Taylor, Public Works

r0l2s/2021

SUBJECT: Non-competitive A&E Consultant Contract - Onion Valley Guardrail Project
HSrPL-5948(102)

A request for proposals for the environmental and design components of the Onion Valley
Guardrail Project was advertised on August 20,2021with a due date of October 6th,2021. The
RFP was sent directly to seven consulting firms who have worked successfully with Inyo County
in the past as well as being advertised on IMS (Integrated Marketing Systems) website as an
attempt to reach a broader assortment of potential proposers. Despite the effort to solicit
competition, only one proposal was received from Eastern Sierra Engineering, Inc. The
proposal was ranked in accordance with the criteria in the RFP and I am recommending moving
forward with cost and contract negotiation. Re-advertisement was considered but given the lack
interest from potential proposers and Eastem Sierra Engineering's successful track record on past
projects for Inyo County, I do not believe there are risks for moving forward with contract and
cost negotiation. If a contract cannot be negotiated, re-advertisement will be considered again.

Trevor Taylor, Engineering Assistant II
ttaylor@inyocounty.us
760-878-0347



INYO COUNTY CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER FORM 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROJECT: Onion Valley Guardrail Project   
 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
 
OWNER: Inyo County Public Works     DATE: August 18th, 2022 
 
CONSULTANT: Eastern Sierra Engineering    
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
YOU ARE DIRECTED TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS AND THESE CHANGES ARE INCORPORATED INTO THE CONTRACT 
BY REFERENCE: 
 
DESCRIPTION         AMOUNT 
 
Add Task Order #8 Investigate Soils and Design Moment Slab for Site 10 
 
Original Contract Amount………………………………………………… _____$137,956.17 
Amount for previous Change Orders …………………………………….. ___________    $0 
Contract amount prior to this Change Order ……………………………..           $137,956.17 
Amount of this Change Order …………………………………………… _____  $16,574.00 
NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT including this Change Order …………... ____  $154,530.17 
  
 
DATE OF TIME FOR COMPLETION AS OF THIS CHANGE ORDER: July 31st, 2023 
 
ACCEPTED BY: 
 
CONSULTANT: ______________________________   DATE: _________________________ 
 
OWNER: ___________________________________      DATE: _________________________  
  Mike Errante, Director of Public Works  



Reno  Zephyr Cove  Bishop  Mammoth Lakes 

, 2022 

Attn:  
County’s Contract Administrator 
County of Inyo, Public Works Department 
P.O. Drawer Q 
Independance, CA  93526 

Re: Onion Valley Guardrail Project, HSIPSL-5948(102) 
Addition of Task 8 – Investigate Soils and Design Moment Slab for Site 10  

Dear Mr. : 

Eastern Sierra Engineering (ESE) is pleased to submit for your review and acceptance the 
addition of Task 8, for on-site excavation and monitoring of coring/potholing investigation and 
development and design of a moment slab for Site 10 of the Onion Valley Guardrail Project.  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
ESE will design the guardrail improvements and prepare plans, specifications, and estimates to 
meet the project scope defined in Task 2. The design will improve the existing condition as much 
as practicable in accordance with Inyo County standards, Caltrans standards, and AASHTO 
Geometric Design guidelines considering site and maintenance restrictions.  Additionally, ESE 
will investigate soils in the area to better understand the underlying conditions.  The plan of 
investigation is shown below in Figure 1. Following the investigation, ESE will prepare drawings 
for a moment slab.       

Figure 1: Location of Test Core/pothole locations



2 

ENGINEERING FEES 
The following table lists the estimated hours and effort required to complete Task 8. 

Engineering Cost Estimate
Quantity $/Units Units Total

Surveying 0 $170.00 HOURS $0
Coring and Potholing 

- 1 day tech on site monitoring 12 $97.43 HOURS $1,169
- 1 day Equipment/Operator 12 $150.00 HOURS $1,800
- Mobilization 01 $4,500 LS $4,500

Traffic control 12 Provided by INYO 
Reinforced Concrete Design 20 $155.75 HOURS $3,115
Environmental Impact 2 $190.00 HOURS $380
CAD Layout/Mapping 20 $75.93 HOURS $1,519
Engineering Cost Estimate 10 $155.75 HOURS $1,558
Civil Design    5 $155.75 HOURS           $778
Design Review 10 $175.48 HOURS $1,755
Total Engineering Cost $16,574

Compensation for ESE's services would be provided on a time and expense basis utilizing the rates 
approved in the original contract and summarized in the table above. The scope outlined above is 
for Task 8. ESE will not exceed the above total engineering cost without your written authorization. 

Optional Task 9 
During drawing preparation of the reinforced concrete slab and barrier, ESE can hire a California 
S.E. to review reinforced concrete design and stamp the drawings. Their review will meet 
AASHTO requirements. This optional task can be performed for a lump sum fee of $7,440. 

Debbie Davis Jenkins, PE 
Engineering Manager  
CA PE C 57235 

Casey Carriere, E.I.T. 
Project Designer      

Attachments: 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Public Works 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Greg Waters 
  
SUBJECT:  Diaz Boat Dock Plans and Specifications 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) approve the plans and specifications for the Diaz ADA Boat Dock Project and authorize the 
Public Works Director to advertise the project; and B) authorize the use of Geothermal Royalties to fund the 
project beyond the available remaining grant. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
Diaz Lake is a popular venue for kayaking and canoeing. There are many disabled veterans among others that 
would be able to enjoy the lake if there were an ADA accessible boat dock for them to use to launch and board 
their vessels. Inyo County received grant funding to pay for a significant portion of the cost of the construction. 
 
As a matter of practicality and value to the County, the project may be bifurcated into two separate scopes of 
work, a purchase order for the dock components and a single construction contract for all other work, including 
the installation of the dock components furnished by others. 
 
In addition to approving the plans and specifications, we are also asking the Board to authorize the use of 
Geothermal Royalties to fund the project beyond the available remaining grant. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
On May 5, 2016 Inyo County received a grant for $202,860 from California Department of Parks and Recreation, 
Division of Boating and Waterways to build an ADA Accessible Boat Dock on Diaz Lake. The funding is 
sunsetting on February 1, 2023, so the project must go forward this year. 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve the plans and specifications for the Diaz Lake Boat Dock and not to 
authorize the Public Works Department to advertise and the Grant Funding from the California Department of 
Boating and Waterways will expire on February 1, 2023. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
N/A 
  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

FINANCING: 
The Department of Boating and Waterways grant has a remaining balance of $197,681.00 The current engineer's 
estimate is $249,681. The remaining $52,000 will be paid out of Geothermal Revenues. The Budget Team has 
created budget unit 670300 Diaz Lake Dock Grant, to track the project. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Diaz Boat Dock Schedule  
2. Diaz Lake ADA Dock Bid Package  
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 8/18/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/18/2022 
Greg Waters Approved - 8/24/2022 
Michael Errante Approved - 8/24/2022 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/24/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/31/2022 
Greg Waters Approved - 8/31/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/31/2022 



Diaz Boat Dock
Preliminary  Schedule

As of 8-18-2022

Activity Duration Start Finish

Design Phase 5 8/18/2022 8/23/2022
DBW  Review & Final Approval 15 8/23/2022 9/7/2022
Upload to Civic Clerk for Inclusion 0 9/13/2022 9/13/2022
Board Agenda Cut-Off Date 0 9/15/2022 9/15/2022
Board Approval Plans & Specs 0 9/20/2022 9/20/2022
Advertise for Bids 14 9/20/2022 10/4/2022
Submit Bids to Board for Approval 0 10/6/2022 10/6/2022
15 Day Waiting Period 13 10/7/2022 10/20/2022
NTP Issued 1 10/21/2022 10/22/2022
Off Site Fabrication Dock & Gangway 14 10/23/2022 11/6/2022
Site Construction 23 10/23/2022 11/15/2022
Dock & Gangway Installation 8 11/7/2022 11/15/2022
Close Out 4 11/16/2022 11/20/2022
Schedule Total Float 73 11/20/2022 2/1/2023
Drop Dead Date on Grant Extension 0 2/1/2023 2/1/2023



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
 

BID PACKAGE AND 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 

FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 

 
Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 

Project No. TR-16-039 
 

 
FOR USE IN CONNECTION WITH INYO COUNTY 

 SPECIFICATIONS, DATED MAY 2020, 
GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES IN EFFECT  

ON THE DATE THE WORK IS ACCOMPLISHED 
 

August 2022 
 

Prepared By: Inyo County Public Works 
  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
NOTICE INVITING BIDS 

 
BID PROPOSAL FORMS 
 

Bid Proposal Form 
Bid Bond  
Cashier's or Certified Check Form 
Designation of Subcontractors  
Government Code Section 12900: Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity 
Labor Code Section 3700 Contractor’s Certification  
Labor Code Section 1725.5: Contractor and Subcontractor Registration 
Public Contract Code Section 7106 Non-Collusion Affidavit 
Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire 
Public Contract Code Section 10232 Statement 
Inyo County Ordinance No. 1156 (Contracting Preference) 
Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts)  
Small Business Enterprise Final Report of Utilization of Small Business Enterprise 

 
CONTRACT AND BONDS 
 

Contract 
Faithful Performance Bond 
Labor and Materials Bond 
Insurance Requirements 

 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
SPECIFICATIONS 
 
PLANS 
  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
 

 

 
 

NOTICE 
INVITING BIDS 

FOR 
 

 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 

Lone Pine, CA 
 

 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
 

COUNTY OF INYO 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

NOTICE INVITING BIDS  
 

The Inyo County Public Works Department is soliciting bids for:  
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 

Lone Pine, CA 
 

Bid Packages, which include the Notice Inviting Bids, Bid Proposal Forms, Contract and Bond Forms, 
Special Provisions, and Plans, may only be obtained from the Inyo County Public Works Department, 
168 North Edwards, P. O. Drawer Q, Independence, CA 93526, telephone (760) 878-0201.  A non-
refundable price of $15.00 will be charged for each set of Bid Packages requested.  The Bid packages 
are available for inspection at the Department offices during regular business hours.  Checks are to be 
made out to “Inyo County Public Works Department.”  The Bid Package is also available at no charge at 
the County of Inyo website at www.inyocounty.us.  Bidders who obtain Bid Packages over the internet 
are responsible for notifying Inyo County Public Works Department that they are plan holders.  Bidders 
who fail to notify the County that they are plan holders may not be notified should any Addenda be 
issued.  If the County issues any Addenda to the Bid Package that is not acknowledged, the Bid Proposal 
may be rejected.  This project is subject to the provisions of a State of California Dept. of Industrial 
Relations (DIR) approved Labor Compliance Program. 
 
Bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked with the bidder's name and address, 
the word "BID", and the Project Title   
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 

Lone Pine, CA 
 

To be considered, bids must be received by the Inyo County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 
North Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N), Independence, California 93526 at or before 
3:30 P.M. on Wednesday, September 21, 2022 at which time they will be publicly opened and read 
aloud.  No oral, telegraphic, telephonic, or fax proposals or modifications will be accepted. 
 
PRE-BID JOB WALK There will be a voluntary pre-bid job walk on Tuesday, September 13, 
2022 starting at 10 AM in Lone Pine, CA at the Diaz Lake Entrance Station. Please contact Greg 
Waters, Inyo County Public Works, at gwaters@inyocounty.us or call (760) 709-2232. 
 

 
 
Confidentiality of Responses 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Notice Inviting Bids 

 

By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, respondents understand that Inyo County is a 
public agency that is subject to the California Public Records Act.  Any proposal submitted in 
response to this RFP may constitute a public record that is disclosable to any member of the 
public upon request.  Any respondent who feels that their response contains confidential or 
proprietary information that should not be disclosed to the public must stamp each page that 
contains allegedly confidential information with the word “CONFIDENTIAL” in the header of 
the page in at least 12 point type.  Please note that stamping a page as confidential does not 
guarantee that it will be protected from disclosure. 

 
General Work Description: 

 
The DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT includes but is not limited to mobilization, clearing 
and grubbing, installation and removal of a turbidity curtain and other storm water BMPs, rough 
grading, excavation, backfill, compaction, concrete formwork, rebar, and concrete placement and 
finishing, fabrication, delivery, and installation of all dock and gangway components, finish grading, 
pavement striping and pavement markings, purchase and installation of parking signage, purchase and 
installation of a project credit sign,etc. 
 
The project will be bid as three separate scopes. Contractor’s can bid on any combination of one, 
two, or three of the scopes of work (site work, fabrication of dock components, and project credit 
sign), per the Bid Proposal Form. If a contractor bids on only two scopes of work, the County 
reserves the right to consider each scope as independent of the other with respect  to acceptance of 
one and rejection of the other. 
 
All of the work shall be in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, codes, and 
regulations.   
 
Technical questions related to project work, site conditions, or other related inquiries should be directed 
to Greg Waters of the Public Works Department at gwaters@inyocounty.us.  
 
Bids shall conform to and be responsive to the Contract Documents. Bids are required for the entire 
work described in the Contract Documents.   
 
Each Bid must be submitted on the Bid Proposal Forms furnished as a part of the Bid Package.    
Each Bid must be accompanied by a Proposal Guarantee in the amount and form described in the Bid 
Package, in an amount not less than 10% of the amount of the bid, made payable to the order of the 
County of Inyo.  The check or bond shall be given as security that the bidder will enter into the Contract 
with the County and furnish the required Faithful Performance Bond, Labor and Materials Payment 
Bond, Certificates and/or original endorsements of insurance, or other required documents. The check or 
bond may be retained by the County for sixty (60) days or until the Contract is fully executed by the 
successful bidder and the County, whichever first occurs. 
 
The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a Faithful Performance Bond and a Labor and 
Materials Payment Bond on the forms provided in the Bid Package and in the amount of 100% of the 
Contract amount. 
 





Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
 

 
BID PROPOSAL FORMS 

FOR 
 
 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 

Lone Pine, CA 
 
 
 
 

 
ENCLOSURES: 

Bid Proposal Form 
Bid Bond 
Cashier’s or Certified Check Form 
Designation of Subcontractors 
Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity 
Contractor’s Labor Code Certification 
Public Contract Code Section 7106 (Non-Collusion Affidavit) 
Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire 
Public Contract Code Statement (Section 10232) 
Inyo County Ordinance No. 1156 (Contracting Preference) 
Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts) 
Small Business Enterprise Final Report of Utilization of Small Business Enterprise  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

BID PROPOSAL FORM 

 
 
TO: COUNTY OF INYO 
 Attn.: Inyo County Clerk of Board of Supervisors 
 224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N  
 Independence, California 93526 
 (Hereinafter "County") 
 
FROM:            

          

          

 (Hereinafter "Bidder") 

 
 

FOR: DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT  (Hereinafter "Project") 

 
In submitting this Bid, Bidder understands and agrees that: 
 
BID DEADLINE. Bids must be received no later than 3:30 P.M. on Wednesday, September 21, 
2022 by the Inyo County Assistant Board Clerk, 224 North Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box 
N), Independence, CA 93526, at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud.  No oral, 
telegraphic, telephonic or fax proposals or modifications will be accepted. 
 
PRE-BID JOB WALK There will be a voluntary pre-bid job walk on Tuesday September 13, 
2022 at 10 AM meeting at the Diaz Lake Entrance Station. Please contact Greg Waters, Inyo County 
Public Works, at gwaters@inyocounty.us or call (760) 709-2232. 
 
BID AMOUNT TOTAL.  The total amount of this Bid for provision of the services and/or materials for 
completion of the Project in accordance with the Contract Documents is set forth herein as: 
  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 

PROJECT NO.  TR-16-008 
 

Site Work Bid 

Scope of Work includes but not limited to: Mobilization/Demobilization; design, furnish, install, and 
remove safety fence, SWPPP BMPs, turbidity curtain, and dewatering system; excavation and offhaul of 
spoils, furnish and install base rock, furnish, set, and strip concrete formwork, furnish and install rebar, 
install concrete embeds furnished by others,furnish and install slip dowels and expansion joint, furnish 
concrete materials, place & finish concrete, strip forms, perform finish grading, furnish and place rock 
cobble around base of abutment and dead men at waterline;unload, inspect for damage, and tally dock 
components upon arrival; unload and install project credit sign, paint ADA striping and symbols, furnish 
and install parking bumper, furnish and install parking signage, posts, and concrete post footings. 
 
Item 
No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price 

Total 
Price 

1 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $ $ 

2 SWPPP (Straw Waddles) 58 LF $ $ 

3 Orange Plastic Safety Fencing 144 LF $ $ 

3 Turbidity Curtain 190 LF $ $ 

4 Excavation & Dewatering 1 LS $ $ 

5 Concrete Work 1 LS $ $ 

6 
Furnish and Place 3” –  6” 
Rock Cobble 

1 TON $ $ 

7 Dock Component Install 1 LS $ $ 

8 Install Project Credit Sign 1 LS $ $ 

9 
Install parking signs, 
pavement markings, and 
parking bumper 

1 LS $ $ 

TOTAL SITE WORK BID AMOUNT $ 

 
BID TOTAL (IN NUMBERS):  $ ________________________________________________________ 
 
BID TOTAL (IN WORDS): ____________________________________________________________ 
 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

Fabrication of Dock Components Bid 
Scope of work includes but not limited to: Design of dock, gangway and other components, prepartion 
of detailed shop drawings, Fabrication of boarding float (dock), gangway, struts, cable bracing, hook 
and shackle attchment to abutment, transition plate, abutment and gangway guardrails, kayak loading 
device, Shipping FOB jobsite fully insured to Diaz Lake, and all Sales Tax for Lone Pine, CA at 7.75% 

Item 
No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price 

Total 
Price 

1 
All components listed in scope-of-
work 

1 LS $ $ 

2 Shipping FOB jobsite, fully insured 1 LS $ $ 

3 Sales tax @ 7.75% 1 LS $ $ 

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT: $ 

 
BID TOTAL (IN NUMBERS):  $ ________________________________________________________ 
 
BID TOTAL (IN WORDS): ____________________________________________________________ 
 

Project Credit Sign Bid 

Design, prepare detailed shop drawings and proof for approval, structural design, specifications, 
fabrication shipping FOB jobsite fully-insured, Sales tax Lone Pine, CA 7.75% 

Item 
No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price 

Total 
Price 

1 Fabrication 1 LS $ $ 

2 Shipping FOB jobsite 1 LS $ $ 

3 Sales tax 7.75% 1 LS $ $ 

TOTAL CREDIT SIGN BID AMOUNT: $ 

 
BID TOTAL (IN NUMBERS):  $ ________________________________________________________ 
 
BID TOTAL (IN WORDS): ____________________________________________________________ 
 

  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

Combined All Scopes Bid 

Item 
No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price 

Total 
Price 

1 Total Site Work Scope 1 LS $ $ 

2 Total Dock Fabrication Scope 1 LS $ $ 

3 Total Project Credit Sign Scope 1 LS $ $ 

TOTAL COMBINED BID AMOUNT: $ 

 
BID TOTAL (IN NUMBERS):  $ ________________________________________________________ 
 
BID TOTAL (IN WORDS): ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
No provision in this section is intended or shall be construed to alter the terms and conditions specified 
in the Contract Documents for payment of any amounts in the event the Project contract is awarded to 
Bidder pursuant to this Bid. 
 
3.  INCLUSION OF ALL COSTS.  This Bid includes all costs for all labor, materials, tools, taxes, 
insurance, transportation, and other related supplies and services to perform all services and provide all 
materials as required by, and in accordance with, the Contract Documents for the Project. 
 
4.  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The Contract Documents shall constitute the Contract between the 
parties, which will come into full force and effect upon acceptance, approval, and execution by the Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors. The Contract Documents are complementary and are incorporated herein 
by reference and made a part hereof with like force and effect as if all of said documents were set forth 
in full herein.  The Contract Documents include all documents defined as "Contract Documents" in the 
Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated May 2020. 
 
5.  ACCEPTANCE County reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, or part of any Bid, to postpone 
the scheduled Bid deadline date(s), to make an award in its own best interest, and to waive any 
irregularities or technicalities that do not significantly affect or alter the substance of an otherwise 
responsible Bid and that would not affect a Bidder’s ability to perform the work adequately as specified.  
However, this Bid shall remain open and shall not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days 
after the date designated in the Notice Inviting Bids for publicly opening this Bid.  If Bidder receives 
written notice of the award of the Project Contract to Bidder on or before the sixtieth day, Bidder shall 
execute the Contract and deliver to County the executed Contract and all of the bonds, certificates and/or 
endorsements of insurance coverage, and other required documents no later than fifteen (15) calendar 
days after the date on which Bidder receives such notice. 
 
This solicitation in no way obligates County to award a Bid Contract described herein, nor will County 
assume any liability for the costs incurred in the preparation and transmittal of Bids in response to this 
solicitation.  County reserves the right to not accept any Bid, to reject any or all Bids, to reject any part 
of any Bid proposal, to negotiate and modify any Bid, and to waive any defects or irregularities in any 
Bid at County’s sole discretion.  Furthermore, County shall have the sole discretion to award a Bid 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

Contract as it may deem appropriate to best serve the interests of County.  In this regard, County may 
consider demonstrated quality of work, responsiveness, comparable experience, professional 
qualifications, references, and proposed fees.  Awards will not be based on cost alone.  County does not 
guarantee a minimum or maximum dollar value for any Contract(s) resulting from this solicitation. 
 
If the Contract Documents require or permit this Bid to include two or more Alternates, County reserves 
the right to award the Contract for that Alternate which County, in its sole discretion, determines at the 
time of award to be in County's best interest. 
 
6.  TIME OF COMPLETION.  The Bidder further specifically agrees to complete all the work no later 
than the Time for Completion specified in the Contract Special Provisions.  
 
7.  ADDENDA.  The Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda and has provided for all 
Addenda changes in this Bid. 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 (Fill in Addendum numbers and dates Addenda have been received.   
   If none have been received, enter "NONE".) 
 

WARNING:  IF AN ADDENDUM OR ADDENDA HAVE BEEN ISSUED BY THE COUNTY 
AND NOT NOTED ABOVE AS BEING RECEIVED BY THE BIDDER, THIS BID MAY BE 
REJECTED. 
 

8.  BIDDER'S BUSINESS INFORMATION.  Bidder provides the following information concerning 
its business: 
 
Bidder's Name:             
 
Address:             
 
                             Zip Code     
      (The above address will be used to send notices or requests for additional information.) 
 
Telephone:  (      )           
 
Federal Identification No.:          
 
Contractor's License No.:        State:     
 
Classification: _____________    Expiration Date: ____________ 
 
Type of Business (check one): 
 
Individual (    ), Partnership (    ), Joint Venture (    ) 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

 
Corporation (    ), Other (Specify) :        (   ) 
 
Owners, Officers, Partners, or Other Authorized Representatives: 
 
IMPORTANT NOTICE:  If bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name of 
corporation above and list below, names of the president, secretary, treasurer, and chief executive 
officer/manager thereof; if a partnership, joint venture, or other business entity, state true name of firm 
above and list below, names of all partners, joint venturers, or for other entities, parties having authority 
to act on behalf of the entity, such as officers, owners, directors; if bidder or other interested person is an 
individual, state first, middle, and last names in full above and write "N/A" below. 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
9. PROPOSAL GUARANTEE.  As security for the Bid, this Bid includes one of the following 
proposal guarantee instruments (the "Proposal Guarantee"), in the amount required by this section, as 
checked:  
 
 (a) ____ Bid Bond from a corporate surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California; 

or 
 
 (b) ____ Cashier's Check or Certified Check, made payable to the County of Inyo, attached to the 

form entitled Cashier's or Certified Check; or 
 
 (c) ____ Cash, in legal tender of the United States of America, enclosed in a separate 
  envelope marked " Cash Proposal Guarantee". 
 
The Proposal Guarantee is in the amount of Ten Percent (10%) of the total amount of the Bid.  If the 
Contract Documents require or permit this Bid to include two or more Alternates, the amount of the 
Proposal Guarantee must not be less than Ten Percent (10%) of the amount of the bid total submitted for 
the alternate having the highest total bid amount.  Only one form of Proposal Guarantee may be 
submitted with each Bid. 
 
Bidder hereby agrees that County shall be entitled to payment by forfeiture of the Proposal Guarantee if 
County awards the Project Contract to Bidder, but Bidder fails or refuses to execute the Contract and/or 
furnish all of the bonds, certificates and/or endorsements of insurance coverage, and other required 
documents no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date on which Bidder receives notice of the 
award from County. 
 
10.  BID PROTEST.  Dispute Relating to Bid Process and Award 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

In the event a dispute arises concerning the bid process prior to the award of the contract, the part 
wishing resolution of the dispute shall submit an appeal request in writing to the County Director of 
Purchasing.  Bidder may appeal the recommended award or denial of award, provided the following 
stipulations are met: 
 

1. Only a bidder who has actually submitted a Bid Proposal is eligible to submit an appeal 
request/bid protest against another bidder.  Subcontractors are not eligible to submit bid protests.  
A bidder may not rely on the bid protest submitted by another bidder, but must timely pursue its 
own protest. 
 

2. Appeal must be in writing.  The appeal must contain a complete statement of the basis for the 
protest and all supporting documentation.  Materials submitted after the Bid Protest Deadline 
will not be considered.  The protest must refer to the specific portion or portions of the Contract 
Documents upon which the protest is based.  The protest must include the name, address and 
telephone number of the person representing the protesting bidder if different from the protesting 
bidder. 
 

3. A copy of the protest and all supporting documents must also be transmitted by fax or by e-mail, 
by or before the Bid Protest Deadline, to the protested bidder and any other bidder who has a 
reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest. 
 

4. Must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the recommended award or denial 
of award letters. 
 

5. An appeal of a denial of award can only be brought on the following grounds: 
 

a. Failure to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements specified in the Bid 
Package or any addenda or amendments. 
 

b. There has been a violation of conflict of interest as provided by California Government 
Code Section 87100 et seq. 
 

c. A violation of State or Federal Law. 
 

6. Appeals will not be accepted for any other reasons than those stated above.  All appeals must be 
sent to: 

 
 
 
Denelle Carrington 
County of Inyo 
Purchasing Department 
224 N. Edwards St. 
Independence, CA 93526 
 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Proposal Forms 

County’s Purchasing Director shall make a decision concerning the appeal, and notify the Proposer 
making the appeal, within a reasonable time frame prior to the tentatively scheduled date for awarding 
the contract.  The decision of County’s Purchasing Director shall be deemed final. 
 
11.  ADDITIONAL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS.  Bidder agrees that, in addition to the Proposal 
Guarantee, Bidder is required to submit, as a part of this Bid, the following forms properly completed, 
and signed as required, all of which accompany this Bid Proposal Form and are incorporated herein by 
this reference: 
 
  (1)   Designation of Subcontractors (Public Contract Code section 4100 et seq.) 
  (2)   Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity (Government Code section 12900 et seq., 

sections 11135-11139.5) 
  (3)   Contractor's Labor Code Certification (Labor Code section 3700) 
  (4)   Contractor and Subcontractor Dept. of Industrial Relations (DIR) Registration (Labor Code 

section 1725.5) 
  (5)   Non-Collusion Affidavit (Public Contract Code Section 7106) 
  (6)   Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire 
  (7)   Public Contract Code Statement (Section 10232) 
  (8)   Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts) 
  (9)   Small Business Enterprise Final Report of Utilization of Small Business Enterprise 
 
12. DEFINITIONS.  The definition and meaning of the words used in this Bid Proposal Form are the 
same as set forth in Section 1070, "Abbreviations, Symbols and Definitions," of the Standard 
Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated May 2020. 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY DECLARES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY ACCORDING TO 
THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, THAT THE STATEMENTS, DESIGNATIONS, 
CERTIFICATIONS, AND REPRESENTATIONS MADE IN THIS BID PROPOSAL, INCLUDING 
ALL ATTACHMENTS, ARE TRUE AND CORRECT AND HE OR SHE IS THE INDIVIDUAL, 
MANAGING PARTNER, CORPORATE OFFICER, OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVE, DULY 
AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO MAKE THIS BID ON BEHALF OF BIDDER, AND BY SIGNING 
BELOW, MAKES THIS BID ON BEHALF OF BIDDER ACCORDING TO ALL OF THE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH OR INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN. 
 
________________________________       _____________________________ 
(Signature of Authorized Person)   (Date) 
 
________________________________       _____________________________ 
(Printed Name)     (Printed Title)



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Bond 

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 
 

BID BOND 
(BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE) 

 
 
(Not required if a certified or cashier's check or a cash deposit accompanies the bid as a proposal 
guarantee) 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That we, 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Bidder) 
 
as Principal, and ___________________________________________________ 

(Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
as Corporate Surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California, are held and firmly 
bound unto the County of Inyo, State of California, in the sum of _____________________ 
 ________________________________dollars  ($____________________) for the 
payment whereof we hereby bind ourselves, our successors, heirs, executors, and administrators, 
jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that whereas the above bounded Principal is 
about to submit to the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo a bid for the construction of 
the DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT, in compliance with the Contract therefore: 
 
Now, if the bid of the Principal shall be accepted and the Contract awarded to the Principal by 
said Board of Supervisors, and if the Principal shall fail or neglect to enter into the Contract there 
for in accordance with the terms of the Principal's bid and the terms set forth in the Bid Package, 
or to furnish the required Faithful Performance and Labor and Material Payment Bonds, 
certificates of insurance, and other required documents, to the satisfaction of the Board of 
Supervisors of said County, no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the Principal has 
received notice from the County that the Contract has been awarded to the Principal, then the 
sum guaranteed by this Bond is forfeited to the County of Inyo. 
 
  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Bond 

It is expressly agreed and understood that any errors, clerical, mathematical, or otherwise, in the 
bid shall not be or constitute a defense to a forfeiture of this Bond, except as provided by law. 
 
 
WITNESS our hands and seals this ________ day of ________________ , 20 ____ A.D. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
             Principal 
                        
    (SEAL)           By: _______________________________  
           (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
       (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
             Surety 
 
    (SEAL)           By: _______________________________ 
          (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
       (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
NOTE: 
 
THE SIGNATURES OF THE PRINCIPAL (BIDDER) AND THE SURETY MUST EACH 
BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTHER OFFICER 
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW) AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.  The Bid Bond must be executed on this form by a 
corporate surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California.  No substitutions will be 
accepted.  If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged statement from the surety 
appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds in such amounts on behalf 
of the surety, must accompany the Bid Bond. 
 
ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT: 
 
 County of Inyo (Attn.: Public Works Director) 
 224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N 
 Independence, California 93526
 
 

 
 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Bond 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 

 
 
 

CASHIER'S OR CERTIFIED CHECK 
(BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE) 

 
 

(Not required if Bid Bond accompanies the bid as a proposal guarantee) 
 
 
A cashier's or certified check in the amount required as a proposal guarantee for the Bid and 
made payable to the County of Inyo is attached below: 
 
 
 
 
 
[                                                                                                                                                   ] 
 
 
 

ATTACH   CHECK   HERE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[                                                                                                                                                   ] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bidder (print name) : __________________________________________________ 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Designation of Subcontractors 

 
DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

 
 
 
In compliance with the provisions of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act 
(Section 4100 et. seq. of the Public Contract Code of the State of California), the undersigned 
bidder has set forth below the full name, and the location of the place of business of each 
Subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the Prime Contractor in or 
about the construction of the work or improvement, or a Subcontractor licensed by the State of 
California who, under subcontract to the Prime Contractor, specifically fabricates and installs a 
portion of the work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the Plans and 
Specifications to which the attached bid is responsive, and the portion of the work which will be 
done by each Subcontractor for each subcontract in excess of one-half of one percent of the 
Prime Contractor's total bid, or $10,000.00, whichever is greater. 
 
The Bidder understands that if he fails to specify a Subcontractor for any portion of the work to 
be performed under the Contract in excess of one-half of one percent of his bid, or $10,000.00, 
whichever is greater, he shall be deemed to have agreed to perform such portion himself, and that 
he shall not be permitted to sublet or subcontract that portion of the work except in cases of 
public emergency or necessity, and then only after a finding, produced to writing as a public 
record of the Awarding Authority, setting forth the facts constituting the emergency or necessity.  
If no Subcontractors are to be employed on the project, enter the word "none". 
 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

DESCRIPTION  
OF WORK 

% OF 
TOTAL 

CONTRACT 

SUBCONTRACTOR’S 
LICENSE TYPE, NUMBER, 

EXPIRATION DATE 

NAME, ADDRESS,  
PHONE NUMBER 

  
 

   

  
 

   

 
 

    

 
 
 
________________________________       __________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person)                     (Title) 
 
 
________________________________       __________________________  
 (Printed Name)                                               (Date) 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Certifications 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 

OPPORTUNITY 
(Government Code Section 12900 et seq., Sections 11135-11139.5) 

 
DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 

 
During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall not 
unlawfully deny the Contract's benefits to any person, nor shall any person be unlawfully 
subjected to discrimination under the contract and its performance, on the basis of religion, color, 
ethnic group identification, gender, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor and its 
subcontractors shall not discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, 
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, or gender. The Contractor shall insure 
that the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free from such 
discrimination. 
 
The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code, Section 12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Sections 7285.0 et seq.), the Provisions of Article 
9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Government Code, 
Sections 11135-11139.5). 
 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to 
labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement. 
 
The Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in 
all subcontracts to perform work under the Contract. 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Title of Signer) 
 
 
______________________________                                _____________________ 
         Signature                                                                                 Date 
 
 
Company Name          ____________________________________   
 
Business Address        ____________________________________ 
 
                                      ____________________________________ 

 
 
 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Certifications 

CONTRACTOR’S LABOR CODE CERTIFICATION 
(Labor Code Section 3700 et seq.) 

 
DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 

 
I am aware of the provisions of Sections 3700 and following of the Labor Code, which requires 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions 
before commencing the performance of the work of this contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
     (Name and Title of Signer) 
 
 
 
______________________________               _____________________ 
         Signature                                     Date 
 
 
 
Company Name          ____________________________________ 
 
Business Address      ____________________________________ 
 
                                    ____________________________________ 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Certifications 

 
CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 

With 
CA Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) 

(CA LABOR CODE SECTION 1725.5) 
 
 
Bidder hereby certifies that they, and all subcontractors listed on the submitted Bid Form 
documents, are Registered with the CA Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to 
requirements of CA Labor Code Section 1725.5 and will comply with all requirements as 
noted in the aforementioned CA Labor Code Section. 
 
           

Signed Name     Date 
 
 
      
  Printed Name 
 
 
      

CA DIR Registration No. 
 
 
 
 

  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Certifications 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
(Public Contract Code Section 7106) 

(Code of Civil Procedure Section 2015.5) 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA: 
 
COUNTY OF _________: 
 
 
I, ____________________________________, declare that I hold the office or position of 
_______________________________________ of ________________________________, the 
party making the foregoing bid, that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any 
undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid 
is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or 
solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly 
colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or 
that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or 
indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price 
of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, 
or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the 
contract to anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are 
true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or 
any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged any fee to any corporation, 
partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent 
thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid. 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct. 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 (Name and Title of Signer) 
 
______________________________              _____________________ 
 Signature                                                               Date 
 
 
Company Name          ____________________________________ 
 
Business Address        ____________________________________ 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Certifications 

 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10162 QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 

 
 
In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10162, the Bidder shall complete, under 
penalty of perjury, the following questionnaire: 
 
 
Has the Bidder, any officer of the Bidder, or any employee of the Bidder who has a proprietary 
interest in the Bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on, 
or completing a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or a 
safety regulation: 
 
 
  Yes _______________      No ________________ 
 
 
If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By bidder's signature on the Bid Proposal Form, Bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury under 
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing statements in accordance with Public 
Contract Code Section 10162 are true and correct. 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Bid Certifications 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE STATEMENT (SECTION 10232) 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 
In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10232, the Contractor hereby states under 
penalty of perjury, that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a 
federal court has been issued against the Contractor within the immediately preceding two year 
period because of the Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a federal court which orders 
the Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. 
 
By Bidder's signature on the Bid Proposal Form, Bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury under 
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing statements in accordance with Public 
Contract Code Section 10232 are true and correct. 
 

 

           
   (Name and Title of Signer) 
 
           
         Signature        Date 
 
 
Company Name         
 
Business Address         
 
           



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Inyo County Ordinance 1156 

 

LOCAL BUSINESS PREFERENCES  
INYO COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 1156 

 
DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT

 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Inyo County Ordinance 1156 

 

 

 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Inyo County Ordinance 1156 

 

 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Small Business Enterprises Commitment 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE COMMITMENT (CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS) 
 

NOTE:  PLEASE REFER TO INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDE/NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM 
 
 
  Department:  Inyo County Public Works Department                ______________               LOCATION:  Lone Pine, CA_____________________ 
 
  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: ____DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT           __               _____________________ 
 
  TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: $_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  BID OPENING DATE:_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  BIDDER'S COMPANY NAME:__________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

 
BID  ITEM NO. 

 

 
ITEM OF WORK AND DESCRIPTION 

OR SERVICES TO BE 
SUBCONTRACTED OR MATERIALS 

TO BE  PROVIDED 

 
LICENSE INFO./CERT. 

No. of  LOCAL AND 
SMALL BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE AND 

EXPIRATION 
DATE 

 
NAME AND CONTACT 

INFORMATION FOR  LOCAL 
AND SMALL BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE  
(Must be certified on the date bids 

are opened) 

 
DOLLAR AMOUNT 

LOCAL AND SMALL 
BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

For Inyo County to Complete: 
 
 Project Number:  ____ TR-16-039____________________________ 
 
 Financing Type:   
 
 Contract Award Date:  _________________________________________________ 

 
Total Claimed 
Participation 

 

 
 $______________ 
 
 
   _____________% 

 Checked by: 
 
 
________________________           __________________________     ___________ 
 Print Name                                               Signature                                         Date 
 
 

 

 
_______________________________ 
Signature of Bidder 
 
_______________________________ 
Date                                   (Area Code) Tel. No. 
 
_______________________________ 
Person to Contact              (Please Type or Print) 
 

 
 
 

 
Small Business Enterprise (Rev  5/10) 

 
 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Small Business Enterprises Commitment 

INSTRUCTIONS – Small Business Enterprise Commitment (CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS) (05/10) 
 

ALL BIDDERS: 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  It is the bidder’s responsibility to verify that the Small Business Enterprise (SBE) 
subcontractors are certified by the proper certifying authorities, and submit evidence of that certification 
with the bid.  If a SBE prime contractor is not certified on the date of the bid opening, the SBE prime 
contractor will not qualify for the contracting preference.  If the SBE subcontractor or subcontractors are 
not certified on the date of bid opening, that portion of that firm’s participation will not count toward the 
minimum ten percent of the monetary value of the work needed to qualify for the contracting preference. 
 
The form requires specific information regarding the construction contract: Total Contract Amount, Bid Opening 
Date, and Bidder’s Name. 
 
Indicate the appropriate bid item number (or numbers); Item of Work and description or services to be 
subcontracted or materials to be provided by the SBE; the SBE’s business license information/expiration date, 
certification number and its expiration date; the SBE’s contact information, including company and contact name, 
address, and telephone number; and the dollar amount expected to be paid to the SBE.     
 
IMPORTANT:  Identify all SBE firms participating in the project regardless of tier, including the prime 
contractor, if an SBE.  Names of the First Tier SBE Subcontractors and their respective item(s) of work listed 
should be consistent, where applicable, with the names and items of work in the "List of Subcontractors" 
submitted with your bid.  Provide copies of the SBEs’ quotes, and if applicable, a copy of joint venture 
agreements pursuant to the Subcontractors Listing Law and the Special Provisions. 
 
There is a column for the total SBE dollar amount.  Enter the Total Claimed SBE Participation dollars and 
percentage amount of items of work submitted with your bid pursuant to the special provisions.  (If 100% of item 
is not to be performed or furnished by the SBE, describe exact portion of time to be performed or furnished by the 
SBE.)   
 
This form must be submitted with the bid if the bidder is attempting to qualify for the SBE contracting preference.  
If the bidder is not attempting to qualify for the SBE contracting preference the form does not need to be 
submitted. 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Small Business Enterprises Commitment 

FINAL REPORT – UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 
(SBE), FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS 

 
PROJECT: DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK 
PROJECT 

     CONTRACT COMPLETION DATE 

PRIME CONTRACTOR  BUSINESS ADDRESS ESTIMATED CONTRACT AMOUNT 

 
BID 

ITEM NO. 

SUBCONTRACTOR NAME, 
BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND 

PHONE 
 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED 

 
 

SBE 
CERT. 

NUMBER 

CONTRACT PAYMENTS DATE 
WORK 

COMPLETE 

 
DATE OF 

FINAL 
PAYMENT NON-SBE SBE 

    

$ $ 
 

 

    

$ $ 
 

 

    

$ $ 
 

 

    

$ $ 
 

 

    

$ $ 
 

 

    

$ $ 
 

 

    

$ $ 
 

 

   

TOTAL $ $ 
 

 

(i) Original 
Commitment 

 
$                                    
 

  

2) I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT 
CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIVES SIGNATURE  BUSINESS PHONE 

NUMBER 
 DATE  

4) TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT 
RESIDENT ENGINEER’S SIGNATURE  BUSINESS PHONE 

NUMBER 
 DATE  

      To be completed by the contractor and submitted to the Resident Engineer upon project completion



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Utilization of Small Business Enterprises 

Instruction for Final Report Form 

INSTRUCTIONS - FINAL REPORT – UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISES (SBE), FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

The form requires specific information regarding the construction project, including the prime 
contractor name and address, contract completion date, and estimated contract amount.  The objective 
of the form is to describe who did what by bid item numbers and description, asking for specific 
dollar values of item work completed broken down by subcontractors who performed the work, SBE 
and non-SBE work forces.  SBE prime contractors are required to show the date of work performed 
by their own forces along with the corresponding dollar value of work. 
 
Indicate appropriate bid item number or numbers, a description of work performed or materials 
provided, and subcontractor name and address.  For those firms who are SBE, enter the SBE 
certification number.  The SBE shall provide their certification number to the contractor and notify the 
contractor in writing with the date of decertification if their status changes during the course of the 
project. 
 
The form has two columns for the dollar value to be entered for the item work performed by the 
subcontractor.  The non-SBE column is used to enter the dollar value of work performed by firms who 
are not certified SBEs.  Enter the dollar value of work performed by firms who are SBEs in the SBE 
column. 
 
If the prime contractor or a subcontractor performing work as a SBE on the project becomes decertified 
and still performs work after their decertification date, enter the total value performed by the 
contractor/subcontractor under the appropriate SBE identification column. 
 
If the prime contractor or a subcontractor performing work as a non-SBE on the project becomes 
certified as a SBE, enter the dollar value of all work performed after certification as a SBE under the 
appropriate SBE identification column. 
 

Enter the total of each column on the form.  Any changes to SBE certification must also be 
submitted on the SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE) CERTIFICATION STATUS 
CHANGE FORM 
 

 



 

 

 

CONTRACT 
AND 

BOND FORMS 
FOR 

 
 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Lone Pine, CA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
 

Contract 
Faithful Performance Bond 
Labor and Material Payment Bond 
Insurance Requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 1 of 13 
  05102019 

CONTRACT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF INYO  
and 

______________________________________________, CONTRACTOR 

for the 

Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock PROJECT 

  
 THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and 
made and entered into effective, ___________________, 20_____, by and between the COUNTY 
OF INYO, a political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as 
"COUNTY"), and _______________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as 
“CONTRACTOR”), for the construction or removal of the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock 
PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), which parties agree, for and in consideration 
of the mutual promises, as follows: 
 
1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED.  CONTRACTOR  shall furnish, at his/her own 
expense, all labor, materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery, equipment, 
transportation, permits, services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions and otherwise 
shall perform all work necessary or appurtenant to construct the Project in accordance with the 
Special Provisions, which are incorporated herein by reference per section 4(c) of this Contract, 
within the Time for Completion set forth, as well as in all other in the Contract Documents, for: 
     
  Title:  DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 
2. TIME OF COMPLETION.  Project work shall begin within _____ calendar days after 
receipt of the Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and 
shall continue until all requested services are completed.  Said services shall be completed no later 
than the Time of Completion as noted in the Project’s Special Provisions. Procedures for any 
extension of time shall be complied with as noted in the Project’s Special Provisions. 
 
3. PAYMENT/CONSIDERATION.  For the performance of all such work, COUNTY 
shall pay to CONTRACTOR for said work the total amount of: 
__________________________________________________ dollars ($                             .       ), 
adjusted by such increases or decreases as authorized in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, and payable at such times and upon such conditions as otherwise set forth in the 
Contract Documents. 
 
4. ALL PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN.  CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that 
this Contract shall include and consist of:  
  a.   All of the provisions set forth expressly herein;  
  b. The Bid Proposal Form, the Faithful Performance Bond, and the Labor and 
Materials Payment Bond, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this 
reference; and  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 2 of 13 
  05102019 

 c. All of the other Contract Documents, as described in Section 5-1.02, 
“Definitions,” of the Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated 
October, 2015, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part of this Contract by this 
reference, including without limitation, the Bid Package, the Standard Specifications of the Inyo 
County Public Works Department, dated October, 2015, and the Special Provisions concerning 
this Project including the Appendices, the Plans, any and all amendments or changes to any of the 
above-listed documents, including, without limitation, contract change orders, and any and all 
documents incorporated by reference into any of the above-listed documents.  

 
5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  Contractor represents that he/she is qualified and 
licensed to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract.  County relies upon the 
representations of Contractor regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and ability to 
perform the services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract.  Acceptance of work by 
the County does not operate to release Contractor from any responsibility to perform work to 
professional and/or trade standards. Contractor shall provide properly skilled professional and 
technical personnel to perform all services under this Contract.  Contractor shall perform all 
services required by this Contract in a manner and according to the standards observed by a 
competent practitioner of the profession.  All work products of whatsoever nature delivered to the 
County shall be prepared in a manner conforming to the standards of quality normally observed 
by a person practicing in Contractor’s profession and/or trade. 
 
6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  Nothing contained herein or any document executed 
in connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership or joint 
venture relationship between County and Contractor, nor to allow County to exercise discretion or 
control over the manner in which Contractor performs the work or services that are the subject 
matter of this Contract; provided, however, the work or services to be provided by Contractor shall 
be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the County’s objectives in entering this Contract.  

 
 Contractor is an independent contractor, not an employee of County or any of its 
subsidiaries or affiliates.  Contractor will not represent him/herself to be nor hold her/himself out 
as an employee of County. Contractor acknowledges that s/he shall not have the right or 
entitlement in or to any of the pension, retirement or other benefit programs now or hereafter 
available to County's employees.  The consideration set forth in Paragraph 3 shall be the sole 
consideration due Contractor for the services rendered hereunder. It is understood that County will 
not withhold any amounts for payment of taxes from the Contractor‘s compensation hereunder.  
Any and all sums due under any applicable state, federal or municipal law or union or professional 
and/or trade guild regulations shall be Contractor’s sole responsibility. Contractor shall indemnify 
and hold County harmless from any and all damages, claims and expenses arising out of or 
resulting from any claims asserted by any  third party, including but not limited to a taxing 
authority, as a result of or in connection with payments due it from Contractor’s compensation.  
 
7. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING.  The parties recognize that a substantial 
inducement to County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation, experience and 
competence of Contractor.  Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or obligations of the 
Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the express consent of the County.  
Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract 
without the written authorization of the County.  If County consents to such subcontract, 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 3 of 13 
  05102019 

Contractor shall be fully responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor.  
Nothing in this Contract shall create any contractual relationship between County and 
subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the County to pay any monies due 
to any such subcontractor, unless otherwise required by law. 

 
8. CLAIMS RESOLUTION.  Pursuant to Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code, any 
and all claims submitted by Contractor to County will follow the provisions as set forth in the 
Project’s Special Provisions. 

 
9. INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and 
its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, including attorney fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein, and 
including damage and/or pollution to waterways, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act 
or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any 
of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active 
negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County. 
 
The Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the Department of Parks and 
Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways, its officers, agents and employees from any and 
all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, 
laborers and any other person, firm, entity or corporation furnishing or supplying work services, 
materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of this Agreement, and/or from any and 
all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, entity  or corporation who may be 
injured or damaged by Grantee in the performance of this Contract. 
 
10. INSURANCE.  For the duration of this Agreement, Contractor shall procure and maintain 
insurance of the scope and amount specified in Attachment 3 and with the provisions specified in 
that attachment. 
 
11. POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the 
meaning of the Political Reform Act because Contractor: 

a.    Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition of 
information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control and direction of the 
County or of any County official, other than normal Contract monitoring; and 

b. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of 
information, advice, recommendation or counsel [FPPC Reg. 18700(a)(2)]. 
 
12. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.   

Performance Standards:  Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession and/or 
trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and regulations 
that relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.   

a. Safety Training:  
i. Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as needed to assure work 

will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a language" that is understandable to 
employees receiving the training.  The training shall in all respects be in compliance with 
CAL OSHA;  and  

ii. Contractor working with employees shall maintain a written Injury and Illness 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 4 of 13 
  05102019 

Prevention (IIP) Program, a copy of which must be maintained at each worksite or at a 
central worksite identified for the employees, if the Contractor has non-fixed worksites; 
and 

iii. Contractor using subcontractors with the approval of the County to perform the 
work which is the subject of this Contract shall require each subcontractor working with 
employees to comply with the requirements of this section. 
b. Child, Family and Spousal Support reporting Obligations:  

i. Contractor shall comply with the state and federal child, family and spousal 
support reporting requirements and with all lawfully served wage and earnings assignment 
orders or notices of assignment relating to child, family and spousal support obligations. 
c. Nondiscrimination: 

i. Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or 
allow harassment against any employee who is employed in the work covered by such 
contracts or against any applicant for such employment because of sex, sexual orientation, 
race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV 
and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (cancer), age, marital status, genetic 
information, gender, gender identity, gender expression, military or veteran status and 
denial of family care leave, and that such provisions shall include, but not be limited to:  
employment, upgrading, promotion or transfer, recruitment, or recruitment advertising, 
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for 
training including apprenticeship.  

ii. Contractor represents that it is in compliance with federal and state laws 
prohibiting discrimination in employment and agrees to stay in compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. sections 12101, et. seq.), Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title VII (42 U.S.C. 
2000, et. seq.), the California Fair Employment Housing Act (California Government 
Code sections 12900, et. seq.) and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto. 
d. Air Pollution and Environmental: 

i. Contractor shall comply with all air pollution and environmental control 
rules, regulation, ordinances and statutes which apply to the Project and any work 
performed pursuant to this Contract. 

 
13. LICENSES.  Contractor represents and warrants to County that it has all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required 
of Contractor to practice its trade and/or profession. Contractor represents and warrants to County 
that Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the 
term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals which are legally required of 
Contractor to practice its and/or profession.  
 
14. PREVAILING WAGE.  Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code, 
Contractor agrees to comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which this 
Contract is subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by 
the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the 
Department publication entitled "General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the project 
is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the 
State Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in said publication. Such 
rates of wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 5 of 13 
  05102019 

the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and are available to any interested party upon 
request.  Contractor agrees to comply with County and the Department of Industrial Relations 
regulations in submitting the certified payroll. 
 
15. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE. This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State 
of California.  The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of 
California for the County of Inyo. 
 
16. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 
communication that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 
and either served personally or sent prepaid, first class mail.  Any such notice, demand, et cetera, 
shall be addressed to the other party at the address set forth herein below.  Either party may change 
its address by notifying the other party of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed 
communicated within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this section. 

 
If to County:  County of Inyo 

                     Public Works Department 
   Attn: __________________________ 

       168 N. Edwards 
   PO Drawer Q 
   Independence, CA 93526 
 

If to Contractor: ___________________________ 
    ___________________________ 
    ___________________________ 
    ___________________________ 

 
17. AMENDMENTS.  This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written 
document executed by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by Inyo County 
Counsel. 
 
18. WAIVER.  No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder.   
 
19. TERMINATION.  This Contract may be terminated for the reasons stated below: 

a.    Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities under 
this Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the other 
party or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract.  If termination for cause 
is given by either party to the other and it is later determined that the other party was 
not in default or default was excusable, then the notice of termination shall be deemed 
to have been given without cause pursuant to paragraph “b” of this section; or 

b.    By either party without cause upon fifteen (15) days' written notice of 
termination.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for 
services performed up to the effective date of termination; or 

c.    By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding 
ending or being materially decreased during the term of this Contract.  

 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 6 of 13 
  05102019 

20. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence for every provision. 
 
21. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect 
and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated. 
 
22. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.  It is 
understood and agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors upon Notice and Public Hearing.  In the event that the Board 
of Supervisors declines to enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that there is, 
in fact, no binding agreement, either written or oral, between the parties herein. 
 
23. ATTACHMENTS.  All attachments referred to are incorporated herein and made a 
part of this Contract.  
 
24. EXECUTION.  This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall constitute one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties.  In 
approving this Contract, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such 
counterpart.   

 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract, including the Contract Documents and all 
other documents which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and 
exclusive agreement between the County and Contractor.  All prior written and oral 
communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are 
superseded in total by this Contract.   
 
26. ACCESS TO WORKSITE. The Department of Parks and Recreation, Division of 
Boating and Waterways and its agents may, at any and all reasonable times during the term of this 
Agreement, enter the Project Area for purposes of inspecting the Project Area 
 

---o0o--- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR have each caused this Contract to be 
executed on its behalf by its duly authorized representative, effective as of the day and year first 
above written. 
 
COUNTY      CONTRACTOR 
 
COUNTY OF INYO           
 
By:        By:       
 
Name:        Name:       
 
Title:        Title:       
 
Dated:        Dated:       
 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 7 of 13 
  05102019 

        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:        
        
_________________________________    
County Counsel 
        
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:   
                                
__________________________________              
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
 
__________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 8 of 13 
  05102019 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

________________________________________ PROJECT 
 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
(100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That                           

         as Principal, hereinafter “Contractor,”  
 (Name of Contractor) 
and                  

 (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 

as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the County of Inyo  
as Obligee, hereinafter called County, in the amount of                
         dollars ($                _______   .  _    ), for the 
payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assignees, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor has, by written Contract, dated ____________________, 20____, entered 
into an Contract with the County for the Construction of the _______________________   
_________________PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "Project"), to be constructed in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract for the Project, which contract 
is by reference incorporated herein and is hereinafter referred to as the "Contract.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if Contractor shall 
promptly and faithfully perform said Contract, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise 
it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
The Surety hereby waives notice of any alteration or extension of time made by the County. 
 
Whenever Contractor shall be, and is declared by County to be, in default under the Contract, the 
County having performed Owner's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the 
default, or shall promptly either: 
 1. Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or, 
 
 2. Obtain a Bid or Bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and   
  conditions, and upon determination by Surety of the lowest responsible Bidder, or if 

the County elects, upon determination by the County and the Surety jointly of the 
lowest responsible Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and County, 
and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a 
succession of defaults under the Contract or contracts of completion arranged under 
this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the balance of the 
Contract price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the 
Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 9 of 13 
  05102019 

term "balance of the Contract price", as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total 
amount payable by County to Contractor under the Contract and any amendments 
thereto, less the amount properly paid by County to Contractor. 

 
Any suit under this Bond must be instituted before the expiration of two (2) years from the date 
on which final payment under the Contract falls due, or the date on which any warranty or 
guarantee period expires, whichever is later. 
 
No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other 
than the County named herein. 
 

---o0o--- 
  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 10 of 13 
  05102019 

Signed and sealed this ______ day of _________________, 20 _____. 

 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
         (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
       ____________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
           (Name of Contractor) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL)                              
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
NOTE:  THE SIGNATURES OF THE CONTRACTOR AND THE SURETY MUST 
EACH BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTHER OFFICER 
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW) AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.  
The Faithful Performance Bond must be executed by a corporate surety on this form. No 
substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged 
statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds 
in such amounts on behalf of the surety must accompany the Faithful Performance Bond. 
 
ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT: 
     County of Inyo 
     224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N 
     Independence, California 93526 
 
  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 11 of 13 
  05102019 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
DUAL OBLIGEE RIDER 

 
This DUAL OBLIGEE RIDER is to be attached to and become part of Faithful Performance 
Bond No. ________________, dated _______________________, issued by    
    , as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called Surety, on behalf of 
_________________________________, as Principal, and the County of Inyo, as Obligee.   
 
WHEREAS, upon the request of the Principal and Obligee, the attached Faithful Performance 
Bond is hereby modified to add the California Department of Parks and Recreation, Division of 
Boating and Waterways, as an additional Obligee with all rights and powers as granted to the 
Obligee stated in the attached Faithful Performance Bond.   
 
The undersigned hereby agree: 
 
There shall be no liability on the part of the Principal or Surety under this bond to the Obligees, 
or either of them, unless the Obligees, or either of them, shall make payments to the Principal, or 
to the Surety in the case it arranges for completion of the Contract, upon default of the Principal, 
strictly in accordance with the terms of said Contract as to payments, and shall perform all the 
other obligations required to be performed under said Contract at the time and in the manner 
therein set forth.  
 
In no event shall the aggregate liability of the Surety to either or both Obligees exceed the penal 
sum of this Faithful Performance Bond, nor shall the Surety be liable except for a single payment 
for each single breach or default.  At the Surety’s election, any payment due to either Obligee 
maybe made by its check issued jointly to both.  
 
Nothing herein shall be held to change, alter, or vary the terms of the attached Faithful 
Performance Bond, except as set forth in this Dual Obligee Rider.  
 

---o0o--- 
 
Signed and sealed this ______ day of _________________, 20 _____. 

 
 
       ___________________________________ 
         (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
       ____________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 12 of 13 
  05102019 

 
       ___________________________________ 
           (Name of Contractor) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL)                              
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
       County of Inyo      
         Obligee 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
                                
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 

Department of Parks and Recreation, 
Division of Boating and Waterways  

            Obligee 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
                           
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 

 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 13 of 13 
  05102019 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 

____________________________________________ PROJECT 
 

LABOR AND MATERIALS PAYMENT BOND 
(100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that _____________________________________ 
        (Name of Contractor) 
 
______________________________________ as Principal, hereinafter “CONTRACTOR,” 
 
and __________________________________________________________________________ 
    (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto the County of 
Inyo as Obligee, hereinafter called COUNTY, for the use and benefit of claimants as hereinafter  
defined in the amount of                        
dollars ($          _______       ._____   ) for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind 
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assignees, jointly and severally, 
firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor has by written contract dated _________________________, 20 _____, 
entered into an Contract with the County for the construction of the _________________ 
PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), to be constructed in accordance with the terms 
and conditions set forth in the contract for the PROJECT, which contract is by reference 
incorporated herein, and is hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACT.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if Contractor shall 
promptly make payment to all claimants as hereinafter defined, for all labor and materials used or 
reasonably required for use in the performance of the Contract, then this obligation shall be void; 
otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect, subject, however, to the following conditions: 

 
1. A claimant is defined as one having a direct contract with the Contractor, or with a 

Subcontractor of the Contractor, for labor, materials, or both, used or reasonably required 
for use in the performance of the Contract. Labor and materials is construed to include, but 
not limited to, that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or 
rental of equipment directly applicable to the Contract. 

 
2. The above named Contractor and Surety hereby jointly agree with the County that every 

claimant as herein defined, who has not been paid in full before the expiration of a period 
of ninety (90) calendar days after the date on which the last of such claimant's work or labor 
was done or performed, or materials were furnished by such claimant, may sue on this Bond 
for the benefit of such claimant, prosecute the suit to final judgment for such sum or sums 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 14 of 13 
  05102019 

as may be justly due claimant, and have execution thereon. The County shall not be liable 
for the payment of any costs or expenses of any such suit. 

 
3. No suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant: 

 
a) Unless claimant, other than one having a direct contract with the Contractor, shall have 

given written notice to any two of the following: the Contractor, the County, or the 
Surety above named, within ninety (90) calendar days after such claimant did or 
performed the last of the work or labor, or furnished the last of the material for which 
said claim is made, stating with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name 
of the party to whom the materials were furnished, or for whom the work or labor was 
done or performed. Such notice shall be served by mailing the same by registered mail 
or certified mail, postage prepaid, in any envelope addressed to the Contractor, County, 
or Surety, at the address below, or at any place where an office is regularly maintained 
for the transaction of their business. Such notice may also be served in the state in which 
the aforesaid project is located, save that such service need not be made by a public 
officer. 

 
b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which County accepted the 

work done under the Contract. However, if any limitation embodied in this Bond is 
prohibited by any law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shall be 
deemed to be amended so as to be equal to the minimum period of limitation permitted 
by such law. 

 
c) Other than in a State Court of competent jurisdiction in and for the County or other 

political subdivision of the state in which the Project, or any part thereof, is situated, 
and not elsewhere. 

 
4. The amount of this Bond shall be reduced by and to the extent of any payment or payments 

made in good faith hereunder, inclusive of the payment by Surety of mechanics' liens which 
may be filed or recorded against said Project, whether or not claim for the amount of such 
lien be presented under and against this Bond. 

 
---o0o--- 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 15 of 13 
  05102019 

Signed and sealed this _________ day of _______________, 20 ___. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
           (Name of Contractor)  
                    
       By: ________________________________ 
            (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
                
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
        ___________________________________ 
         (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
            (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
        ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
NOTE: 
THE SIGNATURES OF THE CONTRACTOR AND THE SURETY MUST BE 
ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTHER OFFICER 
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW).  
The Labor and Materials Payment Bond must be executed by a corporate surety on this form. No 
substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged 
statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds 
in such amounts on behalf of the surety, must accompany the Labor and Materials Payment Bond. 
 
ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
   County of Inyo 
   224 N. Edwards, P.O. Box N 
   Independence, California 93526 
  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 16 of 13 
  05102019 

LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 
DUAL OBLIGEE RIDER 

 
This DUAL OBLIGEE RIDER is to be attached to and become part of Labor and Materials  
Bond No. ________________, dated _______________________, issued by    
    , as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called Surety, on behalf of 
_________________________________, as Principal, and the County of Inyo, as Obligee.   
 
WHEREAS, upon the request of the Principal and Obligee, the attached Labor and Materials 
Bond is hereby modified to add the California Department of Parks and Recreation, Division of 
Boating and Waterways, as an additional Obligee with all rights and powers as granted to the 
Obligee stated in the attached Labor and Materials Bond.   
 
The undersigned hereby agree: 
 
In no event shall the aggregate liability of the Surety to either or both Obligees exceed the penal 
sum of this Labor and Materials Bond, nor shall the Surety be liable except for a single payment 
for each single breach or default.  At the Surety’s election, any payment due to either Obligee 
maybe made by its check issued jointly to both.  
 
Nothing herein shall be held to change, alter, or vary the terms of the attached Labor and 
Materials Bond, except as set forth in this Dual Obligee Rider.  
 

---o0o--- 
 
Signed and sealed this ______ day of _________________, 20 _____. 

 
 
       ___________________________________ 
         (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
       ____________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 17 of 13 
  05102019 

       ___________________________________ 
           (Name of Contractor) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL)                              
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
       County of Inyo      
         Obligee 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
                                
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 

Department of Parks and Recreation, 
Division of Boating and Waterways  

            Obligee 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
                           
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
  



Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 18 of 13 
  05102019 

ATTACHMENT 3 
 
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

__________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE _____________________________________________________ PROJECT 

 
 TERM: 
           FROM:                          TO:       

 
SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements 
for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts at Diaz/20220831/ah - 1 
 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, and for five years 
thereafter, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his 
agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  
 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form CA 0001 covering Code 1 (any 
auto), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with 
Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.  

4. Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an “All Risk” (Special Perils) 
coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no coinsurance 
penalty provisions.  

5. Surety Bonds as described below and elsewhere in bid requirements.  
6. Professional Liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.  
7. Contractors’ Pollution Legal Liability with limits no less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.  
 
If the contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher 
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions  
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may 
require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to 
pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured 
retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, 
including Excess liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or 
deductible that exceeds $25,000 [or $50,000 for projects in excess of $500,000] unless approved 
in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole responsibility of 
Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the Indemnified 
Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor 
to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) provision 



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements 
for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts at Diaz/20220831/ah - 2 
 

that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named Insured. The policy must also provide that 
Defense costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or 
deductible. Inyo County reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for 
verification.  
 
OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  
 

1. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as 
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or 
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations and automobiles 
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of the Contractor. General liability 
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance 
(at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10, CG 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, 
or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). An additional insured 
endorsement must be submitted along with the certificate/s of insurance as evidence, 
though failure to supply does not relive contractor of requirement. 

2. The State of California, its officers, agents, employees and servants are hereby declared 
to be additional insured under the terms of this policy, as to activities of both Inyo County 
and the State of California Department of Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and 
waterways (DBW) in respect to the Project, and this policy shall not be cancelled without 
thirty (30) days prior written notice to DBW. 

3. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 
04 13 as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, 
or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies. 

4. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall provide that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County. 

 
Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) Insurance  
Contractor may submit evidence of Builder’s Risk insurance in the form of Course of 
Construction coverage. Such coverage shall name Inyo County as a loss payee as their interest 
may appear.  
 
If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of Inyo County, an 
Installation Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property Installation Floater shall be 
obtained that provides for the improvement, remodel, modification, alteration, conversion or 
adjustment to existing buildings, structures, processes, machinery and equipment. The Property 
Installation Floater shall provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, 
machinery or equipment damaged, impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of 
the Work, including during transit, installation, and testing at Inyo County’s site.  
 
Claims Made Policies – (Inyo County prefers occurrence type CGL policies)  
If any coverage required is written on a claims-made coverage form:  



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements 
for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts at Diaz/20220831/ah - 3 
 

1. The retroactive date must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of 
the contract or the beginning of contract work.  

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least 
five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

3. If coverage is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, 
the Contractor must purchase extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of five 
(5) years after completion of contract work.  

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to Inyo County for 
review.  

5. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/remediation, the 
Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos 
exclusions. If the services involve mold identification/remediation, the Contractors 
Pollution Liability policy shall not contain a mold exclusion, and the definition of 
Pollution shall include microbial matter, including mold.  

 
Umbrella or Excess Policies 
The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability limits as required in 
this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the Primary and 
Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, including, 
but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided 
on a true “following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided 
on the underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by 
the Additional Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered 
hereunder, shall be called upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess 
liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a current 
A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation  
Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor 
may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain 
any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ 
Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Inyo County 
for all work performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors. An 
endorsement specifying this waiver must be submitted along with the certificate of insurance as 
evidence, though failure to supply does not relive contractor of requirement. 
 
Verification of Coverage  
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or 
copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and a copy of 
the Declarations and Endorsements Pages of the CGL and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations & 
Endorsements pages are to be received and approved by Inyo County before work commences. 



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements 
for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Smaller (Non-Road) Construction Contracts at Diaz/20220831/ah - 4 
 

However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these 
specifications, at any time. Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 
 
Subcontractors  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional 
insured on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage, subcontractors shall 
provide coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13.  
 
Duration of Coverage  
CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but not limited 
to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years for 
Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Surety Bonds  
Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds:  

1. Bid Bond  
2. Performance Bond  
3. Payment Bond  
4. Maintenance Bond  

The Payment Bond and the Performance Bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. If the 
Performance Bond provides for a one-year warranty a separate Maintenance Bond is not necessary. 
If the warranty period specified in the contract is for longer than one year a Maintenance Bond 
equal to 10% of the contract price is required. Bonds shall be duly executed by a responsible 
corporate surety, authorized to issue such bonds in the State of California and secured through an 
authorized agent with an office in California. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances  
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances. 



 

 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

FOR 
 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
  

 
 
 





 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Special Provisions 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT  
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
DIVISION 1 GENERAL 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT (Project), a public works project of Inyo County, is to 
be constructed and completed in accordance with these Special Provisions, the Project Plans, and, 
insofar as they are referenced herein, the Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works 
Department dated May 2022 (Standard Specifications).  The Special Provisions, the Project Plans, and 
the sections of the Standard Specifications referenced herein, constitute a portion of the “Contract 
Documents” (as that term is defined in section 1070.04 of the Standard Specifications) governing the 
project and shall therefore be binding upon and observed by the person/entity with whom the County of 
Inyo enters into contract for construction of the Project. 
 
Copies of the Project Plans and the Standard Specifications may be obtained from the Inyo County 
Public Works Department in Independence, California. 
 
Unless indicated otherwise, all references in this document to sections are to those in the Standard 
Specifications (designated by “SS” following the section number) or to other sections in these Special 
Provisions.  In case of any irreconcilable conflict between the requirements of the Standard 
Specifications referenced herein and these Special Provisions, the latter shall prevail and be observed. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT includes but is not limited to clearing and grubbing, 
installation and removal of a turbidity curtain and other storm water BMPs, rough grading, excavation, 
backfill, compaction, concrete formwork, rebar, and concrete placement and finishing, fabrication, 
delivery, and installation of all dock and gangway components, finish grading, pavement striping and 
pavement markings, purchase and installation of parking signage, purchase and installation of a project 
credit sign,etc. 
 
All of the work shall be in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, codes, and 
regulations.   
  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Special Provisions 

 
 

 

SECTION 31  AWARD OF CONTRACT OR REJECTION OF BIDS 
 
The third paragraph of Section 31 of the Standard Specifications shall be amended to read: 
 

Whenever possible, the award to the lowest responsible responsive bidder, if made, will be made 
no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the opening of bid proposals.  However, failure of the 
County to make award within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening of the bid proposals shall 
not relieve the Contractor of its requirement to deliver an executed contract and bonds, and any 
other required documents, within 15 days of Notification of Award, as further described in Section 
32.1, Contract Execution Requirements, of the Standard Specifications. 

 
SECTION 40  SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION 
 
This project is subject to Inyo County Ordinance No. 1156, An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo, State of California, Adding Chapter 6.06 to the Inyo County Code to Provide 
Contacting Preferences for Local and Small Businesses, which is included in the  
bid package. 
 
Take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that small business enterprises (SBEs) have opportunity 
to participate in the contract. 
 
Make work available to SBEs and select work parts consistent with available SBE subcontractors and 
suppliers. 
 
To qualify for the SBE contracting preference as described in Inyo County Ordinance No. 1156 
(Ordinance No. 1156), Section 6.06.040, the bidder must show that he/she is a SBE as described in 
Ordinance No. 1156 Section 6.06.020.   
 
To qualify for the SBE subcontracting preference as described in Ordinance No. 1156, Section 6.06.050, 
the bidder must show that the subcontractor(s) proposed for work on the project is/are a SBE(s) as 
described in Ordinance No. 1156 Section 6.06.020.   
 
It is the bidders responsibility to verify that the SBE(s) is certified as a small 
business enterprise at the date of bid opening.   
 
SBE Contracting Preference Commitment Submittal 
 
If the bidder is claiming the SBE contracting preference, submit SBE information on the “Small 
Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts),” form included in the Bid Package.  If the 
bidder is not claiming the SBE contracting preference remove the form from the Bid Package before 
submitting your bid. 
 
Submit written confirmation from each SBE subcontractor stating that it is participating in the contract.  
Include confirmation with the SBE Commitment form.  A copy of a SBE subcontractor’s quote will 
serve as written confirmation that the SBE is participating in the contract. 

 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Special Provisions 

 
 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR AND SBE RECORDS.   The Contractor shall maintain records showing the 
name and business address of each first-tier subcontractor.  The records shall also show the name and 
business address of every SBE subcontractor, SBE vendor of materials and SBE trucking company, 
regardless of tier.  The records shall show the date of payment and the total dollar figure paid to all of 
these firms.  SBE prime contractors shall also show the date of work performed by their own forces 
along with the corresponding dollar value of the work. 
 
Upon completion of the contract, a summary of these records shall be prepared on “Final Report – 
Utilization of Small Business Enterprises - (SBE), First-Tier Subcontractors,” certified correct by the 
Contractor or his authorized representative, and submitted to the Engineer.  The form shall be furnished 
to the Engineer within 90 days from the date of contract acceptance. 
 
  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Special Provisions 

 
 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

713 SURETY BONDS 
 
Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds: 
 
1. Bid Bond (10% of Bid Proposal amount). 
2. Faithful Performance Bond (100% of Bid Proposal amount). 
3. Labor and Materials Bond (100% of Bid Proposal amount). 

 
SECTION 1017 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
 
Amended to read as follows:   
 
1017.07 TIME FOR COMPLETION AND PAYMENTS TO COUNTY FOR DELAY 
 
1017.07.1 Time for Completion 
 
The Contractor shall complete all designated portions of the work required to be provided pursuant to 
the contract no later than (60) Calendar days from and including the Starting Date, plus such additional 
days, if any, which are expressly granted as extensions of time by Contract Change Orders signed and 
issued by the County.  Such total number of days shall be referred to herein as the “Time for 
Completion”. All work must be completed by January 15th, 2023 according to DBW Grant 
requirements. Any overtime requirements to make this date must be included in the bid. 
 
Failure of the Contractor to perform any covenant or condition contained in the Contract Documents 
within the time period specified shall constitute material breach of this Contract entitling the County to 
terminate the Contract unless the Contractor applies for, and receives, an extension of time in 
accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 1017.09 SS, “EXTENSION OF TIME.” 
 
1017.07.2 Liquidated Damages 
 
In accordance with Government Code Section 53069.85, the Contractor shall pay to the County of Inyo, 
liquidated damages in the amounts of: 
 
$400.00 per day for each and every calendar day delay in finishing work in excess of the Time for 
Completion specified. 
 
The County shall be entitled to deduct the amounts of liquidated damages from any payment otherwise 
due to the Contractor. 
  



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Special Provisions 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 

FOR 
 
 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
 

 
  



     
  

DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED BOAT DOCK  
PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS  

 
 
SECTION 02487 FLOATING DOCK SYSTEM 
  
PART 1  GENERAL  

  
1.1  Description of Work: The work of this section consists of furnishing all materials, equipment and 

labor necessary for the construction and installation of the floating dock system, anchors and 
associated work as shown on the drawings.  

  
1.2 Submittals:  
  

A. Contractor shall submit shop drawings, flotation and freeboard calculations prepared and 
stamped by a California Registered Professional Engineer with a minimum of five (5) years 
experience in floating dock design.  
  

B. Shop drawings, flotation and freeboard calculations are to be submitted to the County for 
approval.  

  
C. Loading requirements are as follows:  
  

1. Dead Load Only (DL): Boarding floats are to float level in the water within the following 
limits:  

  
a. Length: 1/8 inch per foot over the length of an individual boarding float section, not to 

exceed one (1) inch in (10) feet.  
  

b. Width: one (1) inch maximum over the width of the boarding float.  
   

2. Uniform Live Load (ULL)  
  

a. 20 pounds/sq. ft. is a statewide and nationally recognized standard uniform live load 
for launching ramp boarding floats, in service, in the water.  

 
3. Live Point Load (LPL): 650 pounds  

a. A live point load may be applied at any point on the boarding float deck not closer than 
twelve (12) inches from the edge of the float.  

  
b. The live point load is an assumed load based on a 250 pound person, in a 250 pound 

heavy duty electric wheelchair, assisted by a second person weighing 150 pounds, for 
a total live point load of 650 pounds.  



  

4. Freeboard  
a. Dead Load Only (DL): 12 inches +/- to top of deck.  
a. DL + ULL: 5 inches minimum to top of deck.  

  
5. Boarding floats are to be designed to withstand wind, wave, current and impact loadings, 

applied to both floats and tied up boats, that may reasonably occur during the life of the 
structure as the result of its location and exposure.  

  
a. Minimum boarding float wind loading is to be 25 pounds per linear foot of float. This 

is predicated on a uniform wind load of 15 pounds/sq. ft. applied to a maximum 
allowable freeboard exposure of 12 inches.  

  
b. Wave, current and impact loadings must be determined on the basis of the particular 

site, the type of boats to be used at the facility, and the boating activities that are likely 
to occur.  

 
1.3 Quality Assurance:   

 
A. The manufacturer must have an ongoing quality assurance program.  At the option of the 

Owner, the manufacturer shall submit a copy of their operational quality assurance program 
and shall cast no floats until the Owner has approved this quality assurance program. 

 
B. The manufacturer must have an ongoing quality management system.  This quality system 

must be regularly assessed and currently registered as meeting the current ISO 9001 Standard 
requirements accredited by ANAB or equal.  The scope of this registration must be for the 
design and manufacture of floating docks and pertain to the company or portion of the 
company providing the products and services for the project.  No other quality management 
system registrations shall be substituted.  No substitution will be allowed. 

 
 
PART 2  PRODUCTS  
  
2.1  Materials  

A. Decking and Framing:  
  

1. Decking shall be 5/4” nominal x 8” WearDeck composite decking. Deck boards shall be 
installed transverse to walking surface.  

 
2. Structural steel shall conform to ASTM A-36, and shall be hot-dipped galvanized conform 

to ASTM A-123 after welding. Welding shall be performed by certified welders according 
to AWS D 1.1  

  
3. Boarding float deck and deck framing shall be as manufactured by Bellingham Marine, or 

approved equal.  
  



     
  

4. Galvanizing repair paint shall be high zinc dust content paint for re-galvanizing welds in 
steel, complying with SSPC-20.  

  
B. Fenderboards and bumpers.  

  
1. Fenderboards shall be engineered composite members with Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic 

(FRP) Fascia, as shown on the drawings provided by Bellingham Marine. The following 
specs shall apply.  

a. Fenderboards shall be in lengths of 15’+/- with a 1/2-inch board gap shall be 
maintained between fenderboard sections.  The gap is to allow thermal expansion. 
Plank shall be bolted to the frame with a pair of 1/2-inch diameter HDG machine 
bolts spaced 4” from each end and 26” maximum center to center spacing.  
Hardware and materials for connecting fenderboards shall be in accordance with 
boarding float manufacturers recommendations.   

b. The FRP fenderboard shall be made from modified epoxy back boned vinyl ester 
resin with ECR glass fibre rovings.  The materials are tested and analyzed to 
ASTM E 1356. 

c. The fenderboard has a non-woven polyester veil which allows a thicker resin layer 
on the outside surfaces.  The thicker resin layer together with grey colour 
pigments of Titanium Dioxide and Carbon Black provide good UV resistance.  
The final fenderboard colour is Pantone-Cool Grey 8C. 

d. The fenderboard is light weight, corrosion resistant, non-magnetic, non-
conductive, and has excellent durability to sea water, chemical and fuel spills.  
Further characteristics include high strength, fatigue and creep resistant.   

e. The material is tested to ASTM D 7205 and & ACI 440.3R-4 (Elastic Modulus), 
ASTM D 570-48 (Method for moisture uptake) and ASTM E 1640-04 (Glass 
transition temperature). The glass content is checked to AS D 3171 and the Short 
Beam Shear Strength to be tested to ASTM D 4475.  

f. The physical properties conform to ASTM D7205 and ASTM D570 Method 7.1. 
and the glass transition temperature is measured to ASTM E16401 DMTA 

 
C. Fendering and Corner Bumpers: Fendering shall weigh a minimum of .9 pounds per lineal 

foot and made from a fungus and UV resistant PVC compound.  Fendering shall be ‘L’ shaped 
and be attached with stainless steel nails on 4” centers on the top flange and six inch centers 
on the bottom flange. Corner bumpers shall be mounted as shown on the drawings with 
stainless steel screws.  Corner bumpers shall mate with the fendering as much as practical.  
Corner bumpers shall be made from marine grade PVC.  

 
D. Pontoon Flotation: Pontoons shall be manufactured by Hendren or equal.  Pontoon wall 

thickness shall be 0.150”, nominal.  Pontoon dimensions are shown on drawings.  Pontoons 
shall be bolted to the steel frame with ½” diameter HDG machine bolts with flat washer and 
lock washer.  All bolt locations provided by the float manufacturer shall be utilized (i.e., 4’ x 
8’ pontoon requires 12 bolts), unless other spacing is shown on the drawings.  

  
E. Anchorage Components: All components associated with the float anchorage system shall be 

as shown on the drawings and as follows:  



  

1. Fittings and wire rope connectors shall be of industrial marine quality.  
  
2. Offshore stiff-arm anchorage for installation shall be of equivalent mass to provide resistive 

forces as required.  
  

3. Bolts: Bolts at structural connections (steel to steel or steel to aluminum) shall be  
ASTM A-325 (high strength) with flat washers under nut and bolt head.  Bolts at 
connection of pontoon and fenders shall be ASTM A-307 with flat washer at plastic and 
lock washer at nut.  Tighten to engage lock washer; do not over tighten.  All bolts and 
washers shall be HDG.  

  
F. Floatation Design: Floatation design shall be by a Registered Professional Engineer.  Pontoons 

must cover a minimum of 60% of the dock area.  Contractor’s engineer shall supply floatation 
calculations that: (1.) confirm that the floats will support 20# per square foot live load without 
submerging the pontoons.  

  
2.2  Suppliers: Pre-manufactured boarding floats, railings, gangway, and associated components shall 

be supplied and manufactured by Bellingham Marine or approved equal.  
  
PART 3  EXECUTION  

3.1  Delivery  

A.  Boarding Floats to be delivered by Manufacturer and stored on site in a level area free of 
debris.  

  
3.2  Installation  

A. Install in accordance with the drawings and reviewed and accepted shop drawings.  
  
B. Use only mechanics skilled in the installation of this type of work.  

  
3.3  Welding  

A. Clean parts to be welded to provide surfaces free of grit, grease and other contaminates.  
  
B. Surfaces to be welded may not be cut with oxygen.  
  
C. Perform welding with an inert gas-shielded arc process. Develop machine settings by making 

test welds using the same material alloy and geometry as the work pieces and testing and sample 
welds destructively.  

  
D. Make welds using a filler metal alloy compatible in corrosion resistance with the base metal.  
 
E.  Welding: To be performed only by welders certified in accordance with CWB or AWS B 3.0, 

using certified procedures, materials and equipment appropriate to the work.  
 



     
  

F. Conform to AWS D 1.2 or CWB equivalent.  
 
 
PART4  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT  
  
4.1  Payment will be included in the bid schedule for boarding floats.  
  

END 

 

 



  

SECTION 13150 ALUMINUM GANGWAYS AND RAILING 
 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 WORK INCLUDED 
 

A. The work includes furnishing and installing Aluminum Gangways and Ramps, as shown 
on the drawings and as specified in these Specifications. 

 
1.2 RELATED WORK 
 
  A. Section 02487 - Floating Dock Systems 
 
1.3 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Contractor shall submit design calculations and shop drawings for Engineer's review 
prior to fabrication.  Calculations and shop drawings shall be stamped & signed by a 
Civil or Structural Engineer currently registered in the State of California maintaining 
professional liability insurance with a minimum policy limit of $1,000,000. 

 
1.4 ENGINEERING 
 

A. Design Load & Deflection:  The deck and structural components shall be designed to 
support the dead weight of the gangway plus a distributed live load of 50 pounds per 
square foot.  The deflection under live load at midspan shall not exceed L/360. 

 
B. Design Safety Factors:  The deck and structural components shall be designed with a 

minimum safety factor on working stress as specified in the Aluminum Association's 
"Specifications for Aluminum Structures" for bridge-type structures.  For non-aluminum 
structural components similar safety factors shall apply. 

 
C. Skid Resistance:   Decking shall have an aggressively non-skid aluminum surface, and 

shall be installed perpendicular to the length of the gangway. 
 

D. Abutment to Gangway Hinge Assembly: 
 

1. The hinge assembly shall allow the gangway to rotate with unobstructed 
movement in the vertical plane, as well as allow the gangway to rotate a 
minimum of 2 degrees,  each side of installed position in the horizontal plane, 
without inducing structural stresses into the hinge assembly and/or gangway. 

 
2. Connection: The  connection of the hinge assembly at the top of gangway shall 

not have an open gap in the walking surface of more than ½ inch, under any tidal 
condition. 



     
  

3. Abutment Connection:  This hardware shall be of the “hanger” type, similar to 
existing hardware and gangways.   

 
 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.1 MATERIALS 
 

A. General: Each gangway system shall include gangway, hinged bearings, moving 
bearings, fixed bearings, suitable guardrails/handrails and slip-resistant walking surfaces.  
All gangway system components shall be aluminum alloy, except that hinge pins, 
bearings, wheels, and rollers may be of other materials as necessary; i.e, A316 stainless 
steel. 

 
B. Aluminum:  Aluminum shall be alloy 6061-T6 or 6063-T6.  Material shall be new and 

mill specification shall be made available upon request. 
 

C. Fasteners:  Any fasteners between aluminum components shall be A316 stainless steel.  
Fasteners between any galvanized steel components and aluminum shall be A316 
stainless steel. 

 
D. Steel Accessories:  Any mild steel component deemed necessary due to strength 

requirements, such as hinge assemblies, pins, shackles, etc., shall be hot-dip galvanized 
with a minimum of 2 ounces per zinc per square foot of steel surface. 

 
E. Welding Filler Wire:  All welds shall be made with a filler metal alloy which will 

produce a weld which is compatible in corrosion resistance with the base metal. 
 
2.2 GEOMETRY 
 

A. Handrail Design:  The gangway shall be equipped with handrails on both sides of the 
walking surface, and shall extend twelve inches beyond the walking surface in a 
direction parallel to the gangway.  Handrails shall be 1-1/2 inch diameter nominal pipe, 
or as noted on the Drawings.  The handrails shall be fabricated of aluminum pipe and 
shall provide a smooth gripping surface.  The handrails shall be designed to support a 
distributed horizontal load of 50 pounds per linear foot of railing, applied perpendicular 
to the top rail, without permanent deflection (yield). 

 
1. Guardrail Height:  Railing height (top of top tube) shall be 42 inches above the 

walking surface. 
 

2. Handrail Height:  Handrail height shall be 34 inches above walking surface.   
 

3. With multiple horizontal rails, the guardrail shall be fabricated so that a 4 inch 
sphere can not pass through the rail at any point. 

 



  

4. Handrail shall be 1-1/2 inch diameter nominal pipe.  Pipe shall be 1.900 outside 
inch diameter, max,  by 0.145 inch minimum thickness. 

 
5. Handrail shall be fabricated with end loops extending 12 inches beyond the face 

of gangway and/or ramp.   
 

6. See drawings for details.   
 

B. Support Member Geometry and Architecture: The structural support system of the 
gangways and ramps shall be of the structural truss support type and consistent with the 
geometry shown on the drawings.   Contractor shall submit all details required to assure 
that the architectural features noted on the Drawings are obtained. 

 
C. Wheels & Axle:  The wheels shall be polyolefin with a molded-on polyurethane tread 

and roll on delrin bearings with a 1 inch axle.  The axle shall pass through doubler plates 
welded to the frame.   

      
2.3 FINISHING  
 

A. Aluminum gangway and ramp supplier shall provide the manufacturer’s standard surface 
finishes for the system structure.   
 
 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.1 FABRICATION AND WORKMANSHIP 
 

A. Provide aluminum gangway and ramps for the Marina Docks as indicated, complete with 
gangway, hinged bearings, fixed bearings, suitable guardrails/handrails and slip-resistant 
walking surfaces. 

 
B. Workmanship:  The quality of workmanship shall be equal to the best general practice in 

modern structural fabrication shops. 
 

C. Experience:  The fabricator must be able to furnish adequate evidence of a minimum of 5 
years of experience in fabricating bridge-type aluminum structures, and that all workers 
employed in gangway fabrication are properly experienced and skilled in the work they 
are called upon to perform. 

 
D. Preparation for Welding:  Parts to be welded shall be free of dirt, grease, and other 

contaminants, and shall fit up properly for sound welding.  Surfaces to be welded may 
not be cut with oxygen.  Sawing, shearing or machining may be used. 

 
E. Welding Procedure:  All welding shall be with an inert gas shielded arc process.  

Machine settings shall be developed by making test welds of the same material alloy and 
geometry as the work pieces and testing the sample welds destructively.    

 



     
  

3.2 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 

A. Aluminum Gangways and Railing:  Full compensation for Aluminum Gangways and 
Ramps, including furnishing all labor, material, equipment, tools, and incidentals and for 
doing all the work of Aluminum Gangways and Railing, complete in place, as shown on 
the drawings and as specified in these Specifications, shall be considered as included in 
the contract lump sum price paid for the Marina.  

 

 

END



 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

DIAZ BOAT DOCK 

SITE WORK SPECIFICATIONS 
Article 6 – CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT 
  
B. 2. Be prepared and constructed in conformance with the most recent version of the 

Department of Boating and Waterways’ Layout, Design and Construction Handbook for 
Small Craft Boat Launching Facilities. 

1) Division 1 - General Conditions 
i) Temporary Facilities 

(a) Job Site Office 
(i) No project office required 

(b) Temporary Power 
(i) Contractor to provide generators 

(c) Potable Water 
(i) Contractor may use potable water on-site 

(d) Dust Control 
(i) Contractor to maintain job site in a dust free condition 

(e) Contractor to leave job site in a broom clean condition, and all areas disturbed by 
grading operations to be raked prior to acceptance 

 
2) Division 2 – Earthwork 

i) Storm Water Pollution Plan 
(1) Contractor to submit SWPPP to County prior initiation of clearing & grubbing 

ii) Turbidity Curtain 
(1) Contractor to submit turbidity curtain details to Inyo County Engineer prior to ordering 

materials 
iii) Dewatering 

(1) Contractor to submit dewatering plan to allow abutment formwork, rebar, and concrete 
to be placed in the dry 

iv) Clearing & Grubbing 
(1) Contractor to off haul all removed vegetation upon completion of grubbing operations  

v) Mass Excavation 
(1) Spoils from mass excavation operations to be stockpiled onsite until finish grading 

operations are complete 
vi) Stockpiling 

(1) Spoil stockpiles to be watered to prevent wind blown dust during wind events 
vii) Compaction 

(1) Subgrade to be compacted to 95% relative density. Density testing services to be 
provided by Inyo County 

viii) Final Grade 



Page 2 of 2 
 

(1) Final grade to be within 1/10 of a foot of design elevations and to provide for positive 
drainage away from concrete structures 
 

3)  
4) Division 3 – Concrete 

i) Concrete Mix Design 
(1) Concrete mix design to be 5000 PSI,  5% +/- 1% air total air entrainment 

ii) Rebar 
(a) Grade -rebar to be 40 grade 
(b) Clearances 

(i) Bottom bars  to be 3” off subgrade 
(ii) Rebar to be 1 ½” clear of formed surfaces 

(c) Laps & Splices 
(i) Rebar to be lapped a minimum of 40x rebar diameter  

(d) Breaks 
(i) Breaks  and splices to be staggered 

iii) Formwork 
(1) Concrete formwork to be within ¼” of design elevation, and straight from corner to 

corner 
iv) Tolerance 
v) Maximum Surface Slope 

(1) Maximum slope in the path of travel to be a maximum slope of 5% 
(2) Cross slope at parking area is to be a maximum of 2% 
(3) Cross slope at path of travel to be a maximum 2% 

vi) Consolidation 
(1) Concrete to be consolidated using a mechanical vibrator 

vii) Finishing 
(a) Edging 

(i) Edging to be with a 3/8” radius 
(b) Surface Finish 

(i) Surface finish to be a medium broom finish across the path of travel, where 
applicable 

(c) Curing 
(i) Concrete to be sprayed with water based curing compound  after final broom 

finish is applied 
 



 

DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 
Special Provisions 

 
 

 

 
 

PLANS 
 

FOR 

 
DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT 

 

 



100% PLANS

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

COUNTY OF INYO

DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

COUNTY

INYO

C
 A

 L I F O
 R

 N
 I A

 

INYO

CO.

LOCATION  MAP

T1 Title Sheet
G1 General Notes
C1 Site Plan
C2 Enlarged Parking Area
C3 Enlarged Float & Gangway
C4 Gangway & Dock Profile - Design High Water
C5 Gangway & Dock Profile - Design Low Water
C6 Concrete Dead Man Anchor Details
A1 ADA Parking Signs
A2 Project Credit Sign
S1 Structural Notes
S2 Concrete Details

SHEET  INDEX

PROJECT
LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER TR 16-039  TO BE SUPPLEMENTED BY THE INYO COUNTY STANDARD PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS (INCLUDING ALL ISSUED AMENDMENTS) DATED 2015 AND THE  1991 VERSION OF THE BOATING AND WATERWAYS LAYOUT, DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION HANDBOOK FOR SMALL CRAFT BOAT LAUNCHING FACILITIES and the AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 2010 ADA STANDARDS EXCERPTS FOR THE RECREATIONAL BOATING FACILITIES BY CALIFORNIA BOATING AND WATERWAYS PUBLISHED 2013

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
TDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
T1   TITLE SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
LONE PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
C A L I F O R N I A

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
DEATH VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
OLANCHA

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
N E V A D A 

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
BISHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
INDEPENDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
BIG PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
SCALE IN MILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
395

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
HWY

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
PEARSONVILLE



GENERAL NOTES:

7

1. The Contractor shall notify the Inyo County Engineer in writing immediately upon discovery of any apparent conflicts or discrepancies between the information shown on these drawings and the
conditions existing at the project site and cease all work that is the subject matter of the apparent conflict until a written response is received from the Inyo County Engineer.  If the Contractor
fails to notify the Inyo County Engineer of any apparent conflicts or discrepancies in the plans or specifications, the Contractor shall be responsible for the costs of remediating the work
incorrectly completed at the Contractor's own expense.

2. The Contractors scope-of-work includes all work necessary to provide a completed functioning project, whether either explicitly represented in or inferred by the contract documents and the site
conditions. This includes all the work and associated direct and indirect cost of all temporary materials, temporary power, temporary lighting, dewatering, shoring, bracing, stockpiling, storing,
safety, temporary signage, dust abatement, storm water best management practices, turbidity curtains, shipping costs, taxes, permits, etc. unless explicitly excluded in the contract documents.

3. It is the Contractors responsibility to notify the Inyo County Engineer of the date and time of required inspections. The costs of all initial testing & inspections, including special inspections will be
born by Inyo County. All costs of retesting & reinspections that are the result of the the Contractors work failing the initial testing & inspections will be reimbursed to Inyo County by the
Contractor.

4. All work must conform to the plans & specifications as well as all other adopted codes and regulations of Inyo County, the State of California, and the US Government, and all applicable Local,
State, and Federal agencies.

5. Changes to, deviations from, or substitutions of specified products as defined in these plans and specifications must be approved in writing by the Inyo County Engineer sufficiently in advance
of the performance of the work by the Contractor to prevent schedule impacts.

6. The Contractor is solely and completely responsible for all conditions at the job site, including the safety of all persons and property during the performance of the work.  This requirement will
apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.  The duties of the Inyo County Engineer do not include the review or monitoring of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety
program, principles, or application in, on or near the construction site.

7. Contractor must contact USA (Underground Service Alert) at least 2 business days in advance of any plan to perform excavation work.

8. This is a prevailing wage project. It can be anticipated by the Contractor that there will be a requirement to provide a certified payroll and to allow Inyo County personnel to perform spot
interviews of employees in the field.

9. All submittal items must be transmitted to the Inyo County Engineer sufficiently ahead of the date that is required to order or receive or install the items to avoid schedule impacts.

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
TDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
S:\0PEN PROJECTS\4-Misc. Projects\Diaz Boat Dock TR 16-039\Plans from Randy Short 8-15-22\Bellingham Plans 8-23-22\Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
G1   General Notes



32
3671.683
ep ec

33
3671.295
ep ec

37
3672.151
edge veg

38
3672.350
edge veg

39
3672.457
edge veg

78
3673.019
eg

3673.741

80
3673.070
wv

98
3669.990
wd prk stp

99
3669.621
wd prk stp

101
3669.403
wd prk stp

102
3668.509
wd fnc

103
3668.581
wd fnc

104
3668.894
wd fnc

105
3669.246
wd fnc

106
3668.668
wd fnc

107
3669.680
wd fnc

108
3669.618
wd fnc

109
3669.902
wd fnc

110
3669.886
wd fnc

111
3669.842
wd fnc

112
3669.142
wd fnc

118
3668.747
tree

119
3668.724
tree

121
3668.705
tree

122
3669.801
tree

123
3670.721
tree

124
3671.877
tree

130
3672.675
eg

131
3671.783
eg

132
3670.717
eg

133
3669.565
eg

134
3669.394
eg

135
3669.903
eg

136
3669.576
eg

151
3666.751
water

152
3666.609
water

153
3666.693
water

154
3666.687
water

155
3666.725
water

156
3666.836
water

157
3666.685
water

158
3666.719
water

159
3666.779
water

160
3666.721
water

161
3666.595
water

162
3666.718
water

163
3666.588
water

NO

PARKING

3669.00' FS

3667.99' FS

3669.98' FS

EW

SCALE: 1"=16'

08 8 164

  1   'Unauthorized Vehicle' Type 3 Parking Sign
  2    Enlarged Parking Area Plan - Reference Sheet C2 Enlarged Parking Area
  3    Enlarged Float & Gangway Plan - Reference Sheet C3 Enlarged Float & Gangway
  4    H.D.G. Stiff Arms (2 ea) To Anchor Dock in Place
  5   SS Cable Bracing @ Stiff Arms (Under Gangway)
  6    Concrete Anchor Blocks for Stiff Arm Connections (2 Ea)- Field Excavate and Cast
  7   Turbidity Curtain to Prohibit Suspended Solids from Escaping Construction Area
  8   Existing Rustic Wood Fence To Remain (Reference- Align Edge of Dock To Fence As Shown)

Callouts:

2

3
1

Design High Water  3671'
Design Low Water   3669'

6

7

Boarding Float

Gangway

Concrete Abutment

ADA

Parking

ADA Path-of-Travel (ty
p.)

Design High Water  3671'

Design Low Water  3669'

6

4

4

8

5

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Tree (Typ)

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
DIAZ LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
SHORE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
 EXISTING WATER VALVE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
TDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
C1  Site Plan



99
3669.621
wd prk stp

103
3668.581
wd fnc

104
3668.894
wd fnc

105
3669.246
wd fnc

106
3668.668
wd fnc

124
3671.877
tree

133
3669.565
eg

154
3666.687
water

155
3666.725
water

156
3666.836
water

157
3666.685
water

158
3666.719
water

159
3666.779
water

NO

PARKING

3669.00' FS

3669.98' FS

1'
-3

"

1'-0"

10
"

5"
 (M

IN
.)

19'-0"

4'
-1

0"
 M

AX

8'-0"

1'
-6

"

24"

30
"

SLOPED FS

SIDE RAILING REQ'D
(NOT SHOWN)

SOLID CONCRETE
MONOLITHIC SLAB

SIDE RAILING REQ'D
(NOT SHOWN)

EW

SECTION @ ABUTMENTA

C2

SECTION @ ADA PARKINGA

C2

3673.80 FS

1

3

  TOC = Top of Concrete
  FS = Finish Surface

  1    Concrete Parking Area 5" Thick
  2    Concrete Footing Along Perimeter- SEE SECTION
  3    Expansion Joint w/ Slip Dowels
  4    Parking Bumper Stop (typ)
  5    Type 1 ADA Parking Sign, Reference Sheet A1
  6    Limits of Soil Disturbance
  7    Side Railing at Sloped Abutment (Both Sides)

Notes:
Scarify and compact subgrade to 95% relative compaction per
ASTM 698 or ASTM1557 prior to placing forms,rebar, or concrete

Callouts:

4

2

20'-0"9'-0"

10'-0"

21'-9"

8'-0"

B

C2

A

C2

Concrete

Abutment

0.95%

Van

Accessible

El. 3673.32
TOC

El. 3673.32
TOC

6.25% Slope

5
6

7

7

2

STEM WALL
FOOTING
(2 EDGES)

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
C2  Enlarged Parking Area



NO

PARKING

OVERALL WIDTH = 10'-6 1/2"

3
8" x 4" HH SDS

w/ FENDER WASHER

PLASTIC DECKING NON-STRUCTURAL
FRP FASCIA

SEE ATTACHMENT DETAIL
HSS H.D.G.
SIZING per
FINAL DESIGN

C3
2

DECK BOARD
DIRECTION

12
" ±

 1
"

D
ES

IG
N

FR
EE

BO
AR

D

HSS, H.D.G.
CROSSMEMBERS

& STRINGER

FLOATATION TUB
(Size and Position T.B.D.)

By Final Design

FLOATATION TUB
(Size and Position T.B.D.)

By Final Design

FLOATATION TUB
(Size and Position T.B.D.)

By Final Design

1x6 PLASTIC
DECKING

H.D.G. DOCK FRAMEWORK

C3
2

SCALE: N.T.S.
DETAIL

2'
-3

 1
/4

"
4'

-0
"

1/4" x 1 12" HH SDS
@ 24" O.C. MAX.
(STAGGERED)

3-1/4" x 7-1/2"
NON-STRUCTURAL
FRP FASCIA

EW

1

Design High Water 3671'
Design Low Water  3669'

Boarding Float

5

A

C3

SECTION @ DOCKA

C3

30'-3"
10'-2 1/2"

  TOC = Top of Concrete
  TOS = Top of Surface
  FS = Finish Surface
  1    Turbidity Curtain (typ.) Must Contain All Work in the Waters
  2    H.D.G. Stiff Arms (2 ea) To Anchor Dock in Place
  3    SS Cable Bracing @ Stiff Arms (Under Gangway)
  4    Concrete Anchor Blocks for Stiff Arm Connections (2 Ea)-
        Field Excavate and Cast (See Sheet C6 for Details)
  5    EZ Launch Residential Kayak Launch

Callouts:

2Concrete Abutment

(Sloped FS)

Gangway
Design High
Water 3671'

Design Low Water 3669'

(Slope Varies with

Water Level)

2

4

4

3

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
C3  Enlarged Float & Gangway



ELEVATION VIEW AT HIGH WATER

El. 3673.32

1:16 SLOPE

MUD LINE

10' 20' 30' 40' 50' 60'

-10 1/2" -1'-5"
-2'- 0 1/2"

-2'-9"
-3'- 5 1/2"

- 4' - 0 1/2"

20'-0" 21'-9"

5' x 20' GANGWAY

4'
-1

0"3'
-9

 1
/2

"

2'
-5

 1
/2

"

6

EW

14

1) Boarding Float to have 12" (±1") of freeboard for ease of loading kayaks.

2) Gangway, boarding float, transition plate, guardrail/handrails, and gangway concrete embed to be designed by the fabricator/installer according to the requirements
outlined in the California Department of Boating & Waterways 'Layout Design and Construction Handbook for Small Craft Launching Facilities' and the California
Department of Boating & Waterways '2013 Americans With Disabilities Act 2010 ADA Standards Excerpts for Recreational Boating Facilities Handbook'. Final Submittal
of Contractor/Fabricator Shop Drawings will be required for review and approval by the Inyo County Engineer and the Plan Reviewer of the California Division of Boating
& Waterways prior to fabrication.

Callouts:

0 % Slope

  1    Gangway Hand Rail 1 12" Diameter 34" Min - 38" Max Above Walking Surface
         * Clear Space Inside Handrail To Be 60"
  2    Edge Protection 4" tall
  3    Transition Plate Maximum Slope 5%
  4    Boarding Float Deck Freeboard: 12" ± 1" (LIve Load Capacity = 25 psf)
  5    Flotation Modules per Dock Manufacturer
  6    Concrete Abutment, 2% Cross Slope Maximum
  7    Railing on Abutment/Approach to Gangway
  8    Gangway slopes at 2.6% @ Design High Water Level 3671'
  9    Lake Bottom
 10    High Water EL. 3671'
 11   Avg (MLLW) EL. 3670'
 12   Low Water EL. 3669'
 13   Cast Abutment 12" Into Undisturbed Soil
 14   EZ LAUNCH Residential Kayak Launch

 1

 10

 2

 11
 12

 3

 8

PARKING

 4

 5

 6

 9

 7

 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
C4  Gangway & Dock Profile Design High Water



ELEVATION VIEW AT LOW WATER

10' 20' 30' 40' 50' 60'

-10 1/2"
-2'- 0 1/2"

-2'-9"
-3'- 5 1/2"

- 4' - 0 1/2"

5' x 20' GANGWAY

MUD LINE

El. 3673.32

1:16 SLOPE

20'-0" 21'-9"

4'
-1

0"3'
-9

 1
/2

"

2'
-5

 1
/2

"

6

EW

Notes:

0 % Slope

 1

 10

 2

 11
 12

 3

 8

PARKING

 4

 5

 6

 9Callouts:
  1    Gangway Hand Rail 1 12" Diameter 34" Min - 38" Max Above Walking Surface
         * Clear Space Inside Handrail To Be 60"
  2    Edge Protection 4" tall
  3    Transition Plate Maximum Slope 5%
  4    Boarding Float Deck Freeboard: 12" ± 1" (Live Load Capacity = 25 psf)
  5    Flotation Modules per Dock Manufacturer
  6    Concrete Abutment, 2% Cross Slope Maximum
  7    Railing on Abutment/Approach to Gangway
  8    Gangway slopes at 7.3% @ Design Low Water Level 3669'
  9    Lake Bottom
 10    High Water EL. 3671'
 11   Avg (MLLW) EL. 3670'
 12   Low Water EL. 3669'
 13   Cast Abutment 12" Into Undisturbed Soil.
 14  EZ LAUNCH Residential Kayak Launch

 7

 13

14

1) Boarding Float to have 12" (±1") of freeboard for ease of loading kayaks.

2) Gangway, boarding float, transition plate, guardrail/handrails, and gangway concrete embed to be designed by the fabricator/installer according to the requirements
outlined in the California Department of Boating & Waterways 'Layout Design and Construction Handbook for Small Craft Launching Facilities' and the California
Department of Boating & Waterways '2013 Americans With Disabilities Act 2010 ADA Standards Excerpts for Recreational Boating Facilities Handbook'. Final Submittal
of Contractor/Fabricator Shop Drawings will be required for review and approval by the Inyo County Engineer and the Plan Reviewer of the California Division of Boating
& Waterways prior to fabrication.

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
C5  Gangway & Dock Profile Design Low Water



STIFF ARM

6'
-0

"

Cast-In Anchors
For Stiff Arm Bracket
Location & Size T.B.D.
by Final Design

#4 Rebar @ 12" O.C. MAX
(All Directions)

6'-0"

2 1/4"

2-1/2" Clear
To All Edges

#4 Rebar @ 12" O.C. MAX
(All Directions)

Plan View

Elevation 1'
-0

"4'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

Cast-In Anchors
For Stiff Arm Bracket
Location & Size T.B.D.
by Final Design

#4 Vertical Rebar @ all
Intersections

#4 Vertical Rebar @ all
Intersections

6

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
C6  Concrete Dead Man Anchor Block Details



SCALE: 1"=20'

020 20 4010

Type 1
Type 3

Notes:

Install with galvanized 14 gauge 1 3/4" square sign post with 7
16" diameter holes

Bottom of signs must be no lower than 80" over pedestrian walkways
Type 1 and Type 2 sign posts to be cored and grouted into concrete parking area
Type 3 sign post to be cast into 12" square concrete footing 18" deep

Type 1
Post w/ Grout

Type 3
Post w/ Footing

5" 1'-6"

6'-10" 6'-10"

4"

1'

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
8-3-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
TDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
8-3-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
A1  ADA Parking Signs



SCALE: 1"=20'

020 20 4010

MODEL #712 S - CONCRETE SIGN, 36"x58",
RECTANGLE WITH #703C BASE
DIAZ LAKE BOAT LAUNCHING FACILITY - CO. OF INYO

OUTDOOR CREATIONS, INC.
CUSTOMER APPROVAL x________________________________________

*Sign to be single sided
*Concrete footing required, construction by others

3 1/2" tall letters,
cast in and painted dark blue* ELEVATION

2 1/2" tall letters,
cast in and painted dark blue*

58"

Lettering, engraved
1 1/4" tall letters
painted dark blue*
Size: 45 1/2" x 6"

36"

Diaz Lake
Non-Motorized

Boat Launching Facility
FUNDED BY THE HARBORS AND WATERCRAFT

REVOLVING FUND. OPERATED AND
MAINTAINED BY COUNTY OF INYO

10" dia. boating dollars logo,
rear screened to acrylic panels
attached to sign in recessed
area and secured with
security fastener

Border, cast in
painted dark blue*

SECTION

8"

SCALE: 1” = 18”
DRAWN BY: MNC 11/1/19 REV.1

12"
10" diameter logo,
rear screened to acrylic panels
attached to sign in recessed
area and secured with
security fastener

74"

10" dia. Co of Inyo logo,
rear screened to acrylic panels
attached to sign in recessed
area and secured with
security fastener

NOTES:
1. Concrete mix design to include a mixture of Portland Cement,
water, coarse and fine aggregates, pure mineral oxide coloring
agents (when applicable) to yield a minimum compressive
strength of 5000 psi.
2. Final product shall be reinforced with #4 and #5 rebar grid.
3. Product is cast in 1-piece with no assembly required.
4. Hairline cracks may develop over time. These are not
structural failures, but inherent characteristics of the material
itself.
5. Air pockets are a common occurrence in precast products.
The frequency and size of air pockets are variable and to be
expected, especially on vertical surfaces.
6. Concrete corners and edges will chip if not handled according
to guidelines. Patch kits are available but may or may not blend
and can be variable.
7. There is a level of care and maintenance associated with your
product and is the responsibility of the end user.
right sealer can help minimize those costs.

Choosing the

*Paint colors:
Dark Blue: PPG 1167-7 Blue Jewel

WEIGHT: 1400 LBS
TEXTURE: Smooth
COLOR: Davis Pewter
SEALER: Standard Acrylic

OUTDOOR
CREATIONS
INC.
2270 Barney Street
Anderson, CA 96007
(530) 365-6106
FAX (530) 365-5129

24"

O

C

Y

O

N

U

C

N

A

TY O

FO

F

I

LI RNI A

MODEL #712 S - CONCRETE SIGN
ACRYLIC LOGO, CO. OF INYO - 10" DIA.

OUTDOOR CREATIONS, INC. DRAWN BY: MNC

10" dia. Co of Inyo logo,
rear screened to acrylic panels
attached to sign in recessed
area and secured with
security fastener

PLEASE NOTE:
It is VERY IMPORTANT to carefully read over your artwork, this includes, but is not limited to,
the spelling of names, dates, places, logos, etc. Outdoor Creations Inc. is not liable for
replacement of product, if artwork has been approved. Replacement of product that was
approved with incorrect spellings, dates, logos, etc will be the responsibility of the customer.
Thank you for your understanding.
I have read the above statement and approve the artwork:__________________________

OUTDOOR
CREATIONS
INC.
2270 Barney Street
Anderson, CA 96007
(530) 365-6106
FAX (530) 365-5129

O
C

Y
O

N
U

C

NTY O

FO

F

I

A NLI R I A

MODEL #712 S - CONCRETE SIGN
ACRYLIC LOGO, BOATING DOLLARS - 10" DIA.

OUTDOOR CREATIONS, INC. DRAWN BY: MNC

10" dia. boating dollars logo,
rear screened to acrylic panels
attached to sign in recessed
area and secured with
security fastener

PLEASE NOTE:
It is VERY IMPORTANT to carefully read over your artwork, this includes, but is not limited to,
the spelling of names, dates, places, logos, etc. Outdoor Creations Inc. is not liable for
replacement of product, if artwork has been approved. Replacement of product that was
approved with incorrect spellings, dates, logos, etc will be the responsibility of the customer.
Thank you for your understanding.
I have read the above statement and approve the artwork:__________________________

OUTDOOR
CREATIONS
INC.
2270 Barney Street
Anderson, CA 96007
(530) 365-6106
FAX (530) 365-5129

MODEL# 712 w/BASE - FOOTING OUTDOOR CREATIONS, INC.
DATE:

SCALE: 1” = 24”
DRAWN BY: MNC

Minimum below grade
Add height needed above grade

ELEVATION SECTION

24" O.C.

12"

74"

12"

24"

3" grout pockets
PLAN

24"

74"

1. Cast (2) mounting thru holes (grout pockets)
minimum diameter 3", in footing as shown.

2. Insert pipe (supplied with sign) into holes in
bottom of sign.

3. Fill grout pockets with liquid grout cement
and lower sign onto footing, using epoxy between
sign and footing for final anchoring.

This footing is the minimum below grade requirement as recommended by Outdoor Creations, Inc.
Any additional requirement such as additional height, inset mounting pocket, changes to mounting
method for local code requirements, etc. to be the responsibility of the customer.

OUTDOOR
CREATIONS
INC.
2270 Barney Street
Anderson, CA 96007
(530) 365-6106
FAX (530) 365-5129

SIGN INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS
AND CUSTOMER APPROVAL

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNS WITHOUT BASE (PIPE MOUNT)

1) Pour a concrete footing per detail. (SEE PAGE 3) Make sure it is flat and level.
2) Set pipes (shipped with sign), into footing grout pockets. Do not use mortar yet as a “dry run” installation recommended.
3) Place sign on pipes. Do not epoxy yet as a “dry run” to check for proper fit is recommended.4) If sign installs properly then you can proceed to permanent installation that includes application of mortar/epoxy
(not supplied by ODC).
5) Remove sign and pipes. Mix mortar and fill grout pockets ¾ full with mortar.
6) Reinstall pipes and place sign on pipes. Prior to contact with footing apply a thick bead of construction epoxy

that runs in the center of the footing (use pipes as guideline) the length of the sign itself.
7) Make any fine tuning adjustments to the sign as needed by use of shims while epoxy/mortar is setting.
8) Use rags/towels to clean up any epoxy that may squeeze out from under the sign as sign settles on footing.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNS WITH BASE (PIPE MOUNT)

1) Pour a concrete footing per detail. (SEE PAGE 3) Make sure it is flat and level.
2) Set pipes (shipped with sign), into footing grout pockets. Do not use mortar yet as a “dry run” installation recommended.
3) Set base, if supplied with sign, over pipes and square up to footing.
4) Place sign on pipes. Do not epoxy yet as a “dry run” to check for proper fit is recommended.5) If sign and base install properly then you can proceed to permanent installation that includes application of mortar/epoxy
 (not supplied by ODC).
6) Remove sign and base (if supplied) and pipes. Mix mortar and fill grout pockets ¾ full with mortar.
7) Apply construction epoxy between footing and base.
8) Reinstall pipes and set base over pipes and square up to footing.
9) Place sign on pipes and prior to contact with base apply a thick bead of construction epoxy

that runs in the center of the base (use pipes as guideline) the length of the sign itself.
10) Make any fine tuning adjustments to the sign as needed by use of shims while epoxy/mortar is setting.
11) Use rags/towels to clean up any epoxy that may squeeze out from under the sign as sign settles on base.

*The concrete footing is the minimum below grade requirement as recommended by Outdoor Creations, Inc.
Any additional requirement such as additional height, inset mounting pocket, changes to mounting
method for local code requirements, etc. to be the responsibility of the customer.
Outdoor Creations Inc. does NOT supply footings with signs and is not liable for footings done by others.
By signing below, I (the customer), am responsible for footings done on site. I am also aware that
all signs are required to have a footing.
CUSTOMER APPROVAL x__________________________________________

OUTDOOR
CREATIONS
INC.
2270 Barney Street
Anderson, CA 96007
(530) 365-6106
FAX (530) 365-5129

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
INPUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
8-3-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
TDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
8-3-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
A2  Project Credit Sign



EW

SCALE: 1"=20'

020 20 4010

Structural Notes:
1) All subgrade to be scarified and recompacted to 95% relative density prior to placing rebar and concrete.
2) Concrete mix design to be 5 KSI @ 28 days, 4 inch slump, maximum .50 water/cement ratio by weight, 5% +/-

1% total air entrainment.
3) Structural concrete to be consolidated with a concrete vibrator
4) Rebar to be Grade 40 minimum.
5) Breaks in longitudinal rebar to be staggered 10' +/-.
6) Laps in rebar to be a minimum of 24".
7) Embeds to be set and secured into place prior to concrete placement.
8) Concrete finish on all walkways to be medium broom finish perpendicular to the path-of-travel.
9) Slope at Parking Area to be a maximum 2% in any direction.
10) Cross slope at all walkways and paths of travel to be  2%" maximum.
11) Maximum slope of walkways to be 5% in the direction of travel.
12) Dock designer/contractor toprovide a drop link and shackle type connector for gangway at abutment.

Barrel hinge type gangway connection is unacceptable for this application.

Civil Notes:
1) Contractor to contact USA (Underground Service Alert) at least 48 hours prior to excavation

on site.
2) Contractor to install BMPs (Best Management Practices) to prevent contamination of surface

waters during a storm water event.
3) Contractor to install a turbidity curtain prior to performing any work that could cause

suspended particles to flow into Diaz Lake. Submit preferred product to Inyo County Engineer
in sufficient time to allow review and approval.

4) Contractor to provide dewatering submittal prior to start of work.
5) Contractor to obtain dewatering permit prior to starting work.

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
. M. ERRANTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
input

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
S1  Structural Notes



#4 Rebar @ 12"  O.C., T&B, EW

Section A-A Sheet C2

Cut-Off Wall
ABUTMENT PROFILE- Sheet C2

Notes:

4'-10"

1'-9"

GRAVEL BASE

Varies

8'-0" (N.T.S.)

3"

#4 Rebar @ 24"  O.C., EF

3" (TYP)

#4 Rebar @ 12"  O.C., T&B, EW

3"

#4 Rebar @ 24"
O.C., EF

3:1 (H:V)

6" MAX DEPTH VARIES
(SEE NOTE 1)

EXISTING GROUND

COMPACTED NATIVE
OR IMPORTED FILL
(<3")

1'-6(MIN)"

#4 Rebar @ 12"  MAX

See Detail S-1
Sheet S2

DROP LINK CONNECTION
PER GANGWAY DESIGNER

7
8" GALVANIZED
SAFETY SHACKLE6"5

8" DIAMETER
STUD

Detail S-1
Abutment Connection to Gangway

Hot Dip Galvanize Steel
Components After Fabrication.

Barrel Hinge Type Gangway
Connection is Unacceptable

3/8" Rock (Aggregate-Base), 6" Thick

Railing Not Shown In This View
For Clarity

±3'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Plans Prepared by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drawer Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Independence, CA  93526

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
INYO COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
(760) 878-0201

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
Project Engineer: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Designed by:

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Drawn by:     Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
Drawing Name:

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Revised By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Checked By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
FOR REDUCED PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
input

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
input

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
input

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
8-23-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
DIAZ LAKE NON-MOTORIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
BOAT DOCK PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
S2  Concrete Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
1)	Embed for gangway attachment to be hot dipped galvanized steel.Embed for gangway attachment to be hot dipped galvanized steel.



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Public Works 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Greg Waters 
  
SUBJECT:  Knight Manor and Grandview Contract Award 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and American Asphalt South, Inc. of 
Riverside, CA for the provision of microfiber slurry seal asphalt coatings in an amount not to exceed $457,167.30 
for the period of September 6, 2022 through December 31, 2022, contingent upon the Board's approval of the FY 
2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained; and B) authorize the Public Works Director to execute all other project contract documents, including 
contract change orders, to the extent permitted by Public Contract Code Section 20142 and other applicable 
laws. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The roads in Knight Manor and Grandview Subdivisions, as well as the parking lot at the Inyo County Office of 
Education require the application of a slurry seal coating. 
 
Inyo County received six bids for the Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal Project on August 17, 2022, as 
listed below: 

1. American Asphalt South, Inc          $444,662.30 for Knight Manor and Grandview + Alt Add $12,505 for 
Office of Education Parking Lot  (Low Bidder) 

2. Sierra Nevada Construction           $491,807.00 for Knight Manor and Grandview + Alt Add $2,200 for 
office of Education Parking Lot 

3. VSS International, Inc                    $555,973.00 for Knight Manor and Grandview + Alt Add $86,000 for 
office of Education Parking Lot 

4. Doolittle Construction LLC             $559,927.00 for Knight Manor and Grandview + Alt Add $19,101 for 
Office of Education Parking Lot 

5. Pavement Coatings                       $601,591.00 for Knight Manor and Grandview + Alt Add $27,155 for 
office of Education Parking Lot 

6. Roy Allan Slurry Seal.                    $613,368.84 for Knight Manor and Grandview + Alt Add $9,005 for 
Office of Education Parking Lot 

 
Inyo County will realize an "Economy of Scale" savings of $30,704.80 by contracting for roadway coatings for 
both Knight Manor and Grandview Subdivision under one contract, with the requirement that both projects are 
consecutively performed under one mobilization. The cost of slurry coating the parking lot at the Inyo County 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Office of Education facility in Independence was also reduced by an indeterminate amount if performed under the 
same mobilization. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Board previously approved these projects under the RMRA Project Resolution #2022-14 on April 26, 2022: 
Project #19 included Grandview Subdivision Slurry Seal 
Project #22 included Knight Manor Subdivision Slury Seal  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to award the contract, and the roadways within the Knight Manor and Grandview 
Subdivisions, as well as the Inyo County Office of Education parking lot would continue to degradate, resulting in 
much higher rehabilitation costs at a future time. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
N/A 
  
FINANCING: 
Funds for the Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal Project will be paid out of the Road budget number 
034600 and object code 5700 Construction in Progress. $200,000 of the contract will be reimbursed with 
CRRSAA funds and $244,662.30 will be utilizing RMRA gas tax funding which is currently in our Road Fund 
Balance. The Inyo County Office of Education Parking Lot in Independence will be paid out of Deferred 
Maintenance budget 011501 and object code 5640 Structures and Improvements in the amount of $12,505.00. 
Current budget for the Office of Education parking lot is $5,000, however, we will have savings on other projects 
so the budget team approved moving forward with this project. 
 
Funding for the Road budget portion of this project is being added to the CAO recommended budget. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. American Asphalt Bid Package (Apparent Low Bidder) 
2. Bid Tab Sheet 
3. Knight Manor Slurry Seal Road List  
4. Grandview Slurry Seal Road List  
5. American Asphalt Construction Contract  
6. SB 1 Road Projects  
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 8/19/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/19/2022 
Greg Waters Approved - 8/19/2022 
Michael Errante Approved - 8/19/2022 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/24/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/24/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/24/2022 



































































Knight Manor Slurry Seal Road List
As of 4/1/2022

Road Road Name From To LF Width FT SF
3054 TERRACE DRIVE REYNOLDS ROAD REYNOLDS ROAD 1864 38 70,832
3057 PINE ROAD REYNOLDS ROAD MOUNTAIN DRIVE 847 38 32,186
3057 PINE ROAD MOUNTAIN DRIVE ELMCREST DRIVE 364 38 13,832
3058 JUNIPER ROAD REYNOLDS ROAD MOUNTAIN ROAD 897 38 34,086
3059 MOUNTAIN ROAD END JUNIPER 879 38 33,402
3059 MOUNTAIN ROAD JUNIPER PINE ROAD 353 38 13,414
3060 MEADOW LARK ROAD ELMCREST DRIVE MOUNTAIN ROAD 305 38 11,590
3061 ELMCREST DRIVE MEADOWLARK ROAD PINE ROAD 1282 38 48,716
3061 ELMCREST DRIVE PINE ROAD END (CDS) 446 38 16,948
3063 CARMELEA LANE OLIVIA LANE TAMMY WAY 611 34 20,774
3063 CARMELEA LANE TAMMY WAY MARIANNE WAY 259 33 8,547
3063 CARMELEA LANE MARIANNE WAY END 350 33 11,550
3064 MARIANNE WAY OLIVIA WAY JULIE ANN WAY 227 33 7,491
3064 MARIANNE WAY JULIE ANN LANE CARMELIA WAY 520 34 17,680
3065 JULIE ANN LANE REYNOLDS ROAD BETTY LOU LANE 172 33 5,676
3065 JULIE ANN LANE BETTY LOU LANE MARY ANNE LANE 184 33 6,072
3066 BETTY LOU LANE JULIE ANN MICHELLE CIRCLE 345 31 10,695
3066 BETTY LOU LANE MICHELLE CIRCLE END 216 31 6,696
3067 MICHELLE CIRCLE BETTY LOU END 223 34 7,582
3068 MYRTLE LANE REYNOLDS ROAD KHRISTINE CIRCLE 315 33 10,395
3068 MYRTLE LANE KHRISTINE CIRCLE OLIVIA LANE 420 34 14,280
3069 KRISTINE CIRCLE MYRTLE WAY END (CDS) 359 33 11,847
3070 OLIVIA LANE REYNOLDS ROAD MARIANNE WAY 249 33 8,217
3070 OLIVIA LANE MARIANNE WAY MYRTLE LANE 401 34 13,634
3070 OLIVIA LANE MYRTLE LANE CARMELIA LANE 282 33 9,306
3070 OLIVIA LANE CARMELIA LANE TAWNYA CIRCLE 103 33 3,399
3070 OLIVIA LANE TAWNYA CIRCLE END (CDS) 771 34 26,214
3071 TAMMY LANE CARMELIA WAY END (CDS) 190 33 6,270
3072 TAWNYA LANE OLIVIA LANE END (CDS) 304 35 10,640

Total Square Feet 491,971
Total Square Yards 54,663

Estimated #'s of combined aggregate and emulsion /Square Yard 20
Estimated TONS of combined aggregate and emulsion 547



Grandview Slurry Seal Road List
As of 3/31/2022

Road # Road Name From To LF Width SF

Grandview Tract (Manor Market)
1067 MEADOW LANE WEST LINE STREET BIRCH STREET 316 38 12,008
1067 MEADOW LANE BIRCH STREET WEST CEDAR STREET 718 36 25,848
1067 MEADOW LANE WEST CEDAR STREET PINION ROAD 257 39 10,023
1068 MESQUITE ROAD WEST BIRCH STREET EAST CEDAR STREET 695 40 27,800
1068 MESQUITE ROAD LAUREL ROAD PA ME LANE 1629 37 60,273
1069 BIRCH STREET EAST PA-ME LANE WILDROSE LANE 285 38 10,830
1069 BIRCH STREET EAST WILDROSE LANE GRANDVIEW DRIVE 182 37 6,734
1069 BIRCH STREET EAST GRANDVIEW  NORTH END GRANDVIEW SOUTH END 122 37 4,514
1069 BIRCH STREET EAST GRANDVIEW SOUTH END END 138 39 5,382

1069A BIRCH STREET WEST EAST END MESQUITE ROAD 188 40 7,520        
1069A BIRCH STREET WEST MESQUITE ROAD MEADOW LANE 290 40 11,600     
1069A BIRCH STREET WEST MEADOW LANE WEST END 130 40 5,200        
1070 CEDAR STREET EAST MESQUITE ROAD GRANDVIEW DRIVE 358 40 14,320

1070A CEDAR STREET WEST MEADOW LANE N. TUMBLEWEED ROAD 303 38 11,514
1071 PINION ROAD MESQUITE ROAD END (CDS) 525 40 21,000
1072 LAUREL ROAD GRANDVIEW LANE MESQUITE ROAD 364 39 14,196
1072 LAUREL ROAD MESQUITE ROAD PINION ROAD 244 40 9,760
1078 INDIAN CREEK DRIVE PA-ME LANE TUMBLEWEED ROAD 997 41 40,877
1078 INDIAN CREEK DRIVE TUMBLEWEED ROAD END 685 39 26,715
1079 TUMBLEWEED ROAD NORTH W. CEDAR STREET BOTH ENDS 658 38 25,004

1079A TUMBLEWEED ROAD SOUTH INDIAN CREEK ROAD END 1331 38 50,578     
1080 MORNINGSIDE DRIVE PAH-ME LANE WILDROSE LANE 282 38 10,716
1080 MORNINGSIDE DRIVE WILDROSE LANE GRANDVIEW DRIVE 308 38 11,704
1080 MORNINGSIDE DRIVE GRANDVIEW DRIVE MESQUITE ROAD 353 39 13,767
1080 MORNINGSIDE DRIVE MESQUITE ROAD END 327 39 12,753
1081 WILDROSE LANE BIRCH STREET MORNINGSIDE DRIVE 1137 38 43,206
1081 WILDROSE LANE MORNINGSIDE DRIVE MESQUITE ROAD 395 40 15,800
1082 GRANDVIEW DRIVE WEST LINE STREET BIRCH STREET 528 37 19,536
1082 GRANDVIEW DRIVE BIRCH STREET CEDAR STREET 511 38 19,418
1082 GRANDVIEW DRIVE CEDAR STREET LAUREL ROAD 298 39 11,622
1082 GRANDVIEW DRIVE LAUREL ROAD MORNINGSIDE DRIVE 317 40 12,680
1082 GRANDVIEW DRIVE MORNINGSIDE DRIVE MESQUITE ROAD 399 39 15,561
1116 CAROL LANE IRENE WAY BOTH ENDS 1775 37 65,675     

Total Square Feet 654,134
Total Square Yards 72,682

Estimated #'s of combined aggregate and emulsion /Square Yard 20
Estimated TONS of combined aggregate and emulsion 727

1 of 1



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 1 of 12 
  05102019 

CONTRACT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF INYO  
and 

______________________________________________, CONTRACTOR 

for the 

___________________________________________________ PROJECT 

  
 THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and 
made and entered into effective, ___________________, 20_____, by and between the 
COUNTY OF INYO, a political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as 
"COUNTY"), and _______________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as 
“CONTRACTOR”), for the construction or removal of ___________________________ 
PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), which parties agree, for and in 
consideration of the mutual promises, as follows: 
 
1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED.  CONTRACTOR  shall furnish, at his/her own 
expense, all labor, materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery, equipment, 
transportation, permits, services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions and otherwise 
shall perform all work necessary or appurtenant to construct the Project in accordance with the 
Special Provisions, which are incorporated herein by reference per section 4(c) of this Contract, 
within the Time for Completion set forth, as well as in all other in the Contract Documents, for: 
     
  Title:  __________________________________________________PROJECT 
 
2. TIME OF COMPLETION.  Project work shall begin within _____ calendar days after 
receipt of the Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and 
shall continue until all requested services are completed.  Said services shall be completed no 
later than the Time of Completion as noted in the Project’s Special Provisions. Procedures for 
any extension of time shall be complied with as noted in the Project’s Special Provisions. 
 
3. PAYMENT/CONSIDERATION.  For the performance of all such work, COUNTY 
shall pay to CONTRACTOR for said work the total amount of: 
__________________________________________________ dollars ($                             .       ), 
adjusted by such increases or decreases as authorized in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, and payable at such times and upon such conditions as otherwise set forth in the 
Contract Documents. 
 
4. ALL PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN.  CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree 
that this Contract shall include and consist of:  
  a.   All of the provisions set forth expressly herein;  
  b. The Bid Proposal Form, the Faithful Performance Bond, and the Labor 
and Materials Payment Bond, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this 
reference; and  



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 2 of 12 
  05102019 

 c. All of the other Contract Documents, as described in Section 5-1.02, 
“Definitions,” of the Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, 
dated October, 2015, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part of this Contract by this 
reference, including without limitation, the Bid Package, the Standard Specifications of the Inyo 
County Public Works Department, dated October, 2015, and the Special Provisions concerning 
this Project including the Appendices, the Plans, any and all amendments or changes to any of 
the above-listed documents, including, without limitation, contract change orders, and any and 
all documents incorporated by reference into any of the above-listed documents.  

 
5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  Contractor represents that he/she is qualified and 
licensed to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract.  County relies upon the 
representations of Contractor regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and ability 
to perform the services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract.  Acceptance of work 
by the County does not operate to release Contractor from any responsibility to perform work to 
professional and/or trade standards. Contractor shall provide properly skilled professional and 
technical personnel to perform all services under this Contract.  Contractor shall perform all 
services required by this Contract in a manner and according to the standards observed by a 
competent practitioner of the profession.  All work products of whatsoever nature delivered to 
the County shall be prepared in a manner conforming to the standards of quality normally 
observed by a person practicing in Contractor’s profession and/or trade. 
 
6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  Nothing contained herein or any document 
executed in connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership 
or joint venture relationship between County and Contractor, nor to allow County to exercise 
discretion or control over the manner in which Contractor performs the work or services that are 
the subject matter of this Contract; provided, however, the work or services to be provided by 
Contractor shall be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the County’s objectives in 
entering this Contract.  

 
 Contractor is an independent contractor, not an employee of County or any of its 
subsidiaries or affiliates.  Contractor will not represent him/herself to be nor hold her/himself out 
as an employee of County. Contractor acknowledges that s/he shall not have the right or 
entitlement in or to any of the pension, retirement or other benefit programs now or hereafter 
available to County's employees.  The consideration set forth in Paragraph 3 shall be the sole 
consideration due Contractor for the services rendered hereunder. It is understood that County 
will not withhold any amounts for payment of taxes from the Contractor‘s compensation 
hereunder.  Any and all sums due under any applicable state, federal or municipal law or union 
or professional and/or trade guild regulations shall be Contractor’s sole responsibility. Contractor 
shall indemnify and hold County harmless from any and all damages, claims and expenses 
arising out of or resulting from any claims asserted by any  third party, including but not limited 
to a taxing authority, as a result of or in connection with payments due it from Contractor’s 
compensation.  
 
7. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING.  The parties recognize that a 
substantial inducement to County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation, 
experience and competence of Contractor.  Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or 
obligations of the Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the express consent 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 3 of 12 
  05102019 

of the County.  Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under 
this Contract without the written authorization of the County.  If County consents to such 
subcontract, Contractor shall be fully responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the 
subcontractor.  Nothing in this Contract shall create any contractual relationship between County 
and subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the County to pay any monies 
due to any such subcontractor, unless otherwise required by law. 

 
8. CLAIMS RESOLUTION.  Pursuant to Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code, any 
and all claims submitted by Contractor to County will follow the provisions as set forth in the 
Project’s Special Provisions. 

 
9. INSURANCE INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and 
indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all 
claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney fees arising out of the performance of 
the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the 
Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone 
for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole 
negligence, or willful misconduct of the County. 
 
10. INSURANCE.  For the duration of this Agreement, Contractor shall procure and 
maintain insurance of the scope and amount specified in Attachment 3 and with the provisions 
specified in that attachment. 
 
11. POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the 
meaning of the Political Reform Act because Contractor: 

a.    Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition of 
information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control and direction of the 
County or of any County official, other than normal Contract monitoring; and 

b. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of 
information, advice, recommendation or counsel [FPPC Reg. 18700(a)(2)]. 
 
12. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.   

Performance Standards:  Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession 
and/or trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and 
regulations that relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.   

a. Safety Training:  
i. Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as needed to assure 

work will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a language" that is 
understandable to employees receiving the training.  The training shall in all respects be 
in compliance with CAL OSHA;  and  

ii. Contractor working with employees shall maintain a written Injury and Illness 
Prevention (IIP) Program, a copy of which must be maintained at each worksite or at a 
central worksite identified for the employees, if the Contractor has non-fixed worksites; 
and 

iii. Contractor using subcontractors with the approval of the County to perform 
the work which is the subject of this Contract shall require each subcontractor working 
with employees to comply with the requirements of this section. 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 4 of 12 
  05102019 

b. Child, Family and Spousal Support reporting Obligations:  
i. Contractor shall comply with the state and federal child, family and spousal 

support reporting requirements and with all lawfully served wage and earnings 
assignment orders or notices of assignment relating to child, family and spousal support 
obligations. 
c. Nondiscrimination: 

i. Contractor shall not discriminate in employment practices or in the delivery 
of services on the basis of membership in a protected class which includes any class 
recognized by law and not limited to race, color, religion, sex (gender), sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin (Including language use restrictions), ancestry, 
disability (mental and physical, including HIV and Aids), medical Conditions 
(cancer/genetic characteristics), age (40 and above) and request for family care leave.  

ii. Contractor represents that it is in compliance with federal and state laws 
prohibiting discrimination in employment and agrees to stay in compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. sections 12101, et. seq.), Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title VII (42 
U.S.C. 2000, et. seq.), the California Fair Employment Housing Act (California 
Government Code sections 12900, et. seq.) and regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant thereto. 

 
13. LICENSES.  Contractor represents and warrants to County that it has all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required 
of Contractor to practice its trade and/or profession. Contractor represents and warrants to 
County that Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times 
during the term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals which are legally 
required of Contractor to practice its and/or profession.  
 
14. PREVAILING WAGE.  Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code, 
Contractor agrees to comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which 
this Contract is subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined 
by the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the 
Department publication entitled "General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the 
project is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file 
with the State Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in said 
publication. Such rates of wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial 
Relations and the offices of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and are 
available to any interested party upon request.  Contractor agrees to comply with County and the 
Department of Industrial Relations regulations in submitting the certified payroll. 
 
15. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE. This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State 
of California.  The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of 
California for the County of Inyo. 
 
16. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 
communication that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in 
writing and either served personally or sent prepaid, first class mail.  Any such notice, demand, 
et cetera, shall be addressed to the other party at the address set forth herein below.  Either party 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 5 of 12 
  05102019 

may change its address by notifying the other party of the change of address.  Notice shall be 
deemed communicated within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this 
section. 

 
If to County:  County of Inyo 

                     Public Works Department 
   Attn: __________________________ 

       168 N. Edwards 
   PO Drawer Q 
   Independence, CA 93526 
 

If to Contractor: ___________________________ 
    ___________________________ 
    ___________________________ 
    ___________________________ 

 
17. AMENDMENTS.  This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written 
document executed by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by Inyo County 
Counsel. 
 
18. WAIVER.  No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder.   
 
19. TERMINATION.  This Contract may be terminated for the reasons stated below: 

a.    Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities 
under this Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the 
other party or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract.  If termination 
for cause is given by either party to the other and it is later determined that the other 
party was not in default or default was excusable, then the notice of termination shall 
be deemed to have been given without cause pursuant to paragraph “b” of this 
section; or 

b.    By either party without cause upon fifteen (15) days' written notice of 
termination.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for 
services performed up to the effective date of termination; or 

c.    By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding 
ending or being materially decreased during the term of this Contract.  

 
20. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence for every provision. 
 
21. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and 
effect and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated. 
 
22. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.  It is 
understood and agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by 
the Inyo County Board of Supervisors upon Notice and Public Hearing.  In the event that the 
Board of Supervisors declines to enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 6 of 12 
  05102019 

there is, in fact, no binding agreement, either written or oral, between the parties herein. 
 
23. ATTACHMENTS.  All attachments referred to are incorporated herein and made a 
part of this Contract.  
 
24. EXECUTION.  This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall constitute one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties.  In 
approving this Contract, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such 
counterpart.   

 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract, including the Contract Documents and 
all other documents which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and 
exclusive agreement between the County and Contractor.  All prior written and oral 
communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are 
superseded in total by this Contract.   

---o0o--- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR have each caused this Contract to be 
executed on its behalf by its duly authorized representative, effective as of the day and year first 
above written. 
 
COUNTY      CONTRACTOR 
 
COUNTY OF INYO           
 
By:        By:       
 
Name:        Name:       
 
Title:        Title:       
 
Dated:        Dated:       
 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:        
        
_________________________________    
County Counsel 
        
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:   
                                
__________________________________              
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
 
__________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 7 of 12 
  05102019 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

________________________________________ PROJECT 
 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
(100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That                           

         as Principal, hereinafter “Contractor,”  
 (Name of Contractor) 
and                  

 (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 

as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the County of Inyo  
as Obligee, hereinafter called County, in the amount of                
         dollars ($                _______   .  _    ), for 
the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assignees, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor has, by written Contract, dated ____________________, 20____, 
entered into an Contract with the County for the Construction of the _______________________   
_________________PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "Project"), to be constructed in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract for the Project, which contract 
is by reference incorporated herein and is hereinafter referred to as the "Contract.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if Contractor 
shall promptly and faithfully perform said Contract, then this obligation shall be null and void; 
otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
The Surety hereby waives notice of any alteration or extension of time made by the County. 
 
Whenever Contractor shall be, and is declared by County to be, in default under the Contract, the 
County having performed Owner's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the 
default, or shall promptly either: 
 1. Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or, 
 
 2. Obtain a Bid or Bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and   
  conditions, and upon determination by Surety of the lowest responsible Bidder, or if 

the County elects, upon determination by the County and the Surety jointly of the 
lowest responsible Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and County, 
and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a 
succession of defaults under the Contract or contracts of completion arranged under 
this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the balance of the 
Contract price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the 
Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 8 of 12 
  05102019 

term "balance of the Contract price", as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total 
amount payable by County to Contractor under the Contract and any amendments 
thereto, less the amount properly paid by County to Contractor. 

 
Any suit under this Bond must be instituted before the expiration of two (2) years from the date 
on which final payment under the Contract falls due, or the date on which any warranty or 
guarantee period expires, whichever is later. 
 
No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other 
than the County named herein. 
 

---o0o--- 
  



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 9 of 12 
  05102019 

Signed and sealed this ______ day of _________________, 20 _____. 

 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
         (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
       ____________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
           (Name of Contractor) 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
           (Signature) 
  (SEAL)                              
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
NOTE:  THE SIGNATURES OF THE CONTRACTOR AND THE SURETY MUST 
EACH BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTHER OFFICER 
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW) AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.  
The Faithful Performance Bond must be executed by a corporate surety on this form. No 
substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged 
statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds 
in such amounts on behalf of the surety must accompany the Faithful Performance Bond. 
 
ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT: 
     County of Inyo 
     224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N 
     Independence, California 93526 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 10 of 12 
  05102019 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 

____________________________________________ PROJECT 
 

LABOR AND MATERIALS PAYMENT BOND 
(100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that _____________________________________ 
        (Name of Contractor) 
 
______________________________________ as Principal, hereinafter “CONTRACTOR,” 
 
and __________________________________________________________________________ 
    (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto the County of 
Inyo as Obligee, hereinafter called COUNTY, for the use and benefit of claimants as hereinafter  
defined in the amount of                        
dollars ($          _______       ._____   ) for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind 
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assignees, jointly and severally, 
firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor has by written contract dated _________________________, 20 _____, 
entered into an Contract with the County for the construction of the _________________ 
PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), to be constructed in accordance with the 
terms and conditions set forth in the contract for the PROJECT, which contract is by reference 
incorporated herein, and is hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACT.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if Contractor 
shall promptly make payment to all claimants as hereinafter defined, for all labor and materials 
used or reasonably required for use in the performance of the Contract, then this obligation shall 
be void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect, subject, however, to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. A claimant is defined as one having a direct contract with the Contractor, or with a 

Subcontractor of the Contractor, for labor, materials, or both, used or reasonably required 
for use in the performance of the Contract. Labor and materials is construed to include, 
but not limited to, that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone 
service or rental of equipment directly applicable to the Contract. 

 
2. The above named Contractor and Surety hereby jointly agree with the County that every 

claimant as herein defined, who has not been paid in full before the expiration of a period 
of ninety (90) calendar days after the date on which the last of such claimant's work or 
labor was done or performed, or materials were furnished by such claimant, may sue on 
this Bond for the benefit of such claimant, prosecute the suit to final judgment for such 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 11 of 12 
  05102019 

sum or sums as may be justly due claimant, and have execution thereon. The County shall 
not be liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any such suit. 

 
3. No suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant: 

 
a) Unless claimant, other than one having a direct contract with the Contractor, shall have 

given written notice to any two of the following: the Contractor, the County, or the 
Surety above named, within ninety (90) calendar days after such claimant did or 
performed the last of the work or labor, or furnished the last of the material for which 
said claim is made, stating with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the 
name of the party to whom the materials were furnished, or for whom the work or 
labor was done or performed. Such notice shall be served by mailing the same by 
registered mail or certified mail, postage prepaid, in any envelope addressed to the 
Contractor, County, or Surety, at the address below, or at any place where an office is 
regularly maintained for the transaction of their business. Such notice may also be 
served in the state in which the aforesaid project is located, save that such service 
need not be made by a public officer. 

 
b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which County accepted the 

work done under the Contract. However, if any limitation embodied in this Bond is 
prohibited by any law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shall be 
deemed to be amended so as to be equal to the minimum period of limitation 
permitted by such law. 

 
c) Other than in a State Court of competent jurisdiction in and for the County or other 

political subdivision of the state in which the Project, or any part thereof, is situated, 
and not elsewhere. 

 
4. The amount of this Bond shall be reduced by and to the extent of any payment or 

payments made in good faith hereunder, inclusive of the payment by Surety of mechanics' 
liens which may be filed or recorded against said Project, whether or not claim for the 
amount of such lien be presented under and against this Bond. 

 
---o0o--- 



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 12 of 12 
  05102019 

Signed and sealed this _________ day of _______________, 20 ___. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
           (Name of Contractor)  
                    
       By: ________________________________ 
            (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
       ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
                
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
        ___________________________________ 
         (Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
            (Signature) 
  (SEAL) 
        ___________________________________ 
         (Title of Authorized Person) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
            (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
NOTE: 
THE SIGNATURES OF THE CONTRACTOR AND THE SURETY MUST BE 
ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTHER OFFICER 
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW).  
The Labor and Materials Payment Bond must be executed by a corporate surety on this form. No 
substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged 
statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds 
in such amounts on behalf of the surety, must accompany the Labor and Materials Payment 
Bond. 
 
ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
   County of Inyo 
   224 N. Edwards, P.O. Box N 
   Independence, California 93526 
 
  



_____________________________________  Project 
Construction Contract and Attachments – No. 147 

Page 13 of 12 
  05102019 

ATTACHMENT 3 
 
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

__________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE _____________________________________________________ PROJECT 

 
 TERM: 
           FROM:                          TO:       

 
SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts - 1 
 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, and for five years 
thereafter, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his 
agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  
 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less 
than $5,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form CA 0001 covering Code 1 (any 
auto), with limits no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with 
Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.  

4. Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an “All Risk” (Special Perils) 
coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no 
coinsurance penalty provisions.  

5. Surety Bonds as described below and elsewhere in bid requirements.  
6. Professional Liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $2,000,000 per 

occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.  
7. Contractors’ Pollution Legal Liability and/or Asbestos Legal Liability and/or Errors 

and Omissions (if project involves environmental hazards) with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.  

 
If the contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher 
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions  
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may 
require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to 
pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured 
retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any 
policies, including Excess liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) 
or deductible that exceeds $25,000 [or $50,000 for projects in excess of $500,000] unless 
approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to 
the Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts 



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts - 2 
 

otherwise due Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured 
retention (SIR) provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named Insured. The policy 
must also provide that Defense costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will 
satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and 
endorsements for verification.  
 
OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  
 

1. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as 
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or 
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations and automobiles 
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of the Contractor. General liability 
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance 
(at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10, CG 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, 
or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). An additional insured 
endorsement must be submitted along with the certificate/s of insurance as evidence, 
though failure to supply does not relive contractor of requirement. 

2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 
04 13 as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, 
or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with 
it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies. 

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall provide that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County. 

 
Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) Insurance  
Contractor may submit evidence of Builder’s Risk insurance in the form of Course of 
Construction coverage. Such coverage shall name Inyo County as a loss payee as their 
interest may appear.  
 
If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of Inyo County, an 
Installation Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property Installation Floater shall 
be obtained that provides for the improvement, remodel, modification, alteration, conversion 
or adjustment to existing buildings, structures, processes, machinery and equipment. The 
Property Installation Floater shall provide property damage coverage for any building, 
structure, machinery or equipment damaged, impaired, broken, or destroyed during the 
performance of the Work, including during transit, installation, and testing at Inyo County’s 
site.  
 
Claims Made Policies – (Inyo County prefers occurrence type CGL policies)  
If any coverage required is written on a claims-made coverage form:  

1. The retroactive date must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of 
the contract or the beginning of contract work.  



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts - 3 
 

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least 
five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

3. If coverage is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, 
the Contractor must purchase extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of 
five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to Inyo County for 
review.  

5. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/remediation, the 
Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos 
exclusions. If the services involve mold identification/remediation, the Contractors 
Pollution Liability policy shall not contain a mold exclusion, and the definition of 
Pollution shall include microbial matter, including mold.  

 
Umbrella or Excess Policies 
The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability limits as required in 
this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the Primary and 
Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured 
Retentions (SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall 
be provided on a true “following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as 
broad as provided on the underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance 
policies maintained by the Additional Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply 
to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s 
primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation  
Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor 
may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain 
any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ 
Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Inyo 
County for all work performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors. An 
endorsement specifying this waiver must be submitted along with the certificate of insurance 
as evidence, though failure to supply does not relive contractor of requirement. 
 
Verification of Coverage  
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory endorsements 
or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and a 
copy of the Declarations and Endorsements Pages of the CGL and any Excess policies 
listing all policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the 
Declarations & Endorsements pages are to be received and approved by Inyo County before 
work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning 
shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to 



Attachment ___: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts 

2022 Insurance Requirements for Construction Contracts - 4 
 

require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo County reserves the right to modify these 
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, 
coverage, or other special circumstances. 
 
Subcontractors  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional 
insured on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage, subcontractors shall 
provide coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13.  
 
Duration of Coverage  
CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but not limited 
to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years for 
Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Surety Bonds  
Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds:  

1. Bid Bond  
2. Performance Bond  
3. Payment Bond  
4. Maintenance Bond  

The Payment Bond and the Performance Bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. If the 
Performance Bond provides for a one-year warranty a separate Maintenance Bond is not 
necessary. If the warranty period specified in the contract is for longer than one year a 
Maintenance Bond equal to 10% of the contract price is required. Bonds shall be duly executed 
by a responsible corporate surety, authorized to issue such bonds in the State of California and 
secured through an authorized agent with an office in California. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances  
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances. 



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of lnyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 26'h day of April 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

Public Works -
SB 1 Road
Projects/
Reso # 2022-14

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to: A) Approve proposed
Resolution No.2022-14, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of lnyo, State
of California, ldentifying Projects to be Funded by Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Funds
Pursuant to SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act," and authorize the Chairperson to
sign; B) Approve the recommended project lists attached to satisfy the documentation
requirements to receive SB1, Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding from the
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA); and C) Authorize the Public Works
Department to apply for and submit all required documentation to receive the lnyo County
allotment of SB 1, Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding and authorized the
Public Works Director, or his designee, to sign for the RMRA funding and all associated
supporting documents. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 26th

Day April,2022

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk oJ the Board of Supemisors

fd;rf U,tAf,t,,tar,-

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: Public Works

DATE: May 6,2022
By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

DEPARTMENTAL . ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: April26,2022

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJEGT: Resolution Adopting List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022-23 Funded by SB 1

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board:
A) Approve proposed Resolution No. 2022-14, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of lnyo,
State of California, ldentifying Projects to be Funded by Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Funds Pursuant to
SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act," and authorize the Chairperson to sign;
B) Approve the recommended project lists attached to satisfo the documentation requirements to receive SB1,
Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account
(RMRA); and
C) Authorize the Public Works Department to apply for and submit all required documentation to receive the lnyo
County allotment of SB 1, Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding and authorize the Public Works
Director, or his designee, to sign forthe RMRA funding and allassociated supporting documents.

SU MMARY/J USTIFICATION :

On April 28,2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill (SB) 1, to address basic road maintenance, rehabilitation and
critical safety needs on both the State highway and local streets and roads. An overview and details of the
Senate Bill were outlined at the Board meeting of May 9,2017. To recap, SB 1, or The Road Repair and
Accountability Act of 2017, will increase the per gallon fuel excise taxes; increase the diesel fuel sales tax;
increase vehicle registration fees; and provides inflationary adjustments to tax rates in future years. The collected
revenue is to be placed in the State Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) for allocation.

State law requires counties and cities to establish eligibility for SB 1 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Account (RMRA) funding on an annual basis by submitting a list of proposed projects to the California
Transportation Commission (CTC). Project lists do not have to be adopted within a county or city budget for FY
2018-2019 and into the future, but project lists do have to be adopted by resolution at a regular public meeting.
Projects that are proposed do not need to be completed in that fiscalyear, and can be amended or continued in
subsequent project proposals.

Public Works is bringing a resolution and project lists for the 2022-23 SBI funding cycle as required in the SB1 ,

Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 legislation to be eligible for Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Account (RM RA) funding.

The requested projects in this SBI funding cycle will include a continuation of any previously approved projects,



Agenda Request
Page 2

including but not limited to:

Project #9 - Cactus Flat Road Repair
Project #10 - North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, Birchim Lane lmprovement; State matching funds
requirement
Project #13 - Crack Fill, Patching, Restriping, Overlay, Guardrails, and Culverts, As Required
Project #14 - Warm Springs Road Grader Overlay
Project #15 - Death Valley Road Chip Seal
Project #16 - Trona Wildrose Road Chip Seal
Project #17 - Panamint Valley Road Paver Overlay
Project #18 - Old Spanish Trail Road Grader Overlay
Project #19 - Grandview, Mesquite, and Meadow Lane Fiber Seal Project (Originally Approved 2021, Revised for
2022)
Project #20 - Meadow Creek I & ll, Lazy A Sidewalk lmprovement
Project #21 - Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation
Project #22 - Micro Fiber Slurry Seal (Originally Approved 2021, Revised for 2022)
Project #23 - Guardrail Replacement and Modernization (Originally Approved 2021, Revised for 2022)
Project #24 - Trona Wildrose Reconstruction
Project #25 - Lone Pine Town Streets Asphalt Resurfacing Project
Project #26 - Lone Pine Sidewalks and ADA lmprovement Project

The requested projects in this SBI funding cycle will include newly listed projects, including but not limited to:

Project #27 - Fog Seal Multiple Roads

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve the resolution and project lists; however, this is not recommended as
the County would not be entitled to the SBI funding. The addition of this funding will allow for continuing
improvements to the County's road infrastructure and provide safer roads for the traveling public.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
The attached Resolution is submitted for Board approval of proposed RMRA (SB-1) funded projects for the Fiscal
Year 2022-2023.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2022-2023 Proposed Project List Resolution

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
Breanne Nelums
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Michael Errante

Created/lnitiated - 41412022
Approved - 41512022
Approved - 41512022
Approved - 41512022
Approved - 41512022
Approved - 41512022
Final Approval - 41512022



RESOTUTTON NO.2022-L4

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A IIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 FU

SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter

5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April
2017 to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and

WHEREAS, SB 1- includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the
residents of lnyo County are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and

which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, lnyo County must adopt by resolution a.list of projects proposed to receive

fiscal yearfunding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by

SB L, which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed

schedule forthe project's completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement;and

WHEREAS, lnyo County, will receive an estimated 53,653,301- in RMRA funding in Fiscal

Year 2022-23 from SB 1; and

WHEREAS, this is the 6th year in which lnyo County is receiving SB 1 funding and will
enable lnyo County to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety
improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility
options for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and

WHEREAS, lnyo County has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input
into our community's transportation priorities/the project list; and

WHEREAS, lnyo County used a Pavement Management System to develop the SB 1-

project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority and cost-effective
projects that also meet the communities priorities for transportation investment; and

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help lnyo County maintain and rehabilitate dozens

of the 530 streets froads, and several of the 50 bridges, add active transportation infrastructure
throughout the County this year and several types of similar projects into the future; and

WHEREAS, the 20L8 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment

found that lnyo County's streets and roads are in an "excellent/good/at-risk/poor" condition
and this revenue will help us increase the overall quality of our road system and over the next

decade will bring our streets and roads into a "excellent/good" condition; and

WHEREAS, the SB L project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads
infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets

Page 1 of 3



L.

2.

infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant
positive co-benefits statewide.

NOW, THEREFORE lT lS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the Board of Supervisors

of lnyo County, State of California, as follows:

The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

The following list of newly proposed projects will be funded in-part or solely with Fiscal

Year 2022-23 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:

[See Attachment A]

The following previously proposed and adopted projects may also utilize Fiscal Year

2022-23 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With
the relisting of these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the County is

reaffirming to the public and the State our intent to fund these projects with Road

Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:

Project #9 - Cactus Flat Road Repair

Project #10 - North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, Birchim Lane lmprovemen! State

matching funds requirement
Project #13 - Crack Fill, Patching, Restriping, Overlay, Guardrails, and Culverts, As Required

Project #L4- Warm Springs Road Grader Overlay
Project #15 - Death Valley Road Chip Seal

Project #1-6 - Trona Wildrose Road Chip Seal

Project #I7 - Panamint Valley Road Paver Overlay
Project #18 - Old Spanish Trail Road Grader Overlay
Project #19 - Grandview, Mesquite, and Meadow Lane Fiber Seal (Revised, roads added)

Project #2O - Meadow Creek I & ll, Lazy A Sidewalk lmprovement
Project #2L - Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation
Project #22 - MicroFiber Slurry Seal (Revised, roads added)
Project #23 - Guardrail Replacement and Modernization (Revised, roads added)

Project #24 -Trona Wildrose Reconstruction
Project #25 - Lone Pine Town Streets Asphalt Resurfacing Project
Project #26 - Lone Pine Sidewalks and ADA lmprovement Project

[See Attachment A]

Project #27 - Various Roads Fog Coat Project

3

Page 2 of 3



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of lnyo County, State of
California this 26th day of April,2022, by the following vote:

AYES: -5- Supervisors Griffiths, Kingsley, Pucci, Roeser, Totheroh
NOES: -0-
ABSENT: -0-
ABSTAIN: -0-

c , lnyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest: Leslie L. Chapman
Clerk of the Board

By
Assistad Cldrk of the Board

Page 3 of 3



Attachment A - Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1

Proiects

Project #27

Various Roads Fog Coat Project

TR#18-002

Description

The Various Road Fog Coat Project involves the preparation and application of fog seal and
associated striping and pavement markings of Rock Creek Road (1001), Fort lndependence
(3029), Shabbell Lane (3036), Whitney Portal Road West (40184), and Nine Mile Canyon Road
(s040)

Locations

Rock Creek Road (1001), Fort lndependence (3029), Shabbell Lane (3036), Whitney Portal Road

West (40184), and Nine Mile Canyon Road (5040)

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 5 years

Anticipated construction date:

July 2O22 through June 2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

S750,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2022/2023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #9

Cactus Flat Road Repair

Description;

This project will consist of an asphalt overlay of 1500' x2O' of damaged pavement on Cactus Flat Road #5024.

The Department of Water and Power, City of Los Angles (DWP), will be doing a realignment of Cactus Flat

Road, a County Road, to allow DWP to perform infrastructure upgrades. Upon completion of the realignment,

the Countywill perform an asphaltoverlayon a 1500'section of Cactus Flat East of the DWP project boundary

Location:

Cactus Flat Road is located in lnyo County, just south of Olancha. The section that will be repaired is

approximately 5 miles west of the intersection of Cactus Flat Road and US395, 5 miles south of Olancha

Estimated useful life:

20 years

Anticipated construction date:

7 / L / 2o2L th rough 6 / 30 /2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be;

lnyo Engineers Estimate Sgo,ooo



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2O22/ZOZZ SB 1 Proiects

Project #L0

North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, Birchim Lane lmprovement;

State matching funds requirement

Description;

ln2Ot7, a storm system destroyed a County bridge located in North Round Valley Road #1003, a County Road.

This bridge was on the primary access route for the community of 40 Acres, located at the North end of the

paved section of North Round Valley Road, approximately one mile north of the bridge. This bridge

replacement qualified for State of California OES disaster funds al75% reimbursement of project costs,

incident #2OL7-LL;3602 (attached). Also included in this incident isthe repairand stabilization of Birchim Lane

#1005, a County Road. Birchim Lane is a secondary primitive road that allows access to the effected

community, and has now become the primary access to the community of 40 Acres. Birchim Lane has also

qualified under the OES Disaster incident and is eligible for the 75% reimbursement of project cost from the

State of California. Environmental and bridge design are currently underway for the North Round Valley

Bridge, as well as design and repair of Birchim Lane. The Office of Emergency Services has approved the

Engineers estimate of_S3,400,000 for the North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, as well as 5500,000 for the

Birchim Lane repair and stabilization. lt is anticipated that the State of California OES will fund 53,000,000;

lnyo County will provide the 25% contribution of S1,000,000 with SBl- funds. Due to the anticipated two to
three year construction schedule, it is anticipated that the County contribution will be divided overthe

FYlO2O-2OZL, FY2O2I-22, and FY2O22-2O23 SB1 funding cycles, at 5333,333 each cycle.

Locations;

North Round Valley Road, with the damaged bridge, and Birchim Lane, that intersects North Round Valley

Road, is located in lnyo County, l-5 miles North West of Bishop.

Estimated useful life

Useful life is 50 years

Anticipated construction date;

Pre-Con Schedule 7/L/2O2O through 6/3O/2O2L Construction Schedule 7/L/2O2Lthrough LO/3L/2O22

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be;

25% County contribution requirement; S1,000,000, (Anticipate dividing between FY202O-2L/FY2O?L-

22 / FY2O22-2023 S B 1 cycles)



Pngclof jJ vnst

S1'A1'E Ol; CALIFORNl?t

Ifrlcators
ii.,r,.'J Aifii;F;;;;;-
\'i:::/ oF [NEioarcY srPvlcEs

Crllfomin Dlsastcr Asslsttrtrce Aca

Damgc Suncy Rcporl
(DSR)

?6fi2

STATEDISASTEIINUNIBERT 2017-ll

STAI'E APPLICANT ID NTJNIBER: 027-00000

S1'A'I'D INCIDENT PERIOD: 0J/01/:? ro

TYPE OF DISASTER: E covcrtror'! Proclodstion or E Dlrector'r Cotrctrrrctrce

O f,nrrhqunke rr Cl trlood^Vlntcr Storil or 0 Flre
E Other (Pleosc SD€cify Tync)r Snorv lllelt

TYPE Olt CDAA J)$R; E f,nergrncywork
CATEGOITY C

SUPPLEIVIEN'T 1O CDAA DSR # :

I'IDERAL DISASTER #r N/A

I.DDERAL PA ID II: NA

07t3ul7

ar E P6mrncnt\Yorl
ROAD SYSTEI\IS AND BRIDGES

ftryo counvSUBGMNTEE NAME:

FACILITV/SITE ADDRESS OR DIRf,CTIONS (lnclude City, Coutrty of Sitc):

cotlN't'Y:
North Round Valley Road-Pine Creek Bridge. Round Valley CA, lnyo County

Inyo
DESCRIBE DISASTER REL.\TED DAMAGE TO THE FACILITY/SITE:

Excessive amounts ofsnow caused by the January-February 2017 Storms Disaster and a rain event
in the mountains, produced extraordinary high flows in Pine Creek resulting in severe erosion to
the south bank and bridge failure. Pine Creek flows scoured away approximately 50 feet of
embankment and roadway south of the southern bridge abutment. Scouring beneath the footing of
the southern abutment compromised the integrity of the bridge structure resulting in settling of
the southern abutment and pulling the bridge deck away from the north abutment.

SCOPE OF wORKI

Work to Be Completed:
Permanent restoration will include removing damaged bridge structure and debris from the Pine Creek channel.
Constructing a new 75' by 35' Reinforced Concrete Box Girder Sridge with abutments, constructing approach slabs,
roadwork and guard railing. installing and placing rip rap for slope and scour protection. Traffic has been detoured
to Birchim Lane as an alternate route until the bridge can be constructed (duration of 2-4 years). Birchim Lane will
require work/maintenance to safely address the increased volume of traffic for this duration. Preliminary
Engineering and Construction Engineering will include bridge design, surveying, geotechnical studies, hydraulic
studies, environmental and archaeological clearances, material testing, coordination with various regulatory
agencies, construction management and project documentation.

Is tlris Fsciliay llligiblc for Fedcnl Funds? frn Fcdernl DSR,/PW Ntrnberl NIA

Fcdeml Prcgnm: l'lEs nrs neE ftr*R Fedcrsl DSn/PIV S.{nountr N/A

ls thh nn Ilhtoric Stnlcailrc? tu nan Otr N.tlonni Rcghtcr? O 50+ Yeors Old? tr
Slgnillcnnt Effcct o[ Envlmnmctrt? EIEs glo Bxs lr Ptojcct Coi'x or Stot'x? D.s Ro Elxn
ls llrcrc lNunncc for Dnmtges? Brs E*o r1au lnturnnce Rccovcry:$ 0 Ins, Deduc{iblc 50

lYod( donc by Forcc Account Labor? 100Ds Elo c}e ltc.centsgc o{\York Coilpleted nt lnspeclionl

I olal Ellgible L[lror, Equi]mrill, l\lulcrls13 otrd Cotrlrnct costs lrorn Cost Worksleet: s2,730,670.00TOTAL COSTS:

OES Appllcona Sc.viccs Rep. Name

lllarcin Burchicl

OES ASR Slpnoture. ',

hl4tztrh6 Oo

u25t20t8
Ul5/20r8

glEs

Dsle of Site hlspcclion:

Dot. of DSR Silbnrission to AC!

Rccomorend Uligiblc?

\onc of Locol R€Drelentdtiv€

Kellev Williams

Rcprc!€trirtive's SignIturc

Concur by Phora (760! 878-0292

El6 EoConcur $lth Scopc ofWork?
Contoct Tclcphore Numbcri

Nnme of Reviewer/lllanagcr

Petcr Crasc CloncconnrctrdElieiblc? El6

Public A!3i3tnncc Ofllccr

David Cillinss / S€e allachmctrt
u!ltrinitrg chrngcs or dctri{l

Oo

Si

CDAA Fonn 2 (Rcvired 4/j!) OES t0



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #13

Crack Fill, Patching, Restriping, Overlay, Guardrails, and Culvert - As Required

TR#18-002

Description:

Application of rubberized crack fill and pot-hole patching to seal asphalt pavement to
prevent water intrusion to the subgrade, protecting the subgrade from erosion and
causing pavement failure. Overlay for some roads that are in an advanced state of
deterioration, restriping, and guardrail and culvert repairs and/or replacement as
necessary.

Locations:

County-wide, the lnyo County Road Route system, where several roads are grouped in
areas, or'zones' will be used for identification of the residential streets, outlying roads,
and individual roads receiving the crack fill, patching, restriping, overlay, guardrail, and
culverts. Not every road in each route will warrant the application, the routes identified below
are both residential and outlying roads, roads within the routes will receive some application,
towns and routes are as follows;

Bishop Area; Routes #1001 through #1006

Big Bine Area; Routes #2001, through #2OO4

lndependence Area; Routes #3001 through #3005, and #3008

Lone Pine Area; Routes #4001 through #4008

Tecopa/Shoshone Area; Routes #5002 through #5006

Estimated useful life:

Useful life is 10 years

Anticipated construction date:

7 I 01 12022 throu gh 6 l30l 2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

$1,000,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #14

Warm Springs Road Grader Overlay

TR#18-002

Description:

The Warm Springs Road Grader Overlay includes the prepping, tack coating, and
application of a 2" +/- layer of Cold Mix Asphalt (CMA) lo 2.3 miles of existing roadway
24' wide. Also included in this scope-of-work is any necessary shoulder backing and
ditch clearing/shaping, as well as striping/asphalt markings.

Location

The location is from US 395 to Eastside

Estimated useful life

The estimated useful life is 15 years for the CMA overlay

Anticipated construction date:

July 2022 through June 2023

Costs for this o are estimated to be:

$900,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #15

Death Valley Road Chip Seal

TR#18-002

Description

The Death Valley Road Chip Seal includes the application of chip sealing to 4 miles of
existing roadway 24'wide. Also included in this scope-of-work is the striping/asphalt
markings for areas overlaid by the chip seal.

Location:

The location is the road segment from 1 1.2 miles and 15.2 miles east of US 395 on Hwy
168 out of Big Pine.

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the chip seal is 5 years

Anticipated construction date:

July 2022 through June 2O23

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

$700,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



e tr d Accountabil Act FY 202212023 SB

Project #16

Trona Wildrose Road Chip Seal

TR#18-002

Description:

The Trona Wildrose Road Chip Seal includes the chip sealing of 2) 2 mile long
segments of roadway 22' wide. Also included in this scope-of-work are the
striping/asphalt markings for areas overlaid by the chip seal.

Location/s

The location of the two road segments are north of the lnyo County Line on the South
end

Estimated useful life

The estimated useful life for the chip seal is 5 years

Anticioated ruction date:

July 2022 through June 2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

$650,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #17

Panamint Valley Road Paver Overlay

TR#18-002

Description

The Panamint Valley Road project involves performing a paver overlay of intermittent
segments of the 14 mile long section of existing roadway 22' wide. Also included in this
scope-of-work is the striping/asphalt markings for areas affected by the asphalt overlay

Location:

The location of the Panamint Valley Road is between Highway 190 and Trona Wildrose
Road

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the chip seal is 5 years

Anticipated construction date:

July 2O22 through June 2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be

$500,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #18

Old Spanish Trail Road Grader Overlay

TR#18-002

Description:

The Old Spanish Trail Road Grader Overlay involves performing a grader overlay of
intermittent segments of the existing roadway 22' wide. AIso included in this scope-of-
work is the striping/asphalt markings for areas affected by the asphalt overlay.

Location

The location of the Old Spanish Trail Road is between Highway 127 and the Nevada
Border

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the grader overlay is 10 years

Anticipated construction date.

July 2O22 through June 2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

$250,000+ from RMRA (SB-1)Funds



-

Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2022/2023 SB L Proiects

Project #19 (Revised for 2022-2023)

Grandview, Mesquite, and Meadow Lane Fiber Seal

TR#18-002

Description:

The Grandview, Mesquite, and Meadow Lane Project involves applying a fiber seal coat to
approximately 6 miles of residential roadway 36'wide. Also included in this scope-of-work is
the striping/asphalt markings for areas affected by the asphalt overlay.

Location:

The location of the Grandview, Mesquite, and Meadow Lane Fiber Seal Coating Project is in the
residential area off West Line Street (CA 158 West) behind Manor Market. Roads included,
depending on available funds, are Meadow Lane, Mesquite Road, Birch Street East & West,
Cedar Street East & West, Pinion Road, Laurel Road, lndian Creek Drive, Tumbleweed North &
South, Morningside Drive, Wildrose Lane, Grandview Drive. Also, as an option is Carol Lane.

Estimated useful life

The estimated useful life for the fiber seal coating is 5 years

Anticipated construction date:

luly 2022 through June 2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be

$600,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #20

Meadow Creek l/ll & Lazy A Sidewalk lmprovement

TR#18-002

Description:

The Meadow Creek llll &Lazy A Sidewalk lmprovement Project involves the
identification, removal, and replacement of damaged or displaced areas of concrete
sidewalk as well as sections of curb & gutter. Tree removal, root pruning, installation of
root barrier, and asphalt patching will also be required.

Locations:

The location of the Meadow Creek llll & Lazy A Sidewalk lmprovement Project is East
of the intersection of Barlow Lane and US 395.

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the sidewalk and curb & gutter replacement will be 20+
years.

Anticipated construction date:

July 2O22 through June 2023

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

$150,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project#21

Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation

TR#18-002

Description

The Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation Project involves the application of cold mix
overlay to low areas of the existing Lasky Lane roadway to reconfigure drainage
patterns to appropriate surface drainage transport mechanisms.

Location:

The location of the Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation area is the section of Lasky Lane
just north and west of Lone Pine.

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation work will be 30+
years.

Anticipated construction date:

July 2O22 through June 2023

Costs for this project are estimated to be:

$20,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2022/2023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #22 (Revised for 2022-20231

Micro Fiber Slurry Seal Project

TR#18-002

Description:

The Micro Fiber Slurry Seal Project involves the application of a reinforced slurry seal to various

roads within lnyo County road system.

Locations:

Knisht Manor

TERRACE DRIVE

PINE ROAD

JUNIPER ROAD

MOUNTAIN ROAD

MEADOW LARK ROAD

ELMCREST DRIVE

CARMELEA LANE

MARIANNE WAY

JULIE ANN LANE

BETTY LOU LANE

MICHELLE CIRCLE

MYRTLE LANE

KRISTINE CIRCLE

OLIVIA LANE

TAMMY LANE

TAWNYA LANE

Aspendell

2023 COLUMBINE DRIVE

2027 NORTH STREET

2O8I ALPINE DRIVE

2086 WHITE PINE ROAD

2087 tRtS DRTVE

2088 CATARACTROAD

3054

3057

3058

3059

3060

3061

3063

3064

3055

3055

3067

3068

3069

3070

3071.

3072

Page 1 of 3



2089

2090

2097

2093

2098

2099

2100

SAGE ROAD

CARDINAL ROAD

BROOK LANE

RESERVOIR ROAD

SIERRA SUMMIT

SUMAC ROAD

MANZANITA ROAD

South Lake Area

2095 HABEGGER LANE

2096 CANYON DRIVE

2097 MOUNTTOM VIEW DRIVE

Big Pine East

32Ot POPLAR STREET

3202 CENTER STREET

3203 LOCUSTSTREET

3204 HOME STREET

Bie Pine West

3206 CROCKERAVENUE

3207 CORNELL STREET

3208 DEWEY STREET

3209 CHESTNUTSTREET

32TO WALNUT STREET

327I BLAKE ROAD

3212 WEST STREET

Lone Pine

4404 WILLOW STREET EAST

44LO SOUTH STREET WEST

4472 SCHOOL STREET EAST

44T3 INYO STREET EAST

44L9 JACKSON STREET NORTH

44194 JACKSON STREETSOUTH

4422 HAYSTREETNORTH

4422A HAYSTREETSOUTH

4018 WHITNEY PORTAL ROAD EAST

4425 LINE STREET

44244 LAKE VIEW STREET NORTH

4405 BUSH STREET EAST

44038 LOCUSTSTREET EAST

44054 BUSH STREET WEST

Page 2 of 3



4427

4057

44074

44L6

44L6A

LUBKEN AVENUE EAST

MCELROY LANE

MOUNTAIN VIEW STREET WEST

WASHINGTON STREET NORTH

WASHINGTON STREET SOUTH

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the microfiber slurry seal is five (5) years

Anticipated construction date:

July 2O22 through June 2026

Costs for this oroiect are estimated to be

52,000,000 over 5 years from RMRA (SB-1) Funds

Page 3 of 3



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2022/2023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #23 (Revised 4-5-22)

Guardrail Replacement and Modernization

TR#18-002

Description:

The guardrail replacement and modernization will be performed at various segments of
guardrail on bridges less than 20' in length within the lnyo County road system.

Locations

The guardrails to be replaced and or modernized include initial sections on the follow roads:
Mumy Lane, Reata Road, Sunland Drive, Dixon Lane, Whitney Portal Road, Eastside Road, Five

Bridges Road, East Warm Springs Road, Sabrina Road, South Brockman Lane, Pine Creek Road,

and Onion Valley Road.

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the guardrail replacement is expected to be twenty (20) years
minimum

Anticipated construction date:

July 2O22 through June 2023

Costs for this ro ect are estimated to be

S1,000,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project#24

Trona Wildrose Reconstruction

TR#18-002

Description:

The Trona Wildrose Reconstruction Project will rebuild one (1) mile of Trona Wildrose
Road. The road has deteriorated due to base failure.

Location:

One (1) mile of Trona Wildrose Road starting at the Inyo County/San Bernardino County
line.

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the reconstruction of this road is twenty (20) years

Anticipated construction date:

July 2022 through June 2023

Costs for this oro are estimated to be

$750,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #25

Lone Pine Town Streets Asphalt Resurfacing Project

TR#18-002

Description:

The Lone Pine Town Streets Asphalt Resurfacing Project will require the pulverization
and paving of several roads with 2.5" of HMA (Hot Mix Asphalt).

Locations:

All proposed roads to be pulverized and paved are within the Town of Lone Pine. Roads
slated for this scope of work include East Mountain Street, North and South Brewery
Street, North and South Mt. Whitney Drive, East and West Post Street, Tim Holt Street,
North and South Lone Pine Avenue, North and South Lake View Street, and East Miur
Street. Additionally, bike lanes will be striped on the shoulders in select areas, and three
(3) existing ADA ramps in the project area will be upgraded to ADA standards.

Estimated useful life:

The estimated useful life for the reconstruction of this road is twenty (20) years

Anticipated construction date:

July 2022 through June 2023

Costs for this project are estimated to be:

$100,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 202212023 SB 1 Proiects

Project #26

Lone Pine Sidewalks and ADA lmprovement Project

TR#18-002

Description

The Lone Pine Sidewalks and ADA lmprovement Project will require the removal and
replacement of several sidewalks in the Town of Lone Pine.

Locations

All proposed sidewalks to be removed and replaced will be brought up to ADA
standards. Potential segments of sidewalks to receive this remediation work include
Whitney Portalfrom Washington to Jackson, Jackson from Whitney Portal to Begole, as
well as Locust Street in front of the school.

Estimated useful life

The estimated useful life forthe reconstruction of this road is thirty (30) years minimum

Anticipated construction date:

July 2O22 through June 2023

Costs for this project are estimated to be:

$100,000+ from RMRA (SB-1) Funds



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Public Works - Airports 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Ashley Helms 
  
SUBJECT:  Resolution and Notice of Completion  
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve proposed Resolution No. 2022-33, titled, “A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Independence 
Airport Hangar Demolition," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The roof of the aircraft hangar at the Independence Airport was damaged during the wind event in April 2022. 
After the storm event, Public Works staff worked with the Building Inspector and Risk Manager to determine if 
any portion of the building could be saved and if the insurance policy on the building would cover the demolition 
and replacement of the structure. The Building Inspector determined that the entire structure was damaged 
beyond repair, and the insurance adjuster agreed with the determination. Due to the potential for damage to 
persons or aircraft should the structure continue to break apart, staff was instructed to move forward with the 
demolition as an emergency project. Two quotes were submitted: 

 Doug Clair, Inc.                       $21,500 
 Kendall Engineering, Inc         $24,250 

 
The attached contract was approved with Doug Clair, Inc, and the work was completed on August 10. Staff is 
researching replacement options. The two tenant aircraft have been relocated to the Lone Pine/Death Valley 
Airport pending the hangar reconstruction. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve the Resolution. Consequently, the project would not be formally 
accepted and the Notice of Completion could not be filed. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

FINANCING: 
The cost of the demolition is included in the Independence Airport Operating Budget (150300) Object Code 5700 
(Construction in Progress), but was not included in the preliminary budget. The invoice will be paid out of the 
Bishop Airport Operating Budget (150100), Object Code 5265 (Professional Services) and will be moved to the 
correct budget after budget adoption. The cost of the demolition will be reimbursed by the insurance policy; 
revenue will be put in 15300, Revenue Code 4747 (Insurance Payments).   
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Notice of Completion Resolution 
2. Notice of Completion Hangar Demolition 
3. Clair Contract - Signed 
  
APPROVALS: 
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 5/6/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/6/2022 
Ashley Helms Approved - 8/25/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/25/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/25/2022 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 8/25/2022 



RESOLUTION #2022 - __

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

FOR THE
INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT HANGAR DEMOLITION

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of 
Inyo, has determined that the Independence Airport Hangar Demolition has been satisfactorily 
completed by Doug Clair, Inc.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of 
Completion pertaining to the Independence Airport Hangar Demolition. 

Passed, approved and adopted this              day of                                 , 2022 by the following 
vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Leslie Chapman, Clerk

by 
Assistant Clerk of the Board



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

County of Inyo
c/o Director of Public Works
Public Works Department
168 N. Edwards Street
PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA  93526

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1. A work of improvement known as the Independence Airport Hangar Demolition on the 
property hereinafter described, was completed on August 10, 2022 and was accepted by the Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors on,                            .

2. The property on which the Independence Airport Hangar Demolition has been completed is 
located on the grounds of Independence Airport, Independence, California.  

3. The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 
North Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, operates and maintains the 
Independence Airport.

4. The undersigned, Michael Errante, is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has 
been duly authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted                   , by the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo to execute and file this Notice of Completion.

5. The name of the original contractor that completed the Independence Airport Hangar 
Demolition, pursuant to contract with the County, is Doug Clair, Inc of Bishop, CA.

Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related 
functions which are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the contract.

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated:                         By:                          
Michael Errante, Director of Public Works



VERIFICATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)  SS.

COUNTY OF INYO )

I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the 
County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity 
on behalf of which I executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the 
Independence Airport Hangar Demolition, and which entity is the owner of the 
aforesaid interest or estate in the property therein described; that I am authorized 
by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on the entity’s behalf; that I am 
authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the public entity; and 
that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof.  I declare under 
penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and 
the information set forth therein are true and correct.

Dated: ____________________________________

            Michael Errante, PE, Public Works Director



ahelms
Typewritten Text
August 9











Leslie L. Chapman

County Administrator

08/09/2022

















 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Public Works - Road Department 
  

CONSENT - NO ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Donald Gockley 
  
SUBJECT:  Report Regarding Emergency Purchase of a John Deere Hydraulic Pump and Necessary 
Accessories 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board receive written report regarding emergency purchase of John Deere hydraulic pump and 
accessories. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
During the recent monsoonal flooding in the eastern portion of Inyo County, while repairing storm damage, the 
Road Department had a grader break down. Unfortunately, this grader was stuck sitting on the side of the road 
due to loss of hydraulic power and was unable to move. An emergency repair was needed due to continued 
monsoonal moisture moving into the area. This grader is a vital piece of equipment for repairing damage to our 
roads caused by flooding. 
 
Pursuant to Section III, Item E number 6 of the Purchasing Policy, an emergency purchase of a hydraulic pump 
in the amount of $12,592.63 was made.   
 
Pursuant to Section VII.A of the purchasing policy, this item comes before your board as information regarding 
the emergency purchase. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
This item is informational only pursuant to purchasing policy section VII. A. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING: 
This hydraulic pump will be paid out of the Road budget 034600 and object code 5173 maintenance of 
equipment. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

1. Hydraulic Pump 
  
APPROVALS: 
Donald Gockley Created/Initiated - 8/18/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/18/2022 
Donald Gockley Approved - 8/18/2022 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/19/2022 
Shannon Platt Approved - 8/19/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/23/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/23/2022 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 8/23/2022 









 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Water Department 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Aaron Steinwand 
  
SUBJECT:  Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Meeting – September 15, 2022 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority representatives in advance of the 
Owens Valley Groundwater Authority meeting scheduled for September 15, 2022. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
At its next meeting, the OVGA will conduct the second reading of OVGA Ordinance 2022-01: "An Ordinance of 
the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Establishing the Regulations and Procedures for the Registration of 
Owners and Users of Groundwater Extraction Facilities within the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin."   
 
The purposes of the proposed ordinance to fill data gaps in pumping (reporting is voluntary for de minimis or 
domestic users) and maintain an up-to-date list of wells in the public database have been discussed at previous 
meetings of this Board. 
 
Ordinance 2022-01 of the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority will require registration of well locations and 
pumping amounts in the Basin within Inyo County using an online form.  Several water providers or commercial 
pumpers did not respond to requests to provide data voluntarily to the OVGA to include in the GSP.  The 
ordinance contains procedures, timing, and methods to register a well and submit needed information which will 
be reviewed for quality control and entered in the OVGA database. 
 
Additional items on the agenda include election of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson in accordance with the 
OVGA bylaws, approval of minutes, and staff report. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
City of Bishop, Mono County, Indian Creek-Westridge CSD, Big Pine CSD, Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe 
  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

FINANCING: 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Draft Agenda 09.15.22 
2. OVGA Draft Ordinance 2022-01  
  
APPROVALS: 
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 8/25/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/25/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/29/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/29/2022 
Aaron Steinwand Final Approval - 8/29/2022 



Members: Big Pine CSD - City of Bishop - County of Inyo - County of Mono - Indian Creek Westridge CSD 
Interested Parties:: Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe - Owens Valley Committee

1

 Owens Valley Groundwater Authority

September 15, 2022
 2:00 PM

Bishop City Council Chambers

Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda

All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Members of the public will be allowed to 
speak about each agenda item before the Board of Directors takes action on it. Any member of the public may also make comments during the 
scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Board of Directors or the Owens Valley 
Groundwater Authority.

Public Notice: In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact Laura Piper at (760) 878-0001. (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the OVGA 
to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require alternative formatting of 
this agenda, please notify Laura Piper 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the OVGA to make the agenda available in a reasonable 
alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID 19 virus, Governor Newsom has signed 
AB 361 that temporarily modifies certain requirements of the Brown Act. The Owens Valley Groundwater Authority 
will conduct this meeting both in person at the Bishop City Council Chambers located at 301 West Line Street in 
Bishop, California and via a Zoom webinar.  Individual Directors may participate remotely and this in-person meeting 
will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public Health orders and guidance and 
requirement of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CalOHSA). 

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at: Insert Zoom

To join by phone, refer to the numbers and webinar ID at the bottom of the agenda.  To provide public comment, at 
the appropriate agenda item during the meeting, press the raise your hand button in the Zoom window.  Public 
comment also may be provided by emailing comments, limited to 250 words or less, prior to the meeting or before 
the staff report for the item has ended.  Efforts will be made to read your comment, but submittals longer than 250 
words may not be read or may be summarized due to time limitations.  All comments will be made a part of the 
record.  Please submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon to lpiper@inyocounty.us, and 
identify in the subject line of the email which agenda item the comment addresses.

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any time and 
in any order during the meeting at the Board’s discretion.)

1. Pledge of allegiance.

2. Public comment.

3. Introductions.

4. Board Member Reports.

5. Approval of minutes from August 11 OVGA meeting. 

6. OVGA staff report.

7. Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2022-01: An Ordinance of the Owens Valley Groundwater 
Authority Establishing the Regulations and Procedures for the Registration of Owners and Users of 
Groundwater Extraction Facilities within the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin.

8. Election of  OVGA Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.
 

mailto:lpiper@inyocounty.us


Members: Big Pine CSD - City of Bishop - County of Inyo - County of Mono - Indian Creek Westridge CSD 
Interested Parties:: Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe - Owens Valley Committee

2

9. Discussion regarding future meeting dates and agenda items.

10. Adjourn.

Join the September 15, 2022 OVGA webinar:
 
Or one tap mobile: 

    US: +16699006833, 89188551131   or +13462487799, 89188551131 
 
Or Telephone:
    Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
        US: +1 669 900 6833 
               +1 346 248 7799 
               +1 253 215 8782
               +1 312 626 6799
               +1 929 205 6099
               +1 301 715 8592 

Webinar ID: 853 4572 3185
Passcode: 481122

    
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/koZewMCiO

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/koZewMCiO


BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
OWENS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY

___________________________

In the matter of:           Ordinance No. 2022-01

Establishing the Regulations and Procedures for the Registration of Owners and Users of 
Groundwater Extraction Facilities within the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin.

__________________________________

I, ________________, Clerk of the Board of Directors for the Owens Valley 
Groundwater Authority, do certify that the following ordinance, on motion of Director 
_________, seconded by Director _________, was duly passed and adopted by the Board of 
Directors at an official meeting this 11 day of August, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT: 
  
__________________________________
Chairman of the Board
Owens Valley Groundwater Authority

ATTEST: Clerk of the Board of Directors
Owens Valley Groundwater Authority

__________________________________
    

______________________________________________________________________________

 



AN ORDINANCE OF THE OWENS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 
ESTABLISHING THE REGULATIONS AND PROCEDURES FOR THE 
REGISTRATION OF OWNERS AND USERS OF GROUNDWATER EXTRACTION 
FACILITIES WITHIN THE OWENS VALLEY GROUNDATER BASIN

RECITALS:

Whereas, the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority (“Authority”) was formed for the express 
purpose of cooperatively carrying out the requirements of the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (“SGMA”), including, but not limited to, the funding, development, adoption 
and implementation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (“GSP”) that achieves groundwater 
sustainability in the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin.

Whereas, the Authority is the exclusive Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the portion of the 
Owens Valley Groundwater Basin located within Inyo County, which is designated as Basin 
number 6-012 in Department of Water Resources’ Bulletin No. 118.

Whereas, the Authority adopted the “Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Owens Valley 
Groundwater Basin” on December 9, 2021.

Whereas, a fundamental component of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the Owens 
Valley  Groundwater Basin is an accurate understanding of amounts and location of groundwater 
extraction within the Basin. 

Whereas, the Authority has reviewed and considered the environmental impacts of this action 
and concluded that this action is exempt from further environmental review pursuant to 
California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15273 and Public Resources Code 
section 21080(b)(8) because it is for the establishment of operational rates and charges.  
Additionally, it has been determined that this action is exempt from further environmental review 
pursuant Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) because it can be seen with a certainty that this action 
will not have a significant effect on the environment.  Moreover, it has been determined that this 
action is exempt from further environmental review pursuant Guidelines section 15378(b)(5) 
because it involves administrative activities that will not result in direct or indirect physical 
changes in the environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OWENS VALLEY 
GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of adoption and the 
entire Ordinance shall be published in accordance with Californian Government Code section 
25124.

Section 2. Definitions. As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the 
meanings stated below:

"Authority" means the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority.



 
"Basin" means the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin which is designated as basin number 6-6-
012.01 and 6-12.02 (Fish Slough subbasin) in Department of Water Resources' Bulletin No. 118.

“De minimis extractor” means a person who extracts, for domestic purposes, two acre-feet or 
less per year (CWC §10721(e)).

"Groundwater Extraction Facility ("Facility")" means any device or method used for the 
extraction of groundwater from the Basin.

"Groundwater Extractor" means both the owner and the user of a Groundwater Extraction 
Facility located within the Basin.

"Executive Manager" means the individual given said title and position with the Authority by the 
Board of Directors.

Section 3.     Groundwater Extraction Owner and User Registration.  No later than April 1,2023, 
all owners and users of Groundwater Extraction Facilities must register their Groundwater 
Extraction Facilities if located within the Basin and boundary of the Authority on a form 
provided by the Authority. These forms will be used in the  implementation of the Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan for the Basin and as such the careful and complete attention to the form is 
required. Completion of the form is voluntary for extractors that meet the definition of a de 
minimis extractor. Extractors other than de minimis extractors must comply with this Ordinance.

Section 4. Groundwater Extraction Owner and User Registration Form. The registration required 
by Section 3 of this Ordinance shall be made on forms approved by the Executive Manager. 
Likewise, registration shall be made to the satisfaction  of the Executive Manager and, at a 
minimum, the registration shall include the following information: 1) the name and contact 
address of the owner and/or user of the Groundwater Extraction Facility; 2) the location of the 
Groundwater Extraction Facility and the property it serves; 3) a statement describing whether the 
extracted groundwater is used for residential, commercial, industrial or agricultural purposes, or 
a combination thereof; 4) an accurate declaration of the annual groundwater production figures 
and the agricultural acreage in production (if applicable) for the years with extant data and 
provided annually before April 1 of each year after 2022; 5) a description of the equipment 
associated with the Groundwater Extraction Facility; 6) a description of the method used by the 
owner and/or user to measure groundwater extractions from the Groundwater Extraction Facility; 
and, 7) any other information that the Authority's Executive Manager deems to be prudent and 
necessary to achieve the legal purposes of the Authority.

Section 5. Registration Form Review. The Executive shall review all registrations and return, 
with corrective comment, any registration that does not meet the requirements described in 
Section 4. Approved registrations shall receive an approval notice from the Authority.

Section 6. New Groundwater Extraction Facility. A Groundwater Extraction Facility constructed 
after the effective date of this Ordinance shall comply with the requirements set forth in this 
Ordinance.



Section 7. Violations. Any violation of any  provision  prescribed  in this Ordinance  may subject 
the violator to possible civil action and penalties by the Authority. The Authority's civil penalties 
and civil action rights are additional rights to those rights which may otherwise be prescribed to 
the Authority, or its members, by law. Additionally, as these forms will be used in the 
implementation of the GSP, any violations of this Ordinance could have detrimental impacts on 
the owner and/or user in the GSP.

Section 8. Exemptions. As provided by law, federal, state, and tribal entities are exempt from the 
mandatory provisions of this Ordinance, but it is requested that they abide by the registration 
requirements. Likewise, if you receive groundwater from a public purveyor and you don't own a 
Groundwater Extraction Facility, you are not required to register.  Lands and pumping managed 
in accordance with the Long Term Water Agreement (City of Los Angeles v. Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo et al. (Inyo County Case No. 12908)) are exempt to the extent 
provided by Water Code Section 10720.8. Groundwater facilities within the Basin but outside 
the boundary of the Authority are exempt. 

Section 9. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person, 
entity, or circumstance, is held invalid or to any extent illegal or incapable of being enforced, 
such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this 
Ordinance are severable.

Section 10. California Environmental Quality Act. The Board of Directors finds that this 
Ordinance is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378(b)(5) 
because it involves administrative activities that will not result in direct or indirect physical 
changes in the environment. The Board of Directors also finds this Ordinance is exempt from 
CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) because it can be seen with a certainty 
that this action will not have a significant effect on the environment.



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Emergency Services 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Mikaela Torres 
  
SUBJECT:  Continuation of Local Emergency 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation to continue the local emergency proclaimed in 
response to flash flooding in Death Valley National Park in August 2022.  
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
During your August 16, 2022 Board of Supervisors meeting, your Board took action to approve Resolution 2022-
29, ratifying the Director of Emergency Service's August 12 proclamation of the existence of a local emergency. 
The local emergency was proclaimed in response to extreme flash flooding throughout the county, including 
Death Valley National Park, commencing August 5. 
 
Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency. Staff recommends the Board continue this 
review, and that Resolution 2022-29 be updated as necessary, until further evaluation of conditions is completed 
and staff makes the recommendation to end the emergency. This proposed action comes to your Board earlier 
than required for administrative convenience.  
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2022-29 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/30/2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Mikaela Torres Approved - 8/30/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2022 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 8/30/2022 



County of Inyo 

Proclamation of Local Emergency - Confirmation 
August 12, 2022 

Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-29 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

FOR THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,  

CONFIRMING AND RATIFYING THE DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR OF 

EMERGENCY SERVICES FOR THE COUNTY OF INYO, PROCLAIMING THE 

EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY  

 

WHEREAS, a severe thunderstorm system has swept over portions of Inyo County on or about the 

week of August 1, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, this weather pattern has culminated, to date, with the most violent portion of the storm 

occurring on August 5, 2022, and resulting in torrential rains, high winds, electrical storms, mud and 

debris flows and other localized flooding and landslides throughout portions of central, south and south 

eastern portions of Inyo County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the extent of damage to County roads and highways is still being assessed, and this effort 

is slowed by impassable road conditions marked by washouts and continued flooding; and, 

 

WHEREAS, known road damage and destruction poses a threat to persons and property; and 

 

WHEREAS, road damage from the emergency event resulted in the closure of nearly the entirety of 

Death Valley National Park, and extends beyond the Death Valley roads, affects other County and State 

highways, and may take months and at least hundreds of thousands of dollars to repair; and, 

 

WHEREAS, these monsoonal weather conditions threatened lives, stranded motorists and tourists and 

other travelers throughout portions of the County, damaged and destroyed County roads and State 

highways and routes, damaged and destroyed the property and infrastructure serving local businesses; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, Death Valley National Park attracts millions of visitors each year, and serves as a critical 

east-west transportation corridor for travelers passing through the park each year; and, 

 

WHEREAS, severe economic hardship will occur to local businesses, the National Park Service and the 

County due to the closure of Death Valley National Park and the lack of services and access to the 

heavily damaged and impacted Death Valley National Park; and, 

 

WHEREAS, conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen within the 

county, caused by extreme flash flooding, commencing on August 5, 2022, at which time the Board of 

Supervisors was not in session; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630, and Inyo County Code Section 2.56.060 empowers the 

Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the existence of a local emergency when the County Board 

of Supervisors is not in session and Inyo County is threatened or likely to be threatened by the 

conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property that are or are likely to be 

beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of this County. Subject to the 

ratification by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors; and, 

 



County of Inyo 

Proclamation of Local Emergency - Confirmation 
August 12, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services did proclaim the existence of a local emergency 

within the county on August 12, 2022, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Attachment A. 

 

WHEREAS, said Board of Supervisors does hereby find that the aforesaid conditions of extreme peril 

did warrant and necessitate the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED as follows 

 

Section 1: The Inyo County Board of Supervisors does  hereby ratify the declaration of the Director 

of Emergency Services and proclaims the existence of a Local Emergency in Inyo County as a result of 

severe weather conditions, including violent thunderstorms sweeping over portions of Inyo County 

resulting in torrential rains, high winds, electrical storms, mud and debris flows, and other localized 

flooding throughout portions of the central, south and south eastern portions of Inyo County; and, 

 

Section 2: The Inyo County Board of Supervisor's requests the Director of the Governor's Office of 

Emergency Services concur in this proclamation of a local emergency. 

 

Section 3: A copy of this declaration shall be forwarded to the Governor of California with the 

request that he proclaim the County of Inyo to be a state of emergency.  

 

Section 4: The Inyo County Board of Supervisors request that this emergency proclamation be 

forwarded to the Director of the Governor's Office of Emergency Services and the Governor of the State 

of California, with a request for any and all assistance, including that available under the California 

Disaster Assistance Act (CDAA) and the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this l6th day of August, 2022, by the Inyo County Board of 

Supervisors, County of Inyo: 

 

AYES: -5- Supervisors Griffiths, Kingsley, Pucci, Roeser, Totheroh 

NOES: -0- 

ABSTAIN: -0- 

ABSENT: -0- 

 

______________________________ 

Chair, Board of Supervisors 

County of Inyo 

 

 

ATTEST: Leslie L. Chapman 

                 Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 

By:_____________________________ 

         Assistant Clerk of the Board 



COUNTY OF INYO
AnurNtstRAroR' s Opplcp

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
C o uvry A DMrN rsrRArt rn O r r rc nn

DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES
FOR THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIF'ORNrA,

PROCLAIMING EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, a severe thunderstorm system has swept over portions of Inyo County on or about the
week of August l, 2022; and

WHEREAS, this weather pattem has culminated, to date, with the most violent portion of the storm
occurring on August 5,2022, and resulting in torrential rains, high winds, electrical storms, mud and
debris flows and other localized flooding and landslides throughout portions of central, south and
south eastern portions of Inyo County; and,

WHEREAS, the extent of damage to County roads and highways is still being assessed, and this
effort is slowed by impassable road conditions marked by washouts and continued flooding; and,

WHEREAS, known road damage and destruction poses a threat to persons and property; and

WHEREAS, road damage from the emergency event resulted in the closure of nearly the entirety of
Death Valley National Park, and extends beyond the Death Valley roads, affects other County and
State highways, and may take months and at least hundreds of thousands of dollars to repair; and,

WHEREAS, these monsoonal weather conditions threatened lives, stranded motorists and tourists
and other travelers throughout portions of the County, damaged and destroyed County roads and
State highways and routes, damaged and destroyed the property and infrastructure serving local
businesses; and,

WHEREAS, Death Valley National Park attracts millions of visitors each year, and serves as a
critical east-west transportation corridor for travelers passing through the park each year; and,

WHEREAS, severe economic hardship will occur to local businesses, the National Park Service and
the County due to the closure of Death Valley National Park and the lack of services and access to the
heavily damaged and impacted Death Valley National Park and,

P. O. Drawer N, lndependence,CA93526
vox (760) 878-0292. FAX (760) 878-046s

lchapman@invocounty. us
ET CAMXNO SIERRA



WHEREAS, conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen within the

county, caused by extreme flash flooding, commencing on August 5,2022, at which time the Board

of Supervisors was not in session; and,

WHEREAS, these damages caused by these conditions are likely to be beyond the control of the

services, personnel, equipment, facilities and fiscal resources ofthe County of Inyo;and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630, and Inyo County Code Section 2.56.060 empowers

the Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the existence of a local emergency when the County
Board of Supervisors is not in session and Inyo County is threatened or likely to be threatened by the

conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property that are or are likely to
be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of this County; and

WIIEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors is not currently in session and cannot

immediately be called into session; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors shall take action to ratifu this Proclamation

within seven days thereafter or the Proclamation shall have no further force or effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED by the Director of Emergency

Services for the County of Inyo that, for the reasons set forth herein, a local emergency now exists

throughout Inyo County; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND REQUESTED that the Director of the Governor's Office of
Emergency Services concur in this declaration of a local emergency; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND REQUESTED that Governor of the State of California
proclaim a State Emergency in Inyo County; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED that during the existence of
this local emergency the powers, functions, and duties of the emergency organization of this County
shall be those prescribed by State law, by ordinances, and resolutions, and that this emergency shall

be deemed to continue to exist until either the Governor of the State of Califomia, or the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, proclaims its termination, or if the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Inyo does not ratify this proclamation within seven days of its issuance.

Further, it is directed that this emergency proclamation be forwarded to the Director of the

Governor's Office of Emergency Services and the Governor of the State of California, with a request

for any and all assistance, including that available under the California Disaster Assistance Act
(CDAA) and the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA).

DECLARED this l2rh day of August, 2022, by the Director of Emergency Services of the County of
Inyo.

Leslie Chapman, County Administrative Officer
Director of Emergency Services
County of Inyo, State of California

P. O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526
vox (760) 878-0292. FAX (760) 878.0465

lchaoman@inyocounty. usET.CAMXNO gnERRA



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Emergency Services 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Mikaela Torres 
  
SUBJECT:  Continuation of Local Emergency 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation to continue the local emergency that was 
proclaimed in response to the Fairview Fire in July 2022. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
During your July 19, 2022 Board of Supervisors meeting, your Board took action to approve Resolution 2022-24, 
ratiying the Director of Emergency Service's July 8 proclamation of the existence of a local emergency. The local 
emergency was proclaimed in response to the July 8 structural and vegetation Fairview Fire. 
 
Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency. Staff recommends the Board continue this 
review, and that Resolution 2022-24 be updated as necessary, until further evaluation of conditions are 
completed and staff makes the recommendation to end the emergency. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2022-24 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/30/2022 
Mikaela Torres Approved - 8/30/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/30/2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Leslie Chapman Approved - 8/31/2022 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 8/31/2022 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
FOR THE COUNTY OF rNYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

RATIFYING THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630, and Section 2.56.060 of the Inyo County Code empowers
the Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local
emergency when the County Board of Supervisors is not in session and Inyo County is threatened or
likely to be threatened by the conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and
property that are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and
facilities of this County. Subject to the ratification by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors; and,

WHEREAS, conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen within the
county, caused by a structural fire and subsequent wildfire, commencing on July 8,2022, at which time
the Board of Supervisors was not in session; and,

WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services did proclaim the existence of a local emergency
within the county on July 8,2022, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Attachment A.

WHEREAS, said Board of Supervisors does hereby find that the aforesaid conditions of extreme peril
did warrant and necessitate the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the proclamation of a local
emergency by the Director of Emergency Services of the Inyo County is hereby ratified, and that said
local emergency shall be deemed to continue to exist until its termination is proclaimed by the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this l2th day of July, 2022, by the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors, County of Inyo:

AYES: -5- Supervisors Griffiths, Kingsley, Pucci, Roeser, Totheroh
NOES: -0-
ABSTAIN: -0-
ABSENT: -0-

Chair
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:
Leslie L. Chapman, Clerk of the Board

By:

County oflnyo
Proclamation of Local Emergency - Confirmation

July 12,2022
Page I of I

Assistant Board



County of Inyo 

Proclamation of Local Emergency 
July 8, 2022 

Page 1 of 1 

DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

FOR THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

PROCLAIMING EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY 

 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630, and Section 2.56.060 of the Inyo County Code empowers 

the Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local 

emergency when the County Board of Supervisors is not in session and Inyo County is threatened or 

likely to be threatened by the conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and 

property that are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and 

facilities of this County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors is not currently in session and cannot immediately 

be called into session; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors shall take action to ratify this Proclamation within 

seven days thereafter or the Proclamation shall have no further force or effect; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services does hereby find that conditions extreme peril to the 

safety of persons and property have arisen within the county, caused by a structural fire and subsequent 

wildfire commencing on July 8, 2022; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid conditions of extreme peril warrant and necessitate the proclamation of the 

existence of a local emergency, and these conditions are or are likely to continue and are likely to be 

beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment, facilities and fiscal resources of the County of 

Inyo; and, 

 

WHEREAS, these conditions are predicted to continue for another week and are likely to be beyond the 

control of the services, personnel, equipment, facilities and fiscal resources of the County of Inyo; and, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that, for the reasons set forth 

herein, a local emergency now exists throughout Inyo County; and, 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, PROCLAIMED, AND ORDERED that during the existence of said 

local emergency, the powers, functions, and duties of the Inyo County Director of Emergency Services 

and the emergency organization of this county shall be those prescribed by state law, Chapter 2.56 of the 

Inyo County Code, and such other orders as this Board may make during said emergency.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, PROCLAIMED, AND ORDERED that said local emergency shall 

be deemed to continue to exist until its termination is proclaimed by the Board of Supervisors of the 

County of Inyo, State of California.  

 

DECLARED this 8th day of July, 2022, by the Director of Emergency Services of the County of Inyo. 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Leslie Chapman, County Administrative Officer 

Director of Emergency Services  

County of Inyo, State of California  



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Emergency Services 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Emergency Services 
  
SUBJECT:  Termination of Local Emergency 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation to terminate the local emergency known as the 
"Here It Comes Emergency" that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions from near record snowpack 
in 2017 posing extreme peril to the safety of property and persons in Inyo County. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
During your March 28, 2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-15 
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency, which has been named the Here It Comes Emergency, in 
anticipation of run-off conditions from near-record snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of property and 
persons in Inyo County and which are likely beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and 
facilities of the County of Inyo. During your June 27, 2017 meeting, your Board took action to amend Resolution 
2017-15 to recognize that the County moved from the Preparedness stage to the Response stage, and to include 
new damages and impacts that have occurred in the operational area. 
 
Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency. Staff recommends the Board conclude this 
review and move the County from the Response stage to the Recovery stage of the Here It Comes Emergency.   
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2017-15 Amended 
  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 7/11/2022 
Mikaela Torres Approved - 8/30/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/30/2022 
Leslie Chapman Approved - 8/31/2022 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 8/31/2022 













 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Risk Management 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Aaron Holmberg 
  
SUBJECT:  Proposed Ordinance Pertaining to Delegation of Authority to Compromise or Settle Claims Against 
the County 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board waive further reading of proposed Ordinance 1287, titled, “An Ordinance of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, Amending Subsection (B) of Section 1.28.040 of the Inyo 
County Code, Pertaining to Delegation of Authority to Compromise or Settle Claims Against the County," and 
schedule enactment for September 20, 2022, in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative 
Center, Independence. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
Chapter 1.28 of the Inyo County Code provides procedures for the presentation of monetary claims against the 
County, in accordance with applicable state law. Section 1.28.040 of the Code delegates authority to the County 
Risk Manager, County Counsel, and County Administrative Officer to compromise or settle claims for or against 
the County, within certain monetary limits. 
 
Specifically, under subsection (b) of Section 1.28.040, the Risk Manager has $10,000 of settlement authority but 
can approve claims of $20,000 with concurrence of County Counsel, and can approve claims up to $30,000 with 
the concurrence of the County Counsel and the County Administrative Officer. And under subsection (c) of 
Section 1.28.040, in cases where litigation has been filed, the County Counsel can settle the underlying claim in 
an amount not to exceed $20,000 with the occurrence of the Risk Manager, and in an amount not to exceed 
$30,000 with the concurrence of both the Risk Manager and the County Administrative Officer. 
 
For policy considerations such as administrative convenience and efficiency, as well as to line-up with the newly 
revised County Purchasing Policy, staff is recommending subsection (b) of Section 1.28.040 to updated so that 
the Risk Manager has $30,000 of settlement authority but can approve claims of $40,000 with concurrence of 
County Counsel, and can approve claims up to $50,000 with the concurrence of the County Counsel and the 
County Administrative Officer. 
 
Similarly, and again for administrative convenience and efficiency, as well as to line-up with the newly revised 
County Purchasing Policy, staff is recommending subsection (c) of Section 1.28.040 be updated so that the 
County Counsel can settle an underlying claim in an amount not to exceed $40,000 with the occurrence of the 
Risk Manager, and in an amount not to exceed $50,000 with the concurrence of both the Risk Manager and the 
County Administrative Officer. These updates to subsections (b) and (c) remain in compliance with the maximum 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

allowed under Government Code section 935.4. Note that the existing language regarding acceptance of late 
claims is being carried forward without change.     
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
This section of 1.28 was last updated in 2020. The current proposed update comes on the heels of the recent 
purchasing police update and brings the settlement authority to the limit of the government code.  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to introduce, read title, waive further reading, and schedule enactment of the 
proposed ordinance. Or your Board could alternatively adjust the monetary limits in the proposed ordinance. Both 
options are entirely within the Board prerogative and discretion.   
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
County Counsel and Risk Management worked together on this item. 
  
FINANCING: 
This item represents no change to how settlements are funded.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proposed Ordinance Amending 1.28.040 
  
APPROVALS: 
Aaron Holmberg Created/Initiated - 8/23/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/24/2022 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 8/24/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/24/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/24/2022 
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 8/24/2022 
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 8/31/2022 



Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. ________

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 
INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 1.28.04 OF

THE INYO COUNTY CODE PERTAINING TO CLAIM SETTLEMENT 
AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, section 1.28.040 of the Inyo County Code delegates authority to the Risk 
Manager and the County Counsel—in conjunction with other County personnel—to settle 
certain claims presented to the County and certain lawsuits filed against the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors wishes to modify the authority delegated in 
section 1.28.040;  

WHEREAS, Government Code section 935.4 permits the Board of Supervisors to 
delegate claim settlement authority for any claim that does not exceed $50,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo ordains as 
follows:

SECTION I:  Section 1.28.040 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to 
read as follows:

“A.   The risk manager is directed and authorized to return or reject any and all claims 
presented to the county, including applications to present a late claim.

B.   The risk manager is authorized to allow, compromise or settle claims and accept 
applications to present a late claim prior to initiation of any litigation against the county 
thereon, within the following limitations:

    1.    If the amount to be paid pursuant to the allowance, compromise or settlement of the 
claim or late claim, if accepted, does not exceed thirty thousand dollars, the risk manager, is 
authorized to allow, compromise or settle such claim and to accept the application to present 
such late claim; and

    2.    If the amount to be paid pursuant to the allowance, compromise or settlement of the 
claim or late claim, if accepted, exceeds thirty thousand dollars, but does not exceed forty 
thousand dollars, the risk manager, with the concurrence of the county counsel, is authorized to 
allow, compromise or settle such claim and to accept the application to present such late claim; 
and

    3.    If the amount to be paid pursuant to the allowance, compromise or settlement of the 
claim or late claim, if accepted, exceeds forty thousand dollars, but does not exceed fifty 
thousand dollars, the risk manager, with the concurrence of both the county counsel and the 
county administrator, is authorized to allow, compromise or settle such claim and to accept the 
application to present such late claim.



Page 2 

C.   The county counsel is authorized to allow, compromise or settle claims and accept 
applications to present late claims after litigation or suit has been filed against the county 
thereon, within the following limitations:

    1.    If the amount to be paid pursuant to the allowance, compromise or settlement of the 
claim or late claim, if accepted, does not exceed forty thousand dollars, the county counsel, 
with concurrence of the risk manager, is authorized to allow, compromise or settle such claim 
and to accept the application to present such late claim; and

    2.    If the amount to be paid pursuant to the allowance, compromise or settlement of the 
claim or late claim, if accepted, exceeds forty thousand dollars, but does not exceed fifty 
thousand dollars, the county counsel, with the concurrence of both the risk manager and the 
county administrator, is authorized to allow, compromise or settle such claim and to accept the 
application to present such late claim; and

    3.    The authority granted to the county counsel to allow, compromise or settle a claim or 
late claim within the limitations set forth in subsections (C)(1) and (C)(2) of this section, 
includes the authority to waive the county’s rights to seek recovery of its costs, including 
attorneys’ fees, as a condition of any allowance, compromise, settlement or dismissal of a 
claim or late claim against the county.

D.   Upon the written order of the risk manager or county counsel as authorized by subsections 
B and C of this section, the auditor-controller of Inyo County shall cause a check to be issued 
upon the treasury of the county in the amount for which a claim or lawsuit against the county 
has been allowed, compromised or settled.”

SECTION II: EFFECTIVE DATE
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days 

after its adoption. Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this 
Ordinance shall be published as required by Government Code Section 25124.  The Clerk 
of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish this Ordinance together with 
the names of the Board members voting for and against same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS __ DAY OF ________, 2022.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

_______________________________
Dan Totheroh, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors



Page 3 

ATTEST:
Leslie Chapman
Clerk of the Board

By:______________________________________
        Darcy Ellis, Assistant



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Clerk of the Board 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
  
SUBJECT:  Approval of Meeting Minutes 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of August 16, 2022. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING: 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/26/2022 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 8/26/2022 



Board of Equalization AGENDA                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         September 6, 2022 

 

County of Inyo 
Board of Equalization 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
September 6, 2022 

  
   

1:00 P.M. 1. MINUTE APPROVAL – Request approval of the minutes of the Board of Equalization meeting 
of August 16, 2022. 
 

 2. OATHS – The Assistant Clerk of the Board will administer oaths to all parties planning to 
provide testimony during today’s proceedings, as well as anyone who will give evidence during 
the assessment appeal hearing. 

 
 3.  STIPULATION AGREEMENTS – Request Board approved the stipulation agreements for the 

following: 

• Assessment Appeal No. 2020-02, concerning Assessor Parcel No. 0412800700 and 
submitted by Xanterra Parks & Resorts; and  

• Assessment Appeal No. 2020-04, concerning Assessor Parcel No. 0412800200 and 
submitted by Xanterra Parks & Resorts  
 

 4. ASSESSMENT APPEAL HEARING to consider Assessment Appeal Nos. 2020-02, 2020-03, 
2020-04, 2020-05, 2020-20, and 2020-21, concerning Assessor Parcel Nos. 0412800700 and 
0412800200, submitted by Xanterra Parks & Resorts, Inc. 
 

 5. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. 
Individual Board members may participate remotely in accordance with applicable open meeting law 
requirements. In-person meetings will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public 
Health orders and guidance and requirements of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health 
(CalOSHA).  

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be 
accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 
205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781


Board of Equalization MINUTES                                                                                                                   1                                                                                                               August 16, 2022  

County of Inyo
Board of EQUALIZATION

August 16, 2022

The Board of Equalization of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 1:47 p.m., on 
Tuesday, August 16, 2022, in the Board of Supervisors Room, at the County Administrative Center, in Independence, 
with the following Board Members present via teleconference: Supervisor Jeff Griffiths, presiding, Dan Totheroh, Rick 
Pucci, Jennifer Roeser, and Matt Kingsley. Also present: County Administrator Leslie Chapman, County Counsel John 
Vallejo, Office Clerk Hayley Carter, and Assistant Clerk of the Board Darcy Ellis.

Election of Officers Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to elect Chairperson Totheroh as 
the Chairperson of the Board of Equalization for Calendar 2022. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to elect Supervisor Roeser the Vice 
Chair of the Board of Equalization for Calendar 2022. Motion carried unanimously.

Approval of 
Minutes

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve the minutes of the Board 
of Equalization meeting of December 14, 2021. Motion carried unanimously.

Oaths The Assistant Clerk of the Board administered an oath to Ms. Allison Krohn, Auditor-Appraiser with the 
Assessor’s Office.

Assessment 
Appeal Hearing – 
No. 2020-28 – 
Denied

The Board was set to consider Assessment Appeal No. 2020-28, concerning Assessor Parcel No. 
011-240-17, submitted by 151 Pioneer Ave LLC. It was determined that despite being sent a notice of 
the hearing, nobody was in attendance to represent the appellants. Moved by Supervisor Roeser and 
seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to deny Assessment Appeal Application No. 2020-28, for lack of 
appearance. Motion carried unanimously.

Adjournment The Chairperson adjourned the Board of Equalization meeting at 1:54 p.m.

__________________________________
Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Equalization

Attest:   L E S L I E  L .  C H A P M A N
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d

       
  by:       _____________________________________
                           Darcy Ellis, Assistant















BOE-305-AH (Pl) REV. 08 (01-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION
This form contains all of the requests for information
that are required for filing an application for changed
assessment. Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the application and/or denial of the
appeal. Applicants should be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at the time of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may result in the
continuance ofthe hearing or denial ofthe appeal. Do not
atfach hearlng evidence to thls application.

1, APPLICANT INFORMATION . PLEASE PRINT
NAME OF

XAN
FIRST MIDDLE

ARKS &
lwrnALr, Eust/vEss, oR TRUST NAME

RESOR rNc

CITY

REENWOOD VI

MAILINGADDRESS OF APPLICANT (STREETADDRESS OR P O. BOXJ

6312 S. FIDDLERS GREEN CIR., #600 N

Mailto: lnyo County Clerk of the Board
County Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

EMAILADDRESS

com

FAX TELEPHONE

()
2. CONTACT INFORMATION -AGENT, AfiORNEY, OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT if applicable - (REPRESENTATION lS OPTIONAL)
NAME OF AGENI ATTORNEY, OR RETATIVE (Lr''ST FIRST M|DDLE TNITIAL\

COMPANY NAME

NUMBER: Clerk Use

co
STATE AP CODE

80111
IDAnIMETELEPHONE IATTERNATETETEPHONE

llroa )ooo-:46T l( )

CONTACT PERSON IF OTHER THAN ABOVE ILr'.ST, FIRST, MIDDLE INTITALI

CITY

MATLINGADDRESS (STREFTADDRESS OR p O. BOn

3. PROPERTY lDENTlFlCATlOttl INFORMATION

n Yes E No ls this property a singlo-family dwelling that is occupied as the principal place of residence by the owner?

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER (if applicable)

FAX TELEPHONE

ACCOUNT NUMBER OR TAX glLL NUMBER (if applicable)

DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA), if appropriale

n PossEssoRYtNTEREsr

I VACANTLAND

X orHEn, HOTELS

N AGRICULTURAL

fl ueNurncruREDHoME

[] WATER CRAFT f] AIRCMFT

TOTAL

HWY 1 CREEK CA
PROPERTYTYPE

I S|NGLE-FAMILY / CONDOMTNTUM / TOWNHOUSE / DUPLEX

n ruurruRutrLy/ApARTMENTS: No" oF uNtrs_
I coruuencnutNDusrRtAL

I BUSTNESS PERSONAL PROPERVFTXTURES

4. VALUE

LAND

IM PROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERW (see instruc{ions)

MINEML RIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

F

C,APPEALS BOARD USE ONIY

{:.,} j'. ;

L.,'l

CODEsrArE 

I 

zrP lonwtuetelepnone lnlrenutetgtepxoneItrlrr
The followlng information must be completed (or attached to thls applicatlon . see lnstructlons) untess the agent is a ttcensed

as lndicated in the Ceftfftcation soction, or a spouse, chtld, parcnt, registercd domestlc pattte,i or the percon atfected, lf

OFAGENT E nurxonzatpN ATTAcHED

of the husiness.an offlcer or authortzedauthorlzation must beIs a buslness enW the

TITLE

S*tlon 2 above ls heteby authorized to act as my agont ln this appllcation, and may lnspec{assessor's tecords,
enter in stipulation agrcemenb, and othewise setf/e lssues relating to thls applicatlon.

OATE

The person named ln

ASSESSMENT applicable)

A. VALUE ON ROLL B. APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE

905,151 905 151
25 644 ?31 12,822.116

26.549.382 137?7 267
PENALTIES (amount or

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE-305-AH (P2) REV.08 (01-1s)

5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED tr Crr eck only ane.See insfrucfons forfiling periods

I nrouun ASSESSMENT - vALUE As oF JANUARy I oF THE cuRRENT yEAR

K suppueuENTALAssESsMENT
*DATE OF NoTICE: 0411712020 R9LLyEAR: ?41 1g

! ROLLcHANcE ! escnpeRssESsMENT n cALAMTTREAssEssMENT n pENALTAssEssMENT
-DATE OF NOTICE: HROLLYEAR:
*Must athch copy of notlce or bill, where appllcabte nEach rcll year requlrcs a sepanb appllcation

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTS) See instn cfrons beforc compteting tfis secfion,
lf you are uncertain of which item to check, please check "1. OTHER' and provide a brief explanation of your reasons for filing this application.
The reasons that I rely upon to support requested changes in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

I The assessor's roll value exceeds the market value as ofJanuary 1 ofthe cunent year.

B. CHANGE IN OV1NERSHIP

I 1. No change in ownership occuned on the date of .

[2'Baseyearvalueforthechangeinownershipestablishedonthedaleof-isincorrect.
C. NEWCONSTRUCTION

! 1. No new construction occurred on the date of

M 2. Base year value for the completed new construction established on the date of 1213112A18 is incorrect.

n 3. Value of construc{ion in progress on January 1 is incorrect.

D, CALAMIry REASSESSMENT

! Assessor's reduced value is inconect for property damaged by misfortune or calamity.
E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal property and/or fixtures exceeds market value.

tr 1. All personal property/fixtures.

I Z. Only a portion of lhe personal property/fixtures. Attach description of those items.

F. PENALTYASSESSMENT

! Penalty assessment is not justified.

G. CLASSIFICATION/ALLOCATION

! 1. Classificalion of property is incorrect.
[ 2. Allocation of value of property is incorrect (e.g., between land and improvements).

H. APPEALAFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each propefi issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.
fl 1. Amount of escape assessment is incorrecl.

[ 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is incorrect.
I. OTHER

I Explanation (attach sheet if necessary)

7. WRTTTEN F|NDINGS OF FACTS ( NA?

I Are requested. X Are not requested.

8. THIS APPLICATION IS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND See instructions.
EYes D No

CERTIFICATION

I ceftW @r declarc) under penalU of peiury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the forcgoing and alt information hereon, inctuding any
accompanying statements or documents, is true, conect, and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief and that t an (1) the owner of the
ptopefty or the person afiected (i.e., a person having a dircct economic interest in the payment of taxes on that prcperty -',The Applicant,), (2) an
agent authoized by the applicant under item 2 of this application, or (3) an aftomey licensed to practice taw in the State of Califomia, dtaie'BarNumber - who has been ptained by the applicant and has been authoized by that person to file this apptication.

(UEs Blus Pon . Original on peper-fl lod appllcaton) DATE

lo'7'
NAME (Please Print)

Lovr n S. Ct e"rt(-
FILING STATUS (IDEN]]FY RELATIONSHIP TOAPPLICANT NAMED IN SECTION 1)

V nou/NER IAGENT IATToRNEY IsPousE nREGTSTEREDDoMESIcpARTNER IcHtLD IpARENr npERSoNAFFEcTED

ffi coneonarr oFFlcER oR DESTGNATED EMpLoyEE

STGNED Ar (CITY STAIE)

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO



BOE-305-AH (P3) REV. 08 (01-15)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCT]ONS FOR ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION

The State Board of Equalization has prepared a pamphlet to assist you in completing this application. You may download a copy of Publication
30, ResidentialProperlyAssessment Appeals, at wwwboe.ca.gov/proptax6s/asmappeal.htm or contacl the cterk of your local board for a copy.

Filing this application for reduced assessment does not relieve the applicant from the obligation to pay ihe taxes on the subject property on or
before the applicable due date shown on the tax bill. The appeals board has two years from the date an application is filed to hear and
render a decision, lf a reduction is granted, a proporlionate refund of taxes paid will be made by the county.

Based on the evidence submifted at the hearing, the appeals board can increase, decrease, or not change an assessment. The decision of the
appeals board upon this application is final: the appeals board may not reconsider or rehear any application. However, either the applicant or the
assessor may bring timely action in superior court for review of an adverse action.

An application may be amended until 5:00 p.m. on the last day upon which the application might have been timely filed. After the filing period, an
invalid or incomplete application may be corrected at lhe request of the clerk or amendments mey be made at lhe discretion of the boanl. Contact
the clerk for information regarding conecting or amending an application.

The appeals board can hear matters concerning an assessor's allocation of exempt values. However, it cannot hear matters relating to a person's
or organization's eligibility for a property tax exemption. Appeals regarding the denial of exemptions are under the jurlsdlclion of the assessor and/
or the courts.

The following instructions apply to the conesponding seclions on the application form. Please type or prinl in ink all informalign on the application
form.

SECTION I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Enter the name and mailing address of the applicant as shown on lhe tax bill or notice. lf the applicant is other than the assessee (e.g,, lessee,
trustee, party afiected), attach an explanation. NOTE: An agent's address may not be substituted for that of the applicant.

SECTION 2. CONTACT INFORMATION - AGENI ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT

Provide the contacl information for an agent, attorney, or relative if filing on behalf of the applicant. You are not required to have professional
representation. lf you have an agentto assistyou, the applicantmust complete theAgentAulhorization portion of this form orattach an authorization
which includes the information indicated below. .

AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT

lf the agent is not a CaliforniaJicensed attomey or one of the relatives indicated in the certification section, you must complete this section, or an
agent's authorization may be attached to this application, An attached authorization must contain all of the following information.
. The date the authorization is executed.

' A statement that lhe agent is authorized lo sign and file applications in the calendar year of the application.

' The specific parcel(s) or assessment(s) covered by the authorization, or a statement that the agent is authorized to represent the applicant
on all parcels and assessments located within the county that the application is being filed.

. The name, address, and telephone number ofthe agent.

. The applicant's signature and title.

. A statement that the agent will provide the applicant with a copy of the application.

SECTTON3. PROPERTYIDENTIFICATIONINFORMATION

Enter the Assessor's Parcel Number ftom your assessment notice or ftom your tax bill. lf the property is personal property (e.g., an aircraft or
boat), enter the accounvtax bill number from your tax bill. Enter a brief description of the property location, such as street address, city, and zip
code, sufficient to identify the property and assessment being appealed.

SECTION4. VALUE

GOLUMN A. Enler lhe amounts shown on your assessment notice or tax bill for the year being appealed. Personal Property includes all
water craft (boats, vessels, let-skis), airplanes, and business personal property. If you are appealing a curent year assessment (tase year or
decline in value) and have not received an asaessment notice, or are unsure ofthe values to enter in this section, please contacl the assessor's
office. lf you are appealing a calamity reassessment, penalty assessment, or an assessment related to a change in ownership, new construction,
roll change, or escape assessment, ref€r to lhe assessment notice you received.

COLUMN B. Enter your opinion of value for eaeh of the applicable categories. lf you do not state an opinion of value, it will resutt in the
rejection of your application,

COLUMN C. This column is for use by the appeals board. Do not cnter anything in this column.

SECTION 6. TYPE OFASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED

Check only one item per application. Check the item that best describes the assessment you are appealing.

Regular Assessmenf filing dates are: (1) July 2 through September 15 for all property located in the county provided the couniy
assessor sent a notice of assessed value by August 1 to all assessees with real property on the local roll; or (2) July 2 through November
30 for all property located in the county if the county assessor did not send notices of assessed values. Filing deadlines may be viewed at
www. boe.ca. gov/proptaxes/pdf/fi lingperiods.pdf.



BOE-305-AH (P4) REV. 0E (01-'r5)

Check the Regular Assessrnenf box for:

. Decline in value appeals (value as ofJanuary 1 ofcunent year).

' Change in ownership and new conetruclion appeals when the 60 day liling period for a supplemental assessment appeal has been missed,
provided the following January 1 after change of ownership or new construction has passed.

Supplemental Assessrnenf filing dates are within 60 days after the mailing date printed on the $upplemental notice or supplemental tax bill, or
the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later. Check the Supplemental Assessmenl box for:

' Change in ownership and new construction appeals filed within 60 days of the mailing date printed on the supplemental assessment notice
or supplemental tax bill, or the postmark date of the notice or lax bill, whichever is later.

Roll ChangelEscape Assessment/Penaw Assesst enf filing dates are within 60 days afier the mailing date printed on the assessment notice,
or the postmark date of the nolice, whichever is later. Calamtty Reassossrnenf filing dates are within six months after the mailing of the
assessment notice. Check the Roll ChangeEscape Assessrnenf/Calamfy Reassessmenl box for:
. Roll corrections.

. Escape assessrents, including those discovered upon audit.

. Penalty Assessments

. Property damaged by misfortune or calamity, such as a natural diaster.

For Supplemental and Roil ChangelEscape Assesstnenf/Catarn ty Reassessrnenf appeals, indicate the roll year and provide the date of the
notice or date of the tax bill. Typically, the roll year is the fiscal year that begins on July 1 of the year in which you file your appeal. lt is required
that you attach a copy of the supplemental or escape aaaeaament notice or tax bill.

sEcTtoN 6. REASON FOR FtLtNG AppEAL (FACTS)

Please check the item or items describing your reason(s) for filing this application. You may attach a brief explanation if necessary. Evidence must
be presented at the hearing; do not attach hearing evidence to this application,

A Decline in Value appeal means that you believe the market value of the property on January 1 of the current year is less than the assessed
value for the property. lf you select Decline in Value, be advised that the application will only be efiective for the one year appealed. Subsequent
years will normally require additional filings during the regular assessment appeal filing period.

ln general, base yearis either the year your real property changed ownership or the year of 6ompletion of new construotion on your property; base
year value is the value established at that time. The base year value may be appealed during the regular filing period for the year il was'placed
on the roll or during the regular filing period in the subsequent three years.

Calamity Reassessmeafincludes damage due to unforeseen occurenc€s such as flre, earthquake, and flood, and does not include damages
that occur gradually due to ordinary natural forces. An appeal application may only b€ filed after you have (1 ) filed a request for reassessment due
to a calamity with the assessol and (2) you have received a notice from the assessor in reply to that request for reassessment.

Only applicalions filed for penalfies imposed by the assessor can be removed by the board. A penalty assessed by the iax collector cannot be
removed by the appeals board; for example, late charges on payments.

For classlflcation of property, indicate whether you are appealing only an item, category or class of property. Please aitach a separate sheet
identifying what property will be the subjec-t of this appeal. Atlocatlon of value is the division of total value between various components, such as
land and improvements.

Appeal after an ludft muet include a complete description of each property being appealed, and the reason for the appeal. Contact the clerk to
determine what documents must be submitted. lf not timely submitted, it will result in the denial of your applicalion.

SECTION 7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS

Written findings of facts are explanations of the appeals board's decision, and will be necessary if you intend to seek judicial review of an adverse
appeals board decision. Findings of facts can only be requested if your appeal is heard before a board and if made in writing at any time prior io
the commencement of the hearing. Failure to pay the required fees prior to the conclusion of the hearing will be deemed a wliver of the requesi.
Request$ for a tape recording or transcript must be made no later than 60 days after the final determination by the appeals board. Contact the
clerk to detemine the appropriate fee; do not send payment with your application.

SECTION 8. DESIGNATIONAS CLAIM FOR REFUND

lndicate whether you want to designate this application as a claim for refund. lf action in superior court is antieipated, designating this application
as a claim for refund may affect the time period in which you can file suit. NOTE: lf for any reason you decide to withdraw this applicatlon, that
action will also constitule withdrawal of your claim for refund.

CERTIFICATION - Check the box that best descrlbes your status as the percon filing the application.
REQUESTS FOR EXCHANGE OF TNFORMATION

You may request an 'exchange of information' between yourself and the assessor regardless of the assessed value of the property. lf the
assessed value of the property exceeds $1 00,000, the assessor may initiate an "exchange of information" (Revenue and Taxation Cbde-sec{ion
1606). Such a request may be filed with this application or may be filed any time prior to 30 days before the commencement of the hearing on
this application. The request must conlain the basis of your opinion of value. Please include comparable sales, cost, and income data where
appropriate to support the value. ln some counties, a list of property transfers may be inspected at the aesessor's offce for a fee not to exceed
$10. The li$t contains transfers that have occurred within the county over lhe last two years.



BOE€7d (P1) REV. 06 (05-19)

NOTICE OF SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT

tFor counties in which the Board of Supolisors has not
adoptad the Novislons of sectlon 1605(c)l

XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS

6312 S FIDDLERS GRN CIR #6OON

GREENWOODVLGCO 80{tt

DATE OF NOTICE: 04t171202A Assesso/s Parcel Number:

Sltus Address:

County of lnyo
Dave Stottlemyre, Assessor
PO Box J

lndependence, CA S3526
inyoassessor@inyocoung. us
(760) 878-0302

0412800700

H\ /Y 190

Date of Change of Ownership
or Completion of New Construction: 12131t2018

One or more supplBmentel assessments have been determined for the property shown above. Supplemental assessments are determined in

accordance with the Cslifornia Constitution, arliole Xlll A, which generally requires a cunent market value reassessment ot real property lhat has either
undergone a changB in ownership or ls newly constructed.

As shown below, a supplemental assessment represents the ditference b€twesn the property's 'new base year vatue' (for example, curr€nt market
value) and ils existing taxable value. lf the change in ownership or completion of new construclion occurred between January 1 and May 31, fwo
supplem€ntal assegsments are issued: one iot the difference between the now base year value and the taxable value appearing on the current
assessment roll, and another for the difference betwean the new base year value and lhe taxable value that will appear on the assessment roll being
prepared.

lf a supplemental assessmenl is a negative amount, the county audilor will make a refund of a podion of the iaxes paid on asscssments made on the
current roll, or the roll boing prepared, or both. A copy of the assessment roll is available lor inspection by all interested parties during regular otfice
hours.

YOUR RIGHT TO AN INFORIIIAL REVIEW

lf you believe this assessment is incon€cl, you havo the right to an lnformal revrew with lhe Assessor I slaff. You may contact lhe Assessor's Office
for an informal review at (760) 878-0302.

CURRENT ROLL ROLL BEING PREPARED

EXISTING

VALUE
NEWBASE YEAR

VALUE
SUPPLEMENTAL

VALUE
EXISTING

VALUE
NEW BASE YEAR

VALUE
SUPPLEMENTAL

VALUE

LAND 905,151 905,151 0 0

IMPROVEMENTS 24,081,113 25,644,231 1,563,118 (

TAXABLE VALUE 24,986,264 26,549,382 1,563,118 0 0 t

HOMEOWNERS 0 0 0 0 (
OTHER 0 c 0 0 0 {;

NET TOTAL 24,986 264 26,549,382 1,563,1 1 I 0 0 c

EXEMPTIONS

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECTTO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE€7-A1P1 REV. 06 {0$19}

EXEi'IPTIONS

ln general, any exemplions lhat have already been granted for this property remain rn effect. lf the assessee on the supplementat roll is eligible for an
exemption of a greater amount and a claim js filed for the next assessment year, then lhe d.flerence In lhe amount between the two exemptions shall
be appl,ed to the supplBmentrl assessmenl. Any claim previously filed by the owner of a dwelling for either the homeowners' exemption or the disabled
veterans'e.xemphon also consttutes a claim for such exemption on the supplemental roll. lf no ctaim for any of these exemptions has previously been
filed or { you wish lo file a claim for any other exemption, you may strll be eligble for the exemption(s}'f a claim is filed within 3odays after the date ol
thrs notrce to receive the full amount of exemption for which you are e:rg!ble.

YOUR RIGHT TO APPEAL

You have the nght to a formal appeal of the assessment whch ,nvolves (1) the Rhng of a valid appl,cation, {2) a hBaring before an appeals board and
(3) a dession. An Assessttenf Appeal Applrcalion form is available hom, and should be filed with, the Clerk of the Board. You may conlact the Clerk'6
office at (760) 878-0373

APPEAL FILIHG DEAOLINES

[For countres in whrch the Boafi ofsupervtsors has /, ot adopted lhe prowsf,ni of section i60s(c)J
ln general a formal appeal may be fited with,n 60 days aff€r the date of this notrce (pnnted on the other side) or the postmark date tor the not,ce,

whichever rs latet. Calamity reassessment liling dales are with,n six months atter the mailing ot the assessment no{ce.

Ad epplcet,on ts consdered tmely filed,f (1) rt,s sent by U.S. marl and postmarked no later than the fihng dead.rne or by anothar bona fide dElivery
serurc€ wilh the maiirng date cerUfed on the envelope or package. propeiy addressed with postage prepard; OR (2) the appeals board rs satisfied lhat
ihe mailing occurred by the filing deadltne. lf the fil,ng deadline falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a tegal holiday, an applicat,on that s marled and
postmarked on the next busrness day shall be consdered t.mely filed You may also hand del'ver the appeal applicat,on to the Clerk of the Board by tha
cose of business on the deadline date.

ln any 6ase an applicatlon may be filed with'n l2months following the month in which this notrce:s receved if you 8nd the Assessor agree lhat there
rs an eftor in assessmenl resultng fom the Assessors Judgment in determ:ning the value of the property AND a written stipulation is filed with the
assessment appeals board.

ADDITIONAL APPEAL RISHTS

under a(rcte xlll A of the cal;fomia constitution the new base year value establishes a ceiling on lhe property's taxable value fof subsequent
assessment years. Once the new base year value is determjned lor each subsequent assessment year the Assessor will enroll the lower of (1) the
property's new base year value adiusled annually tor rnf,ahon by no lnore than 2 per6ent, or (2) the property s currenl marft€t value taking into
account declines n value due lo damage, depreciat,on, obsolegcence changes'n market condilions, or other lactors.

lf no timely apphcation is liled for the supplemental assessment, the new base year value may st,ri be appeated. Specificelly, an appeal of the new base
year value may be filed during the regular appeals filing penod for the current year or :n any of the three tollowihg assessment years. The regular
appeals filrng period wi:l begin on July Zin each county and w.tj end e,ther on September 15or November 30, depending on whether the County
Ass€ssor malls asdessment notices to atl taxpayers with propedy on the secured roll. You should contacl the Clerk of the Board to determine the
regular fil,ng penod. Any reduction made as th3 resull of such an appEal will, however, apply only lo lhe assessment year tor whlch lhe
appeal ls tiled and as3essment yearc thsreafteri neither the supplemental agseasment nor the values for assessment years prior
lo lhe year for whlch the rppeal was lnltially filed would be reduced,

EXCLUSIONS

Cenan salesltransfers of property between parenls and chrldren and certan sales/lransfers between grandparenls and grandch,tdren may quat.fy for
exclus,on from reassessmert thereby maintain ng your :ower property ,"r ;i6b,t tV. plBase mntact our office at (2601 B7g-0302 for further informat on.



BOE-305-AH (P1) REV.08 (01-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION
This form contains all of the requests for informalion
that are required for filing an application lor changed
assessment. Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the application and/or denial of the
appeal. Applicants should be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at the time of
ihe hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may result in the
continuance of the hearing or denial ofthe appeal. Do not
attach hearlng evidence to thls application.

1, APPL]CANT INFORMATION . PLEASE PRINT
NAME OF APPLICANT (LAST, FIRST MIDDLE

XANTERRA PARKS &
tNtnAu,

RES tNc
MA|L|NG ADDRESS OFAppLtCANT (SrR€gtrODR€SS OR p O aOX)

6312 S. FIDDLERS GREEN CIR., #600 N

OR IRUSTNAME

Mail to: lnyo County Clerk of the Board
Coun$ Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

EMAILADDRESS

.com

Glerk Use Only

CITY FAX TELEPHONE

()
2. CONTACT INFORMATION -AGENL ATTORNEY, OR RELATTVE OF APPLTCANT if appffcabte - (REPRESENTATTON tS OPTTONAL)

STATE IZpCODE IDAYflMETELEPHONE lAlrenunreEleenoHe
co I80111 l(303 )600-3467 l( )

NAME OF AGENT, ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE (LAST FIRSI M'DDLE NINALI

COMPANY NAME

CONTACT PERSON IF OTHER IHAN ABOVE (TAST FIRSI, MIDDLE INIITAL')

STATF AP CODE lorwtttrerelepxoHE lnLtenrunrrItrltr TELEPHONE

AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT IAUTXORZITIoNATTACHED
The followlng lnformatlon must he completed (or attached to thls application - see lnstructlons) unless the agent is a llcensed Califomla
attomey as indlcated in the Certiflcafron section, or a spouse, child, parcnt, rcgistered domestic partner, ortte percon affected. lf the
appllcant k a lusirress the aulhorizatlon must be an offlcer or authortzed employee ofthe buslness.
The person named ln 2 above ls hereby authoilzad to act as my agent ln thts applicatton, andmay lnspect assossor's r€co,'ds,

enter in sfipuhtion agrcemenb, and otheryise sefue rssues relatlng to thls appllcaton,
DATE

ctTv

MATLTNGADDRESS (STREFTADDRESS OR p O. BOn

3. PROPERW IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

n Yes E No ls lhis property a single-family dwelling that is ocanpied as the principal place of residence by the owner?

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER (if

TELEPHONE

ACCOUNT NUMBER OR TAX BILL NUMBER (if applicable)

DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA), if approprlate

! possessonYlNTEREsr

fl vncnrururuo

X ornen: HOTELS

! ecRtcurrunnL

n uanumcruREDHoME

N WATER CRAFT N ARCMFT

TOTAL

(

LOCATION

HWY 190 CREEK. CA
PROPERTYTYPE

! SINGLE-FAM|LY / CONDOMTNTUM / TOV\NHOUSE / DUPLEX

fl naum-rnutLy/ApARTMENTS: No. oF uNtrs _
I co[rMeRctcutNDUSTRtAL

n BUSTNESS PERSONAL PROPERTFIXTURES

4. VALUE

LAND

IMPROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERTY (see instructions)

MINERAL RIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

C.APPEALS BOARD USE ONLY

t:>

ASSESSMENT NUMBER (lf appticabte)

A. VALUE ON ROLL B. APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE

923,254 9?? ?54
25787 465 12,893,733

26.710.719 13,616,987
PENALTIES or percent)

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECTTO PUBLIC INSPECTION

l.,.rl



BOE-3o$AH (P2) REV 08 (01-15)

5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED f Ch eck only one,see fnstnrcflons forfittng periods

! neeuuR ASSESSMENT - VALUE AS OF JANUARY 1 OF THE GURRENT YEAR

I SUppIeUENTALASSESSMENT
*DATE OF NOTICE: ROLLYEAR:

N RoLLCHANGE E ESCAPEASSESSMENT tr CALAMITREASSESSMENT n PENALTASSESSMENT
"DATE oF NOTICE: 0411712020 **R9LLyEAR: 2A19n020
"Must albch copy of nottce or bill, wherc applicable "*Each roll year rcquircs a separate application

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTSI See instrucfions befote completlng fDis sect'on
lf you are uncertain of which item to check, please check '1. OTHER" and provide a brief explanation of your reasons for filing this application.
The reasons that I rely upon to support requested changes in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

! The assessor's roll value exceeds the market value as of January 1 of the cunent year.

B. CHANGE IN OV\NERSHIP

n1.Nochangeinownershipoccurredonthedateof-.
!2.Baseyearvalueforthechangeinownershipestablishedonthedateof-isincorrect'

C. NEWCONSTRUCTION

fl 1. No new construction occurred on the date of-
M 2, Base year value for the completed new conslruction established on the date of 1213112018 is incorrect.

[ 3. Value of construction in progress on January 1 is incorrecl.

D. CALAMIry REASSESSMENT

I Assessor's reduced value is inconec't for property damaged by misforlune or calamity.

E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal property and/or {ixtures exceeds market value.

[ 1. All personal propertyllixtures.

[ 2. Only a portion of the personal propefiffixtures. Aftach description of those items.

F. PENALTYASSESSMENT

! Penalty assessment is not justified.

G. C LASSI FI CATION/ALLOCATIO N

D 1. Classification of property is inconect.
! 2. Allocation of value of property is incorrecl (e.9., between land and improvements).

H. APPEALAFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each property, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.
[ 1. Amount of escape assessment is incorrect.

[ 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is incorrect.
I. OTHER

n Explanation (aftach sheet ifnecessary)

7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS ( $_ per_ )

I Are requested. El Are not requested.

8. THIS APPLICATION lS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND See instnrcfrbns.
[t Yes D No

CERTIFICATION

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the foregoing and all information hereon, including any
accompanying statements or documents, is true, conect, and complete to the bast of my knowledge aN belief and that I an (1) the owner of the
prcpefty or the person affected (i.e., a person having a direct ectnomic interest in the payment of taxes on that property -"The Applicant'), (2) an
agent authoized by the applicant under item 2 of this application, or (3) an aftomey liensed to pnctice law in the State of Califomia, State Bat
Number-whohasbeenretainedbytheapplicantandhasbeenauthorizedbythatwrsontofilethisapplication'
SIGNATURE Pon . Odglnsl llgnalure roqulred on papor-filod appllcafon) DATE

b4"znLa
NAME (Pleas€ Print)

Llcnrrie <
FILING STATUS (IDENTIFY RELATIONSHIP TO APPLICANT NAfiED IN SECTION 1)

d 1o**ro IAGENT nArroRNEy IspousE !neersreReoDoMEsrcpARrNER IcHtLo f]pARENr IeERsoNAFFESTED

ffi coneonere oFFrcER oR DEstcNATED EMpLoyEE

STGNE0AT (CITY STAIE)

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO



BOE-305-AH (P3) REV 08 (01-15)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION

The State Board of Equalization has prepared a pamphlet to assist you in completing this application. You may download a copy 0f Publication
30, Residential PropertyAssessrnent Appeals, at www.boe.ca.gov/proptaxes/asmappeal-htm or contaci the clerk of your local board for a copy.

Filing this application for reduced assessment does not relieve the applicant from the obligation to pay the taxes on the subject properiy on or
before the applicable due date shown on the tax bill. The appeale board has tvyo yeam from the date an application is flled to hear and
rsnder a declsion. lf a reduction is granted, a proportionate refund of taxes paid will be made by the county.

Based on the evidence submitted at the hearing, the appeals board can increase, decrease, or not change an assessment. The decision of the
appeals board upon this application is final; the appeals board may not reconsider or rehear any application. However, either the applicant or the
assessor may bring timely action in superior court for review of an adverse action.

An application mey be amended until 5:00 p.m. on the last day upon which the application might have been timely filed. After the filing period, an
invalid or incomplete application may be conected at the request of the clerk or amendments may be made at the discretion of the board. Contact
the clerk for information regarding correcting or amending an applicalion.

The appeals board can hear matters conceming an assessor's allocation of exempt values. However, it cannot hear matters relating to a person's
or organization's eligibility for a property tax exemption. Appeals regarding the denial of exemptions are under the jurisdiclion of the assessor and/
or the courts.

The following instructions apply to ihe conesponding sections on the application form. Please type or print in ink all information on the application
form.

SECTIONl. APPLICANTINFORMATIOI,I

Enier the name and mailing address of the applicant as shown on the lax bill or nolice, lf the applicant is other than the assessee (e.g., lessee,
trustee, party affected), attach an explanation. NOTE: An agent's address may not be substituted for that of the applicant.

SECTION 2. CONTACT INFORMATION . AGENT, ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT

Provide the conlact information for an agent, attorney, or relative if filing on behalf of the applicant. You are not required to have professional
representation. lf you have an agent to assistyou, the applicantmustcomplete theAgentAuthorization portion ofthis form orattach an authorization
which includes the information indicated below. .

AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT

lf the agent is not a California-licensed attomey or one of the relatives indicated in the certification sec,tion, you must complete this section, or an
agent's authorization may be aftached to this application. An atlached authorization must contain all of the following information.
. The date the authorization is executed.

' A statement that the agent is authorized to sign and file applications in the calendar year of lhe application.

' The specific parcel(s) or assessment(s) covered by the authorization, or a stat€ment that the agent is authorized to represent the applicant
on all parcels and assessments located within the county that the application is being filed.

. The name, address, and telephone numberofthe agent.

. The applicant's signature and title.

. A statement that the agent will provide the applicant with a copy of the application.

SECTIONS. PROPERTYIDENTIFICATIONINFORMATION

Enter the Assessor's Parcel Number from your assessment notice or fom your tax bill. lf the property is personal property (e.g., an aircraft or
boat), enter the accounVtax bill number from your tax bill. Enter a brief description of the property location, such as street address, city, and zip
code, sufficient to identify the property and assessment being appealed.

SECTION 4. VALUE

COLUMN A. Enler the amounts shown on your assessment notice or tax bill for the year being appealed. Personal Property includes all
water craft (boats, vessels, jet-skis), airplanes, and business personal property. lf you are appealing a current year assessment (base year or
decline in value) and have not received an assessment notice, or are unsure ofthe values to enter in this section, please c,ontact ihe assessor's
offce. lf you are appealing a calamity reassessmenl, penalty assegsment, or an assessment related to a change in ownership, new construction,
roll change, or escape assessment, refer to the assessment notice you received.

COLUMN B. Enter your opinion of value for each of the applicable categories. lf you clo not state an oplnion of value, it will resutt in the
reiectlon of your application.

COLUMN C. This column is for use by the appeals board. Do not enter anything in this column,

SECTION 5. TYPE OF AE5ES6MENT BEING APPEALED

Check only one item per application. Check the item that best describes the assessment you are appealing.

Regular Assessment filing dates are: (1) July 2 through September 15 for all property located in the county provided the county
assessor sent a notice of assessed value by August 1 to all assessees with real property on the local roll; or (2) July 2 through November
30 for all property located in the county if the county assessot did not send notices of assessed values. Filing deadlines may be viewed at
www. boe.ca. gov/proptaxesr/pdf/fi lin gperiods. pdf.



BOE-305-AH (P4) REV.08 (01-15)

Check the RegularAssessmenf box for:

. Decline in value appeals (value as of January 1 of cunent yea$.

. Change in ownership and new construction appeals when the 60 day filing period tor a supplemental assessment appeal has been missed,
provided the following January 1 after change of ownership or new construction has passed.

Supplemental Assessmenf filing dates are wiihin 60 days after the mailing date printed on the supplemental notice or supplemental tax bill, or
the postmark date of lhe notice or tax bill, whichever is later. Check lhe SupplementalrAssessrnenf box for:

. Change in ownership and new construction appeals filed within 60 days of the mailing date printed on the supplemental assessment notice
or supplemental tax bill, or the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later.

Roll ChangdEscapeAssessment/Penalty Assessmerrf filing dates are within 60 days after the mailing date printed on lhe assessment notice,
or the postmark date of the notice, whichever is later. Calamity Reassessmenf filing dates are within six months after the mailing of the
assessment notice. Check the Roll Change/Escape Assessmont/Calamify Reassessrnenf box for:

. Roll conec{ions.

. Escape assessments, including those discovered upon audit.

. Penalty Assessments

. Property damaged by misfortune or calamity, such as a natural diaster.

For Supplemental and Roll Changrey'Escape Assessmen/Calami{y Reassessmenf appeals, indicate the roll year and provide the date of the
notice or date of the tax bill. Typtcally, the roll year is the fscal year that begins on July 1 of the year in which you file your appeal. lt is requlred
that you attach a copy of the $upplemental or eocape aaseaament notlce or tax bill.

sEcTloN 6, REASON FOR FTL|NG AppEAL (FACTS)

Please check the item or items describing your reason(s) for filing this application. You may aftach a brief explanation if necessary. Evidence must
be presented at the hearing; do not attach hearing evidence to this application.

ADecllne ln Value appeal means that you believe the market value ofthe property on January 1 ofthe current year is less than the assessed
value for the property. lf you select Decline in Value,be advised that the application will only be efiective for the one year appealed. Subsequent
years will normally require additional filings during the regular assessment appeal filing period.

ln general, 6ase year is either the year your real property changed ownership or the year of completion of new construction on your property; base
year value is the value established at that time. The base year value may be appealed during the regular filing period for lhe year it was placed
on the roll or during the regular filing period in the subsequent three years.

Calamlty Reassessrnentincludes damage due to unforeseen occurrences such as fire, earthquake, and flood, and does not include damages
that occur gradually due to ordinary natural forces. An appeal applicalion may only be filed after you have (1 ) filed a request for reassessment due
to a calamity with the assessor; and (2) you have received a notice from the assessor in reply to that request for reassessment.

Only applicalions filed for pet anies imposed by the assessor can be removed by the boarcl. A penalty as$essed by the tax collector cannot be
removed by the appeals board; for example, late charges on payments.

For classiflcatlot, of property, indicate whether you are appealing only an item, category, or class of property. Please attach a separate sheet
identifying whal property will be the subject of this appeal. AllocafJon of value is the division of total value between various components, such as
land and improvemenls.

Appeal after an Audlf muct include a complete description of each property being appealed, and the reason for the appeal. Contact the clerk to
determine what documents must be submitted. lf not timely submitted, it will result in the denial of your application.

SECTION 7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS

Written findings of facts are exp,anations of the appeals board's decision, and will be necessary if you intend to seek judicial review of an adverse
appeals board decision. Findings of facls can only be requested if your appeal is heard before a board and if made in writing at any time prior to
the commencement of the hearing. Failure to pay the required fees prior to the conclusion of the hearing will be deemed a waiver of the request.
Requests for a tape recording or lranscript must be made no later than 60 days after the final determination by the appeals board. Contact th€
clerk to determine the appropriate fee: do not send payment with your application.

SECTION 8. DESIGNATION AE CLAIM FOR REFUND

lndicate whether you want to designate this application as a claim for refund. lf action in superior court is anticipated, designating this application
as a claim for refund may afiecl the time period in which you can file suit. NOTE: lf for any reason you decide to withdraw this application, that
action will also constitute withdrawal of your daim for refund.

CERTIFICATIOil - Check the box that best describes your sbtus as lhe person filing the application.

REAUEET$ FOR EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION

You may request an 'exchange of information' between yourself and the assessor regardless of the assessed value of the property. lf the
assessed value of the property exceeds $1 00,000, the assessor may initiate an 'exchange of information" (Revenue and Taxation Code section
1606). Such a request may be filed with this application or may be filed any time prior to 30 days before the @mmencement of the hearing on
this application. The request mutt contain lhe basis of your opinion of value. Please include oomparable sales, cost, and income data where
appropriate to support the value. ln some counties, a list of property lransfers may be inspected at the assessor's office for a fee not to exceed
$10. The list contains transfers that have occuned within the county over the last two years.



OFF'ICE OF' THE ASSESSOR
County of lnyo, Dave Stotllemyre, Asgessor

pO Box J

lndependence, CA 93526

NOTICE OF PROPOSED ESCAPE ASSESSMENT

XANTERM PARKS & RESORTS DATE NONCEMAILEO
ASSESSMENT#

6312 S FTDDLERS GRN CtR #€00N EScApE rAx YEAR

GREENWOOD VLG, CO 801 1,I ESCAPE #
TAX YEAR CREATED

PARCEL #

REVENUE A TAX CODE

OWNERIS) XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS

PROPERTY AODRE SS HWY 190 FURNACE CREEK, CA

Sectron 53 1 B of lhe Revenue and Taxabon Code provides thal we give you nolice al lea5l 1 0 days prior to levying an sscape assessment. Thts escape
assessmenlrsrntendedtoconeclomrssronsorenorsintheassessmentof yourtaxableproperty. Thisnolicsistoinfotmyouthatweproposglo
process lhe following escspe assessment(s} on lhe real end/or business property doBcribed above.

YOUR RIGHT TO AN INFORII/IAL REWEW

l, you bei eve thls assessment is incotrect you have lhe dght to an ,nformal review with the Assesgor or a member ol the Assessor's staff. You may
contacl the Assessor s Offie et (760)87&0302 for lnformalion tegardtng an tnformal r€vrew.

YOUR RIGHT TO APPEAL

Youalsohavelhenghttoaformalappealotlheassessmentwhrch,nvolves(1)thefirrngofan,AssessmertAppealApplication,(2)ahearingbeforean
dppeals board and (3) a decrsron by the appeals board. An Assessme/tt A Weal Apphcatian lom rs available from, and shourd be tiled wilh, the Clerk ot lhe
App6als Eoard You may contact tt16 Clerk s Offce at (760)878-0373 for mor€ rnformatton on tling an spplicalion.

FILIiIG DEADLINES

[For counl|€s in which lhe goard of Supervrsors ftas nol adopted lhe provisions af saclion 16O5(c)]

ln general, an Assessmenl Appeal Application musl be liled wlhin 60 days after the Date of Notice (prinled above) or the poctmark dale on the envelope in
which the noUce was matled, whrch€ver is later.

An aPpr,cation is cons,dered t:mely fled rf, ('1) lt is sent by U.S. mail, properly addregsed wilh postage pr€paid postmarked on or before the tiling de6dl ne;

OR (2) lhe appeals board .s sat sfied that the mailing occuned by the filing deadlrns. lf the nlng deadltnB hlis on a Saturday Sunday, or s legat holtday an
applrcalion that is mailed and posha*ed on the next business day shallbe considered timely filed.

4117 2020

041 2800700

2019

2020

041 2800700

RTC 4831

REASON: Completed New Construction,4831 - To Correcl Entries on the Rotl

Oscar.i' a'.'.asr,Irei,i:.: I l:i bolh valr:,:: i!r:rii::i!.: and ii.:!:eases may be processed separate y by fhe
AudiC.jr - (ii,ntroiicr. Ti::s could fijsi:1 I :ir ihr.,r:r:c:;r.ion of both an eScape tax brll f r the
t,::t.a. ,:f :; I tncf :-;f rri an;: a taz r,: i!ni :'i;l: i:h: ::i.':i1 .1 i,f alL decreases {if ail- laxes have been
paid:.

26,71A.719 1,224.73ANet Taxable 25.485,989

PRIOR

ASSESSMEIiT

923 254

24,582755

VALUE

CHANGE

0

1224.734

NEW

ASSESSMENT

923 254

25 787 465

VALUE'EXEMPTION

fiPE
Land

lmprovement

ASR-486-23 (Rev 1ol18)

THIS IS NOTA TAx BILL



BOE-305-AH (P1) REV 08 (0r-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION
This form contains all of the requests for information
that are required for ftling an application for changed
assessment. Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the application and/or denial of the
appeal. Applicants should be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at the time ot
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers neces$ary may result in the
continuance of the hearing or denial of the appeal. Do not
atlach hearing evidence to this applicatlon.

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION . PLEASE PRINT

Mail to: lnyo County Clerk of the Board
County Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

NAME OF APPLTCANT (LASI FIRS4 MIDDLF 
'NlrrAL), 

SUS/NESS, OR rRUSrn/AME

XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS, INC.
EMAILAODRESS

xanterra.conl
MATLINGADDRFSS OFAPPLTCANT (STRFETADDRESS OR p O. AOX)

6312 S. FIDDLERS GREEN CIR., #600 N
CITY TELEPHONE

2. CONTAGT INFORMATION . AGENT, ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT lf applicable . (REPRESENTATIOiI lS OPTIONAL)
NAME OF AGENT, ATTORNEY OR RELATNE (LAS\ FIRST MIDDLE INIIIAL],

COMPANY NAME

APPLTCATIOANUMBER:

J020-
Clork Use Only

0

STATE

co
zlP CODE

80111
IDAYTIMETELEPHoNE IALTERNATETELEPHoNE

Itsos I ooo-a 46T l( )

0oNTACT PERSON tF OTHER I}|AN ABOVE IAST FIRST, MTDDLE INTITALI

MAILING ADDRESS (STREETADDRFSS OR p O. BOX)

CITY

3. PROPERW IDENTIFIC,ATION INFORMATION

n Yes E No ls this property a single-family dwelling that is occupied as the principal place of residence by the owner?

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER (if applicable)

FAX TELEPHONE

ACCOUNT NUMBER OR TAX BILL NUMBER (if applicabla)

DOING BUSINESSAS (DBA), if appropriate

n possessonYtNTEREsr

N VACANTLAND

El orspR, HOTELS

! noRrcuurunnl

! urururecruRED HoME

I WATER CMFT N ARCRAFT

TOTAL

OR

HWY 190 FURNACE CREE CA
PROPERTY TYPE

n SINGLE-FAM|LY / CONDOMTNTUM / TOWNHOUSE / DUPLEX

I trrurrlreutLy/ApARTMENTS: No. oF uNtrs _
n couuencnuNDusrRtAL

n BUSTNESS PERSONAL PROPERry/F|XTURES

4. VALUE

LAND

IM PROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERW (see instructions)

MINEML RIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

r:-; i'; i

SIATE ZIP CODE DAYIIME TELEPHONE

()
ALTERNATE TELEPHONE

()
AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT ! IUTXORZITPNATTACHED
The following lnformation must be completed (or aftached to thls appllcatlon - see lnstructions, onress t re agert is a llcensed Calltornta
attomey as indicated in the Certificatlon secfion, ora spouse, chlld, parcnt ,eglstercd domestlc partner, or the percon afiacted, lf the
appllcant k a business entlU, the agent's authorization must be signed by an offlcer or authorlzed employee of the business.
The person named in Section 2 above ls hercby authorlzed to act as my agent ln this apptlcation, and may lnspecf assessor's tecords,

enfel ln stlpulatlon agrcemenb, and othetwise seffle issues retating to thls appticatlon.
TfTLE DATE

ASSESSMENT NUMBER (if applicable)

A. VALUE ON ROLL B.APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE APP.EALS

713,167 713.167
28768 7F,0 14.384.380

?g 481 927 15,097.547
PENALTIES (amount or

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIG INSPEGTION

1-rl



BOE-305-AH (P2) REV.08 (01-15)

5. ryPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APP EALED d Check onty one. See lnstructions fot ftting periods

n ReouuqR ASSESSMENT - vALUE AS oF JANUARy 1 oF THE CURRENT vEAR

B suppleuENTALAssESSMENT
*DATE oF NoTICE: Q411712020 R6LLyEAR: 2O1A2A1}

N ROLLCHANGE I TSCNPENS$ESSMENT N CALAMITYREASSESSMENTD PENALWASSESSMENT
*DATE OF NOTICE: *ROLLYEAR:

"Must at'bch copy of notice or bill, where applicable *'Each roll year requires a sepante application

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTS) 9ee instructions beforc completing this section.
lf you are uncertain of which item to check, please oheck "1. OTHER" and provide a brief explanation of your reasons for filing this application.
The reasons that I rely upon to support requested changes in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

I The assessor's roll value exceeds lhe market value as of January 1 of the current year.

B. CHANGE IN OIVNERSHIP

! 1. No change in ownership occurred on the date of

|l2.Baseyearvalueforthechangeinownershipestablishedonthedateof-isincorrect'
C. NEWCONSTRUCTION

fl L No new construction occurred on the date of

El 2. Base year value for the completed new construction established on the date of 12t31 18 is incorrect.

[ 3. Value of construction in progress on January 1 is incorrect.

D. CALAMITY REASSESSMENT

! Assessor's reduced value is incorrect for property damaged by misfortune or calamily.
E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal propedy and/or lixtures exceeds market value.

n 1. All personal propertylfixtures.

n 2. Only a portion of the personal property/fixtures. Attach description of those items.

F. PENALTYASSESSMENT

I Penalty assessment is not justified.

G. CLASSI FICATION/ALLO CATI O N

[ 1. Classification of property is inconect.
[ 2. Allocation of value of property is incorrect (e.9., between land and improvements).

H. APPEALAFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each property, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.
[ 1 . Amount of escape assessment is incorrect.

fl 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is incorrect.
I. OTHER

I Explanation (attach sheet if necessary)

7. WRITTEN FINDINGS oF FACTS ( $_per_)
I Are requested. El Are not requested.

8. THIS APPLICATION lS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND See lnstructions.
Xyes n No

CERTIFICATION

I cerlify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the foregoing and al! information hereon, inctuding any
a@ompanying statements or documents, is true, conect, and complete to the best of my knowledge and betief and that I an (1) the owner of the
prcperty or the person affected (i.e., a person having a direct economic interest in the payment of taxes on that propedy -"The Applicant'), (Z) an
agent authoized by the applicant under item 2 ot this application, or (3) an attomey licensed to pnctice taw in the State of Califomia, Sfate Bar
Number-whohasbeenretainedbytheapplicantandhasbeenauthoizedbythatpersontofitethisapplication.

(Use Blu6 Pon - Origlnal signature roquind on papor-fi lod applicaf onl DATE(e'Z-ZIZC
NAME (Plea6e Print)

Lorr.t.e- S V*
FILING STATUS ODENTIFY RETATIONSHIP TO APPLICANT NAMEO IN SECTION 1)

d 3 o*.o I norrur f] ArroRNEy I seouse n REGTsTERED DoMEsrc eARTNER f] cHtLD I nARENT ! nERsoNAFFE6TED

ffi coneonare oFFtcER oR DESTGNATED EMpLoyEE

SIGNEDAT{CITX STA'IE)

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO



BOE-305-AH (P3) REV. 08 (01-1s)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCT]ONS FOR ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION

The State Board of Equalization has prepared a pamphlet to assist you in completing this application. You may download a copy of Publication
30, Residential Propedy Assessment Appeals, at wwwboe.ca.goviproptaxes/asmappeal.htm or contact the clerk of your looal board for a copy.

Filing this application for reduced assessment does not relieve the applicant from the obligation to pay the taxes on the subject property on or
before the applicable due date shown on the tax bill. The appeals board has two yearc from the date an application is filed to hear and
rcnder a decision. lf a reduction is granted, a proportionate refund of taxes paid will be made by the county.

Based on the evidence submitted at the hearing, the appeals board can increase, decrease, or not change an assessment. The decision of the
appeals board upon this application is final: the appeals board may not reconsider or rehear any applicalion. However, either the applicant or the
assessor may bring timely action in superior court for review of an adverse action.

An application may be amended until 5:00 p.m. on the last day upon which the application might have been timely filed. After the filing period, an
invalid or incomplete applicaiion may be eorected at the request of the clerk or amendments may be made at ihe discretion of the board. Coniact
the cler* for information regarding conecting or amending an application.

The appeals board can hear matters conceming an assessor's allocation of exempt vatues. However, it cannot hear matters relating to a person's
or organization's eligibility for a property tax exemption. Appeals regardlng the denial of exemptions are under the jurisdiclion of the assessor and/
or the courts.

The following instructions apply to the conesponding sec{ions on the application form. Please type or print in ink all information on the applicaiion
form.

SECTION {. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Enter the name and mailing address of the applicant as shown on the lax bill or notice. lf the applicant is other than lhe assessee (e.g., lessee,
trustee, parly affected), attach an explanation. NOTE: An agent's address may not be substituted for that of the applicanl.

SECTION 2, CONTACT INFORMATION -AGENI ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT

Provide the conlact information for an agent, attorney, or relative if filing on behalf of the applicant. You are not required to have professional
representation. lf you have an agent to assist you, the applicant mustcomplete theAgentAuthorization portion of this form or attach an authorization
which includes the information indicated below .

AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT

lf the agent is not a Californialicensed attomey or one of the relatives indicated in the certification section, you must complete this section, or an
agent's authorization may be attached to this application. An atlached authorization must contain all of the following information.
. The date ihe authorization is executed.

. A statement that the agent is authorized lo sign and file applications in the calendar year of the applicetion.

' The specific parcel(s) or assessment(s) covered by the authorization, or a statement that the agent is authorized to represent the applicant
on all parcels and assessments located within the county that the application is being filed.

. The name, address, and telephone number of the agent.

. The applicant's signature and tiue.

. A statement that the agent will provide the applicant with a copy of the application.

SECTION3. PROPERTYIDENTIFICATIOI{INFORMATION

Enter the Assessor's Parcel Number from your assessment notice or from your tax bill. lf the property is personal property (e.g., an aircraft or
boat), enter the accounVtax bill number from your tax bill. Enler a brief description of the property location, such as street address, city, and zip
code, sufficient to identify the property and assessment being appealed.

SECTION4. VALUE

COLUMN A. Enter ihe amounis shown on your assessment notice or tax bill for the year being appealed. Personal Property includes all
water craft (boats, vessels, jet-skis), airplanes, and business personal property. lf you are appealing a cunent year assessment (base year or
decline in value) and have not received an assessment notice, or are unsure of the values to enter in this seclion, please contact the asslssor's
office. lf you are appealing a calamity reassessment, penalty assessment, or an assessment related to a change in ownership, new construction,
roll change, or escape assessment, refer to lhe assessmont notice you received.

COLUMN B. Enter your opinion of value for each of the applicable categories. lf you do not state an opinion of value, lt will result in the
rejection of your appllcation.

COLUMN C. This column is for use by the appeals board. Do not enter anything in this column.

EEONON O. fiPE OFAOSESSMENT EEINGAPPEALED

Check only one item per application. Check the item that best describes the assessment you are appealing.

Regular Assessmenf filing dates are: (1) July 2 through September 15 for all property located in the county provided the county
assessor sent a notice of assessed value by August 1 to all assessees with real property on the local roll; or (2) July Z through November
30 for all property located in the county if the county assessor did not send notices of assegsed values. Filing deadlines may be viewed at
www. boe. ca. gov/proptaxes/pdf/fi lingperiods. pdf.



BOE-305-AH (P4) REV. 08 (01-15)

Check the RegularAssessment box for:

. Decline in value appeals (value as ofJanuary 1 ofcunent year).

' Change in ownership and new construction appeals when the 60 day filing period for a supplemental assessment appeal has been missed,
provided the following January 1 after change of ownership or new construction has passed.

Supplemental Assessrnenf filing dates are within 60 days after the mailing date printed on ihe supplemental noiice or supplemental tax bill, or
the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later. Check the SupplementalAssessmenf box for:

' Change in ownership and new construction appeals filed wlthin 60 days of the mailing clate printed on the supplemental assessment notice
or supplemental tax bill, or the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later.

Roll ChangelEscapeAssessmenflPenalty Assesstnenf filing dates are within 60 days afier lhe mailing date printed on lhe assessment notice,
or the postrnark date of the notice, whichever is later. Calamlty Reassessrnerf filing dates are wiihin six months after the mailing of the
assessment notice. Check the Roll Change/Escape Assessmen/Ca/amrty Reassessmenf box for:

. Roll corrections.

. Escape assessments, including those discovered upon audit.

. Penalty Assessments

. Property damaged by misfortune or calamity, such as a natural diaster,

For Supplemental and Roll Change/Escape Assessment/Calamity Reassessnrenf appeals, indicate the roll year and provide the date of the
notice or date of the tax bill. Typically, the roll year is the fiscal year that begins on July 1 of the year in which you file your appeal. lt ts required
that you attach a copy of the supplemental or escape assessment nofice or tax blll,

SEGTTON 6. REASON FOR, FtLtNG AppEAL (FACTS)

Please check the item or items describing your reason(s) for filing this application. You may attach a brief explanation if necessary. Evidence must
be presented at the hearing; do not attach hearing evidence to this application.

A Decline in Value appeal means that you believe the market value of ihe property on January 1 of the current year is less than the assessed
value for the property. lf you select Decline in Value, be advised that the application will only be effective for the one year appealed. Subsequent
years will normally require additional filings during the regular assessment appeat filing period.

ln general, Dase yearis either the year your real property changed ownership or the year of completion of new construction on your property; base
year value is the value established at that time. The base year value may be appealed during the regular filing period for the year it was placed
on the roll orduring the regular filing period in the subsequent three years.

Calamity Reassessmenfincludes damage due to unforeseen occunences such as fire, earthquake, and flood, and does not include damages
that occur gradually due to ordinary natural forces. An appeal applicalion may only be filed after you have (1 ) filed a requesi for reassessment due
to a calamity with the assessor; and (2) you have received a notice from the assessor in reply to that request for reassessment.

Only applications filed for perranies imposed by the assessor can be removed by the board. A penalty assessed by the tax collector cannoi be
removed by the appeals board; for example, late charges on payments.

For classifibafion of property, indicate whether you are appealing only an item, category or class of property. please attach a separate sheet
identifying what property will be the subject of this appeal. Allocatton of value is the division of total value between various components, such as
land and improvements.

Appeal after an Audif must include a complete description of each property being appealed, and the reason for the appeal. Contact the clerk to
determine what documents must be submitted. lf not timely submitted, it will resull in the denial of your application.

SECTION 7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS

Written findings of facts are explanations of the appeals board's decision, and will be necessary if you intend to seek judicial review of an adverse
appeals board decision. Findings of facts can only be requested if your appeal is heard before a board and if made in writing at any time prior to
the commen@ment of the hearing. Failure to pay the required fees prior to the conclusion of the hearing will be deemed a wliver of the request.
Requests for a tape recording or transcript must be made no later than 60 days after the final determination by the appeals board. Contact the
clerk to determine the appropriate fee; do not send payment with your application.

SECTION 8. DESIGNATION AS CL.AIM FOR REFUNO

lndicate whether you want to designate this application as a claim for refund. lf action in superior court is anticipated, designating this application
as a claim for refund may affect the time period in which you can file suit. NOTE: lf for any reason you decide to withdraw this applicition, that
action will also constitute wilhdrawal of your claim for refund.

CERTIFICATION - Check the box that best describes your status as the percon flling the appllcation.

REQUESTS FOR EXGHANGE OF INFORMATION

You may request an 'exchange of information" between yourself and the assessor regardless of the assessed value of the property. lf the
assessed value of the property exceeds $1 00,000, the assessor may initiate an 'exchange of information" (Revenue and Taxation Code-sec.tion
1606)' Such a request may be filed with this application or may be filed any time prior to 30 days before the commencement of the hearing on
this application. The request must contain the basis of your opinion of value. Please include comparable sales, cost, and income clata w[ere
appropriate to support the value. ln some counties, a list of property transfers may be inspected at the assessor's ofiice for a fee not to exceed
S10. The list contains transfers that have occurred within the county over the last two years.



BOE67!A {P1) REV. 06 {0119)

NOTICE OF SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT

[For counties in which the Boad of Supervisors ias ,ot
adopted lhe prcvisi'ns of section 1605W

XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS

6312 S FIDDLERS GRN CIR #6OON

GREENWOODVLGCO 8011I

OATE OF NOTICE: 04t1712020 Assesso/s Parcel Number:

Situs Address:

Gounty of lnyo
Dave Stotllemyre, Assessol
PO Box J

lndependence, CA 93526
inyoassessor@inyocou ng. us
(760) 878-0302

0412800200

HWY 190

Daie of Change of Ownershrp
or Completion of New Construction 1A31t2018

One or more supplemantal assessments have been detsrmrned lot the property shown above. Supplemental assessments are determined in

accordance with the California Constitutron article Xlll A, whlch generally requires a cunent market value reassessment of real prope8 that has either

undergone a change in ownership or is newly constructed.

As shown below, a supplemental assessment ropresents the difference between lhe propeny's 'new base year value' (for example cunent market
value) and its existing taxable value. lf the change rn ownership or completion of new construction occurred between January 1 and May 31, two

supplemental assessments are issued one for the dtfference between the new base year value and the taxable value appearing on the cunont
assessment roll, and another for the dlfference between the new base year value and the taxable value that will appear on the assessment roll being
pr€pared.

lf a supplemental ass€ssment is a negative amount, the county audrtor will make a refund of a portion of the taxes paid on assessments made on the

curent l0ll, or the roll being prepared, or both. A copy of the assessment roll is avarlable for inspection by all interested pariies during regular ofice
hours.

YOUR RIGHT TO AN INFORMAL REVIEW

lf you believe ihis assessment is incoffect, you have the right to an rnformal review with the Assessor's statf. You may contact the Assessor's Office
for an informal review at IZE!!qZE:90!2,

CURRENT ROLL ROLL BEING PREPARED

EXISTING

VALUE
NEW BASE YEAR

VALUE
SUPPLEMENTAL

VALUE
EXISTING

VALUE
NEW BASE YEAR

VALUE

SUPPLEMENTAL
VALUE

LAND 713,'t67 713,16i 0 0

IMPROVEMENTS 23,647,689 28,768,76C 5,121,071 0

TAXABLE VALUE 24,360,856 29,481,52'l 5,121,O71 0 0 (

HOMEOWNERS 0 0 U 0 0 t
OTHER 0 0 0 0 U t
NET TOTAL 24,360,8s6 29,481,927 5,121,O71 0 U (

THIS DOGUMENT IS SUBJECTTO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BC'[ -6r.A.Fl) REV. 0€ {0s-19)

EXEIIIPTIONS

ln general, 6ny exemphons that have already been gr€nted for thrs pyo** remain in etfecl. lf the assessee on the supplemental roll is eligible for an
exemphon of a greater amount, and a clatm is filed for the next assessmenl tear, thgn the ditference in lhe amount between the two exemptions shall

be applied to the suppiemental assessment. Any clarm previously filed by the owner of a dwelling frcr either the homeowners' exemption or the disabled
veterans'exemplon also constjtutes a claim for su6h exemption on the supptemental roll. It no claim far any of these exemphons has previously been

filed, or if you wsh to fle a claim tor any other exemption, you may still be el'gible for the exemption(s) ,f a claim rs filed within 30days after the date ot
th s notice to rece ve the full amounl of exemptron for whrch you are ellg,ble,

YOUR RIGHT TO APPEAL

You have the rtght to a fornai appeal oi the assessmenl whrch involves (1) the filrng ol a vald applicalon, (2) a hearing before an appeals board, and
(3) a decision. An Assess/tenl Appeal Application torm is available fiom, and should be filed wilh, the Clerk of the Board, You m8y contact the Clerk's
Office at {760) 878-0373.

APPEAL FILING DEADL]NES

[For counties in whrch the Board of Supervisors has not adopted the prov'si.ons of section I 605(c)]

ln general, a formal appeal may be fited wrthin 60 days afler the dat€ of thrs notrce (pnnted on lhe other side) or the postmark date for the notice,
whichever ;s laler- Calamrty reassessmBnt filing da!es are within slx monlhs afler the ma lng of the assessment notrce.

An applcat,on rs considered t:mely filed if l1i rt rs senl by U-S. maland postmarked no,ater than the fling deadhne or by another bona fide del'very
servrce with the ma,ling date certrfied on the envelope or package, propefly addressed wrlh postage prepaid. OR (2) the appeals board is satisfied that
the rnailing occu.red by the filing deadl.ne. lf the filing deadline fulls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a tegai holiday, an application that is mailed and
postmarked on the nert bustness day shall be considered timely filed you may also hand dehver the appeal application to the Clerk of the Board by the
close of business on the deadl ne date.

ln any case, an applcahon may be filed wthin .'2months following the month in whrch lh.s notrce rs recerved if you and the Assessof agree lhat lhere
ls an enor rn assessmenl resulting from lhe Assessors judgment in determinino the value of the property AND a written stipulat,on is filed with the
assessment appeals board.

ADDITIONAL APPEAL RIGHTS

Under article Xlll A of the Cal,fornie Constitution, the new base year value eslablishes a e|ng on th6 propsrty s taxable value for subsequent
assessment years Once the new base year value is detem ned for esch subsequent assessment year the Assessor w'll enroll lhe lower ol (1) the
proparty s new base year value, adjusted annua:ly for inflat,on by no more than 2 percent or (2) the proporty's current market vaiue, taktng rnlo
account declines in value due lo damage depreciat on obsolescence changes in market conditions or other lac{ors.

lf no timely application 's filed for the supplementai assessment the new base year value may stll be appealed. Spec fically, an appeal of lhe new base
year vaiue may be Rled dunng the regular appeals filing period for the c$rent year or tn any of the three follow,ng assessment years. The regu:ar
appeals filing perod will begn on Juy 2 n each county and wrll end either on September 15or November 30 depending on whether lhe County
Assessor mails sssessment nolices to all taxpayers with property on the secured roli. You should contact the Clerk of the Board to delermine the
reguiar liling period. Any reduclion made as lhe result of such an appeal wlll, however, apply only lo the assoEsment yaar for which th€
appeal ls flled and as3ossment yearc thereafter; neither the supplemental assessment nor the values for assessmenl years prior
to the year for whlch the appeal was initially filed would be r€duced.

EXCLUSIONS

Cerlain salesltransters of property between parents and children and 6€rta1n sales/iransfere between grandparents and grandchildren may qualily {or
exc'usion from reassessment thereby maintaining your lower properly tax irabilrty. Please contact our otfice at t299L979:03Q? for further Information.



BOE-305-AH (Pl) REV. 08 (01-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLIGATION
This form conlains all of the requests for information
that are required for filing an application for changed
assessment. Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the applicalion and/or denial of the
appeal. Applicants should be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at lhe time of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may result in the
continuance ofthe hearing or denial ofthe appeal. Do not
attach hearlng evidence to this appllcation.

.t, APPLICANT INFORMATION . PLEASE PRINT

Mail to: lnyo County Clerk of the Board
Cou nty Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N
lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

EMAILADDRESS

com
NAME OFAPPLICANT (LAST, FIRST, MIDDLE

XANTERRA PARKS & RE
OR TRUSINAME

INC
MAILING oFAPPLTCANT (STREETADORESS OR p O. BO'

6312 S. FIDDLERS GREEN CIR., #600 N
ctfi FAX TELEPHONE

2. CONTACT INFORMATION -AGENT, ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT lf applicable - (REPRESENTATION lS OPTIONAL)
NAME OF AGENI A'I-TORNEY OR RETATN/E (Lr'.ST FIRST MIDDLE INITIAL\

COMPANY NAME

'og
APPLICATIOII| NUIIBER: ClErk Use Only

STATE

CO
ZIP CODE

80111
IDAYTIME TELEPHONE

Itaoe looo-s+oz
ALTERNATE TETEPHONE

()

CONTACT PERSON IF OTHER THAN ABOVE ITASI FIRST, MIDDLE INTITALI

MATLTNGADDRESS (STREETTDDRESS OR p O. BOn

CITY

3, PROPERry IDENNFICATION INFORMATION

I Yes EX No ls this property I single-family dwelling lhat is occupied as the principal place of residence by the owner?

ASSESSOR'S

FAXTELEPHONE

NUMBER OR TAX BILL NUMBER (if applicable)

DOING BUSINESSAS (DBA), lf approprlate

n PossEssoRYINTERESr

I vncnrurnNo

El ornen: HOTELS

fl ecntcur-runnl

I rranruurncruREo HoME

fl wATERcRAFT n ARcRAFT

TOTAL

HWY 190 FURNACE CREEK, CA
PROPERTY TYPE

I S|NGLE-FAM|LY / CONDOMTNTUM /TOW{HOUSE / DUPLEX

I uum-rRnnlLy/ApARTMENTs; No. oF uNtrs_
I cotrittueRcnuNousrRlAl

! BUSTNESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FXTURES

4. VALUE

LAND

IMPROVEMENTS/STRUCTU RES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERW (see instruc{ions)

MINERAL RIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

C.APPEALS BOARD USE ONLY

l-

STATE ZP CODE DAYTIME TELEPHONE

lnr-renwe 

rer-eenone
()

f] nurnonznloN ATTAcHED
attache{t to this appllcatlon . see lns'Jructlons)The mustinfomation befollowlng theun ess ,s Iicensedacompleted (or Caltfomiaagent

lndicaledas thetn Certmcatlon aor theor Ifssction, chltd,spouse, ,€gister€dparent, domestlc atrected,patt en person
is Duslnessa mustauthorization bethe ofrlceran or the boslaess.ofauthorlzed

OF AGENT

above is hercby authorlzed to act as my agent In thls application, and may inspecf assessor's tecords,The percon named ln Section 2
enler in stlpulation agrcemenF, and othetwise setfre issues rclatlng to thls application.

TTTLE DAIE

ASSESSMENT NUMBER (if applicable)

A. VALUE ON ROLL B. APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE

727,430 727,430
29,088 265 14 544 133

29,815,695 15,271,563
PENALTIES or

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE-305-AH (P2) REV. 08 (01-15)

5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED d Check only one. See insfrrcfioas for flltng pertods

! neouun ASSESSMENT - vALUE As oF JANUARv 1 oF THE cuRRENT vEAR

I suppleuENTALASsEssMENT
-DATE OF NOTICE: ROLLYEAR

I nou-OHANGE ts escnpeRssESsMENT n cALAMtwREAssESSMENT D pENALwAssEssMENT
*DATE oF NOTICE: Ail171202A *RoLLYEAR: 201912A20
*Must atbch capy of notlce or btll, where appllcable .,Each roll year rcqulrcs a ser,an.lF. application

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL (FACTS) See Instructions Defore completlng thts sectlon,
lf you are uncertain of vvhich ilem to check, please check '1. OTHER' and provide a brief explanation of your reasons for filing this application.
The reasons that I rely upon to support requested changes in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

I The assessois roll value exceeds the market value as of January 1 of the currenl year.

B. CHANGE IN OVINERSHIP

[ 1 . No change in ownership occurred on the date of _.
n2.Baseyearvalueforthechangeinownerehipestablishedonthedateof-isincorrect.

C, NEWCONSTRUCTION

[ 1. No new construction occured on the date of

E 2. Base year value for the completed new construction established on the date of 12t31 018 is incorrect.

! 3. Value of construc{ion in progress on January 1 is inconec't.

D, CALAMIry REASSESSMENT

fl Assessor's reduced value is inconect for property damaged by misforlune or calamity.

E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY/FIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal property and/or fixtures exceeds market value.

n 1. All personal propertylfixlures.

n 2. Onty a portion of lhe personal property/fixtures. Attach description of those items.

F, PENALryASSESSMENT

n Penalty assessment is nol justified.

G. CLASSIFICATION/ALLOCATION

n 1. Classification of property is inconect.
n 2. Allocation of value of property is inconect (e.9., between land and improvements).

H. APPEALAFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each property, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.
n 1. Amount of escape assessment is incorrect.

[ 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at lhe location is incorrect.
I. OTHER

! Explanation (attach sheet if necessary)

7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS ( $_ per_ )

I Are requested. Etr Are not requested.

8. THIS APPLICATION lS DESIGNATED AS A CLAIM FOR REFUND See lnsfrucfions.
EYes tr No

CERTIFICATION

I 6ttw @r doclarc) under penalty of Wrjury under the laws of the Slate of Califomia that the foregoing and all information hereon, including any
ac,companying statements or documents, is true, coneci and cpmplete to the best of my knowledge and belief and lhat I an (1) the owner of the
ptopgrty or the person affected (i.e., a person having a direct economic interest in the payment of taxes on that prcperty - "The Applicant'), (2) an
agent authoized by the applicant under item 2 of this application, or (3) an aftorney licensed to pnctice law in the State of Ca!ffomia, State Bar
Number-whohasbeenrctainedbytheapplicantandhasbeenauthoizedbythatpersontofilethisapplication'

Blm Pen - Originrl slgnrture mqulFd on papcr.lilod appllcadon) OA'TE

NAME Prinl)

Loytr.r rz S. O ( arlt
FILING STATUS ODENTIFY RELATIONSHIP TOAPPLICANT NAMED IN SECTION 1)

d no*luo IAGENT nArroRNEy nspousE IREGTsTEREDDoMEsIceARTNER lcHtLD InARENT IpERsoNAFFEcrEo

ffi conRonere oFFtcER oR DESIGMTED EMpLoyEE

SIGNED AT (CITY. STATE)

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO



BOE-305-AH (P3) REV. 08 (01-15)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCT]ONS FOR ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION

The State Board of Equalization has prepared a pamphlet to assist you in completing this application. You may download a copy of Publication
30, Residential ProperfyAssessment Appaals, at www.boe.ca.gov/proptaxes/asmappeal.htm or contacl the clerk of your local board for a copy.

Filing this application for reduced assessment does not relieve the applicant from the obligation to pay the taxes on the subject property on or
before the applicable due date shown on lhe tax bill. The appeals board has two yeats from the date an appllcation is filed to hear and
render a decision, lf a reduclion is granled, a proportionate refund of taxes paid will be made by the county,

Based on the evidence submifted at the hearing, the appeals board can increase, decrease, or not change an assessment. The decision ofthe
appeals board upon this application is final; the appeals board may not reconsider or rehear any application. However, either the applicant or lhe
assessor may bring timely action in superior court for review of an adverse action.

An application may be amended until 5:00 p.m. on the last day upon which the applicalion might have been timely filed. After the filing period, an
invalid or incomplete application may be conected at the request of the derk or amendments may be made at the discretion of the board. Gontact
the clerk for information regarding conecting or amending an application.

The appeals board can hear matters conceming an assessor's allocation of exempt values. However, ii cannot hear matters relating to a person's
or organization's eligibility for a property tax exemption. Appeals regarding the denial of exemptions are under the jurisdiction of the assessor and/
or the courts.

The following instructions apply to the conesponding sections on the application form. Please type or print in ink all information on the application
form.

SECTION I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Enter the name and mailing address of the applicant as shown on the tax bill or notice. lf the applicant is other than the assessee (e.9., lessee,
trustee, party affected), aftach an explanation. NOTE: An agent's address may not be substituted for that of the applicanl.

sEcTloN 2. CoNTACT TNFORMATTON - AGENT, ATTORNEY' OR RELATIVE OF AppLtCANT

Provide the contact information for an agent, atiorney, or relative if filing on behalf of the applicant. You are not required to have professional
representation. lf you have an agent to assistyou, the applicantmust complete theAgentAulhorization portion ofthisform orattach an authorization
which includes the information indicated below .

AUTHORIZATION OF AGENT

lf the agent is not a Califomia-licensed attomey or one of the relatives indicated in the cerlification section, you mu6t complete this section, or an
agent's authorization may be attached to this application, An atlached authorizaiion must contain all of the following information.

. The date the authorization is executed.

. A statement that the agent is authorized io sign and file applications in the calendar year of the application.

. The specific parcel(s) or assessment(s) covered by the authorization, or a statement that the agent is authorized to represent the applicant
on all parcels and assessments located within the county that the application is being filed.

. The name, address, and telephone number ofthe agent.

. The applicant's signature and title.

. A statement that the agent will provide the applicant with a copy of the application.

SECTIONS. PROPERTYIDENTIFICATIONINFORMATION

Enter the Assessor's Parcel Number from your assessment notice or ftom your tax bill. lf the property is personal property (e.9., an aircraft or
boat), enter the accounUtax bill number from your tax bill. Enter a brief description of the property location, such as street address, city, and zip
code, sufficient to identify the property and assessmeni being appealed.

sEcnoN4. VALUE

COLUMN A. Enter the amounts shown on your assessment notice or tax bill for the year being appealed. Personal Property includes all
water crafi (boats, vessels, jet-skis), airplanes, and business personal property. lf you are appealing a cunent year assessment (base year or
decline in value) and have not received an assessment notice, or are unsure of the values lo enter in this section, please contact the assessor's
office. lf you are appealing a calamity reassessment, penalty assessment, or an assessment related to a change in ownership, new construction,
roll change, or escape assessment, refer to the assessmenl notice you received.

COLUMN B. Enteryouropinionof valueforeachoftheapplicablecategories. lf youdonotstateanopinionof value,itwill resultlnthe
r€Joction of your applacation.

COLUMN C. This column is for use by the appeals board. Do not enter anythlng in this column.

SECTION 5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED

Check only one item per application. Check the item that best describes the assessment you are appealing.

Regular Assesslrrenf filing dates are: (1) July 2 through September 15 for all properlry located in the county provided the county
assessor sent a notice of assessed value by August 1 to all assessees with real prQperty on the local roll; or (2) July 2 through November
30 for all property located in the county if the county assessor did nol send notices of assessed values. Filing deadlines may be viewed at
www. boe. ca. gov/proptaxes/pdf/fi lin gperiods. pdf.



BOE-305-AH (P4) REV. 08 (0r-15)

Check the RegularAssessnrenf box for:

. Decline in value appeals (value as of January 1 of current year).

. Change in ownership and new construclion appeals when the 60 day filing period for a supplemental assessment appeal has been missed,
provided the following January 'l after change of ownership or new construction has passed.

Supplemenkl Assessment filing dates are within 60 days after the mailing date printed on the supplemental notice or supplemental tax bill, or
the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later. Check the Supplemental Assessmanl box for:

. Ghange in ownership and new construction appeals filed within 60 days of the mailing date printed on the supplemental assessment notice
or supplemental tax bill, or the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later.

Roll ChangelEscapeAssessrn€tt/Penally Assessrnenlfiling dates are within 60 days aflerlhe mailing date prinled on the assessmenl notice,
or the postmark date of the notice, whichever is later. Calamity Reassessment filing dates are within six months afier the mailing of the
assessment notice. Check the Roll Change/Escape Assessmenl/Calamify Reassessment box for:

. Roll corrections.

. Escape assessments, including those discovered upon audit.

' Penalty Assessments

. Property damaged by misfortune or calamity, such as a natural diaster.

For Supplemental and Roll ChangdEscape Assessmen/Calamify Reassessrnent appeals, indicate the roll year and provide the date of the
notice or date of the tax bill. Typically, the roll year is the fiscal year that begins on July I of the year in which you file your appeal. lt ls rcquired
that you attach a copy of the supplemental or escape assessment nolice or tax bill.

sEcTtoN 6. REASON FOR FIL|NGAppEAL (FACTS)

Please check the item or items describing your reason(s) for filing this application. You may attach a brief explanation if necessary. Evidence must
be presented at the hearing; do not attach hearing evidence to this application.

ADecllne in Value appeal means that you believe the market value ofthe property on January 1 ofthe current year is less than the assessed
value for the property. lf you select Decline in Value, be advised that the application will only be effective for the one year appealed. Subsequent
years will normally require additional filings during the regular assessment appeal filing period.

ln general, 0ase yearis either the year your real property changed ownership orthe year ofcompletion ofnew conslruction on your property; base
year value is the value established at that time. The base year value may be appealed during the regular filing period for the year it was placed
on the roll or during the regular filing period in the subsequent three years.

Calamity Reassesstnenf includes damage due to unforeseen occurences such as fire, earthquake, and flood, and does not include damages
that occur gradually due to ordinary natural forces. An appeal application may only be filed afier you have ('1 ) filed a request for reassessment due
to a calamity with the assessor; and (2) you have received a notice from the assessor in reply to that request for reassessment.

Only applications filed for penalf/es imposed by the assessor can be removed by the board. A penalty assessed by the tax collector cannot be
removed by the appeals board; for example, late charges on payments.

For classlflcatlon of property, indicate whether you are appealing only an item, category, or class of property. Please attach a separate sheet
identifling what property will be the subject of this appeal. Allocatlon olvalue is lhe division of total value belween various components, such as
land and improvements.

Appeal after an Audff must include a complete description of each property being appealed, and the rea$on for the appeal. Contact the clerk to
determine what documents must be submitted. lf not timely submitted, it will result in the denial of your application.

SECTION 7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS

Written findings of facG are explanations of the appeals board's decision, and will be necessary if you intend to seek judicial review of an adverse
appeals board decision. Findings of facts can only be requested if your appeal is heard before a board and if made in writing at any time prior to
the commencernent of the hearing. Failure to pay the required fees prior to the conclusion of the hearing will be deemed a waiver of the request.
Requests for a tape recording or iranscdpt must be made no later than 60 days after the final determination by ihe appeals board. Contact the
clerk to detennine the appropriate fee; do not send payment with your application.

SECTION 8. DESIGNATION A9 CLAIM FOR REFUND

lndicate whether you want to designate this applicalion as a claim for refund. lf action in superior court is anticipated, designating this application
as a claim for refund may affect the time period in which you cen file suit. NOTE: lf for any reason you decide to withdraw this application, that
action will also constilute withdrawal of your claim for refund.

CERTIFICATION - Gheck the box that best describes your status as the penson filing the application.

REQUESTS FOR EXCTIANGE OF INFORMATION

You may request an "exchange of information' between yourself and the assessor regardless of the assessed value of the property. lf the
assessed value of the property exceeds $'t00,000, the assessor may initiate an "exchange of information" (Revenue and Taxation Code section
1606). Such a request may be filed with this application or may be filed any time prior to 30 days before the commencement of the hearing on
this application. The request must contain the basis of your opinion of value. Please include comparable sales, cost, and in@me data where
appropriate to suPport the value. ln some counties, a list of property transfers may be inspect€d at the assessor's office for a fee not to exceed
$10. The list contains transfers lhat have occuned within lhe county over the last two year$.



OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR
County of lnyo, Dave Stottlsmyra AseBssor

PO Box J

lndepondcnce CA 9352€

I{OTICE OF' PROPOSEI} ESCAPE ASSESSMENT

XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS oArE NoncEMAtLEo
ASSEASMENT*

6312 S FIDDLERS GRN CIR #600N EscApE rAx YEAR

GREENWOODVLG, CO 80111 ESCAPE#

TAX YEAR CREATEO

PARCEL #

REVENUE & TAX CODE

OWNER(S): XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS

PROPERTY ADDRESS: HWY 190 FURNACE CREEK, CA

Secton 531.8 of the Revenus and Taxation Code provides lhat we gryB you notice at lsast 1 0 days prior lo lovying an escape assessmenL This escape
assessment is intended lo conect omissions or €nols rn lhe assessment of your taxable property This nolice is to tntorm you that we propose to
process the lollowing esceps asses8menl(s) on lhe real andior businesg property descnbcd above,

YOUR RIGHT TO AN INFORMAL REVIEW

lf you believe thig assessm€nt i3 inconect, you have the right io an infomel roviaw wlth lhe A$essor or a membar of ths Assessor's staff. you may
conlacl the Asssssor's Office al (760)87&0302 for lnfomation r€gardtng an informal review.

YOUR RIGHT TO APPEAL

You also hav€ tho righl to a lormal appeal of lhe assessmont which hvolves (1) the filing of sn Assassmerl Appaal Applicalion, (2) a heanng belore an
app€8l8board,and(3)adccisionbylheaPPealeboard.AnAssessm€nfAppealApplicationtotmtBav.itabletrom,andEhdldbEfftsdwrth theClerkofthe
Appoals Board. You may contact the Clerk's Oflics al (760)878-0373 br moro informatlon on tiling an appli€tion.

FILII{G DEADLII{ES

{For counlies ln vhich lhe Board of SupeN/'sori has not adopldd lhe provsons of seclon 1605{c)l

ln gen€ral, an Assdssment Appeal ApPlicafuon msct be liled wlhrn 60 days after lhe Dat€ of Notrce (pnnted above) or the postmark date on lha envelope tn
which lhe notics was mailed, whichever is lBter.

An apPllcstion ls c€nsidered llmely fled it (1) rt ts sent by U.S. marl, propcrly addressed uth postsge prspard postmrkad on or bE ora the 6ltn9 deadttne,
OR {2) lhe appsals boatd i3 satisfied lhal lhe mallrng occutred by the tilrng d8adhne lf the tilrng deadlrnB falls on s Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday en
applioation mal ls malbd 8nd poglrnarked on the nsxl buslners d8y shalt be oonsrdo.€d trmov fit.d,

4117t2020

04 1 2800200
201 S

2020

fi12E00200

RTC 4831

REASONI Completed New Conslruclion, 4831 - To corect Entries on the Roll

Dscape assessments with both value increases .nd decreases rnay be processed separately by Lhe
AudiEor - Controlle!. This could resul-t in the creation of bolh an escape t.ax brll for the
lotal of al1 increases and a tax refund for the Lotal of all decreascs (if a1l ta.{es have been
paid ) .

29,81s,695 4,967,623Net Taxable 24,848,072

PRIOR

ASSESSIUENT

727,43A

24,120,842

NEW
A$S€SSMEI|T

727,130

29,088,265

VALUE

CHANGE

0

4.967,623

VALUE/EXEMPTION

TYPE

Land

lmprovement

ASR-465-23 (R€v'10/18)

THIS IS NOTA TAX BILL



BOE-3o$AH (Pl) REV.08 (01-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEA L APPLICATION
This form contains all of lhe requests for informalion
lhat are required lor filing an applicalion for changed
assessment. Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of the application and/or denial of thi
appeal.Applicants should be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at the time of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may result in the
continuance ofthe hearing ordenial ofthe appeal. Do not
attach hearing evidence to this application,

Mail to: lnyo County Clerk of the Board
County Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION . PLEASE PRINT
OR TRUS'A/AMF

NNC.
EMAILADDRESS

MAIL'NG ADDRFSS OF APPLICANT (SrRE€TADDRFSS OR P O. BO4

ctry

GREENWOOD VILLAGE
TELFPHONE

2. CONTAGT INFORMATION -AGENI, ATTORNEY, OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT if applicabte - {REPRESENTATION IS OPTIONAL)

Only

STAIE

to
ZIP CODE

80111 ) goo-eqez
ALTERNATE TELEPHONE

()

NAME OFAGENI ATTORNEY, OR FETATIVE (I.AST FIRST MIDDLE 
'NITIAL\

COMPANY NAME

CONTACT PERSON IF OTHER THANAAOVE (L4S4 F/RST MIDDLE INTITAL}

MAILINGADDRESS (STREET/qDDR€SS OF P, O. BOX

CITY

3. PROPERW IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

f Yes N No ls this prop6rty a singl+tumily dwelling that ls occupiod as the principal ptace of residence by the owner?

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER (if appti€bte)

0412800700

D ncnrculruRnr

n uRNurRcruREDHoME

I WATERCMFT I A|RCMFT

TOTAL

FAX IELEPHONE

ACCOUNT NUMBER OR TAX BILL NUMBER (if appticabte)

DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA), if appro$iate

I possessoRytNTEREsr

I VACANTLAND

M ottrR'

C.APPEALS BOARO USE ONLY

d.-'1

PROPERTYTYPE

x STNGLE-FAM|LY / CoNDOM|N|UM / TO\ NHOUSE / DUPLEX

|l uulrr-pnvtLy/ApARTMENTs: No. oF uNtrs_
I courraencnutNDusTRtAL

I BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTF|XTURES

4. VALUE

LAND

IMPROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERW (see inslruc{ions)

MINEML RIGHTS

TREES 8. VINES

OTHER

ZIP CODE TELEPHONE ALTERNATE TELEPHONE

AGENTOF AUTI'IORIZATION ATTAGIIED
fhe informatlonfollowlng muslhe to fJtiscompleted (orattached seeapplication snless the a,sinstructions) Californialicensedagent

as indlcated theinattomey Certif,catlon aorsecfiion, chlld,spousq parent domesticregistered theotpadner, affected.person thetfa,s business the agerfs muslauthortzafion be officeran or aulhorized of business.the
The tnnamed Secfionperson 2 ,sabove aulhorizd actto ashereby tn thismy agent andapplicatlon, assessor's records,may inspect

inentef andagteements,stipulation otherxrise isssesseft e to ttisrelating appllcation.
DATE

ASSESSMENT NUMBER 0f appticabte)

A. VALUE ON ROLL B.APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE

941 71s
26,303,214 1 151 608

tt 14,093,327PENALTIES (amount or nt)

THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECTTO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE-30'AH (P2) REV 08 (01-1s)

5. TypE oF ASSESSMENT BETNG APP EALED d Ch(rjk only one.See tnsfruction s for filtng periods

K RecuueR ASSESSMENT - vALUE As oF JANUARY 1 oF THE cURRENT YEAR

n sUppUmENTALASSESSMENT
*DATE OF NOTICE ROLLYEAR:

f ROLLCHANGE T ESCRPEESSESSMENT tr CALAMITYREASSESSMENT N PENALTYASSESSMENT
-DATE OF NOTICE: *-ROLLYEAR:

'Must aftach copy of notlce or blll, where applicahle *Each toll year a separiafe aDp licalion

6. REASON FOR FlLlNc APPEAL (FACTS) See instrucfions before completing fr?is sec0bn.

lf you are uncertain of which hem to check, please check "1. OTHER' and provide a brief explanation of your reasons for filing this application.

The reasons that I rely upon to support requested changes in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

ffi The assessor's roll value exceeds the market value as of January 'l of the currenl year.

B. CHANGE IN O\ANERSHIP

n 1. No change in ownership occurred on lhe date of

! 2. Base year value for the change in ownership established on the date of 

--.- 
is incorect-

C. NEW CONSTRUCTION

f] 1. No new construction occurred on lhe date of

n 2. Base year value tor the completed new conskuction established on the dale of -...--- is incorrect.

fl 3. Value of construction ln progress on January 1 is incorrect.

D- CALAMIW REASSESSMENT

fl Assessor's reduced value is incorrect for property damaged by misfortune or calarnity.

E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTYIFIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal property andlor fixtures exceeds market value'

fl 1. All personal property/fixtures.

fl 2. Only a portion of the personal propertyifixtures. Attach description of those items.

F. PENALryASSESSMENT

! Penaliy assessment is not justified.

G. CLASSIFICATION/ALLOCATION

f, 1, Classification of property is incorrect.

fl 2. Allocation of value of propertv is incorrect (e.9., between land and improvements).

H. AppEAL AFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each properly, issues being appealed, and your opinion of value.

! 1. Amount of escape asse$sment is incorrect.

D 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is incorrect.

I. OTHER

tr Explanation (aftach sheet if necessary)

7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS ( $-- per-- )

n Are requested. E] Are not requested.

8. THIS APPLICATION IS DESIGNATED AS A GLAIM FOR REFUND SEC TTSTTUCIJONS.

ffiyes I No

CERTIFICATION

I ertify (or declare) under pnalty of padury under lhe laws of the State of Califomia that the foregoing and all information hareon, including any

ac:companying statements or documents, is tue, coftect, and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief and that I am (1) the owner of the

property ot the percon alfected (i.e., a person having a dkect economic interest in the payment of taxes on that property -'The Applicanf), (2) an

agent authorized by the applicant under item 2 of this application, or (3) an atlorney licensed to pnctice law in the State of Califomia, State Bar

Number who has been rctained by the applicant and has been authoized by that pernn to flle this application.

9lue Pon - o.lglnal r€quired on papor{led applisatlon)

G VILL-qGE, CO -lO-&o?4
NAME (Rease Pdnil

l-*nnie $. el3rk
FILING STATUS (IDENTIFY RELATIONSHIP TO APPLICANT NAMED IN SECTION 1}

ff ; ou^u* n AGENr f nrronnev f spousE fj REGTsTERED DoMEsrtc PARTNER I cnruo f] PARENT I renson arrecreo

ffi r;oReoRnre oFFtcER oR DESIGNATED EMPLoYEE



BOE-3o!AH (P3) REV 08 (01-15)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION

The State Eoard of Equalization has prepared a pamphlet to assist you in completing this applic€tion. you may download a copy of publication
30, Residential PropetlyAssessrnenf Appeals, at www.boe^ca.gov/pioptaxedasmappeal.htm or contact the cleik of your locat board for a copy.

Filing this applicalion for reduced assessment does not relieve the applicant from the obligation to pay the taxes on the subject property on or
before the appllcable due date shown on the tax bill. The appeats board has two years from th6 <iate an appltcalon is filed to hear andrender a decision. lf a reduction is granted, a proportionate iefund of taxes paid will 

'be 
made by the *unty. 

-'

Based on the evidence submitted at th_e hearing, the appeals board can increase, decrease, or not change an assessment. The decision of the
appeals board.upon this application is final: the appeals board may not reconsideror rehear any applicaliin. However, either the applicant or the
assessor may bring timely action in superior court for review of anadverse action.

An application may be amended until 5:00 p.m. on the last day upon which lhe application might have been timely filed. After the filing period, an
invalid orincomplete applicatlon may be conected at the request of the clerk oramendments iay be made at thehiscrelion of the board. Contact
the clerk for information regarding correcting or amending an application.

The appeals board can hear matters conceming an assessor's allocation of exempt values. However, it cannot hear matters relating to a person,s
or organization's eligibility for a property tax exemption. Appeals regarding the denial of exemptions aie unJer tne jurisdiction of the assessor and/
or the courts.

The following instructions apply to the corresponding sections on the application form. Please type or print in ink all information on the appli@tion
form.

SECTION I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Enter the name and mailing address of the applicant as shown on the tax bill or notice. lf the applicant is other than the assessee (e.g., lessee,
fustee' party affected), aftach an explanation. NoTE: An agent's address may not be substituted for that of the applicant.

SECTION 2, CONTACT INFORMATION . AGENI ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT
Provide the contact information for an agent, attomey, or relative if filing on behalf of the applic€nt. you are not required to have professional
representation. lf you have an agent to assist you, the applicant must complete theAgentAuthorization portion of this form or attach an aulhorization
which includes the information indicated below. .

AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT

lf the agent is not a California-licensed attomey or one of the relatives indicated in the certification section, you must complete this section, or an
agent's authorization may be attached to this application. An attached authorization must contain all of thelollowing information.
. The date the authorization is executed.

' A statement that the agent is authorized to sign and file applications in the calendar year of the application.

' The 
-specific 

parcel(s) or assessment(s) covered by the authorization, or a statement that the agent is authorized to represent the applicant
on all parcels and assessments located within the county that the application is being liled.

. The name, address, and telephone numberofthe agent.

. The applicanfs signature and tifle.

' A statementthattheagentwill providetheapplicantwithacopyof theapplication.

SECTION3. PROPERWIDENTIFICATIONINFORMATION

Enter the Assessor's Parcel Number from your assessmenl notice or from your tax bill. lf the property is personal property {e.g., an aircraft orboat)' enter the accounUtax bill number from your tax bill. Enter a brief desciiption of the property iocation, such as street address, city, and zip
code, sufficient to identify the properly and assessment being appealed.

SECTION 4, VALUE

coLuMN A' Enter the amounts shown on your assessment notice or tax bill for the year being appealed. personal property includes allwater craft (boats, vessels, jet-skis), airplanes, and business personal property. lf you are appealing a current year assessment (base year or
decline in value) and have not received an assessment notice, or are unsuie of the ualues to enter in-this section. please contact the 

"""essor'soffice' lf you are appealing a calamity reassessment, penalty assessment, or an assessmenl related to a change in ownership, new construction,
roll change, orescape assessment, referto the assessmeni notice you received.

COLUMN B- Enter your opinion of value foi each of the applicable categories. lf you do not state an opinion of value, it will result in therejection of your application,

COLUMN C. This column is for use by the appeals board. Do not enter anything in this column.

SECTION 5. TYPE OFASSESSI$ENT BEING AFPEALED

Check only one item per application. Check the item lhat best describes lhe assessment you are appealing.

Regular Asse-ssmenl filing dates are: (1) July 2 through September 15 for all property located in the county provided the county
assessor sent a nolice of assessed value by August 'l to all assessees wlth real property on the local roll; or (2) Juiy 2 through November
30 for all property located in the county if the county assessor did not send notices of assessed vatues. riting oeadlines may-be viewed at
www. bo€.ca.gov/proptaxes/pdf/fi lin gperiods. pdf.



BOE-305-AH (P4) REV 08 (01-18

Check the RegularAssessmettt box for:

. Decline in value appeals (value as of January 1 of cunent year).

. Change in ownership and new construction appeals when the 60 day fillng p€r'lod for a supplemental assessment appeal has been missed,
provided the following January 1 after change of ownership or new construction has passed.

Supplemeilal Assessmentfiling dates are within 60 days after the mailing date printed on lhe supplemental notice or supplemental tax bill, or

the poslmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later. Check the Supplemental Assessrnenf box for:

. Change in ownership and new construction appeals filed within 60 days of the mailing date printed on the supplemental assessment notice

or supplemental tax bill, or the postmark date of the nolice or tax bill, whichever is later.

Roll ChangelEscapeAssessm enllPenalty Assessmentfiling dates are within 60 days after the mailing date printed on the assessment notice,

or the posimark clite of the notice, whichever is later. Catamity Reassessmonf filing dates are within six months after the mailing of the

assessment notice. Check the Roll Change/Escape Assessrnen/Calamity Reassessmenf box for:

. Roll conections.

. Escape assessments, including thosediscovered upon audit.

. Penalty Assessments

. Proper$ damaged by misfortune or calamity, such as a natural diaster.

For Supplemental and Rotl ChangelEscapeAssessmenf/CalamigrReassessmentappeals, indioate the roll year and provide the date of the

notice or date of the tax bill. Typically, the roll year is the fiscal year that begins on July 1 of the year in which you file your appeal. lt is required
that you attach a copy of the supplemental or escape assessment notice or tax bill.

sEcTtoN 6. REASON FOR FILiNG APPEAL (FACTS)

Please check the item or items describing your reason(s) for filing thls application. You may attach a brief explanation if necessary. Evidence must
be presenled at the hearing; do nol attach hearing evidence to this application'

A Decline in Value appeal means that you believe the market value of the property on January I of the current year is less than the assessed

value for the property. lf you select De cline in Value, be advised that the application will only be effective for lhe one year appealed. Subsequent
years will normally require additional filings during lhe regular assessment appeal filing period.

ln general, Daseyearis eitherthe year your real properly changed ownership orthe yearof complelion of new@nstruction on your property; base
year value is the value eslablished at that time. The base year value may be appealed during the regular filing period for the year it was placed

on the roll or during the regular filing period in the subsequent lhree years.

Calamify Reassessment includes damage due to unforeseen occurrences such as fire, earthquake, and flood, and does not include damages
that occur gradually due to ordinary natural forces. An appeal application may only be filed after you have (1 ) filed a request for reassessment due

to a calamity with the assessor; and (2) you have received a notice from the assessor in reply to that request for reassessment.

Only applications tiled for peraffrres imposed by the assessor can be removed by the board. A penalty assessed by the tax @llector cannot be

removed by the appeals board; for example, late charges on payments.

Far classificatlon of property, indicate whether you are appealing only an item, category, or class of property. Please attach a separate sheet

identirying what property will be lhe subject of this appeal. Arrocation olvalue is the division of total value between various components, such as

land and improvements.

Appeal atter anAudit must include a complete description ol each property being appealed, and the reason for the appeal. Contacl the clerk to

determine what documents must be submitted. lf not timoly submifted, it will result in the denial of your application.

SECTION 7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS

Written lindings of facts are explanations of the appeals board's decision, and will be necessary if you intend lo seek judicial review of an adverse

appeals board decision. Findings of facts can only be requested if your appeal is heard before a board and if made in writing at any time prior to
the commencement of lhe hoaring. Failure to pay the required fees prior to the conclusion of the hearing will be deemed a waiver of the request'

Requests for a tape recording or transcript must be made no later than 60 days after the final determination by the appeals board. Contact the

clerk lo determine the appropriate fee; do not send payment with your application.

SECTION 8. DESIGNATION AS CI-AIM FOR REFUND

lndicate whether you want to designate this application as a claim for refund. lf action in superior court is anticipated, designating this application

as a claim for refund may afiect the time period in whid you €n flle suit. NOTE: lf for any reason you decide to withdraw this appllcation, that
action will also constitute withdrawal of your claim for refund.

CERTIFICATION - Check the box that best describes your status as the person liling the application.

REqUESTS FOR EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION

You may request an "exchange of inlormation" between yourself and the assessor regardless ol the assessed value of the property. lf the
assessed val'ue of the property exceeds $100,000, the assessor may initiate an "exchange of information" (Revenue and Taxation Code section

1600). Such a request may be tited with this application or may be fited any tirne pria'r to 30 days before the commenf,€ment of the heariag on

this dpplication. The request must contain the basis of your opinion of value. Please include comparable sales, cost, and income deta where

approprlate to support the value. ln some counties, a list ol properly transfers may be inspected at the assessor's office for a fee not to exceed

$10. The list contains lransfers that have occuned within the county over the last two years.



t

2O2O,2O2L PROP 8 ANNUAL APPEAL. OPINION OF VALUE
OASIS at DEATH vAtLEY
INYO COUNTY

PARCELO412SOO2OO 
ROLLVALUE

201912020

Flliilg dsadllne Septer$ber 15,,10t0

tAND
IM PROVEMENTS/STRUCTU RES

PARCEL(Xl28ooToo

IAND

IM PROVEM ENrS/STRUOURES

29,815;695

ROLL VALUE

201912020

727,4N
14544.133

-

Is,27t,563

727,430
29,08&25s

OPINIOiI OF VALUE

20t912020
ROLI VATUE

2o2O/2027

74t,978
29,670,O30

30,41a008

OPINION OFVALUE
2020/202t

74'.,g7g
14835.016
L5,576,994

TREND VALUE

2%

OPIT'IION OFVALUE
20t912020

ROI.I VALUE

202ano21
OPINION OF VALUE

2o2ol2o2L

923,84
8,787,465

923,254 94t,719 947,7t9
13,151.608

t4,@3,327
26,770,7t9 13,816987 27,244,933

\\rantera'com\corp\Departments\Accounting\Tax\PropertyTrx\tnyo 
county 2017 prop Tax project\20lg pmposed Adjustmentsuscape.suppAsessments,Appeals\Appeal Appllcations\2o2o.2021 Opinlon of Value Calc



COUNTY OF INYO
Oflice of the Assessor

Dave StottlemYre
PO Box J

Independence. CA 93526

ANNUAL NOTICE OF ASSESSED VALUE

XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS

63I2 S FIDDLERS GRN CIR #6OON

GREENWOODVLGCO 8OIII

PROPERTY ADDtttiSS: HWY 190, FURNACE CREEK

THIS IS NOT A TAX BILL

PLEASE NOTIFY THE ASSESSOR OF ANY CHANCE IN ADDRESS

rse alilistifs-orrrce ts locntED lN THE couNTY ANNEx suu'DlNo
ln-r"o Countl' Ass€ssor

lndePendence, CA 93526

T€lephone (?60) 8?8'0302, 8'17'2702' 8'l 6'553e

DATE NOTICE MAILED 7 :6 2O2Q

ASSESSMENT # O4I28OO7OO

LIEN DATE I.I 2O2O

Antcle xlll, section I ofthe staie constlrotton rsqurres thot prop€ny be lased in proponion to its valuc

Thc tiliable yalues sho\w on the thiE nolice-plus any uxable perionai property aud mrnui any exemptions for which you may quahly-wtll be the basrs of

Your ProPefiY tas brll

lf you be}ieYe your propert} l5 rvonh lesr than lhe indicaled taxoble- lalue, y0{ shoul d first d15eu59 thc mat|er \vtth the Assessor or a mcmber of hls $aff lf the

Assessor asre€s rhar u ,.ou.uoni*"nuror, ii o'.ii* l" i* rai*, tri-'rrir"-lilt. ,iseisment rott tras ueen complered' vou may applv to the local

Bo0rdofEquahzaronforrerref 
^l#;.;;;ffifi;;i.$!.3"11ti;drrG,il;fil".iontotlrccounq'BoardorE[ualrzatronrnaccoldancervrthRevenuc & Taxarron code secrion I 607, shich pro!ldrs_ rt ur u'" upp-rri*in..i niiou.no rrt. t.rtcduled eounliTation hearlng and testlfo to the

properq:.s *arue rrr,. 
"no,r,* 

a,.*,,1'Jl'j;:"''J;1;"Jl;,il il:;nx,*:lrulilrml"l'inic' rtre uoardcaneirherucceFt the stpulatron or rerect rt

Applicanons ror adluslments In ralualion not agreed upon with lhe Assessor must be filed in \wiling \virh the cl'rk of$e couilty Board of Equalizatron

'*"lO 
B;-"N,l.dependence, CA 93525, betn'em julv 2 and Seprember l5

PLEASE CONTACT THE ASSESSOR IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNINC ASSESSMENTS

please erlher returli thls nollce or lefer to !'oul propeny's rssessmenl nunber lfyou call or rvnte lhts oflice

VALU E /!IXI'MPTION,Tv PE

Land
lmprovement
Personal ProPertY

Fixtures

Exemption

?020/2021 ASSEqSMENT

$941,719
s26,303,214

$

$

s

s?7,244,933Net Taxable



BOE-30'AH (P1) REV.08 (01-15)

ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION
This form contains all of the requests for information
that are required for filing an application for changed
assessment, Failure to complete this application may
result in rejection of lhe application and/or denial of the
appeal.Applicants shouH be prepared to submit additional
information if requested by the assessor or at the time of
the hearing. Failure to provide information at the hearing
the appeals board considers necessary may result in the
continuance ol the hearing or denial ofthe appeal. Do not
attach hearing evidence to this application.

Mail to: lnyo County Clerk of the Board
County Administrative Center
P.O. Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526
Phone (760) 878-0373

t. APPLICANT INFORMANON - PLEASE PRINT
OR TRUST'VAME

INC.
MAITINGAOORESS OF G|R€€TADDRESS On P. O.8O4

CITY

GREENWOOD VILLAGE

2. CONTAGT INFORMAilON - AGENT, ATTORNEY, OR RELATIVE OF APPLIGANT if applicable - (REPRESENTATION lS OPTIONAL)
MME OFAGENI ATTORNEY OR RELATIVE(LAST, FIRSI, MIDDLE INITIAL)

COMPANY NAME

Use OnlyNUMBER:

-a/

STATE ZIP CODE

80111
IDAYTIME 

TELEPHONE

l(sns ) 6nil-346?
ALTERNATE TELEPHONE

()

CONTACT PERSON IF OTHER TIIAN ABOVE (TASI F'RSf, M'D DLE INTITALI

MALTNG ADDRESS (STREETAppRESS OR F. A. BOX)

ctw

3. PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

n Yes E No ls this property a singls-family dwelling that is occupied as the principal place of rcsidonce by ths owne?

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER (lf applicable)

FAX TELEPHONE

ACCOUNT NUMBER OR TAX BILL NUMBER (if applicable)

DOING BUSINESSAS (DBA), if appropriate

n PossEssoRYlNTEREsr

N VACANTLAND

ffi OTHER: HOTHLS

N AGRICULTUML

! unruupncruREDHoME

I WATERCMFT [] AIRCMFT

TOTAL

1

PROPERTYTYPE

I STNGLE-FAMILY / CONDOMTNTUM / TOWNHOUSE / DUPLEX

fl !',IUITUnUILY/APARTMENTS: NO. OF UNTTS _
U coururRcnurNDusrRlAl

fl BUsrNEss PERSONAL PROPERTY/FXTURES

4. VALUE

LAND

IMPROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

FIXTURES

PERSONAL PROPERTY (see instruetions)

MINEMLRIGHTS

TREES & VINES

OTHER

C, APPEALS BOARD USE ONLY

r'- l

STATE ZIP CODE DAYTIME TELEPHONE

()
ALTERNATE TELEPHONE

()

The following information must be completed (or altached Io this applicallon - see instructlonsj urress tt e agent is a ticensed
as lndicated In the Certification section, or a spouse, child, parent, rqistered domestic partner, or the person atrected. If

OFAGENT fl euruonzarloN ATTAGHED

rb a business the authorization must be offfe busrness.by an ofticer or authortzed
person ndmed in Secfrb, 2 above is herchy authorlzed to act as my agent ln thls applicatlon, and may Inspecl assessor's records,

agreements, and otherylse seft e issu€s relating to this appllation.
fhe

enter in
SIGNATURE OFAPPLICANT, OFFICER, OR AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEE DATE

ASSESSMENT NUMBER (it applicable)

A. VALUE ON ROLL B. APPLICANT'S OPINION OF VALUE

74.1,978 741.S78
?s.670.030 14,835.016

30 412 nO8 15_576"Ss4
PEMLTIES (amount or

THI$ DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION



BOE-3o5-AH (P2) REV.08 (01-15)

5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEING APPEALED d Cfr eck onty one. gee tnstructtons for filing pertods

N neouun AssEssMENT - vALUE AS oF JANUARv 1 oF THE cURRENT vEAR

I suppleuENTALASsEssMENT
*DATE OF NOTICE: ROLLYEAR:

n ROLLCHANGE I EscApEAssEssMENT D cALAMTTREAssEssMENT n pENALTyAssESsMENT
"DATE OF NOTICE: **ROLLYEAR:
*Must attach copy of notlce or bill, where applicable *.Each rott year requircs a sepante appticatton

6. REASON FOR FILING APPEAL {FACTS) See instrucfrbns before completing frrrls secfion,
lf you are uncertain of which item to check, please check "1. OTHER' and provide a brief explanation of your reasons for filing this application.
The reasons that I rely upon to support requested changes in value are as follows:

A. DECLINE IN VALUE

El The assessor's roll value exceeds the market value as of January 1 of lhe current year.

B. CHANGE IN OIXNERSHIP

n 1 . No change in ownership occurred on the date of 

--.

[ 2. Base year value for the change in ownership established on the date of 

-_ 

_ is incorrect.

C. NEW CONSTRUCTION

[ 1. No new construction occurred on the date of

[2.Baseyearvalueforthecompletednewconstructionestablishedonthedateof-isinconect.
[ 3. Valueofconstruction in progress on January 1 is incorrect.

D. CALAMITY REASSESSMENT

Ll Assessor's reduced value is incorrect for property damaged by misfortune or calamity.
E. BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTIFIXTURES. Assessor's value of personal property and/or fixtures exceeds market value

n 1. All personal property/fixtures.

! 2. Only a portion of the personal property/fixtures. Attach description of those items.

F. PENALTYASSESSMENT

fl Penalty assessment is not juslified.

G. CLASS IFICATION/ALLOCATION

[ 't. Classification of property is inconect.

I 2. Allocalion of value of properly is incorrect (e.9., between land and improvements).
H. APPEAL AFTER AN AUDIT. Must include description of each property, issues being appealed, and your opinlon of value.

D '1. Amount of escape as$essment is inconect.

! 2. Assessment of other property of the assessee at the location is incorrect.
I. OTHER

I Explanation (aftach sheet if necessary)

7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FAGTS ( $_- per_ )
I Are requested. E] Are not requested.

8. THIS APPLICATION lS DESIGNATED AS A clAlm FOR REFUND See fnstructions.
NYes D No

GERTIFIGATION

I eftify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the lorcgoing and att information hereon, including any
accompanying statements or documents, is true, conect, and @mplete to the best of my knowledge and belief and that ! am (1) the owner of the
property or the parson affectad (i.e., a person having a direct economic intercst in the payment of taxes on that prcpedy-"The Applicant), (2) an
agent authwized by the applicanl under item 2 of this application, or (3) an attomey licensed to prcctice law in the State of California, State Bar
Number-,whohasbeenretainedbytheappIicantandhasbeenauthoizedbythatprsontofilelhisapplicaIion'

(Uss Bluo PeF - Orlgln.l signature rqulred on paper-nFd oppllcation)

MME Print)

l-CIn $-lte $. C{*rk
FILING STATUS (IDENTIFY RELATIONSHIP TOAPPLICANT MMED IN $ECTION 1)

d 3o*r* [ncelrr flnrroRnev lspousE f,neorsreneoooMEsrcpARrNER f]cHtLD IeARENT IeERsoNAFFECTED

ffi coReonnre oFFrcER oR DESTcNATED EMpLoyEE

'ff-,o.2.,*SIGNEDAT(CIry STATE}

GREENWOON VILLAGB, CO



BOE-3o$AH (P3) REV.08 (01-15)

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR ASSESSMENT APPEAL APPLICATION

The State Board of Equalization has prepared a pamphlet to assist you in completing this application. You may download a copy of Publication
30, Residential ProperlyAssessrnent Appeals, at wwwboe.ca.gov/proptaxes/asmappeal.htm or contact the clerk of your local board for a copy.

Filing this application for reduced assessment does not relieve the applicant from the obligation to pay the taxes on the subject property on or
before the applicable due date shown on the tax bill. The appeals board has two years from the date an appllcation ls fll€d to hear and
render a decision. lf a reduction is granted, a proportionate refund of taxes paid will be made by the county.

Based on the evidence submitted at the hearing, the appeals board can lncrease, decrease, or not change an assessment. The decision of the
appeals board upon this application is final; the appeals board may not reconsider or rehear any application. However, either lhe applicant or the
assessor may bring timely action in superior court for review of an adverse action.

An application may be amended until 5:00 p.m. on the last day upon which the application might have been timely filed. After the filing period, an
invalid or incomplete application may be corrected at the request of the clerk or amendments may be made at the discretion of the board. Contact
the clerk for information regarding correcting or amending an application.

The appeals board can hear matters concerning an assessor's allocation of exempt values. However, it cannot hear matters relating to a person's
or organization's eligibility for a property tax exemption. Appeals regarding the denial of exemptions are under the jurlsdiction of the assessor and/
or the courts.

The following instructions apply to the corresponding sections on the application form. Please type or print in ink all information on the application
form.

SECTION 
'. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Enter the name and mailing address of the applicant as shown on the tax bill or notice. If the applicant is other than the assessee (e.g., lessee,
trustee, party affected), attach an explanation. NOTE: An agent's address may not be substituted for that of the applicant.

SECTION 2. CONTACT INFORMATION -AGENT, ATTORNEY, OR RELATIVE OF APPLICANT

Provide the contact information for an agent, attorney, or relative if filing on behalf of the applicant. You are not required to have professional
representation. lf you have an agentto assistyou, the applicant must complete theAgentAuthorization portlon of thisform orattach an authorizaflon
which includes the information indicated below. -

AUTHORIZATION OFAGENT

lf the agent is not a California-licensed attomey or one of the relatives indicated in the certification section, you must complete this section, or an
agenfs authorization may be attached to this application. An attached authorization must contain all of the following information.
. The date the aulhorization is executed.

' A statement that the agent is authorized to sign and file applications in the calendar year of the application.

' The specific parcel(s) or assessment(s) covered by lhe authorization, or a statement that the agent is authorized to represent the applicant
on all parcels and assessments located within the county thal the application is being filed.

. The name, address, and telephone number of the agent.

. The applicant's signature and litle.

. A statement that the agent will provide the applicant with a copy of the application.

SECTION3, PROPERTYIDENTIFICATIOHINFORMATION

Enier the Assessor's Parcel Number from your assessment notice or from your tax bill. lf the property is personal property {e.g., an aircraft or
boat), enter the accounUtax bill number from your tax bill. Enter a brief description of the property iocation, such as street iddress, city, and zip
code, sufficient to identify the property and assessmenl being appealed.

SECTlOttl4. VALUE

COLUMN A. Enter the amounts shown on your assessment notice or tax bill for the year being appealecl. personal property includes alr
water craft (boats, vessels, jet-skis), airplanes, and business personal property. lf you are appealing a cunent year assessment (base year or
decline in value) and have not rec.eived an assessment notice, or are unsure of the values to enter in this section, please contact lhe assessor's
office. lf you are appealing a calamity reassessment, penalty assessment, or an assessment related to a change in ownership, new construction,
roll change, or escape assessment, ref6r to the assessment noti@ you received.

COLUMN B- Enter your opinion of value for each of the applicable categories. lf you do not statg an opinion of value, it will result in the
rejection of your application,

COLUMN C. This column is for use by the appeals board^ Do not onter anything in ihis column.

SECTION 5. TYPE OF ASSESSMENT BEITIIG APPEALED

Check only one item per application. Check the item that best describes the assessrnent you are appealing.

Regular Assessmenf filing dates are: ('l) July 2 through September 15 for all property located in the county provided the county
assessor sent a notice of assessed value by August 1 to all assessees with real property on lhe local roll; or (2) July 2 through Novembar
30 for all property located in the county if the county assessor did nol send notices of assessed values. Filing deadlines may be viewed at
www.boe.ca.gov/proptaxesipdf/fi lingperiods.pdf .



BOE-3o$AH (P4) R€V.08 (01-15)

Check the RegularAssessmenf box for:

. Decline in value appeals (value as of January 1 of current year).

. Change in ownership and new construction appeals when the 60 day filing period for a supplemental assessment appeal has been missed,

provided the following January 1 after change of ownership or new construciion has passed.

Supplemental Assessmenf filing dates are within 60 days after the mailing date printed on the supplemental notice or supplemental tax bill, or

the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is later. Check the Supplementat Assessmenf box for:

. Change in ownership and new construction appeals filed within 60 days of the mailing date printed on the supplemental assessment nolice

or supplemental tax bill, or the postmark date of the notice or tax bill, whichever is laler.

Roll Change/Escape Assessm entlPenatty Assessrnenf filing dates are wilhin 60 days after the maiting date pilnted on tho assessmeni notice,

or lhe postmark date of the notice, whichever is later. Calamtty Reassessmenf filing dates are within six months after the mailing of the
assessment notice. Check the Roll ChangeEscape Assessment/Calamity Reassessmenf box for:

^ D^rl

. Escape assessments, including those discovered upon audit.

. PenaltyAssessments

. Property damaged by misfortune or calamity, such as a natural diaster.

For Supplemental and Roll ChangelEscape Assessment/Calarnily Reassessmenl appeals, indicate the roll year and provide the date of the

notice or date of the tax bill. Typically, the roll year is the fiscal year that begins on July 1 of the year in which you ftle your appeal. lt is required
that you attach a copy of the supplemental or esoape assessment notice or tax bill.

sEcTtoN 6. REASON FOR FTLTNG APPEAL (FACTS)

Please check the item or items describing your reason(s) for filing this application. You may aftach a brief explanation if necessary. Evidence must
be presented at the hearing; do not attach hearing evidence to this application.

A Decline in Value appeal means that you believe the market value of the prop€rty on January 1 ol the current year ls less than the assessed
value for the property. lf you select Decline in Value,be advised that the application will only be effective for the one year appealed. Subsequent
years will normally require additional filings during the regular assessment appeal filing period.

ln general, Daseyearis eitherthe year your real property changed ownership orthe year of @mpletion of new construction on your property; base
year value is the value established at that time. The base year value may be appealod during the regular {iling period for the year lt was placed

on the roll or during the r€gular filing period in the subsequent three years.

Calamity Reassessmerf includes damage due to unforeseen occurrences such as fire, earthquake, and ffood, and does not include damages
that occur gradually due to ordinary natural forces. An appeal application may only be liled after you have (1 ) filed a request for reassessment due

to a calamity with the assessor; and (2) you have received a notice from the assessor in reply to that request for reassessment.

Only applications filed for penalfies imposed by the assessor can be removed by the board. A penalty assessed by the tax collector cannot be
removed by the appeals board; for example, late charges on payments.

For classlfication of property, indicate whether you are appealing only an item, category, or class of property. Please attach a separate sheet
identifying what property wlll be the subject of this appeal. Allocation of ualue is the division of total value between various components, such as
land and improvements.

Appeal alter anl.rdit must include a complete description of each property being appealed, and the reason for the appeal. Contact the clerk to
determine what documents must be submitted. lf not timely submitted, it will result in the denial of your application.

SECTION 7. WRITTEN FINDINGS OF FACTS

Written findings of facts are explanations of the appeals board's decision, and will be necessary if you intend to seek judicial review of an adverse
appeals board decision. Findings of facts can only be requested if your appeal is heard before a board and if made in writing at any time prior to
the commencement of the hearing. Failure to pay ihe required tees prior to lhe conclusion of the hearing will be deemed a waiver of the request.
Requesls for a tape recording or transcilpt must be made no later than 60 days after the final determination by the appeals board. Contact the
clerk to determine the appropriate fee; do not send payment with your application.

SECTION 8. DESIGNATIONAS CLAIM FOR REFUND

lndicate whether you want to designate this application as a claim for refund. lf action in superior court is anticipated, designating this application

as a claim for refund may affect the time period in which you can file suit. NOTE: lf for any reason you decide to withdraw this application, that
action will also constitute withdrawal of your claim for refund.

CERTIFICATION - Gheck the box that best descdbes your status as the peEon tiling the application.

REQUESTS FOR EXCHANGE OF INFORi'ATION

You may request an "exchange of information" between yourself and the assessor regardless of the asseosed value of the property. lf the
assessed value of the property exceeds $100,000, the assessor may initiate an "exchange of information" (Revenue and Taxatlon Code section
1606). Such a request may be liled with this application or may be liled any time prior to 30 days before the commenc€ment of the hearing on
this application. The request must contain the basis of your opinion of value. Please include comparable sales, cost, and income data where
appropriate to support the value. ln some counties, a list of proper$ transfers may be inspected at the assessor's office for a fee not to exceed

$'10. The list oontains transfers that have occurred within the county over the last two years.



2020,2021 PROP 8 ANNUAL APPEAT . OPINION OF VATUE

OASIS at DEATI{ VAttEY
INYOCOUNW

PARCEIO4128OO2OO ROLLVATUE

2OL9l202O

Filing deadllne Septe{tb€r 1t 2O?0

OPINION OF VALUE ROLL VALUE OPINION OFVALUE

2020t20212O2Ol2O2L
TREND VALUE

2%

I.AND

TMPROVEMENTS/STRUCTURES

PARCEL 0412800700

IAND
IM PROVEMENT5/STRUCIURES

ROLL VAIUE

20t912020

923,254

-, 25,787465
26,7tO,779

t5,277,563

OPINION OFVALUE

20t9l2O2O

923,254
L2,893,733

74t,978
29,670,O?O

30,412,W8

ROLLVATUE

2020l2o2t

94t,719
26,303,274

741,978

15,576,994

OPINION OF VATUE

2020i2021

727,49O

29,088,26s
727,430

t4s4/.,13?
29,815,69s

941,719
13,151,608

13,816,987 27,244,933 t4,@3,327

\\xanterra-com\corp\Departments\Accounting\Tax\propertvTax\lnyo countv 2017 prop Tax project\2019 proposed Adjustments\Escape.supp
Assessments.App€als\Appeal Applications\2O20.2021 Opinlon of Value Calc



COUNTY OF INYO
Office of the Assessor

Dave Stottlemyre
PO Box i

lndependence, CA 93526

ANFIUAL NOTICE OF ASSESSED VALUE

XANTERRA PARKS & RESORTS

6312 S FIDDLERS CRN CIR #6OON

GREENWOODVLCCO SOIII

DATE NOTICE MAILED }1612020

ASSESSMENT# 0412800200

LIEN DATE III;2020

PROPERTY ADDRESS: HWY 190, FURNACE CREEK

THIS IS NOT A TAX EILL

Arrlcle Xlll, Secrion I ofthe Stare Consritudon requrres that propcrly b€ ta\€d ln ptoporuofl to rts valu

Th€ ta\able yalues shown on the rhi$ noticF-plus any rax$le persrncl property and mrnus ily cr€mplrons for whrch you may quahry--sll b€ the basis of
your prcP€rty ta} btll

tf you belrcve your prcp€rr) rs $onh less thm rhc indimted umble wtue, you should firsl drcss th€ malter $tlh the Assessor or a member of hts stafl lf rhe' 
essesoiagre'esthatareduchoninvaluesisprop€r,hecanadjustthevalue lf&eassessmentrollhasbeencompleted,youmayapplylothelocal

Board ofEqurlrzailon for relref A rwinell sfgulotion may be made 8nd fibd wtrh thc appl]catlon to the Comty Bolrd ofEq$aliza$on tn a.lordatrce rvilh

Revcnue & TararFn Code Saction I 607, vhich provides that the apphcont reed not stlend the scheduled €quahzatton heanng and lestlry to $e
propertr'sraluerfheandthsAssessoragrcgasto*rerglueandsignar$itanstrpulattofltolh$ef[€cl Theboardcaneltheracceptlhestlpulatlon0rrejesrit

and reset the nme ofhe heanng

Applicauons fof adJugments tn valuation not trgr€ed upon nith lhe Ass€sror must be liled m wttrng rvrth the Clerk of the County Bffird of Eq@hauor!
PO Box N, Independence, CA 93526, b€tvaen July 2 and September I 5

PLEASE CONTACT THE ASSESSOR IF YOU I{AVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNINC ASSESSMENTS

Pleolc erther rctum thrs nottcc or rcfer to your proF€rqrs ssessment number rfyou call or wnte thts o{fice

PLEASE NOTIFY THE ASSESSOR OF ANY CHANGE IN ADDRESS.

THE ASSESSOR'S OFFICE IS LOCATED IN THE COUNTY ANNEX BUILDING
hyo coulty Asiessor

PO BOX J

lndePendence, CA 93526

TelephoE (760) 87&0302, 872-2?02, 8?6-5s59

VALUE / EXEMPTION TYPE

Land
Improvemont
Personal Proporty
Fixtures
Exemption

2p20/?021. ASSESSMENT

$74r978
s29,670,030
$

$
$

$30,412,008Net Taxable



X

04/27/2022

ASSISTANT



DECLARATION OF SERVICE

I am employed in the County of Inyo, I am over the age of 18 years and I am not a party to the
within entitled action. My business address is P.O. Box N,Independenceo CA 93526.

On June 17 r2022,1 served the foregoing document(s) described as follows

LETTER NOTIFYING TAXPAYBR/AUTHORIZED AGENT OF RESCHEDULED TAX
ASSESSMENT APPEAL HEARING; HEARING DATE CONF.IRMATION NOTICE

on the following parties in said action, as shown below,

XANTERRA PARKS & RBSORTS, INC.
C/O KENT SCOTT
6312 S. F'IDDLERS GREEN CIR. #600 N
GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO

by the following means

t I (By Mail) I personally deposited said envelope(s) with the United States Postal Service at
Independence, California, with first class postage thereon fully prepaid.

txl (By Mail) I deposited such envelope(s) in the mail at Independenceo Califomia. I am readily
familiar with the County's practice whereby the mail, after being placed in a designated area, is
given the appropriate first class postage and is deposited with the United States Postal Service on
that same day.

tl (By Certified Mail) I personally deposited said envelope(s) with the United States Postal Service at
Independence, California, with first class postage thereon fully prepaid.

t I (By e-mail) to all e-mail addresses on the Service List attached

tl (By Personal Service) I caused such envelope(s) to be delivered personally to the office(s) of
addressee(s).

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and
correct.

^\2-DATED: b ln la, ni-rcYE t ils. Ass isiant C leik
Inyo County h#O of Equalization



BOARD OF EQIJALIZATION
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX N o INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA93526
TELEPH0NE (760) 878-0373

e-ntail : dellis@inyocounty.us

MEMBERS oF THE BoARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI
JENNIFER ROESER
MATT KINGSLEY

LESLIE L, CHAPMAN
()lerk ol the lloard

DARCY ELLIS
Assislaul (:lerk ol lhc llo1rdEr CanarNo S{ERR-A;

June 17,2022

Xanterra Parks & Resorts, Inc.
c/o Kent Scott
63 l2 S. Fiddlers Green Cir., #600 N
Greenwood Village, CO

Re : Assessor Parcel Nos. 04 1280 07 00, 0412800200

Dear Mr. Scott,

By now you should have received my letter of June 3 (enclosed) announcing the rescheduling of your hearing from
September 20 to September 13. Regrettably, I now write to infonn you that the September l3 meeting has been canceled
altogether, and as a result your hearing has been once again rescheduled. My apologies for any inconvenience or
confusion.

The hearing for the Inyo County Board of Equalization to hear the appeals of the assessed valuation of the above
referenced properties (Application Nos. 2020-02,2020-03,2020-04,2020-05,2020-20,2020-21) will be held at I p.m.
Tuesday, September 6,2022 in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Adrninistrative Center, 224N. Edwards St.,
Independence, CA.

This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. Individual Board members may
participate remotely in accordance with applicable open meetirrg law requirements. In-person rneetings will be
conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public Health orders and guidance and requirements of
the California Division of Occupational Safefy and Health (CaIOSHA).

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public athttps:llzoon.usljl868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by
telephone atthe following numbers:(669) 900-6833; (346)248-7799;(253)215-8782;(929)205-6099; (301) 715-
8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781.

If guidelines with regard to access to Board rneetings change, you will be notified prior to your hearing.

At the date and time set forth above you must appear personally at the hearing or be represented by an agent who shall be
thoroughly familiar with the facts pertaining to the matter before the Board. Any person, other than an attorney at law,
purporting to act as an agent for you shall, prior to tlre hearing, file with tlre Clerk written authority, signed by you, to
represent you at the hearing. An appearance by an officer or an employee of a corporate applicant or by a relative
mentioned by Board of Eqtahzation Rule 320 requires no written authorization. Failure to appear, personally or by an
authorized agent, may result in your application being denied. If you are unable to attend the hearing as scheduled your
application may be continued by the Board upon your showing of good cause. Good cause may be established only by a
written statement signed by the applicant, or his authorized agerft, setting forth the facts and circumstances explaining the
inability to appear at the scheduled hearing. Such written declaration must be received by the Board of Equalization prior
to the date and time of the scheduled hearing.



Denial of an application for lack of appearance of tlre applicant or his agent may be reconsidered when the applicant
furnishes evidence of good cause for the failure to appear or to make a timely request for postponement and files a written
request for reconsideration within a period not to exceed 60 days from the date of mailing of the notification of the denial
due to lack ofappearance.

Applicable law requires that you be provided notification of the following:

I. The Board of Equalization is required to find taxable v(tlue of the properly in question from the evidence presented
at the hearing.

2. The Board of Equalization can raise as well as lower or confirm the assessment being appealed.
3. The application for a reduction in the assessment of a portion of an improved real properly, or a portion of

installations which are partially real property and partially personal property, may result in an increase in the
unprotested assessment of the other portion or portions of the property which increase will ffiet, in whole or in
part, any reduction in the protest assessment.

Neither the Assessor, Clerk of the Board of Equalization, members of the Board of Equalization, nor the Board's legal
staff can provide you with legal advice or representation concerning this matter. Questions conceming the Inyo County
Assessor's valuation of the property in question can be directed to the County Assessor by contacting him at P.O. Box J,

Independence, CA 93526, or by telephone at (760) 878-0302.The Application for Changed Assessment will be provided
to the Board of Equalization, without attachmenfs. You should be prepared to provide your evidence, including any
evidence or explanations you attached to the Application, to the Board at the hearing.

Please note that Inyo County charges $160 per parcel for written findings of fact. Findings may be requested at any
time prior to the beginning of your hearing and the fees for this service should be paid before the hearing, but in any case,
prior to the end of your hearing. However, if you withdraw your request for findings of facts by the end of the hearing,
any fees paid will be refunded by the clerk. Your request, if not designated on the appeal application, can be made in a
separate written request to the clerk, or orally on record just prior to the start of your hearing.

Requests for continuances or other correspondence to the Board of Equalization should be addressed to: Clerk of the
Board of Equalization, County of Inyo, P.O. DrawerN, Independence, CA93526; or dellis@in)rocounty.us. The Clerk
can be contacted at(760) 878-0373.

Included with this correspondence is a Hearing Date Confirmation Notice, which must be returned to the address listed in
the above paragraph not less than 21 days prior to the indicated hearing date.

Sincerely

Darcy Ellis,
Assistant Clerk of the Board

de
xc: David Stottlemyre, County Assessor

John-Carl Vallejo, County Counsel



BOARD OF EQTJALTZATION
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX N o INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA93526
TELEPHoNE (760) 878-0373

e-nrail : del lis@inyocounty.us

MEMBERS oF THE BoARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI
JENNIFER ROESER
MATT KINGSLEY

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
OIerk o./ the Roord

DARCY ELLIS
A:sistlnt ()lcrk ol thc RoardEn CAtsrxNo SIERRA

June 3,2022

Xanterra Parks & Resorts. Inc.
c/o Kent Scott
6312 S. Fiddlers Green Cir., #600 N
Greenwood Village, CO

GCFVRe: Assessor Parcel Nos. 0412800700, 0412800200

Dear Mr. Scott,

Please be advised that we have had to reschedule the hearing for the Inyo County Board of Equalization to hear the appeals
of the assessed valuation of the above referenced properties (Application Nos. 2020-02,2020-03,2020-04,2020-05,
2020-20,2020-21). The hearing has been moved up from Septernber 20 to I p.m. Tuesday, September 13,2022 it"rthe
Board of Supervisors Chambers, County Administrative Center, 224 N. Edwards St., Independence, CA.

This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom Webinar. Individual Board members may
participate remotely in accordance with applicable open meetirrg law requirements. In-person meetings will be
conducted in accordance with local and State Departmerrt of Public Health orders and guidance and requirements of
the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CaIOSHA).

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public athttps:llzoom.usljl&6&25478l. The meeting may also be accessed by
telephoneatthefollowingnumbers:(669)900-6833; (346)245-7799;(253)215-8782;(929)205-6099; (301)715-
8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781.

If guidelines with regard to access to Board rneetings change, you will be notified prior to your hearing.

At the date and time set forth above you must appear personally at the hearing or be represented by an agent who shall be
thoroughly familiar with the facts pertaining to the matter before the Board. Any person, other than an attorney at law,
purporting to act as an agent for you shall, prior to the hearing, file with the Clerk written authority, signed by you, to
represent you at the hearing. An appearance by an officer or an employee of a corporate applicant or by a relative
mentioned by Board of Equalization Rule 320 requires no written authorization. Failure to appear, personally or by an
authorized agent, may result in your application being denied. If you are unable to attend the hearing as scheduled your
application may be continued by the Board upon your showing of good cause. Good cause may be established only by a
written statement signed by the applicant, or his authorized agent, setting forth the facts and circumstances explaining the
inability to appear at the scheduled hearing. Such written declaration must be received by the Board of Equalization prior
to the date and time of the scheduled hearing.

Denial of an application for lack of appearance of the applicant or his agent may be reconsidered when the applicant
furnishes evidence of good cause for the failure to appear or to make a tirnely request for postponement and files a written
request for reconsideration within a period not to exceed 60 days from the date of mailing of the notification of the denial
due to lack ofappearance.



Applicable law requires that you be provided notification of the following:

L The Board of Equalization is required to find taxable value of the property in question from the evidence presented
at the hearing.

2. The Board of Equalization can raise as well as lower or confirm the assessment being appealed.
3. The application for a reduction in the assessment of a portion of an improved real property, or a portion of

installations which are partially real property and partially personal property, may result in an increase in the
unprotested assessment of the other portion or portions of the property which increase will offset, in whole or in
part, any reduction in the protest assessmenL

Neitherthe Assessor, Clerk of the Board of Equalization, members of the Board of Equalization, northe Board's legal
staff can provide you with legal advice or representation concerning this matter. Questions concerning the Inyo County
Assessor's valuation of the property in questiou can be directed to tlre County Assessor by contacting him at P.O. Box J,
Independence, CA 93526, or by telephone at (760) 878-0302. The Application for Changed Assessment will be provided
to the Board of Equalization, without attachments. You should be prepared to provide your evidence, including any
evidence or explanations you attached to the Application, to the Board at tlre hearing.

Please note that Inyo County charges $160 per parcel for written findings of fact. Findings may be requested at any
time prior to the beginning of your hearing and the fees for this service should be paid before the hearing, but in any case,
prior to the end of your hearing. However, if you withdraw your request for findings of facts by the end of the hearing,
any fees paid will be refunded by the clerk. Your request, if not designated on the appeal application, can be made in a
separate written request to the clerk, or orally on record just prior to the start of your hearing.

Requests for continuances or other correspondence to the Board of Equalization should be addressed to: Clerk of the
Board of Equalization, County of Inyo, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526; or dellis@inyocoLrnty.us. The Clerk
can be contacted at(760) 878-0373.

Included with this correspondence is a Hearing Date Confirmation Notice, which must be returned to the address listed in
the above paragraph not less than 21 days prior to the indicated hearing date.

Sincerely,

Darcy Ellis,
Assistant Clerk of the Board

de
xc: David Stottlemyre, County Assessor

John-Carl Vallejo, County Counsel



BOE-305-CN REV 01 (09-10)

HEARING DATE CONFIRMATION NOTICE

This confirmation notice must be returned not less
than 21 days prior to the indicated hearing date.
Mail or fax to the Clerk of the Board at the address
shown.

COLTNTY OF'INYO
BOARD OF

EQ1JALIZATION
P.O. Drarver N, Indepentlencc- CA 9352(;

(760) 878-0373
dell is,i?)in1'ocoun[,.us

HEARING DATEANDTIME- APPLICATION NUMBER(S)

HEARING LOCATION

PARCEL OR ASSESSMENT NUIMBER(S) APPLICANT

SEVERALAPPLICATIONS MAY BE SET FOR HEARING AT THE SAME TIME, AND EACH WLL BE CONSIDERED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE IN THE ORDER LISTED ON THE AGENDA.

[f Cnect one of the boxes below.

! I will be present on the scheduled hearing date.

Please bring 8 copies of any evidence you wish to present to the Assessment Appeals Board

f I request my right to a one-time postponement of my hearing to another hearing date. To schedule your hearing for a future date,
please contact the Clerk of the Board at ( _ ) _ -

I understand that if this is not my first postponement request, I must appear at the scheduled hearing to request another postponement
and give reasonable cause to the appeals board. lt is the sole discretion of the board to gmnt or deny this request. lf denied, I must
be prepared to proceed with the hearing as scheduled.

lf you are requesting a postponement and the date of the currently scheduled hearing is within 120 days of the expiration of the
two-year limitations period set by Revenue and Taxation Code section 1604(c), the Clerk will provide you with a waiver (form BOE-
305-W) to indefinitely extend and toll the period in which your appeal is to be heard and decided.

I wish to withdraw my application. Withdrawals are final and will conclude any further action on the appeal. (Your attendance at the
hearing is not required.)

I understand that my withdrawal may only be granted if the assessor has not provided me with a written notice of an intention to
recommend an increase in the assessed value of the property. Additionally, the county Board can decide to review an assessment
even though the Assessor and applicant may have agreed to withdraw the appeal.

! t t aue signed a stipulation with the assessor's office. (Your attendance at the hearing is not required.)

ln order to ensure proper scheduling of assessment appeals hearings, you must complete and return this form not less than 21
days prior to the date of your hearing. Failure to return this confirmation notice may result in your case being removed from the
agenda on the scheduled date. Failure to appear at the scheduled hearing by you or an authorized representative may result in
your application being abandoned and denied for lack of appearance unless you have requested a postponement.

CERTIFICATION

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am the owner, or person authorized to sign on behalf of the owner, of the
above referenced property.

SIGNATURE

PRINT NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNER TITLE

COMPANY NAME EIVAILADDRESS

!owNER IAGENT lnrronruev nspousE !necrsreneoDoMEslcPARrNER !cHrLD ! PARENT n PERSoN AFFECTED

n coRpoRATE oFFtcER oR DESTcNATED EMpLoyEE

DATE

! cnlrroRrurRArroRNEy srATE BAR NUMBER:



August 18,2022

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
P. O. Drawer N
Independence, CA 93514

Gentlemen:

At the August 18,2022 meeting of the Inyo Fish and Wildlife Commission, the Commission 
considered and approved requesting the Board of Supervisors authorize a $5,000 expenditure 
from the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fish and Game Budget to the Bishop Chamber of Commerce 
and Visitors Bureau to support the development and distribution of an Inyo County Fishing 
Map Brochure.  

Attached is the Agenda for the meeting and the draft minutes of the meeting, along with the 
Chambers request.

Sincerely,

Patricia Gunsolley, Secretary

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
DOUGLAS BROWN   

STEVE  IVEY
WARAREN  ALLSUP

JOHN  FREDERICKSON
GAYE  MUELLER

A L T E R N A T E
JARED  SMITH

 
 

INYO COUNTY
FISH AND WILDLIFE COMMISSION

REPLY TO:     

Pat Gunsolley, Secretary
4801 Alison Lane
Bishop, CA  93514
pgunsolley@gmail.com



MEETING AGENDA
August 18 , 2022

2:30 p.m.
Meeting Location:  

Inyo County Office Building
1360 North Main Street, Suite 101B

Bishop, California

                                 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE

2. ROLL-CALL – The Commission will take a roll call of its members to ensure there is a quorum 
of the Commission to conduct business as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Any member of the public may make comment to the Commission – No 
action is taken.

4. FINANCIAL REPORT – The Commission will receive an update on the Fish and Game Fine 
Fund balance.

5. ACTION ITEM - MINUTE APPROVAL – the Commission will consider approval of Minutes of 
the March 17, 2022, May 19, 2022 and June 16, 2022 meetings. 

 
6. ACTION ITEM – BISHOP CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND VISITORS BUREAU – Request 

Commission support the development of an Inyo County Fishing Map Brochure, similar to the 
previous Inyo and Mono County joint fishing map brochure, by recommending to the Board of 
Supervisors, a $5,000 expenditure from the Inyo Fine Funds to help fund the brochure.  The 
map will cover fishing locations in Inyo County from Diaz Lake to Rock Creek Canyon. The 
design work is coming along nicely and the Chamber expects to have some elements ready to 
show at the meeting. It will be very similar to the Mono County Version with basic info about 
regulations and sustainable fishing practices.  
 

7. STATE AND FEDERAL AGENCIES REPORTS – representative(s) of the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife and other State and Federal Agencies will update the Commission on 
Department activities and projects.

8. COMMISSION REPORTS – No action to be taken on reports from Commission Members. 

9. NEXT MEETING – the Commission will consider confirming September 15, 2022, as the date for 
the next meeting.

10. ADJOURNMENT.

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
DOUGLAS BROWN   

STEVE  IVEY
JOHN  FREDERICKSON

WARREN  ALLSUP
GAYE  MUELLER

A L T E R N A T E
JARED  SMITH

 
 

INYO COUNTY
FISH AND WILDLIFE COMMISSIONREPLY TO:     

Pat Gunsolley, Secretary
4801 Alison Lane
Bishop, CA  93514
pgunsolley@gmail.com



FISH AND WILDLIFE COMMISSION
MINUTES

August 18, 2022 Meeting

The Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Commission met in regular session, at 3:00 p.m., August 18, 2022 at the Inyo 
County Offices in Bishop, California.      

Call to Order: Chairperson Doug Brown called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call:  The Commission Members present were Doug Brown, Chairperson, Steve Ivey, Gaye Mueller, and 
Alternate Commissioner Jared Smith who joined the meeting at 2:40 p.m.  Commissioners John Frederickson and 
Warren Allsup were absent.  

Public Comment: The Chairperson announced public comment period.  Jane Kenyon again expressed her concerns 
with deer deaths on U.S. 395 in the Mammoth area.  She asked if there was a way to provide a safe corridor around 
the Morrison Road bend.      

Financial Report:  The Secretary reported that the Inyo Fine Fund balance remains at $19,219.00.  

Action Item - Minute Approval:  Moved by Commissioner Mueller and seconded by Commissioner ivey to approve 
the minutes of the March 17, 2022 meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Brown, Mueller and Ivey, voting yes, 
and with Commissioner Smith abstaining, and with Commissioners Fredrickson and Allsup being absent.  The 
Chairperson directed that the approval of the minutes of the May 19, 2022 and July 21, 2022 meetings be placed on 
the September meeting because of the lack of a quorum of those in attendance.

Action Item – Bishop Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau – Tawni Thomson, Executive Director of the 
Bishop Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau provided additional information and further justification for funding 
assistance to produce a new Inyo County Fishing Map  She reminded the Commission that the County support for a 
Fishing Map Brochure has been given by both the Commission and the Board of Supervisors in the past, by providing 
a portion of the funding for a joint Inyo/Mono Fishing Map Brochure.  She explained that Mono County had decided to 
develop a Fishing Map Brochure exclusive to Mono County, thus necessitating Inyo County to develop an exclusive 
Inyo County Fishing Map Brochure.  She provided a copy of the first proof of the new Brochure, with Ms. Thomson 
explaining that Inyo County’s brochure is very similar to the new Mono County Brochure.  She said the map would 
cover Inyo County fishing locations from Rock Creek Canyon south to Diaz Lake.  She also noted that the brochure 
will contain basic info about local fishing regulations (noting there is also a spot to electronically access the State 
Fishing and Game Fishing regulations), and sustainable fishing practices. She and the Commission discussed the 
brochure, with Ms. Thomson saying that she was proposing an initial printing of 20,000 brochures.  The Commission 
and Ms. Thomson continued to discuss the brochure with Ms. Thomson saying she would be sending the proof to Lt. 
Dailey, Jim Erdman and several other people to help make sure the information contained in the brochure is accurate.  
Ms. Thomson confirmed that the estimates for the production, printing and distribution of the brochure is between 
$7,500 and $8,000.  The Commission and Ms. Thomson also discussed the avenues whereby other Inyo County 
funding support could be sought through the County of Inyo’s grant programs.  

Moved by Commissioner Mueller and seconded by Commissioner Smith to approve requesting the Board of 
Supervisors authorize a $5,000 Fine Fund expenditure to the Bishop Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau to 
support the development and printing of an Inyo County Fishing Map Brochure, similar to the previous Inyo and Mono 
County joint fishing map brochure.  Motion carried unanimously with Commissioners Mueller, Smith, Brown and Ivey 
voting yes, and with Commissioners Fredrickson and Allsup absent.



California Department of Fish and Wildlife and Other Agency Reports – Lt. Bill Dailey introduced the new 
Mammoth area warden Kaleb Eye to the Commission.  Lt. Dailey reported on law enforcement activities in Inyo and 
Mono counties.   There were no other reports forthcoming.  

Commission Member Reports: The Chairperson called for Commission Member reports.  Commissioner Ivey invited 
the Commissioners and members of the audience to attend the Annual Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery BBQ being held 
this Saturday beginning at 4:p.m on the Hatchery grounds.  Commissioner Mueller reported on the Mono County Kids 
Fishing Day, saying while the turnout was smaller than in previous years, the kids that participated benefitted from 
more individual interactions.  Commissioner Mueller also expressed a desire to have someone from the Friends of the 
Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery come to provide information to the Commission on the Independence Tribe’s latest 
involvement in the Hatchery.  Commissioner Ivey explained that the Tribe interaction with the Hatchery is in the very 
early stages and it might be better to make this request at a later date.   There were no further reports forthcoming.

Next meeting:  The Chairperson confirmed September 15, 2022 as the date for the next Fish and Wildlife 
Commission meeting.    

Adjournment:  Moved by Commissioner Mueller and seconded by Commissioner Ivey to adjourn the meeting at 3:35 
p.m.   Motion carried unanimously, with Commissioners Brown, Mueller, Ivey and Smith voting yes, and with 
Commissioners Allsup and Frederickson absent.



From: Tawni Thomson
To: pgunsolley@gmail.com
Subject: New Inyo County Fishing Map Brochure
Date: Thursday, August 11, 2022 4:15:45 PM
Hi Pat –
Thanks for including our request in the August Agenda. We’d like to request $5,000 for the project.
The map will cover fishing locations in Inyo County from Diaz Lake to Rock Creek Canyon. I’m
working with Laura Patterson and the design is coming along nicely. I’ll have some elements ready 
to show at the meeting. It will be very similar to the Mono County Version with basic info about
regulations and sustainable fishing practices

Thanks!

Tawni Thomson
Executive Director
Bishop Area Chamber of Commerce & Visitors Bureau
690 N. Main Street
Bishop, CA 93514
Tel: 760-873-8405
www.bishopvisitor.com
“Small Town with a BIG Backyard!”



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Treasurer-Tax Collector 
  

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL - NO 
ACTION REQUIRED  

  
MEETING:  September 6, 2022 
  
FROM:  Alisha McMurtrie 
  
SUBJECT:  Treasury Status Report for the Quarter Ending June 30, 2022 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Treasury Status Report - Quarter Ending June 30, 2022 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The report is provided pursuant to the provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code. The primary 
purposes of the report are to disclose the following: 
•    the investments and deposits of the treasury; 
•    the cost basis and market value of the investments; 
•    compliance with the County Investment Policy; 
•    the weighted average of the investments; and 
•    the projected ability of the treasury to meet the expected expenditure requirements of the treasury's pooled 
participants for the next six months. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Pursuant to Section 53646(g) of the Government Code, copies of this report, while no longer mandated, will 
continue to be provided to the members of the Treasury Oversight Committee. 
  
FINANCING: 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 06-30-2022 Treasury Status Report 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
APPROVALS: 
Moana Chapman Created/Initiated - 8/2/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/2/2022 
Moana Chapman Approved - 8/3/2022 
Alisha McMurtrie Final Approval - 8/16/2022 



 

 
 

 
TO:                 Honorable Members of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
FROM:           Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer-Tax Collector 
SUBJECT:     Report of the Status of the Inyo County Treasury as of: June 30, 2022  
DATE:           July 29,2022 
 
The following status report of the County Treasury as of 06-30-2022 is provided pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code. 
 
The attached copy of the “Treasurer’s Daily Reconciliation” provides a breakdown of the dollar 
amount of the Treasury assets by depository for monetary assets and by issuer for securities. 
 
The attached copy of the custody statement from TRACKER, a Division of C2, LLC reflects, 
among other things, the following information regarding each security held: issuer, maturity date; 
CUSIP number; face amount; cost basis; and market value (calculated by Merrill Lynch). 
 
The weighted average maturity of the investments of the Treasury was 746 days. 
 
The latest PARS/OPEB investment statement is attached for reference. 
 
It is anticipated that the County Treasury will be able to meet the liquidity requirements of its 
pooled participants for the next six months. 
 
The investment portfolio is in compliance with the Inyo County Treasury Investment Policy. 
 
NOTES:  Regarding Inyo County’s monetary assets held outside the County Treasury:     

 Various Inyo County Departments and treasury pool participants maintain and 
administer bank checking accounts outside the County Treasury. 

 Inyo County’s PARS relationship for our OPEB investment began in June 2010. To 
date: the PARS balance as of:06/30/2022 was $9,052,175.66 (Principal: $9,233,673.70 
plus Contributions:  $300,000.00 plus Interest: $-479,257.53 less Fees: $-2,240.51) 

 
 
 
C: Members of the Inyo County Treasury Oversight Committee 

 
 

COUNTY OF INYO 
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

168 NORTH EDWARDS STREET 
POST OFFICE DRAWER O 

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526-0614 
(760) 878-0312  (760) 878-0311 FAX 

ALISHA McMURTRIE 

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

 
 

 



$191,135,566.09

$426,166.06

6/29/2022 ($196,154.19)

$0.00

($4,711,938.44)

$186,653,639.52

Drawer $501.65
Vault $17,602.00

CHECKS	ON	HAND:
Date:
Date:
Date:

$6,007,231.58

$4,521,660.67

$11,327.29

$101,636.25

Agency Limit
$31,999,758.81 50,000,000
$3,500,000.00 1.88% of	5.00%
$422,744.32 0.23% of	100.00%

$105,000,000.00 56.25% of	100.00%
$7,976,898.43 4.27% of	100.00%
$13,872,147.22 7.43% of	15.00%

$0.00 0.00% of	30.00%
$6,695,000.00 3.59% of	30.00%
$6,208,799.42 3.33% of	5.00%

$175,675,348.20

$109,106,770.58 58.45% of	60.00%

$186,335,307.64

($318,331.88)

($241.19)

($603,185.85)
($13,307.57)
$86,250.00
$129,630.94
$133,509.79

$879.33
$1,831.17

($53,698.50)

($40.03)
($318,331.88)

06/30/2022	SEE	ATTACHED	EXHIBIT	"A"	FOR	OUTGOING																								
DEBIT	DETAILS

El	Dorado	#9703	‐	Cash	Account

Journal	Entry:

Outgoing	Debits:

Ending	"Claim	on	Cash	in	Treasury"

TREASURER'S	DAILY	RECONCILIATION
For	the	Business	Day	of:

6/30/2022

AUDITOR	BALANCES:

Prepared By:  Moana Chapman

06/24/22	ED#9703:		SIFPD	WF	AA	CHG	‐	CK#	2116

Beginning	"Claim	on	Cash	in	Treasury"

Deposit	Authorizations

Checks	Paid	on:

GRAND	TOTAL	TREASURY	BALANCE:

U.S.	Bank	Money	Market

Local	Agency	Investment	Fund
UBS	Money	Market
Local	Agencies
Federal	Agencies
Federal	Agencies‐Treasury	Notes/Bonds
Commercial	Paper

Maturities	>	1	Year

TREASURER	BALANCES:

INVESTMENTS:

NOTES

CASH	ON	HAND:

BANK	ACCOUNTS:

Union	Bank	‐	General	Account.

Eastern	Sierra	Community	Bank	‐	Gen

Grand	TTL	Investments

CDs
Corporate	Obligation

El	Dorado	#2107	‐	Directs	Account

06/30/22	AUD:		VENDOR	PMT	ERROR	‐	REVERSAL	PENDING

RECONCILIATION

Explanation:

06/30/22	REMOTE	DEPOSIT	IN	TRANSIT
06/30/22	CUSIP#	31846V567	‐	SETTLEMENT
06/30/22	ICOE:		PERS
06/30/22	ICOE:		PERS
06/30/22	AUD	PY:		PIONEER	PERS
06/30/22	AUD	PY:		PIONEER	PERS

06/03/22	PENDING	REVERSAL	TO	INTEREST	CLEARING	|		04/15/22	ERROR	IN	
3RD	QTR	INTEREST	‐	BACKFILL	WITH	4TH	QTR	INTEREST
06/29/22	REMOTE	DEPOSIT	IN	TRANSIT

Treasury	Over/Short:



EXHIBIT "A"
OUTGOING DEBIT DETAILS

Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($10.00) TREASURER'S DAILY RECONCILIATION
Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($12.36) For the Business Day of 
Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($19.90)  6/30/2022
Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($30.00)

Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($49.81)

Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($60.97)

Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($65.00)

Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($142.45)

Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($229.64)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($309.86)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($373.86)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($476.84)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($548.90)

Aud PY ‐ SD State Taxes ($604.98)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($613.70)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($689.08)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($897.13)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($1,048.46)

ICOE PY ‐ The Education Corps ($1,541.54)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($1,743.33)

ICOE PY ‐ College Bridge Academy ($1,858.67)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($2,900.12)

Aud PY ‐  SD Federal Taxes ($4,656.16)

ICOE PY ‐ The Education Corps ($4,864.69)

ICOE PY ‐ College Bridge Academy ($5,373.08)

ICOE PY ‐ Youthbuild Charter ($6,746.50)

ICOE PY ‐ Youthbuild Charter ($28,167.27)

Aud PY ‐ Special District PY ($35,264.33)

ICOE PY ‐ LA Education Corps ($45,792.26)

ICOE PY ‐ State Taxes ($92,918.06)

ICOE PY ‐ Youthbuild Charter ($100,540.38)

ICOE PY ‐ Federal Taxes ($425,114.02)

ICOE PY ‐ PAYROLL ($2,388,636.24)

Auditor ($95,806.25)

Auditor ($119,799.80)

Auditor ($300,000.00)

ICOE ‐ CALSTRS ($251,998.69)

ICOE ‐ CALSTRS ($416,445.69)

Auditor ($109,737.19)

ICOE PY ‐ PERS ($129,630.94)

ICOE PY ‐ PERS ($133,509.79)

Aud PY ‐ PERS ($879.33)

Aud PY ‐ PERS ($1,831.17)

TOTAL ($4,711,938.44)

Prepared and attached by:  Moana Chapman



Inyo County Group By: Asset Category
Portfolio Holdings Average By: Face Amount / Shares
Compliance Report | by Investment Policy Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
Report Format: By Transaction As of 6/30/2022

1ST FINANCIAL BANK USA 0.45 8/19/2025 32022RNT0 8/19/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 8/19/2025 1,146

ALLY BANK 0.9 3/13/2023 02007GMY6 3/12/2020 0.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 3/13/2023 256

AMERICAN COMMERCE BANK 0.9 3/27/2024 02519TBA3 3/27/2020 0.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 3/27/2024 636

BERKSHIRE BANK 1 10/20/2022 084601XL2 4/24/2020 1.000 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 10/20/2022 112

CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA 1.1 11/17/2026 14042TDW4 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/17/2026 1,601

CAPITAL ONE NA 1.1 11/17/2026 14042TQB0 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/17/2026 1,601

CELTIC BANK 1.85 11/27/2024 15118RTC1 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/27/2024 881

CENTERSTATE BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 15201QDE4 4/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 4/30/2025 1,035

Citibank National SD 3.4 1/9/2024 17312QZ36 1/9/2019 3.400 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 1/9/2024 558

EAST BOSTON SAVINGS BANK 0.45 8/12/2025 27113PDP3 8/12/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 8/12/2025 1,139

ENERBANK USA 1.8 11/22/2023 29278TMN7 11/27/2019 1.800 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/22/2023 510

FIRST CAROLINA BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 31944MBB0 8/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 8/20/2025 1,147

FLAGSTAR BANK 1.15 4/29/2025 33847E3D7 4/29/2020 1.150 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 4/29/2025 1,034

GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 1.1 11/17/2026 38149MK51 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/17/2026 1,601

GREENSTATE CREDIT UNION 0.4 8/18/2023 39573LAP3 8/18/2020 0.400 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 8/18/2023 414

LIVE OAK BANKING COMPANY 1.85 11/27/2024 538036GU2 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/27/2024 881

LUANA SAVINGS BANK 0.6 5/8/2025 549104PQ4 5/8/2020 0.600 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 5/8/2025 1,043

MEDALLION BANK 1.2 4/30/2024 58404DGU9 4/30/2020 1.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 4/30/2024 670

MERRICK BANK 1.75 11/29/2022 59013KEA0 11/29/2019 1.750 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/29/2022 152

Morgan Stanley Bank UT 2.65 2/8/2023 61747MJ77 2/8/2018 2.650 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 2/8/2023 223

MORGAN STANLEY PRIVATE BANK NA 1.9 11/20/2024 61760A3B3 11/27/2019 1.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/20/2024 874

Mountain America UT 2.4 11/30/2022 62384RAD8 11/30/2017 2.400 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/30/2022 153

NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 664122AF5 8/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 8/20/2025 1,147

PACIFIC WETERN BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 69506YRL5 4/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 4/30/2025 1,035

SOMERSET TRUST CO 1 3/19/2025 835104BZ2 3/19/2020 1.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 3/19/2025 993

UBS BANK NA 1.1 11/17/2026 90348JW97 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/17/2026 1,601

VIRIVA FCU 1.85 11/27/2024 92823NAA9 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/27/2024 881

Sub Total / Average Certficate of Deposit - 30 % 1.307 6,695,000.00 6,695,000.00 6,695,000.00 864

Face AmountYTMSettlement 
DateCUSIPDescription Days To 

Maturity
Maturity 

DateMarket ValueCost Value

Certficate of Deposit - 30 %



CREDIT AGRICILE CIB NY 0 2/24/2023 22533UPQ0 6/3/2022 2.309 2,000,000.00 1,966,454.44 2,000,000.00 2/24/2023 239

CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB NY 0 7/12/2022 22533UGC1 10/19/2021 0.110 3,000,000.00 2,997,561.67 3,000,000.00 7/12/2022 12

MUFG BANK LTD/NY 0 7/8/2022 62479MG80 10/19/2021 0.110 4,000,000.00 3,996,797.78 4,000,000.00 7/8/2022 8

NATIXIX NY 0 2/24/2023 63873KPQ4 6/3/2022 2.443 5,000,000.00 4,911,333.33 5,000,000.00 2/24/2023 239

Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper - 15 % 1.257 14,000,000.00 13,872,147.22 14,000,000.00 124

FFCB 0.44 11/4/2024-21 3133EMFP2 11/4/2020 0.440 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 11/4/2024 858

FFCB 0.47 1/27/2025-21 3133EMER9 10/27/2020 0.470 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 1/27/2025 942

FFCB 0.52 10/21/2025-21 3133EMDZ2 10/21/2020 0.520 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 10/21/2025 1,209

FFCB 0.53 10/22/2025-21 3133EMEC2 10/22/2020 0.530 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 10/22/2025 1,210

FFCB 0.53 8/12/2025-22 3133EL3P7 8/12/2020 0.530 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 8/12/2025 1,139

FFCB 0.55 9/16/2025-21 3133EL7K4 9/16/2020 0.550 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/16/2025 1,174

FHLB 0.52 1/28/2025-22 3130ANEJ5 7/28/2021 0.520 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1/28/2025 943

FHLB 0.55 7/30/2024-20 3130AJUN7 7/30/2020 0.550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 7/30/2024 761

FHLB 0.7 3/16/2026-22 3130ALEP5 3/16/2021 0.700 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/16/2026 1,355

FHLB 0.75 1/29/2025-21 3130ALY65 4/29/2021 0.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1/29/2025 944

FHLB 0.75 6/30/2025-21 3130AMX31 6/30/2021 0.750 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 6/30/2025 1,096

FHLB 1 12/30/2024-22 3130AQFN8 12/30/2021 1.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 12/30/2024 914

FHLB 1 12/30/2024-22 3130AQ4Z3 12/30/2021 1.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 12/30/2024 914

FHLB 1 6/30/2026-21 3130AMT28 6/30/2021 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 6/30/2026 1,461

FHLB 1 9/30/2024-22 3130AQD59 12/30/2021 1.000 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/30/2024 823

FHLB 1.2 12/22/2025-22 3130AQ5D1 12/22/2021 1.200 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 12/22/2025 1,271

FHLB 1.2 4/28/2026-21 3130ALXP4 4/28/2021 1.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 4/28/2026 1,398

FHLB 1.55 12/22/2026-22 3130AQ5C3 12/22/2021 1.550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 12/22/2026 1,636

FHLB Step 6/16/2026-21 3130AMR46 6/16/2021 8.316 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 6/16/2026 1,447

FHLMC 0.6 11/12/2025-21 3134GXBM5 11/17/2020 0.600 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 11/12/2025 1,231

FHLMC 0.6 9/30/2025-21 3134GWTG1 9/30/2020 0.600 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/30/2025 1,188

FHLMC 0.62 12/1/2025-21 3134GXDM3 12/1/2020 0.620 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 12/1/2025 1,250

FHLMC 0.625 8/19/2025-21 3134GWQN9 8/19/2020 0.625 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 8/19/2025 1,146

FHLMC 0.625 9/23/2025-20 3134GWP75 9/23/2020 0.625 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/23/2025 1,181

FNMA 0.55 11/4/2025-22 3135GA2N0 11/4/2020 0.550 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/4/2025 1,223

FNMA 0.56 8/21/2025-23 3136G4N74 8/21/2020 0.560 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 8/21/2025 1,148

FNMA 0.58 10/28/2025-22 3135GA2A8 11/17/2020 0.580 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 10/28/2025 1,216

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date YTM Face Amount

Commercial Paper - 15 %

Federal Agencies - 100 %

Cost Value Market Value Maturity 
Date

Days To 
Maturity



FNMA 0.625 7/21/2025-22 3136G4ZJ5 7/21/2020 0.625 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 7/21/2025 1,117

FNMA 0.7 7/21/2025-21 3136G4ZG1 7/21/2020 0.700 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 7/21/2025 1,117

Sub Total / Average Federal Agencies - 100 % 0.931 105,000,000.00 105,000,000.00 105,000,000.00 1,150

LAIF LGIP LAIF4000 9/30/2018 0.861 31,999,758.81 31,999,758.81 31,999,758.81 N/A 1

Sub Total / Average Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M 0.861 31,999,758.81 31,999,758.81 31,999,758.81 1

T-Note 0.016 4/30/2023 912828R28 5/11/2022 0.394 5,000,000.00 4,981,750.00 5,000,000.00 4/30/2023 304

T-Note 2.75 5/31/2023 9128284S6 6/16/2022 2.921 3,000,000.00 2,995,148.43 3,000,000.00 5/31/2023 335

Sub Total / Average Treasury Notes | Bonds - 100 % 1.341 8,000,000.00 7,976,898.43 8,000,000.00 316

U.S. Bank MM MM5280 8/3/2021 1.260 6,208,799.42 6,208,799.42 6,208,799.42 N/A 1

Sub Total / Average U.S. Bank Money Market - 5% 1.260 6,208,799.42 6,208,799.42 6,208,799.42 1

UBS Financial MM MM9591 6/30/2018 0.980 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 N/A 1

Sub Total / Average UBS Money Market - 5 % 0.980 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 1

Total / Average 0.990 175,403,558.23 175,252,603.88 175,403,558.23 746

Maturity 
Date

Days To 
Maturity

U.S. Bank Money Market - 5%

UBS Money Market - 5 %

Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M

Treasury Notes | Bonds - 100 %

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date YTM Face Amount Cost Value Market Value



COUNTY OF INYO

PARS OPEB Trust Program 6/1/2022 to 6/30/2022

Leslie Chapman

County Administrative Officer

County of Inyo

P.O. Drawer N

Independence, CA 93526

Source 6/1/2022 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 6/30/2022

OPEB 1001 $9,233,673.70 $300,000.00 -$479,257.53 $2,240.51 $0.00 $0.00 $9,052,175.66

Totals $9,233,673.70 $300,000.00 -$479,257.53 $2,240.51 $0.00 $0.00 $9,052,175.66

Source

OPEB

Source

OPEB

Source 1-Month 3-Months 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years 10-Years

OPEB -5.19% -10.17% -12.95% 3.55% 4.85% 6.21% 6/16/2010

Information as provided by US Bank, Trustee for PARS;  Not FDIC Insured;  No Bank Guarantee;  May Lose Value

                                            Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660     800.540.6369     Fax 949.250.1250     www.pars.org

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a 

significant portion of total return, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity 

and fixed income investments.

Plan's Inception Date

Investment Objective

Account Report for the Period

Beginning Balance 

as of 

Investment Selection

Account Summary

Moderate HighMark PLUS

Ending                

Balance as of

Account balances are inclusive of Trust Administration, Trustee and Investment Management fees

Annualized Return

Investment Return:  Annualized rate of return is the return on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return.

Past performance does not guarantee future results.  Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reduce returns.  Information is deemed reliable but may be subject to change.

Investment Return



Department ofAlcoholic Beverage Control
APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE(S)

State of California

ABC 2l (6/99\

TO: Deparlment of Alcoholic Beverage Control
48OO STOCKDALE HWY
STE 2I3
BAKERSFIELD, CA 93309
(661) 39s-2731

DISTRICT SERVTNG LOCATION

First Owner:

Name of Business:

Location of Business:

County:

Is Premises inside city limits?

Mai I ing Address : (If different
from
prcmises address)

Type of license(s):

Transferor's I icense/name :

File Number: 640380
Receipt Number:
Geographical Code: 1400
Copies Mailedp4te: August 11,2022
Issued Date: 

S
BAKERSFIELD

ZELLIIOEFER, JON WILLIAM
DIAMOND LIL'S
59 OLD SPANISH TRAIL SUITB F
TECOPA, CA 92389

INYO

Yes Census Tract:

PO BOX 34
TECOPA, CA 92389

RECETVEO

AUG I 62s2?

"*mms:xn"

0008.00

4g Dropping Pafiner: Yes- No-/
585877 / ZELL}JOEFER, JON WILLIAM

License lvpe Transaction Tvpe
48 - On-Sale General Public Premises PRM

Master Secondary LTAnd Count
Y

License lvpe
Application Fee

Transaction Description
PREMISES TO PREMISES TRF

Fee Code
NA

Date
08nU22

Fee
$81 5.00

Dup
0

Total $815.00

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? No
Have you ever violated any provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, or regulations of the
Department pertaining to the Act? No

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Applicant Name(s)

ZELLHOEFER, JON WILLIAM

County of INYO Date: August 11,2022



Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control
APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE(S)
ABC2n 6t99\

State of California

TO:Deparlment ofAlcoholic Beverage Control File Number': 640405
4800 STOCKDALE HWY ReceiptNumber: Z7420Ss
STE 213 Geographical Code: 1400
BAKERSFIELD, cA 93309 copies Mailed D_ate: August 12,2022(661)395-2731 Issued Darc:qR

DISTRICT SERVING LoCATIoN: BAKERSFIELD O FECEIVED

First Owner: ZELLHOEFER, CHERYL KAy AU0 I 6 2022
Name of Business: DEATH VALLBY BREWING
Location of Business: 59 OLD SPANISH TRAIL BLDG 1 STE A '"*.ffi,ffiffto

TECOPA, CA 92389

County: INYO

Is Premises inside city limits? Yes Census Tract: 0008.00

Mailing Address:(If different PO BOX 34
from TECOPA, CA 92389
premises address)

Type of license(s): 23 Dropping Partner: Yes- Noy'
Transferor's license/name: 572486 I ZELLIJ,OEFER, JON WILLIAM
License Type
23 - Small Beer Manufacturer

Transaction TVpe Master Secondary LT And Count
YFID

License Type
Application Fee

Transaction Description Fee Code Dup
0FIDUCIARY TRANSFER NA

Date
08/12/22

Fee
$ 105.00

Total $ 105.00

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? No
Have you ever violated any provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage ControlAct, or regulations of the
Depaftment pertaining to the Act? No

STATE OF CALIFORNIA County of INYO

Applicant Name(s)

ZELLHOEFER, CHERYL KAY

Date: August 12,2022


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) (Comments

	 Closed Session
	2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Pursuant 
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursu

	 Open Session
	4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)
	7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	8. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b
	9. PROCLAMATION - Supervisor Roeser - Request Board a
	Patriot Day 2022 Proclamation


	 Consent Agenda
	10. Request Board adopt proposed Resolution 2022-30, a
	Agenda Request Form
	GANN Limit Resolution 2022-30
	GANN Limit 2022-2023 Attachment A Page 1
	GANN Proceed from Taxes Calculation

	11. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2022-31, sett
	Agenda Request Form
	Tax Rate Resolution 2022

	12. Request Board renew delegation of authority for th
	Agenda Request Form

	13. Request Board discuss and consider staff's recomme
	Agenda Request Form
	April 12, 2022 Emergency Declaration

	14. Request Board: A) declare Maverick Networks, Inc.,
	Agenda Request Form
	Maintenence Agreement  - County of Inyo - 2022
	Maintenence Agreement  Schedule A  -  County of Inyo - 2022
	Maverick Contract

	15. Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 th
	Agenda Request Form
	AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations

	16. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2022-32, titl
	Agenda Request Form
	Child Abuse Prevention Council Resolution
	Inyo County Child Abuse Prevention Council Bylaws
	Child Abuse Prevention Council Nominating Form

	17. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Crisis Care Mobile Unit Contract

	18. Request Board ratify and approve the contract betw
	Agenda Request Form
	Bishop Indian Head Start Contract
	LR 22-0713 Signature Page BIHS Contract FIRST 5
	BIHS 22-23_Standard Contract-no.116
	01 - 2022 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - FIRST 5s


	19. Request Board ratify and approve the contract betw
	Agenda Request Form
	Discovery Point Preschool Contract
	DPP Contract (1)
	DPP Contract
	DPP signed contract
	01 - 2022 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - FIRST 5s

	01 - 2022 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - FIRST 5s

	DPP Contract (2.1)


	20. Request Board: A) declare Thurmond Consulting, LLC
	Agenda Request Form
	Thurmond Consulting FY 22-23 Contract
	County of Inyo Contract 7.29.2022.pdf
	Thurmond Consulting Contract.pdf

	attachment c to Thurmond Contract.pdf


	21. Request Board approve the agreement between the Co
	Agenda Request Form
	Sacred Rok Contract

	22. Request Board authorize the Public Works Director 
	Agenda Request Form
	Eastern Sierra Engineering/Onion Valley Contract
	Changer Order 1 , Task 8 
	ESE Change Order #1.pdf
	Task 8 Unsigned.pdf


	23. Request Board: A) approve the plans and specificat
	Agenda Request Form
	Diaz Boat Dock Schedule 
	Diaz Lake ADA Dock Bid Package 
	Diaz Lake ADA Dock Bid Package 9-1-22.pdf
	Diaz Lake ADA Dock Bid Package 8-31-22.pdf
	Diaz Updated Bid package  wo insurance or bond mods 8-30-22.pdf
	Diaz Updated Bid package  wo Insurance mods 8-30-22.pdf
	Bid Package Base Document 8-30-22.pdf
	Diaz Lake Non-Motorized Boat Dock Specifications REV 8.22.22.pdf
	PART 1  GENERAL
	2.1  Materials
	PART 3  EXECUTION
	3.1  Delivery
	3.2  Installation
	3.3  Welding

	DIaz Boat Dock Site Specifications 8-30-22.pdf
	Diaz Dock Plans Complete 8-23-22 1012 AMPDT.pdf
	Diaz Dock Plans Complete 8-23-22 948AMPDT.pdf
	Diaz Dock Plans (DBW) 8-21-22 stamped by M.Errante.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-T1
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-G1
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-C1
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-C3
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-C6
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-A1
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-A2
	Diaz Dock (DBW) 8-18-22-S1


	Diaz Dock Plans (8-23-22) updated elevations -C2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C2


	Diaz Dock Plans (8-23-22) updated elevations C4 HW.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C4 HW


	Diaz Dock Plans (8-23-22) updated elevations -C5 LW.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C5 LW



	Diaz Dock Plans (8-23-22) updated elevations-S2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S2



	2561_001 (002).pdf

	2639_001 (002).pdf


	Updated Contract and Bond Forms from Grace 8-31-22.pdf
	Updated Insurance Forms from Aaron 8-31-22.pdf

	Complete Set of Updated Plans 9-1-22 857AMPDT.pdf
	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-T1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	T1


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-G1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	G1


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-C1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C1


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-C2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C2


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-C3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C3


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-C4 HW.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C4 HW


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-C5 LW.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C5 LW


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-C6.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C6


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-A1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-A2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-S1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S1


	Diaz Dock Plans (9-1-22)-S2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S2





	24. Request Board: A) approve the contract between the
	Agenda Request Form
	American Asphalt Bid Package (Apparent Low Bidder)
	Bid Tab Sheet
	Knight Manor Slurry Seal Road List 
	Grandview Slurry Seal Road List 
	American Asphalt Construction Contract 
	American Asphalt Construction Contract 8-19-22.pdf
	Insurance Requirements from Aaron 4-14-22.pdf

	SB 1 Road Projects 

	25. Request Board approve proposed Resolution No. 2022
	Agenda Request Form
	Notice of Completion  Resolution
	Notice of Completion Hangar Demolition
	Clair Contract - Signed

	26. Request Board receive written report regarding eme
	Agenda Request Form
	Hydraulic Pump


	 Departmental
	27. Request Board provide direction to the Owens Valle
	Agenda Request Form
	Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Draft Agenda 09.15.22
	OVGA Draft Ordinance 2022-01 

	28. Request Board discuss and consider staff's recomme
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution No. 2022-29

	29. Request Board discuss and consider staff's recomme
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution No. 2022-24

	30. Request Board discuss and consider staff's recomme
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution No. 2017-15 Amended

	31. Request Board waive further reading of proposed Or
	Agenda Request Form
	Proposed Ordinance Amending 1.28.040

	32. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	33. The Board will recess and reconvene as the Inyo Co
	September 6, 2022 BOE Agenda
	August 16, 2022 BOE Minutes
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-02 (Supplemental)
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-03 (Escape)
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-04 (Supplemental)
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-05 (Escape)
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-20
	Assessment Appeal Application 2020-21
	Waiver to Extend Two-Year Period-Xanterra
	Xanterra Hearing Notice - 09.06.22


	 Comment
	34. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Action
	35. Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Commission - Request
	Bishop Chamber Fishing Map Funding Request 2022


	 Correspondence - Informational
	36. Treasury Status Report - Quarter Ending June 30, 2022
	Agenda Request Form
	06-30-2022 Treasury Status Report

	37. California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Contro
	ABC Permit Applications



	CONTRACTOR:                                                       American Asphalt South, Inc.
	PROJECT:                                 Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal
	20:        September 6
	by and between the: 22
	hereinafter referred to as:                      American Asphalt South, Inc.
	parties:              Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal
	PROJECT_2:                                    Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal
	calendar days after:    15
	dollars: Four Hundred Fifty Seven Thousand, One Hundred Sixty Seven Dollars and Thirty Cents
	Text1:     457,167.30
	Project: Knight Manor  and Grandview Slurry Seal Project
	Public Works Department: Michael Errante, Director of Public Works
	Independence CA 93526 1: Jeff Petty, President
	Independence CA 93526 2: American Asphalt South, Inc.
	Independence CA 93526 3: 19792 El Rivino Road
	Independence CA 93526 4: Riverside, CA 92509
	By: 
	Name: 
	Title: 
	Dated: 
	County Counsel: 
	County Auditor: 
	CONTRACTOR_2: 
	By_2: 
	Name_2: 
	Title_2: 
	Dated_2: 
	County Risk Manager: 
	PROJECT_3:                       Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal
	as Principal hereinafter Contractor: 
	Name of Contractor: 
	Text4: 
	dollars_2: 
	Text2: 
	       for: 
	Text3: 
	entered into an Contract with the County for the Construction of the: 
	20_2: 
	PROJECT hereinafter referred to as Project to be constructed in: 
	accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract for the Project which contract: 
	Signed and sealed this: 
	20_3: 
	undefined: 
	Name of Corporate Surety: 
	Title of Authorized Person: 
	Address for Notices to be Sent: 
	Name of Contractor_2: 
	Title of Authorized Person_2: 
	Address for Notices to be Sent_2: 
	PROJECT_4:                              Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal
	Name of Contractor_3: 
	as Principal hereinafter CONTRACTOR: 
	Name of Corporate Surety_2: 
	for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind: 
	Text5: 
	20_4: 
	undefined_2: 
	PROJECT hereinafter referred to as PROJECT to be constructed in accordance with the: 
	Signed and sealed this_2: 
	20_5: 
	undefined_3: 
	Name of Contractor_4: 
	Title of Authorized Person_3: 
	Address for Notices to be Sent_3: 
	Name of Corporate Surety_3: 
	Title of Authorized Person_4: 
	Address for Notices to be Sent_4: 
	Text6:    American Asphalt South, Inc.
	Text7:  Knight Manor and Grandview Slurry Seal
	FROM:      9-6-2022
	TO:      12-31-2022


